Public Document Pack

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on
Tuesday, 12th January, 2016 at 4.30 pm
in Concorde Room, Council Offices, Farnborough

To:
Councillor P.J. Moyle
Councillor K.H. Muschamp, Deputy Leader and Business, Safety and Regulation
Portfolio Holder

Councillor Hughes, Health and Housing Portfolio
Councillor Sue Carter
Councillor P.G. Taylor, Corporate Services Portfolio Holder
Councillor R.L.G. Dibbs
Councillor A. Jackman

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to Chris Todd, Democratic
Services, Democratic and Customer Services on 01252 398825 or e-mail:
chris.todd@rushmoor.gov.uk

A full copy of this agenda can be found here:
www.rushmoor.gov.uk/

AGENDA

MINUTES - (Pages 1 -4)

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 15th December, 2017 (copy
attached).

COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2016/17 — (Pages 5 - 66)




(Concessions and Community Support)

To consider the Corporate Director’'s Report No. CD1601 (copy attached), regarding
responses to the public consultation and the recommendation to the Council of an
amended Scheme for the 2016/17 financial year.

GRANTS TO VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS — (Pages 67 - 68)
(Concessions and Community Support)

To consider the Head of Community and Environmental Services’ Report No.
COMM1601 (copy attached), which sets out applications for grants from voluntary
organisations.

HART LOCAL PLAN - CONSULTATION ON REVISED OPTIONS FOR
STRATEGIC NEW HOMES GROWTH AND SITE ALLOCATIONS - (Pages 69 -
78)

(Environment and Service Delivery)

To consider the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1601 (copy attached), which
provides a summary of the content and issues that have been identified with Hart
District Council’'s ‘Refined Options for Strategic New Homes Growth and Site
Allocations’ document and a draft Local Plan Vision and Strategic Priorities
document, with regard to their potential impact on Rushmoor.

ALDERSHOT TOWN CENTRE PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING
DOCUMENT - (Pages 79 - 364)
(Environment and Service Delivery)

To consider the Head of Planning’s Report No. PLN1602 (copy attached), which sets

out responses to the Council’s recent consultation exercise and seeks adoption of
the Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus Supplementary Planning Document.



69.

70.

AGENDA ITEM No. 1

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL

CABINET

Tuesday, 15th December, 2015 at 4.30 pm
at the Council Offices, Farnborough

Councillor P.J. Moyle
Councillor K.H. Muschamp, Deputy Leader and Business, Safety and
Regulation Portfolio Holder

Councillor Hughes, Health and Housing Portfolio
* Councillor Sue Carter
Councillor P.G. Taylor, Corporate Services Portfolio Holder
Councillor R.L.G. Dibbs
Councillor A. Jackman

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Sue Carter.

The Cabinet considered the following matters at the above-mentioned meeting. All
executive decisions of the Cabinet shall become effective, subject to the call-in
procedure, from 31st December, 2015.

MINUTES -

The Minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 17th November, 2015 were
confirmed and signed by the Chairman.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS MID-YEAR REPORT 2015/16 —
(Corporate Services)

The Cabinet received the Head of Financial Services' Report No. FIN1522, which set
out the main activities of the treasury management operations during the first half of
2015/16 and provided an update on the current economic conditions affecting
treasury management decisions. The appendix to the Report showed the actual
prudential indicators relating to capital and treasury activities for the first half of
2015/16 and compared these to the indicators which had been set in the Annual
Treasury Management Strategy for the year, which had been approved by the
Council in February, 2015.

1-

Pack Page 1



71.

The Cabinet was informed that the Council’s existing treasury management advisers,
Arlingclose Limited, had been successful in a recent tendering exercise and would,
therefore, continue to provide advice for a further contract period. It was noted that
the current year had remained challenging in terms of treasury management.
Following the previously agreed changes to the Strategy, the Council's treasury team
had continued to concentrate on the security of investments but had diversified the
range of counterparties used to maximise returns, following guidance from its
advisers. In particular, investment activity had been extended further into pooled
funds, which had provided higher returns than investments that had been favoured
previously. It was noted that the capital value of some pooled fund investments had
fallen, although income returns were still performing well. Those funds which had
fallen in value would be retained until the capital value was greater than the initial
investment, meaning that no loss would be recognised. Members heard how losses
on capital value were only recognised on sale of the fund or at such time that the
reduction was material and sustained. It was normal for these assets to fluctuate in
value. Arlingclose had compiled a benchmarking list of its clients and the Council’s
return on its total investment portfolio during the previous six months had been 1.7%,
which compared favourably against the average of 0.87% of 122 local authority
clients. The Cabinet was informed that it was not proposed to alter the treasury
management strategy at the present time.

It was confirmed that the Council had complied with its Treasury and Prudential
Indicators for 2015/16.

The Cabinet NOTED the Council’'s treasury management operations in the
first half of 2015/16, as set out in the Head of Financial Services' Report No.
FIN1522.

REVIEW OF FEES AND CHARGES —
(Leisure and Youth / Environment and Service Delivery / Health and Housing)

The Cabinet considered the Head of Community and Environmental Services’
Report No. COMM1522, which recommended new charges for the Aldershot
Crematorium, cemeteries, halls and pavilions, allotments, football, cricket, Princes
Hall, waste management and Environmental Health and Housing services.

The Cabinet noted that the core prices for the Farnborough Leisure Centre,
Aldershot Pools and Southwood Golf Course would be subject to increases in line
with the contracts, linked to the January Retail Price Index, which would be available
from March, 2016. It was proposed to raise the cremation fee from £797 to £817.50.
The results of benchmarking indicated that this fee remained competitive but towards
the upper end of the scale, reflecting the high quality of service provided.

The new fees and charges would be introduced on 1st April, 2016, with the charges
for football pitches being increased for the 2016/17 season and allotments from 1st
April, 2017, as a year’s notice had to be given.

The additional annual income resulting from the increase in fees and charges was
estimated at £35,000, which would form part of the 2016/17 draft budget.

2.

Pack Page 2



72.

The Cabinet RESOLVED that the fees and charges, as set out in the Head of
Community and Environment Services’ Report No. COMM1522, be approved.

RUSHMOOR LOCAL PLAN WORK PROGRAMME -
(Environment and Service Delivery)

The Cabinet considered the Head of Planning's Report No. PLN1558, which
provided an update the future work programme for the preparation for the new
Rushmoor Local Plan. It was explained that it was necessary to make some changes
to the work programme due to changes to the plan making process, as set out in the
National Planning Policy Framework and supporting National Planning Practice
Guidance, in particular as they related to cross boundary working on key strategic
planning issues. Also, the Housing and Planning Bill was, currently, making its way
through Parliament and the implications of this would also need to be considered. It
was confirmed that the Council did have an adopted Core Strategy in place, which
many other local authorities did not have at this point. The delays described meant
that the timescale for the production of a new Local Plan would slip by around a
year. It was noted that this extra time would allow for new staffing arrangements,
agreed by the Cabinet in November, 2015, to become established.

Members heard how consultation on the new plan, originally scheduled for January,
2016, would now take place in October, 2016. Adoption of the new Plan would now
be scheduled for December, 2017. If agreed, these changes to the work programme
would be published on the Council’'s website with effect from 1st January, 2016.
Members were assured that the new work programme would enable the Council to
produce a Local Plan that was robust and sound. There were still some risks due to
uncertainty relating to the evolution of the Housing and Planning Bill and it was
possible that the timetable would need to be adjusted again, once the implications of
the Bill had become clearer.

The Cabinet RESOLVED that

(i) the revised timetable for the next steps in the preparation of the
Rushmoor Local Plan, as set out in paragraph 5.2 of the Head of
Planning’s Report No. PLN1558, be approved;

(i)  an updated Rushmoor Local Development Scheme 2016 — 2019,
incorporating the timetable changes agreed at resolution (i) above, be
approved for publication on the Council’'s website, with effect from 1st
January, 2016; and

the Head of Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Environment and

Service Delivery, be authorised to make any necessary minor amendments to the
Local Development Scheme.

The Meeting closed at 4.53 pm.

Pack Page 3



D.E. CLIFFORD
LEADER OF THE COUNCIL

Pack Page 4



AGENDA ITEM No. 2
AGENDA ITEM 2

CABINET CORPORATE DIRECTOR & HEAD OF FINANCE
12" January 2016 Report No: CD1601

Council Tax Support Scheme 2016/17

1 Introduction
1.1  This report is to:

a) Consider the outcome of the recent public consultation exercise in respect
of potential changes to the Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS)

b) Consider the recommendations and comments from the Council’'s Welfare
Reform Task and Finish Group

c) In light of a) and b) above, agree the recommendations for the CTSS for
the 2016/17 financial year to be put forward to a special meeting of
Council on the 27" January 2016

2 Background

2.1 As Members will be aware, since the 1% April 2013, local authorities have
developed their own CTSS to replace the previous national Council Tax
Benefit Regulations.

2.2  In Rushmoor, we are currently in our third year of operating our local scheme,
which seeks a minimum 8% contribution from those of working age, treats
income from child maintenance or child benefit as real income within the
scheme calculations, disregards all income from War Widow Pensions but in
all other respects, mirrors the previous Council Tax Benefit Regulations.

2.3  This local scheme has proved effective, has been implemented successfully
and the Council Tax collection rates have remained stable whilst scheme
costs have steadily reduced alongside claimant numbers. Government
funding for the scheme was reduced by around 10% at the time of the transfer
of responsibility and has subsequently been wrapped up in the formula
funding regime and Business Rate Retention Scheme and subject to further
reduction since. At present a total allocation is not visible as a single line
within the funding settlement. Consequently, direct comparisons between total
scheme costs and offset funding available are not possible for local
authorities. This is a matter that the Local Government Association (LGA) has
called upon the Government to redress “in order that councils can design their
schemes and consult their residents each year in full possession of the facts”.

2.4  The overall scheme design and effectiveness continues to be overseen by the
cross Member Welfare Reform Task and Finish Group (WRTFG).

2.5 In the 8" July 2015 budget announcement, the Chancellor set out further
plans to extend the Government’s Welfare Reform programme. Some of the
detailed announcements made at that time, gave rise to reconsider the
Council’'s own CTSS. This was set out to Cabinet in report CD1513 at its
meeting on the 20™ October 2015. At that meeting, Cabinet agreed that a
public consultation be undertaken on options for change to be effective from

Pack Page 5



1% April 2016. The suggested options for change had been carefully
considered by the WRTFG taking into account lessons from others, our own
experience of running CTSS for 2 and a half years and a thorough
examination of a broad base of data and evidence. (Appendix 1 shows an
example of other local authority CTSS that the Group used to give a context).

3 Feedback on Public Consultation Exercise

3.1 Following the Cabinet’s decision on 20"™ October 2015 to undertake a
consultation exercise a six week consultation period ran from 9" November
2015 — 21° December 2015. In summary:

U 3,000 Council Tax payers selected at random were sent the consultation

O All 2,565 working age CTS claimants were sent the consultation

U An on-line survey was made available on the Council’'s website throughout
the six week period

U 791 surveys were completed, the results presented reflect those who
answered the question and exclude those who selected ‘I don’t know’

U In total there where 290 surveys returned from those on council tax
support (273 paper surveys and 17 online surveys) and 501 surveys
returned from those not on council tax support (433 paper surveys and 68
online surveys)

U Due to the specific personal nature of this consultation, the only specialist
response sought was from Citizen’ Advice (attached at Appendix 2).
Registered Social Landlords were generally made aware of the exercise.

3.2  Attached at Appendix 3 is the detailed consultation report in full and attached
in Appendix 4 is the graphic representation for easy reference of the 11
guestions considered around the nine options for scheme design and funding
arrangements.

O Options for scheme design consulted on were:

Increase minimum contribution from 8% to either 10% or 12%
Removal of the family premium for either all or new claimants
Reducing the savings threshold from £16k to £6k

Limiting support at the Band D level

Reducing backdate periods to a maximum 4 week period
Option to keep the scheme the same

R A

O Additional consultation questions on how the scheme could be
funded:
1. General increase in council tax
2. Reducing or stopping other services
3. Using Council reserves

3.3 The need for additional questions around funding options have become
evident since the outcome of the Supreme Court hearing in October 2014 in
the Stirling / Moseley v The London Borough of Haringey case. The Court
found that Haringey had acted unlawfully in its consultation on its CTSS in
that it had “misleadingly failed to provide alternative options for meeting the

Pack Page 6



3.4

4.1

4.2

shortfall resulting from the 10% cut in Government funding for CTS, other than
a reduction in the support available”

Clearly to demonstrate good practise and avoid any legal challenge around
process any recommendations for change should centre around the issues
consulted upon and there needs to be demonstrable evidence that any
recommendations for change do take into account the responses to the
consultation received.

Consideration by the Welfare Reform Task & Finish Group

The WRTFG have continued to meet this calendar year (27/1/15, 23/6/15,
11/8/15, 5/10/15, 12/10/15 and 22/12/15) monitoring the impact that the
Scheme has had on our residents and particularly this year has focused on
the changing environment around welfare and the reduced funding available
to support such schemes.

The Group has specifically considered the CTSS and spent the majority of its
meeting time at the two October meetings considering an approach to change
and the associated necessary consultation. The Group’s meeting on 22
December 2015 focussed on the detailed consultation responses and
preparation of a series of recommendations as a result.

Recommendations and Associated Rationale from the Welfare Reform
Task & Finish Group

Recommendations Rationale
Increase the minimum | This was supported by 52.7% of all valid
contribution from 8% to 10% respondents to the consultation as

opposed to 35.4% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. There was strong support
for this option amongst residents
generally and even a level of
acceptability proffered amongst those in
receipt of CTS. This response contrasts
quite starkly to the response to the 12%
option, which had a majority against that
option and was much more strongly
opposed amongst recipients of CTS.
Financially the WRTFG considered this
presented a potentially affordable option
for residents, leaving those in Band C
properties (most typical in Rushmoor)
facing minimum payments of around
£2.54 per week equating to around
£132.45 annually as opposed to
£1324.52 for a full rate (thus retaining an
annual discount of around £1,000).

Remove the Family Premium | This option was supported by 52% of all

for new working age claimants | valid respondents to the consultation as

Pack Page 7




opposed to 32.3% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. There was strong support
for this option amongst residents
generally and also a level of acceptability
amongst those in receipt of CTS. This
response contrasts with the response to
the option to remove the Family Premium
for all working age claimants which
carried less support generally, although
was much more strongly opposed
amongst recipients of CTS. The WRTFG
considered this a viable option, as this
would mirror the arrangements from 1%
April 2016 for Housing Benefit (HB)
applicants (many applicants in Rushmoor
access both HB and CTS via a single
application process currently). The
approach of removing the premium for
new claimants only was seen as offering
a way of phasing in this change over
time.

Reduce the amount of savings
from £16,000 to £6,000 before
claiming CTS

This option was supported by 63.2% of
all valid respondents to the consultation
as opposed to 27.9% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. There was a majority in
favour of this option amongst residents
generally and also amongst those in
receipt of CTS (where it was actually the
most strongly supported of all the options
for change). The WRTFG considered
this a viable option as this would affect
relatively few people (estimated less than
50), would serve the principle of trying to
focus support to “the most vulnerable”
which this group seemed somewhat at
odds with and this change seemed to
strongly resonate  with  residents
(receiving strong support and attracting
some 179 freeform additional comments
- the most of any of the specific proposed
changes other than the general %
increase proposals).

Limit support at the Band D
level for those living in
properties banded higher than
D

This option was supported by 63.4% of
all valid respondents to the consultation
as opposed to 21.2% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. There was a majority in
favour of this option amongst residents
generally and also amongst those in

Pack Page 8




receipt of CTS. The WRTFG considered
this a viable option as this would affect
relatively few people (estimated less than
50), would still provide a degree of
support to those living in the higher
banded properties and seemed to
strongly  resonate  with  residents
(receiving strong support and attracting
some 147 freeform additional comments
— with a focus on fairness and options to
move to smaller properties being
common themes).

Reduce the limit of backdated | This option was supported by 67.5% of
claims to four weeks all valid respondents to the consultation
as opposed to 20.2% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. There was a majority in
favour of this option amongst residents
generally and also amongst those in
receipt of CTS. The WRTFG considered
this a viable option as this would mirror
the arrangements from 1% April 2016 for
Housing Benefit (HB) applicants (many
applicants in Rushmoor access both HB
and CTS via a single application process
currently). Furthermore the change was
not considered likely to affect a
significant number of people (it would
have affected a maximum number of 78
in the previous year). The proposal also
seemed to strongly resonate with
residents (receiving the strongest support
and attracting some 145 freeform
additional comments — with a focus on 4
weeks being a reasonable amount of
time and some sense that the Council
should be able to make provisions for
“exceptions”).

Options considered in the consultation but not recommended for
adoption by Welfare Reform Task & Finish Group along with the
associated rationale

Recommendations Rationale
Increase the minimum | This was supported by 38.2% of all valid
contribution from 8% to 12% respondents to the consultation as

opposed to 51.4% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. This contrasted to the
more acceptable option of an increase to
10% as explained in the table above.

Pack Page 9



Remove the Family Premium
for all working age claimants

This was supported by 48.7% of all valid
respondents to the consultation as
opposed to 35.6% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. So whilst more were in
favour of this option than against
respondents gave a stronger preference
for the gradual removal of Family
Premium suggested in the option in the
table above.

Keep the current CTSS exactly
the same

This was supported by 44.92% of all
valid respondents to the consultation as
opposed to 40.9% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. In many respects this was
the most finely balanced of all the
opinions obtained.

The WRTFG did not consider this a
viable option however as there was not a
clear majority position and several of the
other options (5, 6 and 7 for example)
had given clear preference for changes
amongst all residents thus creating a
clear inconsistency with this view.

Seek to fund the CTSS
specifically by a general
increase in the Council Tax

This was supported by 17.72% of all
valid respondents to the consultation as
opposed to 67.4% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. This was the suggestion
that respondents most clearly disagreed
with. The WRTFG did not consider this a
viable option due to the level of general
unacceptability — both CTS recipients
and general residents alike taking a
majority position against this option.

Seek to fund the CTSS
specifically by reducing other
services

This was supported by 18.7% of all valid
respondents to the consultation as
opposed to 64.1% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. So, whilst slightly more
acceptable than the previous option
respondents were clearly not in favour of
CTSS being funded at the expense of a
loss of service elsewhere. Again, the
WRTFG did not consider this a viable
option due to the level of general
unacceptability — both CTS recipients
and general residents alike taking a
majority position against this option.

Seek to fund the CTSS
specifically by using reserves

This was supported by 24.4% of all valid
respondents to the consultation as

Pack Page 10




7.1

7.2

8.1

8.2

8.3

opposed to 56.8% who disagreed; the
remainder remaining silent or neutral on
the question. So, whilst more acceptable
than the previous two alternate funding
options respondents were not in favour of
CTSS being funded by the use of
reserves. Once again, the WRTFG did
not consider this a viable option due to
the level of general unacceptability — but
did note the difference in view regarding
this option in that CTS recipients were
more inclined to favour this funding
option whilst general residents were
strongly opposed.

Other Considerations from the Welfare Reform Task & Finish Group

In addition to the specific Scheme recommendations, the WRTFG further
recommended that should a basket of changes be introduced to the CTSS
with effect from the 1 April 2016, Cabinet and subsequently Council should
endorse the principle that an exceptional Hardship Fund be continued to
assist residents adversely affected by the changes whilst they work through a
period of transition.

The WRTFG also noted the an Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) should
accompany any changes ultimately recommended to Council.

Financial Implications

Attached at Appendix 5, is a table showing the potential financial impact for
customers of increasing the minimum contribution from 8% to 10% or 12%
and using the assumption that all preceptors will seek to increase their
Council Tax charges for the 2016/17 financial year. Whilst, clearly there are
several potential variables here, hopefully this paints a “worst case scenario”
for customers for context.

The overall scheme financial implications are always difficult to be specific
about due to a whole range of variables such as increasing charges, changes
to the numbers on both the Council Tax list and of those claiming support and
general changes in liability. However, the current Scheme costs are running
at around £4.2m which is in essence a charge against the collection fund for
all preceptors and borne as “revenue foregone”.

If the five recommendations for change had been implemented during the
current year, the impact on Scheme costs is estimated as follows:

10% minimum contribution - £53,257 cost reduction

Removal of family premium (new) - £6,000 cost reduction

Reducing savings threshold - £21,748 cost reduction

Limiting support at Band D - £10,613 cost reduction

Limiting backdate period — between £0 and £10,000 cost reduction

U000 0

Pack Page 11



8.4

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

10

10.1

The sum of the changes set out in 8.3 equates to around £100,000 in cost
reduction against the current Scheme cost of £4.2m, which is roughly 2.5%. If
preceptors increase their Council Tax charges for 2016/17, this will increase
the total amount of Council Tax collected but will also in turn, increase Council
Tax Support awarded.

Conclusions

Rushmoor’s current CTSS has proved effective since its implementation on
the 1% April 2013. The Government’s announcements to continue the Welfare
Reform programme as well as generally reducing financial support to local
authorities, suggest that the time is right to re-examine our current offer for
CTSS.

The WRTFG have carefully considered a range of options for potential
change and following Cabinet endorsement, these have been tested by a
robust public consultation.

The public consultation indicates a broad range of support for some modest
changes to Rushmoor's CTSS. The consultation also provides a very clear
view in respect of alternate funding options for the CTSS which are not
acceptable.

The WRTFG have put forward a package of recommended changes for
Cabinet consideration that takes into account the views of the consultation,
alongside a carefully balanced view on affordability and impact.

The changes recommended strike a balance between seeking to harmonise
with other changes in the Welfare Reform programme, recognising the
financial challenges to be faced over the medium term whilst still providing a
significant level of support to local residents.

Recommendations
The Cabinet are recommended to:

a) Note the information contained in the report and associated appendices
and the outcome of the public consultation exercise in respect of potential
changes to Rushmoor’s Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS)

b) Consider the work of the Council’'s Welfare Reform Task and Finish Group
(WRTFG) and their recommendations following the public consultation
exercise

c) Agree a final proposed CTSS for 2016/17 to be recommended to Council
for consideration at its meeting on the 27" January 2016

lan Harrison Amanda Fahey
Corporate Director Head of Finance

Pack Page 12



CTS - Neighbours

2" adult Support .
. . . . Min weekly
. Min Savings rebate restrictedto a
Local Authority .. ) CTS
payment Limit reduced or particular CT e

abolished band pay
Guildford No 0.0% 6,000 Yes D £10.00
Hart No 0.0% 16,000 No N/A £0.00
Rushmoor Yes 8% 16,000 No N/A £0.00
Surrey Heath Yes 30% 6,000 Yes D £5.00
Waverley No 0.0% 16,000 Yes D £5.00

cT abed xoed

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

APPENDIX 1

Hardship

Fund

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

No




CTS - Audit Family

o
Q
O
==
o
Q
O

. . . 2' adult Sl..|pp0rt Min weekly .
Local Authority Min Min Saym.gs rebate restn_cted to a TS Taper | Hardship
payment Level Limit reduced or particular CT rate Fund
abolished band payment

Broxbourne Yes 20% 16,000 Yes E £0.00 0.25 No
Cherwell No 0.0% 16,000 No N/A £0.00 0.2 No
Colchester Yes 20% 6,000 Yes N/A £1.00 0.2 No
Dartford Yes 18.5% 16,000 No N/A £0.00 0.2 No
East Staffordshire Yes 25% 10,000 Yes D £0.00 0.2 Yes
Gloucester No 0.0% 16,000 No N/A £0.00 0.2 No
Gravesham Yes 18.5% 16,000 No N/A £0.00 0.2 No
High Peak No 0.0% 16,000 No N/A £0.00 0.2 No
Kettering Yes 25% 16,000 Yes N/A £0.00 0.2 No
Her::g:;'s'hire Yes 25% 16,000 No N/A £0.00 0.2 NO
Rugby Yes 15% 10,000 Yes N/A £1.00 0.2 No
Rushmoor Yes 8% 16,000 No N/A £0.00 0.2 Yes
South Ribble Yes 17% 16,000 No N/A £0.00 0.2 Yes
Wellingborough Yes 20% 16,000 Yes N/A £1.00 0.2 No
Worcester No 0.0% 6,000 Yes D £5.00 0.2 Yes

HJSHMOOR
BOROUGH COUNCIL




APPENDIX 2

citizens

advice

Citizens Advice Rushmoor

Response to Consultation on Changes to Council Tax Support December 2015

1. Background and Context

1.1. Current and forthcoming changes to welfare benefits, within the overall welfare reform
agenda, continue to create serious problems for clients of Citizens Advice Rushmaoor.
The issues particularly focus around under-occupancy rules, conditionality, claimant
commitment and sanctions; alongside general delays and difficulties with administration
and making claims. This has led to increasing levels of crisis seen by clients, who are
left with no income, resulting in growing reliance upon foodbanks and charitable sources
of help.

1.2. Increasing cuts to the public sector present further challenges to all public services,
particularly affecting support available for vulnerable people, and the overall service
provision.

1.3. There are well recognised challenges for people in relation to managing money and
budgets, which will inevitably be increased following implementation of Universal Credit
in February 2016.

1.4. The overall vulnerability and difficulties for clients are illustrated for people in different
circumstances below.

2. Case Studies the following case studies are from a small trawl of recent cases, illustrating
the challenges for people living on low incomes in different circumstances.

2.1. Case Study 1

Client lives alone in a mobile home and is in receipt of Council Tax Support. Her only
income is Employment and Support Allowance (Work Related Group) — receiving just
over £106 per week for all her food, fuel and day to day living expenses. This has
resulted in her accruing a number of debts, which she is struggling to maintain
payments on, including on her energy and water bills. She has long term mental
health conditions and is very distressed.

A reduction in Council Tax support will have a negative impact on the client’s financial
situation as well as exacerbating her anxiety and overall mental health deterioration.

2.2. Case Study 2

Couple without children have multiple disabilities, including hearing impairments,
multiple sclerosis and learning difficulties. They currently receive Council Tax Support
and Discretionary Housing Payment - as they live in a 2 bedroom property and are
subject to the under-occupancy charge (bedroom tax). After deducting expenditure
from their overall income, including disability benefits, net funds available are just
£7.20 per week.

An increase in their Council Tax contribution may result in these very vulnerable clients
being unable to meet other basic expenses. This is also likely to have a negative
impact on their physical health if they are unable to meet their basic needs.

Pack Page 15



2.3. Case Study 3

Client in her 50s, lives with her son, who is now 21. Her ex-partner and father of her
son died suddenly about a year ago, and her son is now suffering from depression.
The client is claiming Jobseekers Allowance of £73 per week, with deductions for rent
and Council Tax arrears. She also has a £7 per week non dependant deduction for
her Council Tax support, as her son has failed to comply with his claimant commitment
(due to depression) and has been sanctioned. He was trying to get this resolved, but
poor communication with Jobcentre Plus was proving a real challenge. The client is
therefore trying to support the whole household on reduced benefit. Energy costs are
being deducted from her pre-pay meters working out at nearly £40 per week. She is
worried about her new Council Tax bill for April 2016 and how this will affect her
situation.

Rushmoor has been very supportive in rescheduling the debt and making allowances;
but ultimately there is very little room for improvement based on the current income,
which is way below the household needs. Fuel, water and rent arrears continue to
accrue: the client hopes to find work, and is seeking help for her son’s difficulties. We
are continuing to work with her on options, and have referred her for food parcel help.

Any reduction in Council Tax support will clearly be unmanageable for this household.
2.4. Case Study 4

Client in her late 50s lives alone in 4 bedroom house following her children leaving
home. As a result she incurred the under-occupancy charge (bedroom tax) and no
longer qualified for Local Housing Allowance (Housing Benefit). Her social landlord
(not First Wessex) will not let her move until the rent arrears have been cleared. She
is employed for 15 hours per week, earning £100 per week as her sole income, with
liability for £147.85 per week rent and no support from benefits.

After Citizens Advice intervention, rent and council tax arrears are currently on hold,
pending application for a Debt Relief Order. Once this has been obtained, the client
will be able to move to a smaller property, with the agreement of the landlord, as the
rent arrears will be part of the DRO.

As the client is barely able to manage on her current income, the impact of any
increases in the Council Tax contribution in this case would result in her not being able
apply for a Debt Relief Order, and therefore being unable to move. Ultimately this
would result in her becoming homeless, due to her inability to cover the rent and
consequent eviction from social housing tenancy.

3. Conclusions

We recognise the severe financial challenges faced by Rushmoor Borough Council and local
authorities. In view of the hardship faced by our clients, Citizens Advice Rushmoor is not in a
position to make recommendations on the choices outlined in the consultation.

We hope, however, that the above examples will prove useful in guiding decision making
processes, by illustrating clearly the impact of reductions in support to people in a variety of
circumstances and households.

Alex Hughes
Chief Officer, Citizens Advice Rushmoor
18/12/15

Pack Page 16



APPENDIX 3

DRAFT
Council Tax Support Scheme 2016/17

Consultation report by Strategy, Engagement and Organisational
Development

1

Pack Page 17



Contents

Page
Executive summary 3
Introduction 4
Methodology 4
Response rate 5
Characteristics of the respondents 6
Option one —increase the minimum contribution from 8% to either 10% or 10
12%
Option two —removing the family premium for all or new working age 12
claimants
Option three — reduce the amount that people can have in savings capital 14
and investments from £16,000 to £6,000 before they can claim for council
tax support
Option four — Limit council tax support for higher council tax band 15
properties
Option five — Reduce backdated claims to four weeks 16
Option six — No changes to the current council tax scheme 17
Other ways of help funding the council tax support scheme 18
Any other comments 21
Appendix — copy of the letter and survey 22

Pack Page 18



Executive summary

The survey took place in November and December 2015 and consulted on six options which
could be implemented independently or together to increase funding for the Council Tax
Support Scheme:

e Option one — increase the minimum contribution from 8% to either 10% or 12%

e Option two —removing the family premium for all or new working age claimants

e Option three —reduce the amount that people can have in savings capital and
investments from £16,000 to £6,00 before they can claim for council tax support

e Option four — Limit council tax support for higher council tax band properties

e Option five — Reduce backdated claims to four weeks

e Option six — No changes to the current council tax scheme

Of the options option five had the greatest support with 66.5% agreeing that backdated
claims should be reduced to 4 weeks. Option three (reduce the amount that people can
have in savings capital and investments from £16,000 to £6,000 before they can claim for
council tax support) and four (Limit council tax support for higher council tax band
properties) also had clear support. More people agreed than disagreed with options one
(increase the minimum contribution from 8% to 10%) and two (removing the family
premium for all or new working age claimants)

Option six (no changes to the current council tax scheme) had more agreement (44.9%) than
disagreement (40.9%) for this option, this was largely down to those chose receiving council
tax support agreeing it shouldn’t change (70.5% agreed) compared to 30.9% agreeing of
those not receiving council tax support.

In addition to these six options, other ways of help paying for the council tax support
scheme were suggested, including raising council tax, reducing funding to other services and
using council tax reserves. The majority of respondents disagreed with all these suggested
options.

The majority of questions provided the opportunity for free text comment. Common themes
included expressions of agreement with options overall and concerns regarding how the
changes would affect people already struggling financially.

Pack Page 19



Introduction

Council tax support is a means tested discount that Rushmoor provide for people on low
income. People of working age who qualify under the current scheme receive up to a 92%
discount on their council tax, and are required to pay a minimum contribution of 8% of their
council tax. Pensioners receive a discount of 100%. Rushmoor, like other councils is facing
significant reductions in its funding from central government and this includes funding for
the council tax support scheme. The Council therefore consulted residents on options to
reduce the cost of its Council Tax Support Scheme

The Council Tax Support Scheme survey consulted on six options:

e Option one - increase the minimum contribution from 8% to either 10% or 12%

e Option two —removing the family premium for all or new working age claimants

e Option three —reduce the amount that people can have in savings capital and
investments from £16,000 to £6,000 before they can claim for council tax support

e Option four - Limit council tax support for higher council tax band properties

e Option five — Reduce backdated claims to four weeks

e Option six — No changes to the current council tax scheme

In addition to these six options, other ways of help paying for the council tax support
scheme were suggested, including raising council tax, reducing funding to other services and
using council tax reserves.

Methodology

The Council initially consulted on the Council Tax Support scheme in Autumn 2012 before
the scheme was first introduced in April 2013. This consultation took the form of an online
survey, with letters were sent to all the 3,800 residents at that time receiving either council
tax benefit or a discount informing them of the survey. We received an overall response of
167 surveys from residents.

With a view to increasing response rates for this consultation, a colour coded paper survey
(Appendix) with covering letter was used in conjunction with an online version. This was
issued to a random sample of 3,000 residents not in receipt of council tax support, and
2,565 of the 2,740 residents of working age currently receiving Council Tax Support who
would be affected by the changes. A link to the online survey was also advertised via the
Council website, Facebook and Twitter during the consultation period. In addition there was
also an article in the Council’s Christmas edition of Arena magazine.

The consultation period ran from 9" November until Monday 21° December.

An equality impact assessment will be prepared based on the selected options.

Pack Page 20



Response rate

Overall 791 surveys were filled in, with 433 paper surveys returned from those not on
Council Tax Support (14.4 % response rate) and 273 paper surveys returned from those on
Council Tax Support (10.6% response rate). In addition, 85 surveys were filled in on line, of
which 68 identified themselves as not receiving Council Tax Support and 17 identifying
themselves as receiving Council Tax Support.

There were also a small number of residents who phoned for a paper survey after seeing
the article in Arena magazine. These have been incorporated into the responses identified
above dependent on whether the respondent identified that the were or were not in receipt
of CTS.

For the purpose of analysing the survey, the response rate for those receiving council tax
support has been taken as those respondents who returned a paper survey sent to
individuals receiving council tax support (whether they indicated in the survey that they
were or not, plus those who identified themselves as receiving council tax support in the
online survey (a total of 290 people).

Respondents not receiving council tax support are those who returned a paper survey sent
to those not receiving council tax support and those who identified themselves as not
receiving council tax support in the online survey (a total of 501 people).

Due, perhaps, to the technical nature of the questions many respondents answered that
that they don’t know whether they agreed or disagreed with the options . The survey results
used in the charts below include all valid responses and exclude ‘I don’t know’. The number
of these responses have been included for information.

Pack Page 21



Characteristics of respondents

Gender

Overall, 55.4% of respondents were female and 44.6% male. However, 51.4% (244
respondents) of those not receiving council tax support were female, compared with 62.1%
(174 respondents) of those receiving council tax support.

Gender of respondents

55.4%

50.0

44.6%
40.0 -

9 30.0 - BCTS
B MNCTS

200
10.0 -
0.0 - T

Male Female

Ages

Respondents in receipt of council tax support were, overall, younger than those not on
council tax support. This is as expected due to the surveys issued to those on council tax
support were to those of working age and not the wider population.

Age of respondents

30.0
26.6%
250
20.4%
200
16.0% 14.7%
% 150 12.0% WCTS
10.0 B MHCTS
6.3%
50 — 0.4% 1.9% —
01 1.7% 0.8
D-D R T T T T T T T - T __|
18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 85+ I'd prefer not
to say

Conditions or disabilities

Overall, 27.3% of respondents identified themselves as having a condition or disability which
limited their daily activities. 11.2% (53 respondents) of those not receiving council tax

Pack Page 22



support identified themselves as having a condition or disability which limited their daily

activities, compared to 56.6% (146 respondents) of those receiving council tax support.

Percentage of respondents with a condition or disability which limited their daily activities

70.0

30.0

200

10,0

0.0

Ethnic group

27.3%

Yes

64.9%

BCTS

B NCTS

7.8%

Mo I'd prefer not to say

Overall, 85.9% of respondents (647) identified themselves as white-British, the next biggest

group was those who identified themselves as white — other (4.1% 31 respondents),

followed by those preferred not to say (3.9% 29 respondents) followed by those who
identified themselves as Asian or Asian British — Nepali (1.6% 12 respondents). There was no

significant difference between those not receiving council tax support (87.6% identified

themselves as white-British) and those receiving council tax support (83.0% identified

themselves as white-British).

Ethnicity breakdown of respondents

- 85.9%
ECTS
B NCTS
4.1% 0.3% 03% 04% 0.3% 3.9%-
07% 03% == 01% 01% 00% 01% 16% 03% 04% E E 11% E E 0.3%
T T T T — T T T T T T T T T -_|

= = = - c c c - = c ‘= = w = = c = -
A W = o ] m @ w = m v o o = W o]
£ = ¥ f 2 £ ¥ 3 & T & £ 2 £ 32 2 £ 3
m|m o & = = = c ] F = =] [t F=1
N = = N =1 =1 o . ] T = i) 5 . = Py ' o
y £ £ &z % % 5§ 3z L Loz B 7 5 5 I s B
b z E=] ] @ = | K| & = = =
= o = = = W = S — Lo} = [l | i —_= ._
z = = I = k= = = = - ¢ = =< = = «© i
o - h=} -5 o | = . = S = z
1 c c = = = I m = aa} =1
2 ® = I ] ] @ = = = 3 =
= H 2 o= T z E = & : =& =

z £ £ £ T R - B2

= o o - o P = =

I I c = = = ] o =

o o = = o s c s ]

o o W [ S = o e =

x x <L =1 3 g a J m

= = £ = =
w
<
7

Pack Page 23



Of the 18 respondents that added their own ethic group in the ‘Any other background’ box,
5 respondents identified themselves as White English, the other identified themselves as:

e Irish and Chinese e Anglo-Arabian

e Kurdistan (Iraq) e Asian - Filipino - Philippines
e Mediterranean White e Estonian

e Nepalese e Mixed Caribbean Chinese

e Romanian e White -Welsh

e SriLankan e White Scottish

e White Turkish

Children in households

There were 223 children in 136 households (27.1%) not receiving council tax support,
compared with 205 children in 108 households (37.2%) receiving council tax support.

Economic activity

As expected there is a difference in the economic activity between respondents receiving
and those not receiving council tax support. Those not receiving council tax support tended
to be in full time work (46.5%) or retired (35.9%). Those receiving council tax support
tended to be not working; either with disabilities (41.9%) or part time - more than 9 hrs
(11.1%), unemployed seeking work (10.1%) and not working looking after child(ren) (9.5%).

% of respondents from those not receiving and not receiving council tax support
50.0 455

359

ENCTS

BCTS

8.1
20 - 4.7 4747
1.0

Full time
Student

Saelf-employed I
=]
ka

H

Parttime {lessthan 2 hrs)
Parttime imore than 9 hrs)

Mot working; with disabilities
Mot working; looking after housa
Mot working; looking after child
Unemployed; seeking wark
Unemployed; not seeking wark

Pack Page 24



Housing Tenure

Overall, 61.9% of respondents owned their own houses (this was 88.2% of those not
receiving Council tax benefits compared to 16.3% of those receiving Council tax benefit).
27.6% of respondents had a housing association property (this was 5.5% of those not
receiving Council tax benefits compared to 66.0% of those receiving Council tax benefit).

70.0

61.9%

800

500

40.0

BCTS

% 27.6%

30.0 B NCTS

2000

10.5%
10.0 -

0.0 -
Cwen home Housing association Private by rented

Some characteristics of respondents receiving council tax support stood out as significantly
different to those not receiving council tax support. Those on council tax support were more
likely be women (62.1%), and/or with condition or disability which limited their daily
activities (56.6%), and/and not working because of disability (41.9%) and/or living in housing
association homes (66.0%). They were also younger than those not receiving Council tax
support, but as previously reported this is as expected due to the surveys only being sent to
those of working age receiving council tax support.

The equality assessment being undertaken alongside this work will assess the impact of any
changes to the council tax support scheme on those with a condition or disability which
limits their daily activities.

Pack Page 25



Responses to Council Tax Support Scheme Questions

Option one — increase the minimum contribution from 8% to either 10% or
12%

Question 1 —increase to 10%

659 valid responses (excluding 33 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 52.7% of respondents agreed
with this and 35.4% disagreed.
Increase minimum contribution to 10%

35.0
30.8%
300
550 24.1%
’ 21.9%
200
% 150 mCTS
) 12.0% 11.2% HNCTS
10.0
50
0.0 T T T T
Strongly agree Agree Meither agree nor Disagree Strongly disagree

disagree

Question 2 —increase to 12%

660 valid responses (excluding 39 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 38.2% of respondents agreed
with this option and 51.4% disagreed.

Increase minimum contribution to 12%

40.0
35 33.6%
300
24.1%
25.0
o 200 17.7% mCTS
14.1%
15.0 B NCTS
10.5%
100
5 -u .
0.0 T T T T 1
Strongly agree Agree Meither agree Disagree Stronglhy
nor disagree disagree

Overall there was more support for a rise to 10% (52.7% agreed) than a rise to 12% (38.2%
agreed). Option one also had a suggestion box for if respondents thought it should be a

different amount than 10% or 12%. In total 214 respondent filled this in, 209 used individual

10

Pack Page 26



numbers or wrote it should stay the same. The range of the number went from 0%-100%,
with a mean of 6.8%, median of 8% and a mode of 8%.

There were 238 comments in relation to option one. The main themes from were around
the effect of an increase resulting increased hardship and poverty and that the contribution
should stay the same or be increased, for example:

“I think that the government/council should remember that people who need council tax
support are already struggling to find extra income/pay their bills. An increase in council tax
contribution will only hurt those who are already financially worse off”

“leave it as it is people who qualify for council tax support are already struggling to pay the
current amount to increase what someone on benefits would have to pay, may put them in
a situation whereby they couldn't pay council tax and that would incur costs for the council
having to try to get money from someone who doesn't have enough to pay it”

“I think it should be increased. The current minimum seems quite low in comparison to the
total council tax value.”

“Even 12% is low, 20% is still only a 1/5 of the bill and is much more reasonable increasing
the minimum seems that best idea”

11
Pack Page 27



Option two - removing the family premium for all or new working age
claimants

Question 3 - for all working age claimants

702 valid responses (excluding 75 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 48.7% of respondents agreed
with this and 35.6% disagreed.

Remove the family premium for all working age claimants

300
26.55%
250
22.2%
20.0 19.2%
15.7% 16.4%
% 15.0 BCTS

100 HMNCTS

50

0.0 T T T T 1

Stronghy agree Agree Meither agree nor Disagree Stronghy disagree

disagree

62.2% of those not receiving council support agreed with removal of the premium
compared to 23.1% those receiving council tax support.

There were 160 comments for this question. The main themes of these comments included
concerns about the effect of an increase resulting in increased hardship and poverty for
affected families and children, that the premium should be kept, that the premium should
be removed and that it should be in line with government/housing benefit changes for
example;

“1 believe this amount should remain for families. Bringing up children is very expensive and
just a little extra support is very welcome”

“It should be brought in line with the government changes”

“Having children is a choice, so if you can’t afford them then you shouldn’t be having them.
This should also be removed for those claiming any support from the council”

“Feel very poor working families may suffer”

12

Pack Page 28



Question 4 — for new working age claimants

671 valid responses (excluding 78 ‘Il don’t knows’). In total 52.0% of respondents agreed
with this option and 32.3% disagree.

Remove the family premium for new working age claimants

300
25.6% 26.4%
250
200
17.7%
o 15.6% 14.6%
% i BCTS
10.0 B MNCTS
5.0
0.0 T T T T 1
Stronglhy agree Agree Meither agree Disagree Strongly

nor disagree disagree

Overall there was s support for this option with 62.2% of those who not receiving council tax

support agreeing and 32.3% of those receiving council tax support agreeing.

There were 130 comment for this question, the main themes of these comments were
manly around the fairness of different approaches, that everyone should be treated equally,
and it should be for all not just new. There was also concern about the effect this would
have on families and children, for example:

“Equal treatment. Don’t change the rules for some not the rest”

“As my previous comment. Why penalise new claimants? This could be argued to be
discriminatory”

“The family premium should be removed from all claimants not just new ones”
“It should be all otherwise it costs more to administer and would be unfair”
“Removing the family premium brings some people closer to hardship”

“I don’t think family premium for new claimants should be removed if it is going to make
people worse off”

13

Pack Page 29



Option three —reduce the amount that people can have in savings capital
and investments from £16,000 to £6,000 before they can claim for council tax
support

Question 5

734 valid responses (excluding 40 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 63.2% of respondents agreed
with this option and 27.9% disagreed.

Reduce the amount of savings people can have before they can claim council tax support

40.0
37.2%
350
300
26.0%
25.0
9,200 p—
15.8%

15.0 12.1% W NCTS
100 8.9%

5 -u .

0.0 T T T T 1

Stronghy agree Agree Meither agree nor Disagree Strongly disagree

disagree

There was overall support for this option from respondents both not receiving council tax
support and those receiving council tax support.

There were 179 comments for this option. The main themes of the comments were that
£6,000 was a significant sum of money for savings and people should pay for their council
tax compared with those who felt that £6,000 was not much money and this may
discourage saving, for example:

“] agree that if you have that much money in the bank, then you don’t need help paying
council tax”

“If people have between £6000 and £16000 they don’t need council tax support”

“£6,000 is nothing when you are running a home, bringing up children. Kept the ceiling at
£16,000 is right”

“l do not think £6000 in savings is a lot these days and could easily be swallowed up with
just one emergency in a household. People should be encouraged to have some savings”

“This idea penalises those who want to save to improve their lives. It completely removes
any incentive to save more than £6000 and keeps people who went to buy a house for
example from being able to save for a deposit”

14

Pack Page 30



Option four —Limit council tax support for higher council tax band properties
Question 6

726 valid responses (excluding 52 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 63.4% agreed with this option
and 21.2% disagreed.

Limit council tax support for higher council tax band properties

40.0
20 34.0%
29.3%
300
250
Ly 200 -
15.4% cTs
150 -
11.0% 10.2% neTs
100
5-‘} .
0.0 T T T T 1
Stronghy agree Agree Meither agree Dlisagree Strongly disagree

nor disagree

There was overall support for this option from those not receiving council tax support and
those receiving council tax support.

There were 147 comments for this option. The main themes were agreement with the
option and a feeling that people can always move to a smaller property, fairness and
people’s ability to move, for example:

“If they can afford to live in a higher band house, they can afford to pay full council tax like
the rest of us”

“Feel if people live in higher bands than D and need to claim Council Tax Support they
should consider downsizing”

“People in higher tax bands should pay more in council tax. If they can’t afford it then they
should down size”

“Treat people equally regardless of property types, spread relief across all claimants”
“Having a large house does not mean that you use more council services”

“l would only agree to this, if those people were helped to find suitable smaller properties,
which, as we all know, in the Rushmoor area, is pretty difficult!”

15
Pack Page 31



Option five — Reduce backdated claims to four weeks
Question 7

744 valid responses (excluding 36 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 67.5% agreed with this option
and 20.2% disagreed.

40.0
35.1%
330 32.4%
300
250
200
| |
o CTS
15.0
12.4% ENCTS
10.6%

100 9.5%

S-G . .

0.0 T T T T 1

Strongly agree Agree Meither agree nor Dizagree Stronghy disagree

disagree

There was support for this option from those not receiving council tax support and those
receiving council tax support.

There were 145 comments for this option, the main themes of the comments were in
support of the change and removing backdating claims and identifying there may be some
valid reasons why people didn’t claim in time.

“I agree with this as | think backdating for 4 weeks is fair”

“There is no need to be waiting 3 months. If the help is really required then should be
requested as soon as possible”

“Three months seems excessive but one month maybe not long enough. As long as the
rules are clear to residents 4 weeks could work”

“If you needed the support you would claim for it. 4 weeks is enough time”

“It annoys me that a lot of people are late claiming due to their own disorganised life styles.
| would hope the Council could make allowances when someone’s claim has been
legitimately been delayed and that they would be dealt with sympathetically”

“This should be a case by case scenario for example — if someone was in hospital for
weeks/months they would be unable to make a claim as soon as they were entitled”

16

Pack Page 32



Option six — No changes to the current council tax scheme
Question 8

733 valid responses (excluding 36 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 44.9% of respondents agreed
with this option and 40.9% disagreed.

300
350 23.9%
21.0% 21.1%
20.0 19.8%
15.0 14.2% S
%a

10.0 B NCTS

5.0

0.0 T T T T 1

Strongly agree Agree Meither agree nor Disagree Stronghy disagree
disagree

There was more agreement than disagreement for this option with 70.5% of those receiving
council tax support agreeing it shouldn’t change compared to 30.9% of those not receiving
council tax support.

There were 137 comments for this option, The main theme from the comments was that
change was needed, for example:

“The Council obviously cannot keep it the same if the government cut their grant”
“Disagree. Changes should be made”

“Government policy has changes, local policy should follow”

“Just because a system worked in the past, doesn’t mean that it will in the future”

“Savings have to be made and | think a small monthly increase would not cause too much
hardship to most people in the borough”

17

Pack Page 33



Other ways of funding the council tax support scheme
Question 9 — increase council tax to help pay for the council tax support scheme

728 valid responses (excluding 42 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 17.7% of respondents agreed
with this option and 67.4% disagreed.

Increase council tax to help pay for the council tax support scheme

45.0

42 4%

40.0

350

300

% 550 24.0%
20.0 ECTS
15.0 13.3% 14.8% ENCTS
100
=0 4.4%
Stronghy agree Agree MNeither agree Disagree Strongly disagree

nor disagree

Overall respondents did not want an increase to their council tax to help pay for the support
scheme. There were 166 comments for this question the main themes were disagreement
with a rise and that respondents already pay enough, for example:

“The council tax is high anyway”

“| feel people in general pay a lot for their council tax should go up. People who currently
only pay 8% and get support with this | feel could pay a little extra towards this”

“l don’t think it is fair for the general workforce to pick up the shortfall”

“You may not be eligible for support buy that doesn’t mean we can afford to pay more for
people who may not warrant it”

18
Pack Page 34



Question 10 — reducing funding or stopping other services to help pay for the council tax
support scheme.

701 valid responses (excluding 65 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 18.7% of respondents agreed
with this and 64.1% disagreed.

Reducing funding or stopping other services to help pay for the council tax support

scheme
40.0 37.8% ——
35.0
30.0
26.2%
25.0
% 200 17.3% mCTS
150 12.8% mNCTS
10.0
5.8%
0.0 T T T T 1
Strongly agree Agree MNeither sgree nor Disagree Strongly disagree
dizagree

Respondents did not feel the Council should reduce funding or stop other services to help
pay for the council tax support scheme. There were 160 comments and the main themes
were disagreement with the option and identifying that it would depend on what services
would be affected, for example:

“Services have already been scaled back too far”
“The council tax support scheme needs to change, not other services.”

“Too generic — what are “other services”? This could be a strongly agree if you could at
least show/evidence a plan of services affected”

“Its really depend on what services you are thinking of cutting. Without that information, it
is difficult to say”

“These services are needed and should not be cut or stopped”

19

Pack Page 35



Question 11 — using council reserves to help pay for the council tax support scheme

717 valid responses (excluding 56 ‘I don’t knows’). In total 24.4% of respondents agreed
with this option and 56.8% disagreed.

Using the council reserves to help pay for the council tax support scheme

40.0
35 34.2%
300
25.0 22.6%
13.8%

%200 17.2% mCTS
15.0 HMNCTS
10.0

7.3%
5-‘] .
0.0 T T T T 1
Strongly agree Agree Meither agree nor Dizagree Stronglhy disagree

disagree

Overall residents didn’t want the council reserves to be used to help fund the council tax
support scheme. For respondents currently receiving council tax support 42.8% agreed,
compared to 28.8% disagreeing. There were 131 comments for this question the main
theme being that council reserve should be kept for emergencies, for example:

“I disagree to using council reserves”

“Council reserves should not be used to plug a gap as they will be needed somewhere along
the line and won’t be there”

“Reserve should be used for unexpected situation. It should not be used for a current and
long term problem”

“Unless the reserves are excessive then these should be retained for unforeseen emergency
one off items of expense. Reserves should not be used for routine, ongoing expenditure”

20

Pack Page 36



Any other comments

There were 108 any other comments. The comments were varied but broadly in agreement

with the options for change. Other themes included views that the council shouldn’t provide
benefits at all, and contrastingly concerns relating to potential of hardship of the people the
proposed changes will affect, for example:

“Increase the contribution to 12 %. Eliminate the savings rule of £6k, remove family
premium, no backdating past 4 weeks, save the rest of us having to pay more yet again”

“Council tax support scheme should be reduced ., particularly for higher band
households. Council tax should not be raised for everyone when other measures (reducing
support) can be put in place”

“l appreciate the help | receive with council tax benefit it makes a difference but keeping the
benefit at its lower is preferable however | think an increase of 10% satisfactory”

“People live above their means, why should the rate payers kept helping them”

“l understand that some people have to claim benefits through no fault of their own but
some people are just lazy or do not have their priorities right. We work really hard and
budget well going without luxuries so we can afford to pay our bills and not claim benefits.
By putting council tax up that may change. It is really annoying when people on benefits are
going out or on holiday as we don’t because we can’t afford to. You need to consider the
fact that by putting it up to subsidise this scheme, you might be increasing the bill as others
can’t afford to pay it”

“With people so desperate that they have to use food banks. Any support to reduce council
tax support should be maintained — if at all possible. | do not envy the very hard decisions
that you must make!”

“Benefits have been frozen, reduced, scrapped. You are asking those on the smallest
incomes already in poverty to pay less. Please make savings from ‘Rushmoor in Bloom’ and
care more about people than plants”

21
Pack Page 37



Appendix — copy of the letter and survey

Dear resident,
Council tax support scheme 2016/17 — please give us your views

We provide help to people on a low income who need a hand paying their council tax bill by
reducing the amount they have to pay. This is known as council tax support.

We are currently reviewing our council tax support scheme and would like to hear the views
of our residents about how much support we should offer in future.

Because everyone pays for the council tax scheme through their council tax bill and any
changes may affect other services, your views matter, whether or not you receive council
tax support.

Our current scheme has been in place for nearly three years, but because of benefit changes
and financial pressures on us, we felt now was the right time to review it.

We have considered a number of possible options, including keeping council tax support as
it or reducing the amount of support we provide. We have also looked at what we could do
instead if we chose not to change the level of council tax support, including options that
could affect all households.

Enclosed with this letter, you will find a survey setting out the different options we are
considering and asking for your views on them. We have sent this survey to all our working
age residents who currently receive council tax support, as pensioners receive full support
under a slightly different scheme and are not affected by these changes. We have also sent
the survey to a similar number of randomly selected households, so we get a cross-section
of views.

| would be grateful if you could spare a few minutes to complete the survey and send it back
to us in the pre-paid return envelope — no stamp needed. The closing date for the
consultation is Monday 21 December.

If you would prefer, you can also fill in the survey online on our website,
www.rushmoor.gov.uk/counciltaxsurvey.

If you have any queries or would like help filling out the survey, please contact our Customer
Services team on 01252 398080.

22

Pack Page 38


http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/counciltaxsurvey

Thank you for your time.

Councillor Adam Jackman

%/M/%w _

Cabinet member for Concessions and Community Support

AITITHT GI=AT

uﬁmmgﬂgﬁ;rﬁaﬂwaﬁaﬁmaﬁmm,mm ATgSh Har
feHeRT FETh TR 0942 3%¢o¢ o HT BT ITaiglel |

23

Pack Page 39



Council Tax

Support Scheme
2016/17

Have your say

We provide help to people on a low income
who need a hand paying their council tax bill by
reducing the amount they have to pay. This help
is known as council tax support.

We've had the same council tax support scheme
in place for nearly three years now and because
of benefit changes and financial pressures on
the council, we've been looking at whether the
scheme needs to change.

We've considered a number of possible options,
including keeping council tax support as it is
or reducing the amount of support we provide.

We have also locked at what we could do instead
if we choose not to change the level of council
tax support, including options that could affect

all households.

Because everyone pays for the council tax
support scheme through their council tax
and any changes may affect other services,
your views matter, whether or not you receive
council tax support.

You can give your views by filling in this survey
and sending it back to us using the enclosed
pre-paid envelope (no stamp needed).

You can also fill in our survey on our website,
www.rushmoor.gov.uk/counciltaxsurvey.

Please return your completed questionnaire by

Monday 21 December

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

24

Pack Page 40



About our council tax support scheme

Council tax support is a means-tested discount
that we provide for people on low incomes who
need help paying their council tax. We don't pay
any money to the people who claim it. Instead,
we reduce their council tax bill by the amount

of support they are entitled to.

Around 5,200 of our residents claim council tax
support, of whom 47% are of working age and
53% are pensioners. The cost of our council tax
support scheme is around £4.24 million a year.

We introduced our current council tax support
scheme in 2013 when the government ended
the national council tax benefit scheme. At the
time, the government made councils responsible
for funding council tax support, but reduced the
amount of money available by 10%.

On principle, we felt that everyone should pay
something towards council tax, as we all use
the services it pays for.

So, under our current scheme, everyone

of working age, who receives council tax
support, must pay a minimum of 8% towards
their council tax bill. This means that the most
council tax support people can receive is 92%
of their council tax bill. Pensioners receive up
to 1009 support.

About this consultation

Like all councils, we have faced reductions

in our funding, including for our council tax
support scheme, and this is putting pressure
on our local services. As these reductions are
likely to continue, we need to make sure we
offer a council tax support scheme that is
affordable and fair — not only for those who
receive support, but also for everyone who
depend on council services.

In addition, the government is making changes
to the benefits system as part of its welfare
reforms, such as how it calculates housing
benefit entitternent. Up until now, we have kept
our council tax support scheme in line with the
government's system, so we need to consider
if we carry on doing that, or not.

This survey puts forward a number of options
to change our council tax support scheme,

by reducing the amount of support we provide,
from April 2016. We could choose one -

or a number - of these and we'd like your
views on each of them.

We also ask for your views on how we could meet
the shortfall in funding if we choose not to reduce
the amount of council tax support we provide.
These options range from putting up council tax
to reducing spending on other council services
or using the council's reserves.

Pack Page 41



Council tax support scheme - options

Option 1 - Increase the minimum contribution from 8% to either 10% or 12%

We could increase the minimum amount people If we were to increase the minimum to 10%

have to pay towards their council tax from 8%. a year, this would save just over £53,000.

The options we have considered are to increase

the minimum contribution to either 10% or 12%. If we were to increase the minimum to 12%

This would affect just over 2,700 residents. a year, this would save just over £106,000 a year.

How much people would have to pay in council tax

The tables below show how much people
currently pay a month if they pay the minimum
8% contribution and what this would be if we were
to increase it to 10% or 12%. This is based on this
year's council tex bill.

Based on a full council tax bill

Minimum Council tax band
paymeant
per month A B c D E F G H
8% (current) 6.40 747 a.54 9.60 11.74 13.87 16.01 18.21
10% 8.01 8.34 10.67 12.01 14.67 17.34 20.01 24.01
12% 9.60 11.21 12.81 14.41 17.61 20.81 24.1 28.81

Based on the current council tax bill with 25% single person discount

Minimum Council tax band
paymant
per month A B c o E F G H
8% (eurrent) 4.80 5.ED &40 7.20 B.BD 1040 12.04 14.41
10% 6.00 7.00 8.00 Q.00 11.00 13.00 15.00 18.00
12% 7.20 8.40 Q.80 10.80 13.24 15.61 18.04 21.61
26

Pack Page 42



Option 1 continued

Question 1

How much do you agree or disagree that the council should increase the minimum
contribution someone should pay?

Increase to 10% (fick one box)

[ ] Strongly agree [ | Agree [ ]| Meither agree nor disagree
[ ] Disagree [ | Strongly disagree | | Don’t know
Increase to 12% (tick one box)

[ ] Strongly agree [ ] Agree [ | Neither agree nor disagree

[ ] Disagree [ | Strongly disagree [ | Don't know

Question 2

If you think the minimum contribution should be a different
amount - either higher or lower - please tell us what you think it should be.

2%

Comments

27

Pack Page 43



Option 2 - Removing the family premium for all or new

working age claimants

The government sets out how much it thinks
people need as a minimum to live on when it
calculates housing benefit entitlement. If you
have at least one dependent child or young
person, this amount includes £17.45 a week for
that child. This is known as a family premium.
From April 2016, the government is removing
the premium from its calculations.

One option would be for us to do the same thing
for council tax support. We could do this for all
claims, or new claims only.

Doing so would bring our council tax support
scheme in line with the housing benefit changes
the government is making. This would also

help off-set some of the increased costs of

the council tax support scheme, also as
a result of government changes.

Question 3

This would affect people of working age, but it
wouldn't affect people who claim Universal Credit,
Income Support, Income-Related Employment
and Support Allowance or Income-Based
Jobseeker's Allowance.

If we were to remove the family premium for all
working age claimants with dependents, it would
affect around 380 people and would save about
£60,000 a year.

They would get about £3.50 a week less in
council tax support.

If we were to remove the family premium only
for new working age claimants with dependents,
it would affect about 40 people and would save
around £6,000 a year.

How much do you agree or disagree that we should remove the family premium
amount for g/ claimants when we calculate council tax support entitlement?

[ ] Strongly agree [ ] Agree [ ] Neither agree nor disagree

[ ] Disagree [ | Strongly disagree [ ] Don't know

Comments

28

Pack Page 44



Option 2 continued

Question 4

How much do you agree or disagree that we should remove the family premium
amount for pew claimants when we calculate council tax support entitlement?

[ ] Strongly agree [ | Agree [ ] Neither agree nor disagree

[ ] Disagree [ | Strongly disagree | | Don't know

Comments

29

Pack Page 45



Option 3 - Reduce the amount that people can have in savings,
capital and investments from £16,000 to £6,000 before they
can claim council tax support

At the moment, if you have more than £16,000 in  This would apply to all working age claimants,
savings, capital and investments, you can't claim  whatever benefits they receive, but only affect
council tax support. If you have between £6,000 those with more than £6,000 in savings, capital
and £16,000, you can get some support — this is and investments.
on a sliding scale.

This would affect 115 residents and would save
One option we are looking at would be to remove  just under £21,750 a year.
support from anyone who has more than £6,000
in savings, capital and investments.

This would mean that if you have more than
£6,000 in savings, capital or investments, you
would not receive any council tax support and
there would be no sliding scale.

Question 5

How much do you agree or disagree that the council should only give support
to claimants who have less than £6,000 in savings, capital and investment?

[ ] Strongly agree [ | Agree [ ] Neither agree nor disagree

[ ] Disagree [ | Strongly disagree [ ] Don't know

Comments

30
Pack Page 46



Option 4 - Limit council tax support for higher council tax band properties

There are eight council tax bands - from Ato H The benefits of doing this would be that it could

and at the moment, you can get council tax be seen as fairer scheme, with people living in

support whatever council tax band your more expensive properties having to pay more.

home is in. It would, however, mean that anyone of working
age living in a home with a council tax band

The mid-range council tax band is Band D higher than D, would receive less support.

and we could use this as a limit for council

tax support. Limiting council tax support for higher council tax
band properties would affect 46 people

This would mean that if your home is in council and would save just over £10,600 a year.

tax bands E, F, G or H, we'd calculate your
council tax support as if you lived in a
Band D home.

Question 6

How much do you agree or disagree that the council should limit council tax
support for higher council tax band properties?

[ ] Strongly agree [ | Agree [ | Neither agree nor disagree
|:| Disagree |:| Strongly disagree |:| Don't know

Comments

31

Pack Page 47



Option 5 - Reduce backdated claims to four weeks

At the moment, we can backdate claims by up The benefit of doing this is that it's a simple
to three months if a person can prove there is a change and it would simplify our administration.
good reason why he or she didn't claim earlier. It would however, affect the amount new

claimants receive if they don’t claim on time.
From April 2018, the government is reducing this

to four weeks for housing benefit claims and we Last year, we awarded backdated claims to 78

could do the same for council tax support. people. We can’t say how many people might be
affected in the future and therefore, how much
this would save.

Question 7

How much do you agree or disagree that we should reduce backdated claims
from a maximum of three months to a maximum of four weeks?

|:| Strongly agree [ | Agree [ ] Meither agree nor disagree
[ ] Disagree [ ] Strongly disagree [ | Don't know

Comments

32
Pack Page 48



Option 6 - No change to the current council tax support scheme

Currently, if you are of working age, you pay If we were to keep the minimum contribution
a minimum contribution of 8% towards your at 8%, we would need to look at other ways
council tax bill. We could continue with this of making savings.

and make none of the changes proposed

in this consultation. This would mean that The tables below show how much people
as long as claimants’ circumstances don't currently pay a month in council tax if they
change, their support would stay the same. pay the minimum of 8% of their bill.

Around 2,740 people of working age currently
claim council tax support.

Based on a full council tax bill

Council tax band

A B c D E F G H

Monthly payment g.40 74T 8.54 8.80 11.74 13.87 16.01 18.21

Based on the current council tax bill with 25% single person discount

Council tax band

A B c D E F G H

Monthly payment 4.80 5.60 6.40 7.20 8.80 10.40 1201 1444

Question 8

How much do you agree or disagree that the council should keep its current council tax
scheme for 2016/177?

[ ] Strongly agree [ | Agree [ ] Neither agree nor disagree
[ ] Disagree [ | Strongly disagree [ | Don't know

Comments

33
Pack Page 49



Summary table

To help you, this is a summary of the options we are considering.

Option

Schame

Numbers affectad

Total cost of the
scheme for this option

Savings

Increase the minimum
contribution fram
2% to 10%

Increase the minimum
cortribution from
2% to 12%

2mz

£4,185,668

£63,257

£4,132,538

£106,387

Ramove the family
premium for all
working age daimants

are

Ramove the family
prarmium for mew
working age daimants

Estirate 40 naw claims

£4,179,983

£68,042

£6,000

Raduce the amaournt
that people can have
in savings, capital
and investmants from
£16,000 to £6,000
before they can claim
councl tax support.

115

42971477

£21,748

Lirnit council tax support
for higher council tax
band properties

£4.200.312

£10,613

Raduce backdated
claims 1o four woeks

In 201445, 78 people
had their daim
backdated batwean

12 weeks and one weasak

Data not available

Mo estimate

Mo change to the
current council tax
support schame

5200 - Pensicners
and working age

£4,238,925

M/A

Pack Page 50

34




Other ways of funding the council tax support scheme

If we don't reduce the help we provide through our council tax support scheme,
we will need to look at other ways of meeting the shortfall in funding.

Our options are to:

« Increase council tax
+ Make savings from other council services
+ Use council reserves

We would like your views on these options.

Increase council tax

We aim to provide a fair balance between If councils increase their council tax by 2%
supporting people who need more — or more, they have to hold a local referendum
and sometimes targeted — help, and providing to ask residents for their views.

our general services to council tax payers.

If we were to keep our council tax support
scheme at the same level, we could look at
increasing the council tax to fund the additional
costs of the scheme instead. Everyone who pays
council tax would be affected by this option.

Question 9

How much do you agree or disagree that we should increase council tax
to help pay for the council tax support scheme?

[ ] Strongly agree [ | Agree | | Neither agree nor disagree

[ ] Disagree [ | Strongly disagree [ ] Don'tknow

Comments

35

Pack Page 51



Making cuts to other services

Another alternative to changing our council tax support scheme would be to cut spending
on services in other areas. These savings would be in addition to those we are already making.

Question 10

How much do you agree or disagree that we should reduce funding to other services
or stop providing a service altogether, to help pay for the council tax support scheme?

[ ] Strongly agree [ | Agree [ ] Neither agree nor disagree
[ ] Disagree [ | Strongly disagree [ | Don't know

Comments

Using council reserves

We maintain a sensible level of financial reserves so we are able to respond to unexpected
pressures. We could use some of those reserves for a limited time to help fund the council tax
support scheme. This is, however, a short-term solution, as once the reserves have been spent,
they are spent.

Question 11

How much do you agree or disagree that we should use our council reserves to help pay
for the council tax support scheme?

[ ] strongly agree [ | Agree [_] Neither agree nor disagree
[ ] Disagree [ | Strongly disagree [ | Don't know

Comments

36
Pack Page 52



Any other comments

If you have any further comments or suggestions to make on the council tax support scheme,
please let us know.

What happens next

Because of the timescales involved and legal The report will also include other evidence and
requirements, we must adopt our 2016/17 council  information so the council can make a final
tax support scheme by 31 January at the latest. decision on the scheme to adopt. Once the

The scheme will then run from 1 April. council has made a decision, we will publish
the results of the consultation on our website,
After the consultation closes on Monday www.rushmoor.gov.uk/counciltaxsurvey.

21 December, we will analyse the results and
prepare a report for our councillors to consider
at a meeting of the full council on Wedesday
27 January.

About you

Question 12 Do you receive council tax support?
|:| Yes D Mo |:| Don't know
Question 13  What is your gender?

[] Male [ ] Female

Pack Page 53



Question 14  Which one of the following age bands do you belong to?
|:| 18 - 24 years D 25 - 34 years |:| 35 - 44 years |:| 45 - 54 years D 55 - 64 years
[ ]65-74years | | 75-84years [ | 85+ years [ | I'd prefer not to say

Do you consider yourself to have any conditions or disabilities,

Question 15 hich limit your daily activities?

[]Yes [ ] Ne [_]rdprefernottosay

Question 16 What is your ethnic group?

[ ] White - British [ ] White - Irish

[ ] White - Gypsy/Traveller [ ] White - other

[ ] Mixed - white and black Caribbean [ ] Mixed - white and black African

[ ] Mixed - white and Asian [ ] Mixed - other

[ ] Asian or Asian British - Nepali [ ] Asian or Asian British - Indian

[ ] Asian or Asian British - Pakistani [ ] Asian or Asian Eritish - Bangladeshi
[ ] Asian or Asian British - Chinese [ ] Asian - other

[ ] Black or black British - Caribbean [ ] Black or black British - African

[ ] Black - Other [ ] rd prefer not to say

[ ] Any other background

Question 17 How many children do you have in your household?

Under & years old Between 6 and 9 years old

Between 10 and 15 years old Between 16 and 24 years old

Question 18  What is your working status?

[ ] Full time [ ] Part time (less than nine hours)
[ ] Part time (more than nine hours) [ | Retired
[ ] self-employad [ ] Student

[ ] Mot working (with disabilities) [ ] Not working (looking after house)
[ ] Mot working (looking after child) [ | Unemployed (seeking work)
[ ] Unemployed (not seeking work)

38
Pack Page 54



Question 19  What type of property do you live in?

[ ] Ownhome [ | Housing association [ | Privately rented

Question 20 What is your postcode?

Sign up to receive email news from the council
or to take part in future online surveys

From time to time, we email our residents information and news about the council, our services
and what's happening locally. We also invite residents to take part in occasional surveys,
which are usually online.

If you would like to receive news or take part in occasional surveys, please let us know.

Email address

[ ] I would like to receive email news and information from the council

[ ] I would like to take part in the council's surveys

Thank you for taking part in this survey. We will only use the information you give us to help decide on
our future council tax support scheme and, if you have given us your email details, to provide you with
local news and information and/for invite you to take part in occasional surveys.

Please return your completed survey in the brown pre-paid envelope
(no stamp needed) by Monday 21 December at the very latest.

If you have any gueries or need help filling out this survey,
please contact our Customer Services team by:

Phone: 01252 398 080 (Monday - Thursday 8.30am to 5pm; Friday 8.30am to 4.30pm)
Email: customerservices@rushmoor.gov.uk

You can also fill in this survey on our website, www.rushmoor.gov.uk/counciltaxsurvey

Thank you

Council Offices, ) www.rushmoor.gov.uk W @rushmoonoouncil
Fambarough Road, 01252 308 399 i Rushmoor Borough Council

Fambaorough,
Hants, GLH4 7JU customersarvices@mushmoor.govuk Movembar 2015

39
Pack Page 55



;? APPENDIX 4
Q °
3 Option 1
Q
% h e [ [ ) b [ ]
& Increase the minimum contribution
Question 1 - Should the Council increase the minimum
. . CTS: Responses
contribution to 10%? from those in
350 receipt of CTS
30.8% NCTS: Responses
300 from those not in
250 24.1% receipt of CTS
' 21.9%
200 4
% 150 + s
' 12.0% 11.2% B NCTS
100 4
5.0 A
0.0 - . . ,
i _ ] 659 valid responses
Strongly agree Agree Meither agree nor Disagree Strongly disagree
disagree 52.7% strongly
agree/agree
Numbers affected Total Scheme Cost m 35.4% strongly
disagree/disagree
2,712 £4,185,668 £53,257

USHMOO

BOROUGH COUNCIL




Option

1

Increase the minimum contribution

Question 2 - Should the Council increase the minimum

contribution to 12%?

CTS: Responses
from those in

receipt of CTS

40.0
NCTS: Responses
33.6%
330 from those not in
30.0 receipt of CTS
24.1%
250
o 200 17.7% p—
14.1%
150 B NCTS
10.5%

10.0

50

0.0 T T T .

Strongly agree Agree Neither agree Disagree Stronghy 660 Zalld FeEsponses
nor disagree disagree 38.2% strongly

agree/agree

0,
Numbers affected Total Scheme Cost m 5.1'46 stror_‘ngly
disagree/disagree

2,712 £4,132,538

)G abed

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

£106,387



85 abed oed

Option 2

Remove the Family Premium

Question 3 - Should the Council remove the
Family Premium for all working age claimants?

30.0

19.2%

BCTS
B NCTS
T

CTS: Responses 26.5%
from those in 0 22.2%
receipt of CTS 500
NCTS: Responses 15.7% 16.4%
from those not in %150
receipt of CTS 100
5.0
00 T T T
Strongly agree Agree Neither agree nor Disagree

Question 4 -Should the Council remove the Family

disagree

Strongly disagree

Premium for new working age claimants?

300

Numbers

26.4%

affected

20.0

25.6%
15.6% 17.7%
. 14.6%
All: 378 £58,942 o 15.0
New: £4,179,983 10.0
Estimate f6k 5.0
40
0.0 : . | |
Strongly agree Agree Neither agree  Disagree strongly
nor disagree disagree

USHMO

BOROUGH COUNCIL

OR

BCTS
B NCTS

All claimants:
702 valid
responses

48.7% strongly
agree/agree
35.6% strongly
disagree/disagree

New claimants:
671 valid
responses

52.0% strongly
agree/agree
32.3% strongly
disagree/disagree




Option 3
Reducing the savings threshold from £16k to £6k

Question 5 - Should the Council reduce the amount people can
have in savings capital and investments from £16,000 to £6,000

35.0
30.0
25.0

06 20.0
15.0
10.0

5.0

o0

Numbers affected

Id

6G abe

before they can claim for CTS?

37.2%
26.0%
15.8%
12.1%
B8.9%
: : . :
Stronghy agree Agree Meither agree nor Disagree Strongly disagree

disagree

115 £4,217,177 £21,748

USHMOO

BOROUGH COUNCIL

BCTS
B MNCTS

CTS: Responses
from those in
receipt of CTS

NCTS: Responses
from those not in
receipt of CTS

734 valid responses
63.2% strongly
agree/agree

27.9% strongly
disagree/disagree




Option 4
Limiting support at the Band D level

Question 6 - Should the Council limit support to a maximum of a
Band D property?

09 abed »oed

400
35.0 34.0% CTS: Respons_es
from those in
300 receipt of CTS
NCTS: Responses
230 from those not in
receipt of CTS
% 200 - ip
15.0 BMNCTS
10.0
50
0.0 726 valid responses
- 0,
Strongly agree Agree Neither agree Disagree Strongly disagree 63.4% strongly
nor disagree agree/agree

21.2% strongly

Numbers affected Total Scheme Cost m disagree/disagree

46 £4,228,312 £10,613

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL




Option 5
Reducing backdate periods to a max. 4 week period

Question 7 - Should the Council reduce the limit of

backdated claims to four weeks?

40.0 CTS: Responses
35.1% from those in

3307 32.4% receipt of CTS
30.0 - NCTS: Responses
| from those not in
20 receipt of CTS
200
o ECTS
15.0 B NCTS
12.4% 10.6% 555
10.0
50 - 744 valid responses
00 - . . 67.5% strongly

Strongly agree Apree Mefther agree nor Diszgree Strongly disagree agree/agree
disagree 20.2% strongly

d

" disagree/disagree
Numbers affected Total Scheme Cost m

3
gln 14/15, 78 people had

@ their claims backdated Data not available No estimate
8 between 12-1 weeks

USHMOO

BOROUGH COUNCIL



Option 6

29 abed xoed

Question 8 - Should the Council continue with the existing scheme?

30.0
250 23.9%
21.0% 21.1%
20.0 - 19.8%
150 - 14.2% —
%
10.0 - B MNCTS
50 4
0.0 - T T
Strong by agree Agree Meither agree nor Disagree Stronghy disagree
disagree
Numbers affected Total Scheme Cost m
5,200 Pensioners & WA £4,238,925 N/A

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Option to keep the scheme the same

CTS: Responses
from those in
receipt of CTS

NCTS: Responses
from those not in
receipt of CTS

733 valid responses
44.9% strongly
agree/agree

40.9% strongly
disagree/disagree




Other ways of funding the Council Tax
Support Scheme

Question 9 - Should the Council increase Council Tax
to pay for the scheme?

45.0 CTS: Responses
- 42.4% from those in
200 receipt of CTS
35.0 NCTS: Responses
from those not in
30.0 receipt of CTS
% 550 24.0%
20.0 BCTS
14.8% [ ]
150 13.3% NCTS
10,0
c 0 4.4% 728 valid responses
' 17.7% strongly
0.0 T T
] ) ) agree/agree
Stronghy agree Agree Meither agree Disagree Stronghy disagree
nor disagree 67.4% strongly
disagree/disagree

€9 abed oed

USHMOO

BOROUGH COUNCIL




%)ther ways of funding the Council Tax

QD
Q
o)
. Support Scheme
Question 10 - Should the Council reduce funding to
other services to help pay for the scheme? CTS: Responses
from those in
40.0 37.8% — receipt of CTS
35.0 NCTS: Responses
from those not in
0.0 26.7% receipt of CTS
250
% 200 17.3% mCTS
15.0 12.8% mNCTS
100
o 5.8%
' :- 701 valid responses
0.0 - ' ' 18.7% strongly
Strongly agree Agree Meither agree nor Disagree Strongly disagree

agree/agree
64.1% strongly
disagree/disagree

disagree

USHMOO

BOROUGH COUNCIL




Other ways of funding the Council Tax
Support Scheme

Question 11 - Should the Council use its reserves to
help pay for the scheme?

40.0 CTS: Respons_,es
from those in
350 34.2% receipt of CTS
NCTS: Responses
30.0 from those not in
25.0 27 6% receipt of CTS
18.8%
% 200 17.2% ECTS
150 B NCTS
100 7.3%
5.0 :. 717 valid responses
0.0 - . T ! ! 24.4% strongly
Stronghy sgree Agree Meither agree nor Disagree Strongly diszgree agree/agree
; disagree
T s 56.8% strongly
?7;_ disagree/disagree
o
QD
«Q
@
o
U1

USHMOO

BOROUGH COUNCIL




ion

&E0ed

Im'nmU@gﬂaﬁ

Valuation
Band

I GOmMmMOO® >

Rushmoor (£)

122.71
143.17
163.62
184.07
224.97
265.88
306.78
368.14

8% Min Cont
Scheme on
15/16 costs

76.84
89.64
102.45
115.25
140.86
166.48
192.09
230.51

Rbc inc @
1.99%

2.44
2.85
3.26
3.66
4.48
5.29
6.10
7.33

8% Min Cont
Scheme on
16/17 proj

costs

79.47
92.72
105.96
119.21
145.70
172.19
198.68
238.41

Indicative Impact of Changing Minimum Contribution Council Tax Precepts APPENDIX 5

Equiv Inc Equiv Inc Equiv Inc

Hampshire (£) Hants inc @ Police (£) Police inc Fire (£) Fireinc@ Total Council Total Total .New Monthly Monthly Weekly (?verall %
3.99% @1.99% 1.99% Tax (£) Increases Council Tax Sum (10) Sum (12) Sum (52) increase
691.92 27.61 104.89 2.09 40.92 0.81 960.44 32.95 993.39 3.30 2.75 0.63 3.4308
807.24 32.21 122.37 2.44 47.74 0.95 1,120.52 38.44 1,158.96 3.84 3.20 0.74 3.4308
922.56 36.81 139.85 2.78 54.56 1.09 1,280.59 43.93 1,324.52 4.39 3.66 0.84 3.4308
1,037.88 41.41 157.33 3.13 61.38 1.22 1,440.66 49.43 1,490.09 4.94 4.12 0.95 3.4308
1,268.52 50.61 192.29 3.83 75.02 1.49 1,760.80 60.41 1,821.21 6.04 5.03 1.16 3.4308
1,499.16 59.82 227.25 4.52 88.66 1.76 2,080.95 71.39 2,152.34 7.14 5.95 1.37 3.4308
1,729.80 69.02 262.22 5.22 102.30 2.04 2,401.10 82.38 2,483.48 8.24 6.86 1.58 3.4308
2,075.76 82.82 314.66 6.26 122.76 2.44 2,881.32 98.85 2,980.17 9.89 8.24 1.90 3.4308
10% Min Cont 12% Min
Annual Scheme on Annual  ContScheme  Annual % Inreaste % Inrease at
Increase (£) 16/17 proj  Increase (E) on 16/17 Increase (£) at lf:f:tmm 12% min cont
costs proj costs

2.64 99.34 22.50 119.21 42.37 29.2885 55.1463

3.08 115.90 26.25 139.08 49.43 29.2885 55.1462

3.51 132.45 30.01 158.94 56.50 29.2885 55.1463

3.95 149.01 33.76 178.81 63.56 29.2885 55.1463

4.83 182.12 41.26 218.55 77.68 29.2886 55.1463

5.71 215.23 48.76 258.28 91.81 29.2886 55.1463

6.59 248.35 56.26 298.02 105.93 29.2885 55.1463

7.91 298.02 67.51 357.62 127.12 29.2885 55.1463

CD1601 Appendix 5.xlsx



AGENDA ITEM No. 3

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3

Cabinet Head of Community and Environmental
12 January 2016 Services Report COMM1601

Grants to Voluntary Organisations

1. Introduction

e This paper reports on the grants awarded by the Cabinet Member for
Concessions & Community Support.

2. Grants to Voluntary Organisations

e The Cabinet Member for Concessions and Community Support has awarded
three grants for £1,000 or less:

= Acornwood Pre-school £850
To purchase a mobile nappy changing unit and wheeled
trolley

= Aldershot & Farnborough Festival of Music and Dance £500

Towards the cost of hiring a grand piano for the piano
section of the festival

= Fleet & District Beekeepers Association £1000
Towards the cost of fencing an area at Aldershot
Crematorium to establish a secure and productive apiary

Total £2350

e Awards were not made to Big Fish as they were awarded a grant in 2014 and
Farnborough Street Residents Association as the council have already
provided funding for a noticeboard.

e The remaining budget for voluntary organisations for 2015/16 is £20,438.
Taking into account the three grants that have been awarded by the Cabinet
Member for £1,000 or less in this paper will leave £18,088 available for
allocation in the remainder of this financial year.

3 Recommendations
Cabinet is recommended to:

= note the grants above for £1,000 or less totalling £2,350

Peter Amies — Head of Community and Environmental Services

Contact — Alison Nicholls — Grants and Administration Officer
Tel: 01252 398766 Email: alison.nicholls@rushmoor.gov.uk

Pack Page 67


mailto:alison.nicholls@rushmoor.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 4

CABINET HEAD OF PLANNING
12 January 2016 REPORT NO. PLN1601

Hart Local Plan — Consultation on Revised Options for Strategic
New Homes Growth and Site Allocations

1. Purpose of Decision

1.1 As part of the preparation of its new Local Plan, Hart District Council has
published a “Refined Options for Strategic New Homes Growth and Site
Allocations”, and a draft Local Plan Vision and Strategic Priorities, for public
consultation. The purpose of the consultation is to identify the most positive
way to plan for the additional growth identified in the Strategic Housing Market
Assessment, 2014 (SHMA), which Hart has prepared jointly with Rushmoor
and Surrey Heath Councils. The deadline for comments is 15" January 2016.
For Hart, the next stage will be the publication of a draft (Preferred Approach)
Local Plan for consultation in the summer of 2016.

1.2  The Council commented previously on Hart District Council’s consultation on
its Housing Development Options, in October 2014. The Cabinet report and
the minutes of this meeting are available to view on the Council’s website at
http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/article/7211/Cabinet-meeting---7-October-2014.
The purpose of this report is to provide a response to the current round of
consultation on the emerging Hart Local Plan.

1.3 However, it is important to note that Hart, Rushmoor and Surrey Heath
Councils are at present jointly undertaking an update to the evidence base
relating to housing and employment needs to inform the preparation of their
respective Local Plans. The response set out in this Cabinet report is based
on the context provided by the current evidence base, dated 2014. It may be
that once this evidence base is updated, some of Rushmoor’'s comments may
change or fall away, particularly when Hart publishes a complete version of its
Local Plan for consultation, based on the most up to date evidence.

2. Context: National Planning Policy

2.1 Before moving to the detail of the Hart consultation, it is useful to provide
some context for Rushmoor’s interest in the preparation of the Hart Local
Plan. The requirement for joint working on strategic planning matters is
rooted firmly in national policy, to which all Councils are required to adhere in
Local Plan preparation. Hart, Rushmoor and Surrey Heath Councils are
together defined as a Housing Market Area (HMA). This definition is based on
key linkages such as cross boundary commuting patterns and migration
trends, and focuses on those neighbouring authorities with the strongest links
in the first instance. The National Planning Policy Framework requires
Housing Market Area partners to ensure that their Local Plans together meet
the full, objectively assessed needs for market and affordable housing in the
HMA within which they fall.

Pack Page 69


http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/article/7211/Cabinet-meeting---7-October-2014
http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/shlaa
http://planningguidance.communities.gov.uk/

2.2 The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) provides the key policy
context for Plan making. It states that in Planning Strategically Across
Boundaries, public bodies have a duty to cooperate on strategic priorities,
including the homes and jobs needed in an area. Notably, it sets out in
paragraph 178 that the;

“...Government expects joint working on areas of common interest to be
diligently undertaken for the mutual benefit of neighbouring authorities.”

2.3  Paragraph 179 goes on to note that;

“Joint working should enable local planning authorities to work together to
meet development requirements which cannot wholly be met within their own
areas — for instance, because of a lack of physical capacity or because to do
so would cause significant harm to the principles or policies of this
framework.”

2.4 At Examination, the authorities’ respective Local Plans will be tested for
“soundness”. Paragraph 182 of the NPPF explains what is required for a
Local Plan to be found sound, namely that it is;

e Positively prepared — the plan should be prepared based on a strategy
which seeks to meet objectively assessed development and
infrastructure requirements, including unmet requirements from
neighbouring authorities where it is reasonable to do so and
consistent with achieving sustainable development (emphasis
added)

e Justified — the plan should be the most appropriate strategy, when
considered against the reasonable alternatives, based on proportionate
evidence

e Effective — the plan should be deliverable over its period and based on
effective joint working on cross-boundary strategic priorities
(emphasis added)

e Consistent with national policy — the plan should enable the delivery of
sustainable development in accordance with the policies in the
Framework

2.5 These policy requirements in the NPPF, particularly regarding the need for
LPAs to work together to deliver outcomes on strategic cross boundary
planning issues, are relevant to the preparation of our Local Plans. This
includes addressing unmet development needs in neighbouring (HMA)
authorities, where reasonable to do so. Effectively, this obligation placed on
LPAs under the statutory “duty to cooperate” is a replacement for the strategic
planning framework formerly provided by sub-regional plans. Where Local
Plans do not conform to national policy requirements, they are at significant
risk of being found unsound.

Pack Page 70



3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Joint working in Hart, Rushmoor and Surrey Heath

In this context, Hart, Rushmoor and Surrey Heath Councils are working jointly
to deliver outcomes on strategic planning matters, including the provision of
housing, as required by national planning policy. As noted in paragraph 1.1 of
this report, as required by the Duty to Cooperate, the Councils have together
prepared a joint Strategic Housing Market Assessment, published in 2014.
The process for commissioning and preparing this Assessment has been
managed through the establishment of a Joint Member Liaison Group. The
Terms of Reference (ToR) for this Group include some specific objectives:

i.  To reach an informal agreement between the three authorities on what
the objectively assessed housing need is across the HMA, and within
each authority area, over relevant time periods;

ii. To informally agree whether each authority is doing all it reasonably
can, consistent with policies in the NPPF and other material
considerations, to meet the objectively assessed housing needs for its
area,;

iii.  Thatin the event of any housing shortfalls arising in one authority area,
to explore how cross boundary working can help address those
shortfalls

One of the specific outcomes set out in the Terms of Reference is to arrive at
a position:

e Where all three authorities are satisfied that each one is doing all it
reasonably can to meet its own housing needs, and that any shortfalls
in one area are addressed as far as possible through joint working, so
that across the HMA as a whole, needs are met as far as possible,
consistent with policies in the NPPF.

Recently, the Councils have together commissioned an update to the
Strategic Housing Market Assessment, to take into account newer data on
population projections and employment forecasts. This update is scheduled
for completion in spring 2016. This is expected to provide a refreshed figure
for housing need, against which the three HMA authorities will need to revisit
potential sources of housing supply. This may result in a change to the net
difference between need and supply (i.e. the unmet housing need) in all three
HMA authorities.

Alongside this, mindful of the close links between housing and employment,
the joint Employment Land Review of June 2015 is also being updated, and
will be available alongside the revised SHMA. This way, the important
linkages between protecting and providing land for both housing and
employment can be planned for in the three authorities’ new Local Plans.

Pack Page 71



4. What is the position in Rushmoor?

4.1 The SHMA 2014 identifies an “Objectively Assessed Housing Need” of 1,180
new homes a year across the Housing Market Area of Hart, Rushmoor and
Surrey Heath. Of these, approximately 470 homes a year are required in
Rushmoor. This equates to a need for a total of 9,822 new homes in the
Borough between 2011 and 2032.

4.2 ltisin this context that Rushmoor published its Preferred Approach Local Plan
for consultation in June 2015. The contextual evidence that supports the
spatial strategy, as set out in Preferred Approach Policy SP2, explains that
the potential supply of additional houses in Rushmoor Borough over the
period to 2032 is around 8,200 units. This figure is based on:

- Completions since 2011

- Supply arising from the development of Wellesley

- Other sites within urban areas identified as potentially coming forward for
housing

- An allowance for small sites, the exact location of which it is not possible
to predict

4.3 The difference between need (9,822) for new homes identified in the SHMA
and the potential supply (8,200) leaves a shortfall of approximately 1,600
new homes in Rushmoor by 2032. Further explanation is set out in
Rushmoor’'s Housing Delivery Topic Paper, June 2015. Of note is that
paragraph 9.19 of the Topic Paper states that;

“Through the Joint Member Liaison Group and also in response to Hart’s
Housing Development Options paper [see the Cabinet report 7" October
2014], the Council has made Hart and Surrey Heath aware of its potential
shortfall of about 1,600 dwellings against identified housing need, and
discussions are ongoing as to how and if this shortfall can be met.”

4.4 In response to the Preferred Approach Local Plan consultation, Rushmoor
received a number of objections relating to the potential that any housing
shortfall in Rushmoor’'s administrative boundary be redressed through
additional new homes over and above that initially indicated for Hart District in
the SHMA, 2014 (see consultation response summary document).

4.5 Rushmoor will be publishing the next version of its Local Plan for consultation
once the refreshed SHMA and Employment Land Review have been finalised,
to enable this evidence to inform the evolution of the spatial strategy in the
Plan. Further information on the timetable for the preparation of the new
Rushmoor Local Plan can be found at www.rushmoor.gov.uk/Ids.

5. Hart Local Plan: Draft Vision and Strategic Priorities

51 Mindful of this context, Rushmoor has considered the contents of the Hart
Local Plan Draft Vision and Strategic Priorities. Key Issue 1 identified for the
Hart Local Plan is;

Pack Page 72


http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/newlocalplan
http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/newlocalplan
http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/newlocalplan
http://www.rushmoor.gov.uk/lds
http://www.hart.gov.uk/consultations

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

“The need to make provision for the new homes needed in the area”
Table 2 sets out the Draft Strategic Priorities for the Local Plan.

Priority 1 seeks; “to deliver all the objectively assessed housing need for Hart”
(emphasis added).

Priority 2 is; “to continue to work with Rushmoor and Surrey Heath on meeting
the objectively assessed housing need for the Housing Market Area as a
whole, for example through the provision of SANG that can facilitate housing
in those areas. In order to comply with statutory requirements, when it is clear
what (if any) the level of unmet need is across the housing market area, we
will seek to help meet this in a way that fits into our strategy.” (emphasis
added).

Priority 3 seeks; “to provide new homes of a mix of sizes and tenures to meet
the current and future needs of Hart’s residents.” (emphasis added)

In response to Key Issue 1, and Priorities 1, 2 and 3, Rushmoor Borough
Council welcomes Hart's commitment to work with Rushmoor (and Surrey
Heath) Councils on meeting the objectively assessed housing need for the
HMA as a whole. This is particularly important, mindful of the specific
outcome in the agreed terms of reference of the Joint Member Liaison Group
whereby, “any shortfalls in one area are addressed as far as possible
through joint working, so that across the HMA as a whole, needs are met
as far as possible.”

Priority 4 seeks to support economic growth by;

“Protecting and providing a range of size and types of employment land
and buildings...to meet future needs and to contribute to economic
growth in Hart and the wider area.”

Rushmoor Borough Council welcomes this priority, and seeks reassurance
from Hart that its Local Plan will contain a clear strategy for protecting existing
employment sites where they are important to the future supply of such land,
particularly mindful of the fact that Hart, Rushmoor and Surrey Heath Councils
together form a Functional Economic Area.

Reassurance is also sought that an appropriate balance will be struck
between the need to identify land for new homes and the need to protect an
adequate supply of employment land to support economic growth over the
Plan period, to be determined through the refresh of the joint Employment
Land Review. This is all the more important in the context of the Devolution
Bid for Hampshire and the Isle of Wight, at the heart of which is a future Local
Government funding structure reliant on the 100% retention of business rates.
It is expected that this reassurance will be provided once Hart publishes a
complete draft version of its Local Plan for consultation in the summer of

Pack Page 73



2016, wherein the overall spatial strategy for delivering new homes and
ensuring an appropriate supply of employment land will be set out.

5.7 Priority 5 refers to the need; ‘t0 ensure that transport, social and physical
infrastructure required to support new development is delivered in a timely
and coordinated manner.” Rushmoor Borough Council suggests that this
priority could be strengthened through additional wording to refer to
partnership working with the highway authority (Hampshire County Council) to
plan for appropriate transport infrastructure (as per the current reference in
this priority to the education authority).

6. Hart Local Plan: Refined Options for Delivering New Homes

6.1 The Refined Options for Delivering New Homes focuses on the strategy for
delivering new homes in Hart District. Mindful of the national planning policy
context, and the evidence base, both of which are discussed above in this
report, the consultation document contains a section headed; “Helping to
meet possible Rushmoor or Surrey Heath unmet need for new homes”.
Within this, paragraph 24 of the consultation document notes that;

“We have scrutinised Rushmoor’s draft Local Plan and have raised an
objection to the scale of the shortfall. We think that Rushmoor can do
much more to meet its need for new homes.”

6.2 Paragraph 26 goes on to state that;

“It is still too early to draw any conclusions, but there is a strong
likelihood that under Government rules Hart may be legally obliged to
take up some of this unmet need for new homes.”

6.3 At paragraph 27, the consultation document sets out that;

“We think that the way forward is for Hart to plan for our own housing
needs, but to review the Hart Local Plan nearer the time that any
shortfall from elsewhere in the housing market area has been
confirmed. In the meantime, however, our Local Plan would still need
to show that there are deliverable options to draw on, should they be
needed.”

6.4 In response, Rushmoor Borough Council acknowledges the points raised by
Hart in the consultation document, and welcomes the recognition by Hart that
it may be legally obliged to accommodate some of the unmet housing need.
In terms of the scale of the shortfall, Rushmoor is absolutely committed to
maximising the delivery of new homes on land within its administrative area,
and to that end, will be refreshing its Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment (SHLAA) in early 2016. It is helpful in this context that Hart,
Rushmoor and Surrey Heath Councils have all agreed to use a consistent
methodology for updating their respective SHLAAs, and to that end, Hart is
welcome to work with Rushmoor in looking at potential sites in the Borough
that may be able to contribute to future housing delivery.

6
Pack Page 74


http://www.hart.gov.uk/consultations

6.5 In response to Hart’s assertion that, “We think that Rushmoor can do much
more to meet its need for new homes”, Rushmoor reiterates that the Borough
is a tightly drawn urban area, with the limited land outside settlements already
subject to nature conservation constraints or operating as Army training land.
There are no opportunities for allocating significant additional land for new
homes; the Wellesley development on surplus Army land already has
planning permission to provide up to 3,850 new homes over the Plan period.
Of relevance, the Hart consultation document states that;

“In our view, we must avoid the mistakes of the past and not return to
the days of ‘town cramming” where the only emphasis was on
delivering large number of homes at the highest possible density
irrespective of where itis.”

6.6 It is important to recognise that this applies equally to Rushmoor; good
planning achieves development that is sustainable within the overall policy
framework provided by the NPPF, and this includes good design.

6.7 The updated Rushmoor SHLAA will be used to inform potential supply
calculations to be incorporated into the next version of the Rushmoor Local
Plan. However, until need arising from the update to the joint SHMA is
clarified, it is not possible to determine the most up to date figure for the
difference between need and supply, i.e. the potential shortfall in housing
supply in Rushmoor over the plan period to 2032. In this context, the
consultation on the Hart housing options reflects the current evidence base,
and only once the new SHMA is finalised will all three housing market area
partners be more certain as to the scale of unmet need in the HMA as a
whole.

6.8  To this end, Rushmoor looks forward to continuing to work with Hart to ensure
that the Authorities’ respective emerging Local Plans together help to meet
housing need across the Housing Market Area, as required by paragraph 179
of the NPPF?, and reflected in the ToR of the joint Member Liaison Group.

6.9 This is all the more important, mindful of the Hampshire and Isle of Wight
Devolution Prospectus, September 2015, to which all component local
authorities (including Hart) have signed up. This includes a commitment to
accelerate and increase housing delivery throughout Hampshire, over and
above that committed in Local Plans.

Feedback on proposed housing options

6.10 In the context of the issues discussed in earlier sections of this report to
Cabinet, Rushmoor welcomes the opportunity to continue to work with Hart

! Joint working should enable local planning authorities to work together to meet
development requirements which cannot wholly be met within their own areas — for
instance, because of a lack of physical capacity

7
Pack Page 75



District Council, as one of its Housing Market Area partners, on the delivery of
new homes in the Borough.

6.11 The Refined Options for Housing document demonstrates that there a number
of options available to Hart to help meet the housing needs of the HMA,
including any unmet need from its HMA partners. Rushmoor Borough Council
supports the strategy of prioritising development on brownfield land, and on
land outside the zone of influence for the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area. Rushmoor expects that in addition to this, the first full
consultation version of the Hart Local Plan will be based on a strategy to meet
housing needs that requires a combination of the options set out in in the
consultation paper. This will include dispersed development, strategic urban
extensions and a new settlement at Winchfield in order to help deliver the
housing need identified in the SHMA.

6.12 Paragraph 27 of the consultation document states;

“We think that the way forward is for Hart to plan for our own housing needs,
but to review the Hart Local Plan nearer the time that any shortfall from
elsewhere in the housing market area has been confirmed. In the meantime,
however, our Local Plan would still need to show that there are deliverable
options to draw on, should they be needed. For example, strategic land
releases, accelerated delivery of a possible new settlement, or simply
selecting additional sites.”

6.13 At this stage in the plan preparation process, Rushmoor Borough Council
considers that the most appropriate strategy and timescale for meeting
housing need across the HMA can only be identified once the update to the
evidence base is in place. Moreover, until the implications of the conclusions
in the updated evidence base are understood, it is not possible to comment
on the detail of the housing options in isolation from other strategic cross
boundary issues. Key to this, the spatial strategy that will be set out in the
Hart Draft Local Plan will need to reflect an appropriate balance between new
homes and employment growth in the HMA and FEA over the Plan period to
2032, to help meet the future housing and economic growth needs of north-
east Hampshire.

7. Conclusions

7.1 Rushmoor Borough Council welcomes the opportunity to work with Hart
District Council on developing a planning strategy to meet the housing needs
of the HMA, within the HMA, in accordance with national planning policy, and
the Terms of Reference of the Joint Member Liaison Group. It will continue to
work with Hart and Surrey Heath Councils to ensure a timely update to the
joint evidence base, to enable the three authorities to demonstrate positive
outcomes through Plan making, as required by the Duty to Co-operate, and
reflected in the tests of soundness at Examination of Local Plans.

Pack Page 76



8. Recommendations
8.1 It is recommended that Cabinet:

)] Endorse the contents of this Cabinet report as Rushmoor’s
response to the;
o Hart Refined Options for Strategic New Homes Growth and Site
Allocations and
o Draft Local Plan Vision and Strategic Priorities

Keith Holland

Head of Planning

Contacts:
Keith Holland 01252 398790 keith.holland@rushmoor.gov.uk
Louise Piper 01252 398410 louise.piper@rushmoor.gov.uk

Pack Page 77


mailto:keith.holland@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:louise.piper@rushmoor.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 5

CABINET Head of Planning
12 January 2016 Report No. PLN1602

ALDERSHOT TOWN CENTRE PROSPECTUS
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT

1. Purpose of Decision

1.1 This report seeks Cabinet agreement to adopt the attached Aldershot
Town Centre Prospectus as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
(Annex 1). The SPD has been revised following a period of public
consultation.

2. Background

2.1 In September, and with the assistance of consultants Allies and Morrison
Urban Practitioners, the Council produced a draft Aldershot Town Centre
Prospectus SPD. It sets out a regeneration strategy, an updated vision
and objectives and focuses on key development opportunities. The SPD
will serve a dual purpose, operating as a marketing document aimed at
potential investors whilst also setting out a development framework to
supplement existing planning policies.

2.2  Consultation on the draft SPD took place for six weeks from 30 September
to 11 November 2015. The SPD was available to view on the Council’s
website, at Aldershot Library and at the Council office. Notification letters
and e-mails were sent to a range of stakeholders and consultees. The
consultation was also publicised via social media.

2.3 A public exhibition of the SPD proposals was on display in Aldershot at
three venues during the consultation period: Morrisons, the Wellington
Centre and Princes Hall. Staffed exhibition days were held on 17 and 22
October. In addition, a public meeting to present and invite comment on
the SPD proposals took place on 7 October.

3 Consultation Comments

3.1 A total of 180 responses commenting on the draft Aldershot Town Centre
Prospectus SPD were received. These are summarised in the attached
Consultation Report (Annex 2). It includes a summary of stakeholder
comments, including those from the Environment Panel and the
Rushmoor Labour Group, together with the Council’s responses. The
Consultation Report also details the changes to the SPD.

3.2 The key changes to the SPD as a result of the consultation are
summarised below:

Pack Page 79



e Executive summary added

e Increased emphasis on accessing the town by a variety of sustainable
modes of transport, including additional references to public transport
in the town and reference added to improving cycle provision

e Reference to a review of the Council’s parking strategy added

e Comment added about the Council investigating the potential to
purchase vacant units

e Strengthened statements on the historic environment

e Deleted inaccurate reference to Willow House being of historic
significance

e Reference added to the importance of integrating Westgate with the
rest of the town centre

e Added explicit reference to refurbishment of Princes Hall

e Clearer reference to the potential to create a town square as part of the
redevelopment of the Union Street and former Marks and Spencer site
added

e Information added on potential funding sources

3.3 All these changes are reflected in the updated Aldershot Town Centre
Prospectus SPD (Annex 1).

4 Recommendation
It is recommended that:

i) Cabinet adopts the Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus
Supplementary Planning Document (Annex 1);

ii) agrees that any minor changes made to the Aldershot Town
Centre Supplementary Planning Document prior to its publication be
delegated to the Head of Planning in conjunction with the Portfolio
Holder for Environment and Service Delivery.

Keith Holland
Head of Planning

Annexes:
Annex 1: Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD
Annex 2: Consultation Report

Contacts:

Keith Holland 01252 398790 keith.holland@rushmoor.gov.uk
Jane Reeves 01252 398733 jane.reeves@rushmoor.gov.uk
Nick Irvine 01252 398739 nick.irvine@rushmoor.gov.uk

2
Pack Page 80


mailto:keith.holland@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:jane.reeves@rushmoor.gov.uk
mailto:nick.irvine@rushmoor.gov.uk

ALDERSHOT
TOWN CENTRE

Supplementary Planning Document

January 2016 Gl H%
J:;"':\ + ol - h% g v

¥ o>

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL






CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4
INTRODUCTION 6
A CLEAR POLICY CONTEXT 7

A PROUD PAST AND CONFIDENT FUTURE 8

A GOOD PLACE FOR INVESTMENT 10
THE VISION FOR ALDERSHOT 12
THEMES FOR THE VISION 16
A REVITALISED TOWN CENTRE OFFER 18
TOWN CENTRE LIVING 20
A FAMILY-FRIENDLY TOWN CENTRE 22
AN IMPROVED CULTURAL OFFER 26
INVESTING IN STREETS AND SPACES 32
AFFIRMING THE VICTORIAN HERITAGE 36
THE MASTERPLAN FOR ALDERSHOT 42
MAKING IT HAPPEN 60
APPENDIX 63

Pack Page 83



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Aldershot Prospectus Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD) sets out a strategy for regeneration
in Aldershot Town Centre for the coming 10-15
years. The SPD provides a framework to guide
future development in the town centre and identifies
investment opportunities to establish a clear set of
funding priorities for Rushmoor Borough Council.
The document supplements planning policy in the
Rushmoor Plan Core Strategy and will be a material
planning consideration for future planning applications
in the town centre.

Drawing on Aldershot's key assets and addressing
challenges faced by the town, the Prospectus

sets out a high level approach to the town's future
identity whilst drawing out specific development and
investment projects at key sites in the town.

A strategic vision statement provides the overarching
approach for future development and investment in
Aldershot town centre. A number of key themes are
then set out for the town centre, each with a review of
Aldershot's existing assets and a number of initiatives
and projects identified to help enhance the town's
offer. These are:

Pack Page 84

1. A revitalised town cenire offer

to support existing retail businesses in the town
centre and encourage others to open. This includes
the shopfront improvement initiative and suggestions
for bringing vacant units back into use. The Core
Strategy's retail hierarchy for the town centre is
supported.

2. Town centre living

to bring more residents into the town centre through
more effective use of vacant upper floors in existing
buildings and through appropriate new residential
development on key sites identified in the SPD

3. A family-friendly town centre

drawing on the town's great parks and open spaces
and its sports and leisure facilities. Opportunities to
enhance these facilities are identified and improving
accessibility - on foot, by bike, by public transport and
by car - is highlighted as a priority.

4. An improved cultural offer

sets out ideas for refurbishing and expanding Princes
Hall Theatre, in coordination with other development
in the town centre. This is coupled with suggestions
for raising the profile of town centre venues and
collaborating with artists to bring vacant buildings
back into use.

5. Investing in streets and spaces

highlights some of the investments made in the town
centre in recent years and identifies future funding
priorities. A plan is provided, identifying key spaces
and opportunities.

6. Affirming the Victorian heritage

showcases the fantastic historic built fabric in the
town centre and sets out the Council's intention to
promote, protect, enhance and preserve this. Key
buildings are identified, along with important views
and possible initiatives to celebrate Aldershot's
heritage.



In addition to the strategic themes identified for
Aldershot's long-term regeneration, a number of
development sites have been identified across the
town centre and a spatial framework developed in a

masterplan to guide future development at these sites.

These sites are considered to be transformational and
include:

¢ The Galleries shopping centre site;

e  Union Street East and the former Marks and
Spencer site; and

¢ Aldershot Rail and Bus Station.

Each of these sites has a dedicated section with

the key assets and challenges identified. High-level
example schemes demonstrate how development that
reflects the SPD principles could come forward and
information is provided on estimated areas by use,
delivery partners and likely project phasing.

These sites are supplemented by a number of
additional sites which are important but not
considered as critical to Aldershot's future. These
include:

* Princes Hall, the Police Station and Magistrates
Court sites;

*  Willow House on Victoria Road/Grosvenor Road;

¢ Birchett Road depot site;

* The car wash, Empire and Gala Bingo

* Hippodrome House and its surrounds

e Windsor Way vacant buildings

For these sites, high level schemes have been
developed and are reflected in the masterplan on
pages 42-43 but not all have dedicated sections.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Rushmoor Borough Council is not in a position to
deliver the proposals set out in the Prospectus alone
but will use its powers and resources in a proactive
way to enable development and investment in the
town.

A 'Making it happen' section at the end of the
document identifies potential funding sources,
delivery partners, viability considerations and the next
steps for delivering the schemes.

Pack Page 85



INTRODUCTION

The Aldershot Prospectus sets out a strategy for
regeneration based on investment and development
options to attract and support investment in Aldershot
Town Centre.

The Prospectus has been adopted as a Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) and is a material planning
consideration for future planning applications in the
town centre. The SPD replaces the Aldershot Town
Centre SPD (2009) and further develops the Council's
strategic approach to regeneration.

Drawing on Aldershot's key assets and addressing
challenges faced by the town, the Prospectus

sets out a high level approach to the town's future
identity whilst drawing out specific development and
investment projects at key sites in the town.

The Prospectus is designed to identify investment and
development priorities and to supplement planning
policy in the Rushmoor Plan Core Strategy that exists
for development in the town.

Rushmoor Borough Council is not in a position to
deliver the proposals set out in the Prospectus alone
but will use its powers and resources in a proactive
way to enable development and investment in the
town.

Pack Page 86



A CLEAR POLICY

CONTEXT

National policy

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
outlines that planning should promote the vitality

of our main urban areas (para 17). Planning policies
should be positive, promote competitive town centre
environments and set out policies for the management
and growth of centres over the plan period (para 23).

Where town centres are in decline, local planning
authorities should plan positively for their future to
encourage economic activity and recognise that
residential development can play an important role in
ensuring the vitality of centres and set out policies to
encourage residential development on appropriate sites
(para 23).

Rushmoor Borough Council is developing its Local
Plan in line with these key policies, to plan positively
for Aldershot's future and provide clarity on investment
priorities.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Local policy

The key objective for Aldershot town centre is to
improve its vitality and viability. The policy approach
set out in policy SP3 of the Core Strategy is to permit
development that contributes to this objective.
Aldershot town centre is in a vulnerable state following
the withdrawal of a number of ‘High Street’ retailers
and therefore a proactive approach to the regeneration
of the town centre is required.

Development proposals will be permitted which
maintain the vitality and viability of Aldershot Town
Centre and contribute to the strategy of regenerating
the town centre.

Policy TC1 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review
(Saved Policies) seeks to maintain and enhance the
diversity, vitality and viability of Aldershot town
centre. The Council will seek to protect, and where
possible strengthen, the retail function of the centre
whilst facilitating or maintaining an appropriate level
of diversification.

Policy TC2 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review
(Saved Policies) identifies the ‘shopping core’ of
Aldershot Town Centre and seeks to protect the retail
function of these areas. In each frontage, the number
of non-A1 units will not exceed 30% and visually
prominent sites with an A1 use will be protected.

Policy TC3 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review
(Saved Policies) outlines that the Council will support
proposals for residential uses above the ground floor
within the shopping cores, subject to other policies of
the plan.

In addition to these town centre specific policies the
Rushmoor Core Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan
Review (Saved Policies) set out a comprehensive range
of policies against which planning applications will be
assessed.

Pack Page 87,



Union Street pre-1920 C )

Aldershot has a strong tradition of independent
shops and services, with market town status
dating back until at least 1607. The buzz of
activity was focused on Union Street and
Wellington Street, with shops below, homes
above, and advertising hoardings decorating
buildings' upper storeys.

By 1900, Aldershot was already
'home of the British military’,
and had benefited from a rail
station for 30 years. Both of these
developments led to the rapid
growth of the town. The garrison
town was located to the north of
Aldershot town centre, though
Victorian villas on generous plots
still existed close to this.

&,
P e

| Priny 3 -SATTLE --.Ih"-.l:
_ LIVERPOOL + LONBON
4|

—r

L wmme
Ve .

Flyer for Beatles Concert

Aldershot's military Tattoo dates back to 1894 and,
in its heyday of the 1920s and 1930s, attracted
500,000 visitors to see formation performances lit
by flame torches. Aldershot’s military history and
Victorian heritage continue to be celebrated through

ALDERSHOT
S 1TATTOO]

§-19-2CH 212223 JUKE 1954

GO BY PRIVATE BUS regular events, including the Military Festival and
APPLY ML PEPARTHMENT . i
e Victoria Day.

Aldershot Tattoo poster 1934

Charlie Chaplin makes

Population 875 Aldershot Garrison  Populafion his maiden stage Aldershot Tattoo  1he Beatles play in

developed exceeds 16,000  appearance in Aldershot  attracts 500,000 Aldershot

1850s 1861 1894 1920/30s 1961

Pack Page 88



CONFIDENT FUTURE

Aldershot has evolved throughout its history and
the town's evolution continues with the Wellesley
development to the north of the centre, providing
3,850 homes and two new primary schools. These
new homes will bring new life to the town and
help to support additional uses and activities in
the centre.

Refurbished Cambridge
Military Hospital

Improvements in the town centre are already
under way with new trees and paving in
Union Street, funded in part through the Local
Enterprise Partnership.

Aldershot is a diverse and growing town and the
Prospectus sets out the key investment priorities
for the town's future evolution - drawing on its
strengths and addressing challenges.

Development and investment opportunities have
been identified at a number of key locations in
the town centre which are set out from page 40

onwards.
Artist's impression of
new homes at Wellesley
Artist's impression of refurbished Princes Hall
Aldershot and Army releases All refired Gurkhas  Westgate opens  First Wellesley
Princes Hall  Farnborough districts 350ha of land for granted right to with the premiere  homes completed
opens merged as Rushmoor development seftle in UK of Skyfall
1973 1974 2000 2009 2012 2015

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 83



A GOOD PLACE
FOR INVESTMENT

Enterprise M3 LEP step-up status

The Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), Enterprise
M3, covers the area from the M25 down to
Southampton and has identified Aldershot as a Step-
up Town for the sub-region.

A growth package has been developed, with
investment of £54-63 million in the town up until
2021, of which, £7.3-£8.3 million will be funded by the
LEP!. The package includes new town centre homes,
transformation of the rail station area, £3 million
investment in streets, spaces and shop fronts and
development at four key sites in Aldershot town centre.

The programme of investment will create an estimated
1,200-1,460 jobs in construction, service jobs and
other employment directly related to development.

1 ‘Working for a Smarter Future: The Enterprise M3 Delivery Plan - 2014-2020

Thares Yalley Bericahine
Local Entarprise
Partrership
Area

©

Swindon and Wiltshire

A changing demographic

The Borough of Rushmoor has a relatively young
population and great demand from young professionals
who want to move to the area. In addition, Aldershot
currently has a price differential with surrounding
areas that makes properties relatively affordable for a
desirable part of the country. These characteristics
result in an increasingly healthy market, with new two-
bedroom properties recently selling very quickly.

The development of 3,850 homes at Wellesley will
add 10,000 new residents to Aldershot over the next
few years, who fall into MOSAIC categories new
homemakers' and 'careers and kids', both with solid
incomes and spending power.

Rushmoor Borough Council's Strategic Housing Market
Assessment (SHMA) 2014 has identified a significant
requirement for new homes in the town above this, and
town centre living presents a key opportunity to meet
this housing need.

LONDON

o

Leal Enterpiiae

Fartneship Winchester Cioast ta Capital
Arga Lot Enterpiine
Patorsfield Pastiership
= Anea
Sowuth Danwiy
Matianal Park
Dorset Sauthampton
Local Enderprise
Partnership Lyndburst
Aigd =
Marwy Forwit P
v iyt al
Hationsd Park Loxch] Eaitmacti
Partrership
Area

Aldershot is located central to the Enterprise M3 Local Economic Partnership

Pack Page 90



A pro-active town centre approach

Like many towns across the UK, Aldershot has struggled
recently to maintain healthy town centre retail provision
in the face of stiff competition from online retailers and
retail parks. Closures have been due to retailers' national
strategies in many cases, but the Council is committed
to taking a pro-active approach to address vacancies
and bring life into the town centre through new homes
and activity, so that existing and new businesses are
supported.

Sites identified through the Prospectus demonstrate
potential capacity for new homes in the centre, along
with office space, leisure uses and retail space.

The Council will promote these development
opportunities and explore all delivery options for
bringing forward key sites in the town centre, including
seeking delivery partners and acquisition of sites
through compulsory purchase if alternative delivery
options do not prove possible.

85 to 89
75 to 84
65 to 74
60 to 64
45 to 59
30 to 44
2510 29
20 to 24
1810 19
16t0 17
15
10to 14
8to @
Sto7
Oto 4

mEngland
m South East

Rushmoor

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Rushmoor Borough has a relatively young population with a particularly high proportion of 30-44 year olds (Source ONS 2011)

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 91”



Well connected

Aldershot is well connected to both the rail and road

networks. The town is close to the A3 and M3, both

of which connect easily with the M25b, and the M4 is
also easily accessed.

Aldershot is also just an hour from the coast, with
Hayling Island, the Witterings and port towns within
easy reach.

The town is on the South West Trains network which
connects Aldershot to London Waterloo and Guildford
and nearby stations connect to North Camp, Reading,
and Gatwick.

London Waterloo: 53 minutes

A beautiful landscape setting

In addition to its parks - Manor Park, Municipal
Gardens, Princes Gardens and Aldershot Park -
Aldershot occupies an attractive location surrounded
by green and open space. Basingstoke Canal is
nearby; the Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB) and the South Down's National Park
are to the south; and the Blackwater Valley runs
through the area from the north. The Council will seek
to strengthen links to these natural assets, and to
routes such as the North Downs Way, through better
signage and footpath widening and maintenance as
funding permits.

Camberley: 14 minutes
Guildford: 17 minutes
Reading: 23 minutes
London
Reading
o
3';’”‘:;'0'“ @ ,Camberley
Farnb6rough ® Woking |:|
Basingstoke @ AlderShot
) o _ .
Farnham Guildford

M3

Winchester =

SOUTH DOWNS

Southamp
ke

[ J
]PaCk Page 92 Portsmouth

Surrey Hills



Crossrail

/\T Heathrow London
] Waterloo

Wokingham

\ gl
/\»' Farnborough

Ash Val
North Cc::mpa s e Redhill

% Basingstoke %sh

Aldershot Guildford

Gatwick




A growing community

The new Wellesley development on part of the former
Aldershot Garrison site north of the town centre will
provide a mix of home sizes and tenures along with two
new primary schools, 110 ha of managed green space,
including Wellesley Woods, and the refurbishment of
six listed buildings. The first 228 homes are under
construction.

Pedestrian and cycle links between the new homes and
the town centre will be very important and the existing
routes on Hospital Hill, Middle Hill, Gun Hill and
Ordnance Road will be improved with soft landscaping
and signage.

A new home at Wellesley

ALDERSHOT TOWN CENTRE : Approx 15 minute walk

inks to Aldershot Town Centre from Wellesle
Pack'Bage g el

\
\
1
|
|
I
I
|
Al



b Nua sl A ot

THE VISION FOR
ALDERSHOT

We want to see the heart back in Aldershot.

The town will be a place where everyone is welcome and where
families want to be, focused around a thriving leisure and refail hub.
Easy to get to, park and get around, the town will become increasingly
vibrant with new residents from Wellesley joining Aldershot’s community,
and new high quality urban homes in the town centre.

Businesses, old and new, will thrive and support the town, and residents
will shop in a unique mix of independent and high street shops.
Aldershot's Victorian and military heritage will be celebrated and
profected. Families and friends of all ages will meet up in a choice of
coffee shops, cafés and restaurants, be active or relax in quality open
spaces. Aldershot will come alive with the buzz from Westgate and a
revitalised Princes Hall, new leisure facilities and the concerts, shows, e
arts and family events taking place across the tfown. -

Aldershot town centre will be a place local people want to be.

Frs

233

i




THEMES OF THE VISION

A revitalised town centre offer

Aldershot's retail core faces challenges and is not
expected to compete with regional towns nearby.
However, the town centre has an important

1ole to play in meeting the convenience and

local shopping needs of a growing and affluent
population. The Council will welcome new
retailers, support the specialist retailers that
provide an alternative offer to other centres, and
seek to bring homes, leisure and office uses into
the centre to support shops.

Town centre living

Aldershot has a significant requirement for new
homes in the area and demand from young
professionals who wish to move to the area.
Combined with the relatively affordable but
increasing values of homes, the area is 'up and
coming'. To meet this need, town centre living
will be promoted, with homes to cater for young
people starting out, families and older people
wishing to downsize.

A family-friendly town centre

Aldershot is appreciated by residents as a safe
and family-friendly town centre that serves its
community well. With the Wellesley development
under construction, the Council will seek to
enhance this offer with additional activities such
as town centre leisure facilities and new public
spaces. An afternoon in the centre can appeal to
all the family.

Pack Page 96



ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

An improved cultural offer

Westgate Leisure Park brought a new multiplex
cinema to Aldershot town centre, along with a
number of high street restaurant names, and has
been very successful since opening. The Council
is reviewing opportunities to add to this offer,
such as the transformation of Princes Hall Theatre
and the extension of the successful events
programme in the town.

Investing in streets and spaces

The Activation Aldershot programme has brought
a series of improvements to the town's streets
and spaces that help to connect Westgate Leisure
Park back to Union Street and to better connect
early phases of the Wellesley development into the
town centre at Court Road. Further investment
priorities are identified to create a central public
space for Aldershot and improve entrances into
the town centre.

Affirming the Victorian heritage

One of Aldershot's frequently overlooked assets

is the quality of the Victorian buildings which
remain throughout the town centre. As many
towns across the UK begin to look similar in
terms of character and shops, Aldershot can
maintain a distinctiveness and attractiveness that
reflects its heritage. The Council is committed

to maintaining and enhancing this heritage, to
complement new buildings in the town centre.

Pack Page 97,



A REVITALISED
TOWN CENTRE OFFER

Whilst the retail environment has been challenging for
Aldershot in recent years, significant potential exists
for the town to provide the convenience and local
shopping offer that a growing young community with
decent income levels will require.

Rushmoor Borough Council recognises the need to
take action to support shops in the town centre. A
clear strategy is set out in local policy for consolidating
new retail in the centre of the town as part of the
primary retail frontage. The SPD masterplan sets out
opportunities for new homes and leisure uses in the
centre, both of which will support the town's shops
and add to the vitality and viability of the area.

The Council has taken the management of Aldershot
Market in-house, with the intention of improving the
offer and layout to maximise the market's appeal and
success and to reflect the town's diverse community.

l—-..'h ___,..-""-\l'( Gudie gon
f Y Cont®

A

The Activation Aldershot programme has secured LEP
funding for shop front improvements which is enabling
retailers to improve the profile and appearance of

their shops. The opportunity for this to be expanded
to include building fagade improvements for historic
buildings with shops at ground floor, is being explored.

Many shopping areas coordinate efforts to raise

their profile and improve the trading environment by
forming a Business Improvement District (BID) and the
Council will explore the feasibility of this for Aldershot.

With a growing community that will have solid
incomes and spending power, the potential for future
retail provision has been considered for Aldershot and
the masterplan demonstrates that retail space could
be accommodated, should it be required.

)
¢

Station Rogg—

g

o L T g iy i

: L . Vozan!

A2

Current land uses plan with retail in red. New retail will be focused in the core town centre, to consolidate the retail offer.

Pack Page 98



Example of shop front improvements Supporting independent businesses — —
EDGARJEROME
Aldershot has a decent range of ! bl g =7 A
independent businesses that will play an '
important role in meefing the convenience
needs of a growing population. LEP
funding has supported a shop-front
improvement scheme to help local
businesses improve the appearance and
profile of their shops.

Improving the trading environment

Rushmoor Borough Council has taken the
management of the market in-house fo
improve the offer and optimise the layout
so stalls have maximum appeal to the
local community and beyond.

The Council will explore the potential for
a Business Improvement District (BID) for
the town centre, to co-ordinate measures
fo raise the profile of the centre, hold
events and improve the environment.

Bringing vacant buildings into use

The Council will explore the purchase or
rental of vacant units in the town centre,
with a view to leasing these at affordable
rents fo support startups in the fown or
work with arfists and makers to use the
space for exhibitions and education uses.
Links with University of the Creative Arts
will be explored for this.

A clear retail hierarchy

Local policy sets out clear town centre
and shopping core boundaries designed
fo concentrate refailers in the core of the
town centre. Smaller and independent
shops in less central areas such as Station
Road will support the core refail.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 999



TOWN CENTRE LIVING

Homes for all ages

The 1ole of town centres is changing, with shopping
habits diversifying and other uses filling the space

left behind by vacated shops. This shift is happening
at the same time as the need for new homes has
increased sharply, particularly in the south of England.

Aldershot has a number of suitable town centre

sites that can provide homes, ranging from those for
young people starting out to older people wishing

to downsize. In each case, high quality apartments
and mews houses in the town centre can provide
shops and services in easy reach, proximity to the rail
station and a sociable environment. Opportunity also
exists to make better use of vacant floors above shops
in the town centre. These spaces would have provided
homes when built, and refurbishment would make
better use of existing buildings, provide much needed
homes and support the town centre.

The SPD has identified potential for new homes in

the town centre from the key sites set out on pages
42-43. The Council is not able to bring all of these
homes forward itself but is committed to working with
developers to deliver new homes through an approach
that responds to Aldershot's historic character and
Victorian market town scale.

The Council would expect a number of car parking
spaces to be provided to match the scale of residential

development*. We also recognise the accessibility
of residential development in town centres within a StRReRg(:\0ev
short walking distance to local facilities and public
transport. Car ownership will still be required by most
residents and there is a high vacancy of town centre
car parking in the town, in particular the High Street
multi-storey car park (built in association with the
development of The Galleries) which could provide

the capacity needed to serve the new residential
development within the central part of the town. An
assessment of the parking needs for the retail capacity
of the town alongside an analysis of the parking

needs for the residential development will determine
the allocation from the existing town centre off street
parking stock.

*Rushmoor Car and Cycle Parking Standards SPD

New town centre family homes in Barking
Riverside

Rack Page 100



pport

Homes above shops and new town centre

residential development can su

Aldershot's shops and services

I

Pack Page 101

TUSe

e e
= —
o ol
- -
e e

~="__ ALDERSHOLTOW}




A FAMILY FRIENDLY
TOWN CENTRE




The Council is keen to encourage a focus for family
activities in the north of the town centre, around
Westgate and the Empire (former Kings Centre), the
former petrol station site and the Gala Bingo building.

The Kings Centre is being refurbished as a centre for
community events and activities. The former petrol
station site could be re-designed as an urban sports
park with climbing, parkour (free running, ground
based acrobatics) and other activities. In the longer
term, the Gala building could be a trampoline activity
centre or similar.

It would also be possible to re-establish the
historic connection from the High Street

to Union Street here, with replacement
smaller footprint shops and homes

above.

\

1
LT
LY

— =%
i
f; v
Tk

1
-.n.
-
-
[

LA




Sports and leisure

Aldershot has an impressive range of sports facilities
and activities, including the football club, dry ski-
slope, gymnastics centre and swimming pool. The
council will explore the potential for establishing
leisure facilities in the town centre to complement
these and improve accessibility.

Connections to the walking routes that surround the
town are to be improved in the longer term, with
better signage and communication to raise the profile
of these and path maintenance and enhancement, as
funding becomes available. The Wellesley Heritage
Trail is one example of this initiative and a green link
from Hospital Hill to the centre and from the canal and
training heaths to the centre will also be explored.

Aldershot has a range of high quality town parks,
including the Municipal Gardens, Princes Gardens
and Manor Park. These will all be safe-guarded and
improved, as and when funding becomes available.

oo Spect |

Accessibility

Providing a family-friendly town centre means
ensuring accessibility for all. Coordinated public
transport infrastructure with well-placed bus stops

at the station, on the High Street and at outlying
supermarkets is an important part of this. Pressing
for improvements to rail connections will also support
family living in the town by improving access to jobs

Cycling infrastructure is essential. This includes
providing sufficient cycle parking at the rail station
and in the town centre. It also includes providing
cycle lanes on key routes into the town centre so that
cycling can be a means of transport and not just a
leisure activity.

In addition to strong public transport and cycling
infrastructure, affordable and safe parking facilities are
needed. The Council's Parking Strategy covers these
issues and will continue to be reviewed.

The Council will seek to improve linkages to natural assets in and around Aldershot through wayfinding, and enhancement and maintenance of pathways

Rack Page 104



The great outdoors

Aldershot is surrounded by walking
and cycling routes, including those in

the Blackwater Valley and along the
Basingstoke Canal; and trails out to the
Surrey Hills AONB. Popular cycle routes
such as the Hogs Back are close to

hand.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Sports on the doorstep

Aldershot has an array of sports and
activiies including Aldershot Football
Club, the ski slope, gymnastics training
faciliies and the bowling alley. In
addition to this, the army sports pitches
mean that families are spoilt for choice
for weekend activities and opportunities
to learn new skills.

Pack Page 105



AN IMPROVED
CULTURAL OFFER

Aldershot town centre's cultural offer includes the
much-loved Princes Hall theatre and the popular West
End Centre in Queens Road. The town has a central
library, on the High Street, and a full programme of
street-based events throughout the year.

The SPD identifies opportunities for further enhancing
this cultural offer by extending the theatre provision
and raising the profile of other arts spaces.

o
ay

=

ah

g |
i

The proximity of the University of Creative Arts in
Farnham can be capitalised upon, and Rushmoor
Borough Council will explore the potential for vacant
units in the centre to be made available to artists for
exhibitions or educational uses.

In the longer term, the library could be brought

to a more central location, raising its profile and
accessibility as an important community anchor.

(Pt
LERY. &




T T e T S L R T N il P T el D Lk T

B ke ¢ L RS AT

A refurbished Princes Hall

Princes Hall theatre has served Aldershot
well for the last 40 years, with popular
shows appealing to a range of
audiences. With the anticipated closure
of the Police Station and potential for
new homes, the council is exploring the
opportunity for refurbishing the theatre so
that it can continue to serve audiences in
the future.

New restaurants and cafes

Westgate brought o multiplex cinema
to Aldershot town centre, along with @
number of high street name restaurants.
Potential also exists for new cafes - af
Princes Hall as part of a refurbishment,
and at key sites on Union Street and
Wellington Street.

Expanding the cultural and events
programme

Aldershot has a full programme of cultural
evenfs and actfivities af venues such as
the great West End Cenfre and on-streef.
These all celebrate the town's heritage,
its diversity and its talent and creativity.
The Council will continue to support and
promote events in the town centre that
animate public spaces and reflect the
fown's growing community.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 1Q7



Opportunity exists to refurbish and extend Princes Hall at
the front, to provide a stronger relationship with Princes
Gardens and Westgate Leisure Park.

A single-storey front development at ground floor could
establish active frontage and a 'front door' to the street,
leading to the box office. Steps would be re-provided
leading up from Princes Way, with an accessible ramp from
Westgate. A new first floor terrace would provide space for
events and ceremonies overlooking Princes Gardens and a
cafe could be incorporated at ground or first floor.

~ Pack Page 108
J o :

e e



0

20)

......



AN ENGAGED COMMUNITY

Aldershot has an active and engaged
community that is responsible for a
range of cultural activities and events
in the town and also participates in
visioning the future of the town centre.

The Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus e
has been informed by well attended
events that generated a range of ideas
for improving the town centre and
surrounds.




"We need fo improve
the shop fronts - and
fo look up beyond
the shop fronts - it's
surprisingly good!"

"Aldershot's culture
and community are
what makes its identity”

"We should have a
Nepalese food festival

or Gurkha Day"

"Get rid of the

unattractive buildings in

n

the town centrel

Photos from an early consultation event held to
inform the Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 1]51



INVESTING IN STREETS
AND SPACES

Some of Aldershot's streets and spaces have been
enhanced during 2015 through the Activation Aldershot
programme following a successful LEP funding bid.
Union Street has been re-paved and trees replaced
with species more suitable for the space available.
Landscaping has also improved in the areas between
Westgate Leisure Park and Union Street, linking these
two important centres for Aldershot more effectively.
Lastly, interactive wayfinding totems have been put up
in the town centre, to help people find their way around
more easily.

Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD sets out further
improvements for streets and public spaces. These will
be planned, designed and delivered over the coming
years as funding becomes available. Projects include:

¢ Enhanced landscaping, rationalisation of the road
network as well as a new multi-storey car park will
improve the experience of arriving in Aldershot by
train and help to reduce the conflict between cars,
buses and pedestrians in the area.

e Accessibility improvements that link to the new
Wellesley development, pedestrian crossings on the
high street as well as potentially new and improved
pedestrian links between the High Street and
Union Street.

* The active review of possibilities for establishing
a public square in Aldershot town centre,
through the sites that have been identified in the
masterplan.

In the longer term, the Council will also explore
opportunities such as:

¢ Enhanced landscaping at key locations such as
in front of the library to provide a stronger visual
marker of the town centre from Wellington Avenue.

¢ Landscape enhancements to improve the setting
of Aldershot's most attractive historic buildings,
many of which are at crossroads on Victoria Road.

Rack Page 112



Improvements already under way

The Activation Aldershot progromme has
seen the transformation of Union Street,
with repaving and re-planting of trees.
The area between Westgate Leisure Park
and Union Street has been relandscaped
and wayfinding totems have been
installed throughout the town centre.

An enhanced setting for the rail
station

The station approach and car park area
are identified for enhanced landscaping
and improvements, so that visitors can
access the stafion more easily and the
aftractive historic building is given a more
appropriate sefting.

A new public space for Aldershot

Opportunity exists to establish a central
public events space for Aldershot,
through the development of key sites that
have been identified including the former
Galleries shopping centre and vacant
buildings on Union Street.

Pack Page 113



PUBLIC REALM INVESTMENT
OPPORTUNITIES

Improvements to Princes Way to
strengthen the links from Wellesley

A potential re-established link between
the High Street and Union Street, with
small shops fronfing the route

oW
$ A
LOﬂgeI’ term improvemems at key ""'000....OO..O.O000..........000...........0.....3L' wh '
. . . AR VicT
crossroads with historic buildings to - g ORIA EBAD

enhance the setting of these

- Improvements under way or complete

- Priority areas for landscape improvements

Other areas for landscape enhancements

Rack Page 114



The plan below sets out the improvements to Aldershot Town Centre's
public realm which are complete or under way as part of the LEP-funded

Activation Aldershot programme or highways works, along with further
opportunities that have been identified through the development of the

Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD

Improvements to Courf Road and

~ ' beyond to connect to Wellesley

L
An improved crossing af the car park

QD ;
.............................................. .o eesscsssscense
‘.o.oo....o.oo.o.oo.o......... cecee eees and enhanced |gnd5coping in front of
. the library

= I eecee

: o
il o
{ 8
Joa .errrr s
g the Galleries link, with potential for a
. .
5 small public space
K 3
N
| =t
Ef e
;-ﬂf_ '.ul:rc:-au, RoaAp
3
Z
s
B

An outdoor pedestrian link o replace

F i

Enhanced landscaping of the station
approach, bus station and parking

ared

Gorpay ROAL

Pack Page 115

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



Pack

AFFIRMING THE

VICTORIAN

With the role of UK town centres shifting away from
a retail focus towards a leisure, the character and
environment within towns and cities is becoming
increasingly important. People are naturally drawn to
places which are attractive and provide a comfortable
environment in which to spend free time.

Aldershot is well placed for this trend, with a collection
of often overlooked historic buildings, including a
clutch of Grade II Listed buildings and the Grade II*
Listed Wesley Chambers church building and other
buildings of local importance.

Many of the finer historic buildings in the town centre
are located at crossroads and the Council will seek to

Victoria Road

HERITAGE

enhance the public realm at these points to reveal the
attractive heritage, with improvements being made as
funding becomes available. Key locations for this are
illustrated indicatively in the plan below.

Shop front improvements are being implemented for
historic buildings on key streets such as Station Road
and Union Street, with funding successfully secured
from the Enterprise M3 LEP through the Activation
Aldershot programme. Many of these buildings
would also benefit from up-lighting in the evenings to
highlight their architectural qualities.

LW

n. N
»

“"

|

a%a

A broad indication of clusters of historically significant buildings at crossroads. Willow House on Victoria Road/Grosvenor Road is not historic but occupies a
prominent location - redevelopment at this site is supported, to complete the setting of the three listed buildings.

composite TioGhowing historic building facades along Wellington Street

age



ALDERSHOT TOW




Aldershot's rapid growth as a Victorian
Military town has left the fown with @
legacy of gridded streets populated
by confident and striking Victorian
buildings. These use a mix of materials
including sfone and yellow stock brick
among the more common soft reds. This
confident character continued into the
early twenfieth century in Edwardion and
early inferwar buildings, maintaining a
consistent attractive character. Many of
the best buildings occupy corner sites
and are visible as landmarks, making
them especially important.

Rack Page 118



PROMOTING, PROTECTING,
ENHANCING AND PRESERVING

Aldershot has a number of listed and locally listed are made sensitively. Grosvenor Road has been

buildings, identified in red and orange in the plan identified as a priority for ensuring interventions do

below. In addition to these individual historic not undermine the historic integrity of buildings and

buildings, many buildings in the town centre have streets.

group value, such as the row of historic buildings on

the High Street. The Council will also more actively promote
Aldershot's historic assets through the development of

The Council will support preservation and a heritage route that takes in the town's Victorian and

enhancement of these buildings proportionate to their military heritage and coordinates with the planned

heritage significance and will seek to ensure that any Wellesley Heritage Trail.

conversions or refurbishment of historic buildings

ANy

L

=

£
¥
WETON houg

[ -‘

:
2
e

Lane T

-

§ 2
3 o ]
f -]
1 ALDERSHOT WEST CA _._,,d--fl\ H)

|
= bt
'I_ y

| CARGATE AVEHAIE £ '
-
Ly r

— |
Plan indicating Aldershot town centre's conservation areas, statutorily listed buildings, locally listed buildings and non-designated heritage assets

POEG Nay

Heritage
Grode 2°

Grade 2
Lecally listed

Comservation areg

i 1|

Buildings with group valve

Cither buldings with
historic qualy

Pack Page 119

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



Rack Page 120



PRESERVING AND ENHANCING VIEWS

Not all views in the town centre are positive. Key

Aldershot has retained a strong relationship between

the town centre and the surrounding landscape, so vehicular routes into the centre are currently poor and

that from a number of key points within the town focus will be given to improving these in the future,

centre, framed views exist of green space in the including review of any planning applications with
this objective in mind.

distance. Within the town centre there are also a
number of views to key buildings such as the view
along Victoria Road to Wesley Chambers former
church building. Some views of importance are shown
below. The Council will seek to retain these views
when considering future development opportunities.

Sl gy

ilingpg,, p—

if sein 3RRETT

£\
5 1 5\ . %6' iq
= — _;-g _".,-d"'""m iﬁ_ ig 8.
S g ~ :3
5.
_3’__ el . f %
P "4 I i — s N
.;\FE'Q'.D 1':' j! é,r =T S =
e L i z
% | g
% |
% {
‘EL [l 7.

Plan indicating some of Aldershot town centre's significant views

Key views

Alexandra Road looking west to landscape

Barrack Road looking north to landscape

Queen's Road looking west to St Joseph's Church
Grosvenor Road looking south fo landscape

Victoria Road looking west to Wesley Chambers
Wellington Street looking north to the Gala building
Gordon Road looking south to landscape

Station Road looking north to the Post office and landscape

Victoria Road looking east to landscape

VO NO AW —

View of Wesley Chambers east along Victoria Road

Pack Page 121

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



THE MASTERPLAN
FOR ALDERSHOT

establish new street frontage ceee NN, ....H

Former Kings Centre: esfablished
as The Empire community, outdoor
play and events venue

Princes Hall area: ’
Remodelling of the Princes Hall % E ’ 2 “‘
with infill residential development o l' - ~ Wnur"r:lu:u.‘-

[ n
oooooooooooooooto--- . 'o.....-oo

HIGH STREET

Union Street: Regeneration of the
Union STreeT blOCkWITh new reTOi| Ond .o.co.0..o..ooo..o..ooo.o-..o...o..co..oc.t...o..o...oo.“ooo.o-..o * =l

residential development

3
Marks and Spencer bui|ding: .o.0o.0..o0..oo..oo..o...oo..o...oo.oo& .oooo-oc.omoooaouoooooo
Potential re-use or redevelopment of s ot o gl
the former Marks & Spencer building ”“. = ‘il »s?
WE;}“;?

Vicforia Road: Cornerinﬂ” -o--ooo-.--o--o--oo-oo-.-----.oo '..h
VICTORIA BOaD .

development opportunity
1\ g .
™
iy
oui‘-“" Ro 'l-““ )
Birchett Road: Redevelopment of the .. ..veeees \ﬁ“

'. it' 3

s &,
2 S
° - D 3

former warehouse as a residential site

Key public spaces for investment

Public realm improvements |. . *
5 o

Car park development

Proposed development

Potential refurbished existing buildings
listed buildings

Other historic buildings

Rack Page 122



The plan below sets out development and refurbishment opportunities identified through the
Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD. These vary in scale and the timeframe in which they
are likely to come forward. However, Rushmoor Borough Council has identified a number of

priority sites, which are:

The Galleries site linking Wellington Street with the High Street car park
The Union Street group of building that also front Wellington Street and the High Street

The Rail Station area, including improved access and parking
The area around Princes Hall, including refurbishment of the theatre

1.

2.
3.
4.

Galleries site: Refail and residential
redevelopment of the Galleries site

1]

0 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

-
P
g
g with the opfion to include new leisure
- facilities
o
£
o
2
a
-3
B
VIcTomig ROAD
1 Hippodrome House: Options
for refurbishment and possible infill

development on Victoria Road

seseees  Windsor Way: Corner infill
development opportunity

- il

Rail Station: Proposals for a new

&

3

H [N

aT o pﬂ

“g ) 'm. 0000000000000 0000000000000000000000 o . OS¢

g 2 a.' : station square, providing better
@n o arrangements for buses, taxis and

parking

Pack Page 123

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



The Galleries

The Galleries has remained almost vacant for many
years now and its redevelopment is a high priority

for the Council. The centre was built in the 1990s,

but a major redevelopment project being planned in
2007 was a victim of the recession and so the site has
remained unoccupied.

{

The site is unusual as the main internal arcade is at
an upper level, connected to the Wellington Centre via
a bridge over Wellington Street and with a cascade of oy
escalators required to return shoppers to street level =
on to the High Street. This configuration makes it

difficult to redevelop as a gradual, organic process and ‘ f

is likely to require a more comprehensive approach.

The bridge itself is a major imposition on Wellington
Street. It blocks views to the Art Deco cinema

building at the northern end of the street and to the . ‘ ‘ .
late Victorian bank on the corner of Victoria Road.

The street level is also artificially lowered to create
headroom on the street, creating a gloomy space.
The opportunity created by the removal of the

bridge would be a new street-level entrance into the
Wellington Centre facing across Wellington Street to
new shops around a public space created on the site
of the Galleries. This would create a street-level route
through to the High Street car park and deliver new
town centre housing above shops.

Option 1

The eastern part of the site provides the opportunity
for a larger use fronting onto the new square. This
could provide a suitable location for new retail
development and new residential development.
Potential also exits for a commercial leisure centre
within new development. Visitors would be able to
make use of the existing car parking capacity in the
High Street car park and the facility would act as a
non-retail draw for the town centre, with potential to
attract people seven days a week.

[
The Arcade block to the south of the Galleries could be Option 2 - dotted red area shows additional commercial/leisure space
usefully redeveloped or remodelled to take advantage
of the new public space and create additional active
frontage. If this option is not pursued then a new slim
block of development should be provided to ensure

Public realm improvements

Key public spaces for investment

that active frontages are created onto the square. . Proposed development
Cycle parking should be included in any scheme here. . listed buildings
Top: Option for the Galleries site with retail and town centre uses Other historic bUi|dings
fronting the pedestrian connection and residential above

Bottom: A retail and residential scheme that includes a commercial
leisure centre at ground floor

Rack Page 124



Key information and delivery approach

Redevelopment of vacant Galleries shopping mall for either:

Project Description Option 1: As mixed use retail/active town centre uses/residential scheme

Option 2: As above but with commercial leisure space

Option 1 — 3,800 sgm retail, 12,800 sgm gross residential (est. 130 units).
Option 2 — 950 sgm commercial leisure, 3,150 sqm retail; 12,800 sgqm gross
residential (est. 130 units).

Potential uses

Current Uses Vacant shopping mall
Ownership Private ownership (Threadneedle)
Delivery Approach e Private sector led delivery

e Public sector led developer procurement

Delivery Option 1: 0-5 years

Timeframes . ,
Phasing Option 2: 0-5 years

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 125



Existing view of Wellington Street towards the Gala Bingo building

Rack Page 126



Potential improvement to Wellington Street with redevelopment of the Galleries site

Y

.-'—\\\;/ —,
) B
ol E
R = =
= ﬂ.‘ = > —
4
——
7

S

Ve jL ( I ——— =
f;_r;%_:_l%i; 0 .
B 4 VAT : NN
O T T T T N
/é ~ / / / g I \ | EL - \\\\ - . \x i
[/ ] .
= 77 T TTTI VNN NN

The removal of the
bridge would allow
the development of a
new enfrance fo the

Wellington Centre fronting

onfo the new square

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Views could be
opened up in both
directions, revealing
historic buildings

New development on
The Galleries site should
include a mix of shops,
active fown cenfre uses
and homes, and could
also provide a site for
new leisure facilities

Pack Page 127



Union Street and former Marks and Spencer building

The eastern end of Union Street contains a number of

large buildings which have proved difficult to adapt

and have gradually fallen into low value use or vacancy '

over the last few years. The sloping site and the need W STREET
to have frontages onto both Union Street and the High

Street means that they are not best suited to modern

retail requirements. g

=i
) . ) z
Another important aspect of the Union Street block is l T’
that it contains several attractive historic buildings. o
Retaining and refurbishing these to bring them back -%‘
into active use is an important part of the Council's O
preferred strategy for Aldershot's future. Options ﬂ '{'ﬁ
exist to refurbish the buildings in their current #ﬁ # ';
configuration, or to retain the facades and as much of e 1
the original buildings as possible, whilst reconfiguring
the site to create modern retail spaces and residences.

Option 1
Marks & Spencer’s former building is a large modern
structure which is located in the middle of the block.
In the shorter term it is hoped that the building will be
re-occupied. In the longer term it would be difficult to

TREET

re-model for residential use in its current form, but its HS
scale does provide an opportunity to open up a new

pedestrian route through the block, providing a direct l
link from High Street to the Wellington Centre and

creating the kinds of buildings which would be better

suited to smaller scale retail or business and town I

centre living.

Active ground floor town centre uses would be
expected at these sites and potential exists to create mﬂ
a town square as part of a scheme which would need '1‘0“
to be well-defined and enclosed by active frontages.

The two sites could be brought forward as a single

development project. Option 2

Public realm improvements

Key public spaces for investment

. Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

. Listed buildings

. Other historic buildings

Rack Page 128



Key information and delivery approach

Two significant development/refurbishment opportunities for mixed retail,
active town centre uses, leisure and residential purposes. Retail, leisure,
service, cafe, restaurant or other active town centre use at ground floor with
residential on upper floors. These could come forward as one scheme.

Project Description

Union Street East (54-62).
1. Refurbishment of retail at ground floor with office/storage above
2. Mixed retail/other active town centre uses/leisure with residential above

Former Marks & Spencer. Two options considered:

1. Re-configuration/reuse of retail space with office/storage space above
2. Redevelopment of building with ground floor active town centre use and
residential above

Potential uses Union Street East:

Option 1: 500 sgm residential (est 6 units); 2,600 sgm retail/leisure space
refurbished; 4,400 sgqm office/storage space

Option 2: 4,600 sgm residential (est. 50 units); 2,600 sgqm retail/active town
centre use/leisure service

Former M&S:

Option 1: 2,300 sgm reconfigured retail and 2,200 sgqm office/storage above
Option 2: 1,500 sgm retail/town centre uses; 3,700 sgm residential (est 40
units) above

Current Uses Union Street East — Unit retail, with significant vacancies

Former M&S — Retail/cafe (Department/Variety Store)

Union Street East - complex privately owned multi-owned block with sub

Ownership interests.
Marks & Spencer: private ownership.
I h Union Street East: Public sector led developer partner procurement
Delivery Approac Former M&S site: Private sector developer
Deliv.ery Timeframes / Union Street East — 0-5 years
Phasing

Marks & Spencer — 0-2 years (assuming reuse of building)

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 129



The Rail Station

Aldershot station is an attractive Victorian building,
strongly symmetrical except for later additions and
canopies. The area around the railway station,
including the parking, bus stands and highway
environment does little to enhance the setting of the
building, presenting the opportunity for sensitive infill
and remodelled road structure to create a high quality
environment.

The existing accessibility in the area is complex,
including buses, taxis, cyclists, pedestrians, pick

up and set down for private cars, and access to the
station for parking. The aim of the proposals is to
create a simpler, clearer environment to minimise the
impact of vehicle movements and to establish a more
legible and comfortable approach to the station for
pedestrians.

A funding bid has been submitted to the Enterprise
M3 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) by Rushmoor
Borough Council in partnership with Network Rail,
South West Trains, Stagecoach, Hampshire County
Council plus private landowners. The proposals within
the bid include a new area for taxis and buses directly
in front of the station, framed by new buildings on
either side. The proposal involves significant changes
to the existing forecourt of the railway station, by

way of public realm improvements, that will result

in a pedestrian friendly environment supported

by a realigned public transport interchange that
incorporates buses, taxis, cycling and a ‘kiss and drop’
facility and the provision of a new decked car park to
offset the loss of existing car parking spaces.
Additional cycle parking should be included in any Top: Proposals for a new station square, including revised bus and taxi
landscaping designs, to maximise sustainable links provision and new decked car park

to the rail station and minimise congestion at peak
commuting times.

Bottom: The existing Victorian Station building

Any tree planting included in landscaping for a
scheme at the rail station should not mask the view of

Public realm improvements
the historic station building. P

C k devel t
Nearby redundant sites on Windsor Way could be ar park aevelopmen

brought forward in connection with the station area
scheme, including replacement of Penmark House and
refurbishment of the adjacent historic building.

Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

. Listed buildings

Rack Page 130



Key information and delivery approach

Proiet.:t . A number of projects focussing on improvements to the train and bus
Description station, comprising:

Refurbishment of the train station and associated facilities.

Decked car park

Reconfiguration of the public transport interchange and release of existing
bus station site for residential/retail development

Project Outputs car park

2,800 sgm gross residential (est. 28 units);
small scale/ancillary retail or service uses

Current Uses Train and bus stations and associated facilities

Ownership Principally in ownership of Network Rail (station and car park) and
Stagecoach (bus station)

Relivery h Public Sector led (Network Rail/Train Operating Company/South West
pproac Trains) contractor procurement

Public Sector led (Network Rail/Train Operating Company/South West
Trains) contractor procurement

Private sector developer

thvery Assumes to be delivered as separate phases:
Timeframes /

Phasin
9 Train station refurbishment: 0-5 years

Decked car park: 0-5 years
Reconfigured public transport interchange: 0-5 years
Redevelopment of bus station: 0-5 years

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 13)1



Princes Hall and Police Station

The Princes Hall, Police Station and Magistrates Court
were part of a suite of civic buildings all developed
in the early 1970s. The Hall is an important part
of Aldershot's community and cultural life. With
development coming forward, potential exists to
invest in the existing building to refurbish it, creating
an impressive new entrance terrace overlooking
Princes Gardens and to improve the ground floor of
the building. The new entrance approach will help
the building to integrate better with the successful
Westgate Leisure Park as part of Aldershot’s growing
evening economy. Refurbishment also presents the
opportunity to explore whether the theatre could be
expanded to help attract touring shows to the town.

The Police Station is anticipated to close as part of a

wider strategy for policing. However the Magistrates
Court is expected to remain in use so there is an
opportunity to enhance and retain the Police Station
for public sector community benefit. In the event of
the relocation of the Magistrates Court, the site could
have potential for residential redevelopment.

Public realm improvements

. Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

. Listed buildings

Rack Page 132

y

| hqm

H
i
:'
:
?
i
i
?

o
‘ Ty L

Snnag,
e L LT
'"‘""""‘-t-. =
LT
SLETY

Top: Development plan to replace the Magistrates Court and

remodel Princes Hall

Bottom: Proposals for the remodelling of the Princes Hall



Key information and delivery approach

Project Description Refurbishment and investment in Princes Hall theatre.

Following the closure of the Police Station, retain the building for public
sector community benefit.

In the longer term, if the Magistrates Court was relocated, there could
be a separate redevelopment of the Court and Police Station.

Potential uses Princes Hall — 3,900 sqm refurbished theatre
900 sgm gross residential (est. 100 units)

Current Uses Theatre, police station and magistrates court.

Ownership

All sites in public ownership (Council, Police, Magistrates)

ngrarching Princes Hall — Public Sector led contractor procurement
De||very Approach Police — Private Sector developer

Magistrates — Private Sector developer

Each development plot is expected to be delivered separately

Delivery Time

. Princes Hall: 0-5 years
frames / Phasing 4

Police Station and Magistrates : 5-10 years

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 1373



Birchett Road

The former warehouse on the north side of Birchett
Road between Frederick Street and Heathland Street
provides the opportunity for town centre living, and
planning permission for residential redevelopment has
previously been granted on this site.

VICTORIA Roap

Development would restore active frontage to the
street, which is particularly important given the
site's prominent location on a slight bend in the road,
making it prominent in views from both east and
west.

The four-storey listed terrace of Culdrose House to the
west provides some guidance on scale, but buildings
to the south and east are lower. Frequent front doors
onto the street will be an important part of helping a
new building to integrate with the prevailing Victorian
character of the area.

Opportunity might exist as part of a scheme here
to improve the character of Frederick Street with

landscaping works and possibly by establishing a
shared surface.

Public realm improvements

Key public spaces for investment

. Proposed development

. Listed buildings

Top: Proposals for new development on Birchett Road

Middle: The existing warehouse building

Bottom: How new homes could look at the site

RPack Page 134



Key information and delivery approach

Project Description Development opportunity with strong residential potential on the north
side of Birchett Road. Planning permission has been granted previously
for a scheme but so far no development has been progressed.

Potential uses 5,200 sgqm gross residential (est. 55 units)

Current Uses Vacant warehouse

Ownership Private ownership
Delivery Approach Private sector developer
Delivery Time Short term 0-5 years

frames / Phasing

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 13.75



High Street

The old cinemas on the High Street, now the King's
Centre and Gala Bingo, are two of Aldershot’s largest
and most distinctive buildings, each with their own
unique character. The Council would encourage
schemes which promote their retention and re-use,
given their important contribution to the character of
Aldershot town centre, provided suitable uses can be
identified.

The King's Centre was recently acquired by a private
investor and has been refurbished and given a new

lease of life as an events venue. Its accessible location .
and large internal space makes it ideal for this use and
retains the spirit of the original design for the building

as a place of assembly.

STREET

The Gala Bingo building remains in current use, and
forms an important leisure use as part of Aldershot’s |
leisure economy. If the building is vacated in the ;
longer term the Council would be keen to see it
retained in its current form or some other leisure use.
The large volumes of the building mean that it could
be suitable for a number of indoor sports or leisure
activities, particular modern pursuits such as free
running / parkour or skateboarding or alternatively as
a soft play centre.

The space between the buildings is an important site

in itself. There are opportunities to create elements of — j
infill development which could support the use of the Y E E]
adjoining buildings. The area could also provide useful ;_’_ﬁf i

=

outdoor activity/play space including elements such
as bouldering/climbing walls using a lightweight roof
to provide shelter from the elements.

11| | 00

=

LY

Public realm improvements &

Key public spaces for investment

Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

Bottom: Proposals for the new use of the former Empire Cinema as a
. Listed buildings community events space

Left: Options for urban sports which could feature in the project

RPack Page 136



Key information and delivery approach

Project Description Site comprising three separate plots:

King’s Centre - Reuse and refurbishment for events

Car Wash — A leisure use will be sought in the first instance.
If this proves unviable then residential infill will be considered
Gala Bingo - Longer term alternative leisure uses.

Potential uses King’s Centre — 3,900 sqm refurbished space (983 sqm over 4 floors)
Car Wash — 780 sgm leisure
Gala Bingo — 5,200 sgm refurbished space (1297 sgqm over 4 floors)

Current Uses King’s Centre — community/events space
Other plot uses as per description

Ownership All sites in private ownership.

Delivery Approach All sites expected to be private sector led delivery, with each site
delivered separately.

Delivery Time frames King's Centre — 0-1 years

/ Phasmg Car Wash — 0-5 years

Gala Bingo — 10-15 years +

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 1377



Hippodrome House area

The Victoria Road block bounded by Gordon Road,
Birchett Road and Station Road has several distinct
aspects to its character. Along the Victoria Road
frontage there are good historic buildings, separated
by a postwar infill development. Gordon House on the
south-west corner of the block is being refurbished
and is to be converted to residential development.

Hippodrome House on the south eastern corner of the E
block was identified in the consultation workshops as ;
one of the buildings which people most wish to see ?

improved, although the ground floor frontage forms E 4

part of the vibrant retail scene on Station Road.

An element of active frontage can be created

onto Birchett Road with limited infill residential
development, retaining but screening the car park to
improve the street scene. This scheme would involve
the refurbishment and re-cladding of Hippodrome
House to improve the existing office space and to
enhance the arrival to the town centre from the
station.

Public realm improvements
Key public spaces for investment

Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

. Listed buildings

Other historic buildings

Middle: Infill and refurbishment options for the Victoria Road
block

Bottom: Example of a recent building remodelling illustrating a
potential approach to Hippodrome House

Rack Page 138



Key information and delivery approach

Project Description Redevelopment/refurbishment of blocks fronting Birchett Road
Infill site plus refurbishment of Hippodrome House

Project Outputs 1,870 sgm gross new residential (est. 18 units) plus 4,840 refurbished/
converted space for residential (est. 47 units); 1,200 sqm retail/leisure.

Current Uses Mixed: parking, retail, offices, leisure

Ownership Two key private owners, with sub interests

Delivery Approach Private Sector delivery

Delivery Hippodrome House refurbishment (0-2 years); Birchett Road infill
Timeframes / (0-5 years)
Phasing v

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 13.79






MAKING IT HAPPEN

Overview

The Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD contains
a series of physical (development) projects that will
shape the centre over the next 15-20 years and
beyond. It is intended to be visionary, yet flexible to
ensure that it can meet changes in circumstances,
especially economic and property related.

Project Priorities

While an holistic approach to renewing Aldershot
town centre should be at the heart of any over arching
strategy, inevitably not all projects will progress at

the same time. Scarce resources may mean too that
certain, more strategic sites in Aldershot town centre
may be prioritised for investment and change.
Priorities for the town centre are considered to be:

e Union Street
e The Galleries
e Aldershot Rail and Bus Station

The enabling of these developments is likely to have
the greatest physical positive impact on renewing
Aldershot town centre, partly due to their due to
their scale and — particularly for Union Street and the
Galleries — their highly central location.

Project Linkages

There are also clear town centre project linkages —
some are physical in nature; others are enabling and
sustaining. They include:

* Bringing forward significant new residential
accommodation, which in turn will support retail
and other leisure activities.

e Improving Aldershot Rail and Bus Station, so the
perception of Aldershot to new residents is one of
an attractive and accessible centre.

* Redevelopment of the Galleries and improvement
to the Wellington Centre entrance through
removal of the connecting bridge

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Where appropriate, rationalising retail and service
activity whilst at the same time improving available
retail stock so it is more attractive to potential
operators, thus increasing the prospects of enticing
new businesses to the town. In part, delivering
change at Union Street and the Galleries would help
support this aim.

Delivery mechanisms

There is unlikely to be a one size fits all delivery
mechanism for projects — the choice should reflect the
size, scale and nature of the individual masterplan
initiatives. In the description of individual masterplan
projects, broad delivery approaches are suggested
together with key delivery actions. Delivery
mechanisms include:

e  Public sector led
*  Private Sector led
e Public Private partnerships

Asset Backed Vehicles (LABVs) may too have a

role to play if of a sufficient size to be attractive.
Asset backed vehicles are a delivery mechanism,
with significant potential to lever in private sector
funding usually across multi- sites in the form of a
joint venture. In a LABYV, a local authority typically
contributes the land, and a private firm the skills and
finance to develop out assets.

Local Delivery Companies are too becoming a more
common feature of the regeneration agenda, with
local authorities setting up arms’ length companies
to take a locally oriented commercial approach to
realising schemes — again with the ability to reinvest
profit toward other developments. Such companies
can manage assets, develop land and property by
themselves or through joint ventures with developers,
landowners, local authorities and other public sector
bodies.

Pack Page 141



The Council's role

There is a strong case (and probably necessity) for
considerable strategic intervention by the Council to
achieve the aims of the masterplan. Town centres
are challenging development environments — and
more so with the demise of the High Street retail
market. Arguably, many town centres are undergoing
a revolution, rather than evolution. This is likely to be
far more crucial for Aldershot town centre where some
sites are particularly complex — and therefore the role
of the Council in facilitating delivery is likely to be
greater, in part through de-risking opportunities (e.g.
site assembly, securing SANGS and funding).

Rushmoor Borough Council can only grant planning
permission for new residential development where
there would be no likelihood of significant impact on
the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
(SPA). SANGs provide alternative public recreation
areas and thus prevent an increase in visitor pressure
on the SPA. Where new residential development is
proposed in the masterplan, this must be offset by
having sufficient SANG capacity.

The Council currently has a supply of SANGS land to
offset net new residential development in the Borough,
though the supply will need to be increased if a
substantial amount of new residential development is
to come forward. Securing more SANGS is a critical
delivery action for the masterplan — an action which
the Council is already progressing. The Council is
committed to identifying SANGS sites to facilitate
residential development.

The Rushmoor Core Strategy (adopted 2011)

provides detailed policy guidance (policy CP13) on
mitigation measures, comprising SANG land and also
contributions towards Strategic Access Management
and Monitoring measures.

Typically, Council’'s land ownership has been a driver
for change in town centres. A clear example of this
is Westgate development. Presently, however, the

Pack Page 142

Council's ownership in the key intervention areas in
Aldershot is limited, so an over arching strategy the
Council look to employ is the acquisition of strategic
interests in the town.

Other delivery agencies

While the Council is expected to play a leading role
in delivering the masterplan, the expectation is that
it will need the active involvement of developers and
other agencies — both public and private. A range

of agencies will need to be involved with enabling,
funding and delivering the projects. This could
include, among others:

¢ MS3LEP

¢ Hampshire County Council

e Landowners

e Developers

¢ Businesses

e Utility Suppliers

e Historic England

¢ Higher Education establishments

* Private & Philanthropic Sponsors

* Registered Providers

¢ Community organisations

¢  Possible Business Improvement District (BID)

¢ Hampshire Chamber of Commerce

e Other public sector organisations - including the
Police and NHS

¢ Transport bodies - such as Network Rail and bus
operators

Other organisations may also be identified — or be
founded during the lifetime of the masterplan — which
can assist in the delivery of projects.

Viability and funding the masterplan’s
delivery

The Council has tested the viability of the
development schemes in the masterplan based on
the identified areas of development and types of uses.



The outputs of this exercise show that many of the
developments have the potential to be viable now,
whilst others may have a longer term delivery horizon
- as would be expected in a Prospectus which guides
development over 10-15 years and beyond.

However, not all of the proposals contained in the
masterplan are commercial in nature and some may
require gap funding. Project delivery is fully expected
to be secured using a combination of public and
private sector investment, with the balance of need for
funding varying depending on the type, nature, cost
and commercial viability of the project.

Funding pots and mechanisms that might be
expected to contribute to financially supporting
masterplan project delivery include:

e LEP Funds

¢  Prudential Borrowing

e CIL / S106 Agreements / developer contributions

* Rolling Investment Funds

¢ Rushmoor and Hampshire Councils’ Capital
Programme

e Lottery Funding

e Transport Funds

Potential Funding Options

Unlocking funding may require developing a wider
business case, and identifying both financial and
value added benefits that can be accrued. This too
will require the private and public sector to work
closely together to promote individual opportunity
sites and initiatives. The expectation too is that
regeneration bodies such as M3 LEP and the HCA
could have a crucial role.

These bodies are one of the key sources of central
government grants for development projects, with a
particular emphasis at present on driving increased
housing delivery. Aldershot is already identified by
M3 LEP as a Step Up town, indicating that it is a

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

priority centre for investment. M3 LEP offers project
specific funds — for example, through the Growing
Enterprise Fund or the Growth Deal. Ad hoc funds
are also often administered through this body, such
as access to preferential loan rates or co-ordinating
enterprise zones

More innovative approaches to enabling financially
viable schemes too could be justified. Some local
authorities are, for example, using preferential
borrowing rates to acquire sites; other are
underpinning the viability of commercial schemes
through investing in schemes by the virtue of the
strength of their covenant.

More traditional sources of funding too may contribute
to delivering the ambition for Aldershot, such as
through S106 agreements. Business Improvement
Districts (BIDs) can provide avenues for modest
funding, and capable of paying for smaller common
infrastructure items, public realm improvements,
security, etc.

Rolling Investment Funds (RIFs) - such as the Growing
Places fund (administered by M3 LEP) — may also be
considered. Conceivably, a similar RIF programme
could be used to deliver change at key sites in
Aldershot — or possibly via a programme of improving
/ refurbishing / reusing vacant and underused
properties. Once repaid, the RIF funds can then be
re-invested in other projects. Examples of a RIF could
be through a programme of acquisition, refurbishment
and reuse of vacant retail units and upper floorspace.

Crucially, funding opportunities continue to evolve
and will undoubtedly do so over the lifetime of the
masterplan. Any funding strategy must be refreshed
and reviewed as time progresses.

Pack Page 143



The next steps

A series of key ‘next steps’ have been outlined

beside each of the identified sites in the Aldershot
Prospectus. These next steps for individual projects
anticipate the involvement of the Borough Council,
landowners and potentially other delivery body agents.
There are other wider actions too which will help
enable, transform and sustain Aldershot Town Centre
as an attractive place to live, work and shop in the
context of the masterplan.

Outlined below are a number of wider actions and
activities that could help further set the foundations to
progress the initiatives.

Planning

¢ Embedding the Prospectus into the development
control process so it becomes a material
consideration.

* Preparing more detailed design and costing work
for key sites where considered necessary. This
might, for example, include Union Street and the
Galleries.

Property/Regeneration/Economic Development

* Enabling discussions with landowners — for
example for the Galleries, Network Rail,
Hippodrome House as well as other sites in the
Prospectus.

e Liaison with potential delivery partners and
stakeholders, including developers and potential
public sector agencies.

¢ Preparing business cases where project funding is
likely to be required.

Rack Page 144

Although not explicitly referenced in the Prospectus,
next steps and key actions too might link to a wider
holistic programme of cultural initiatives and events
for the town centre. Allied to this may be synergies
with improving Princes Hall Theatre - and involving
the community in town centre initiatives which
will serve to support the wider role and function of
Aldershot over the coming years.

In promoting the delivery of the Prospectus, there may
be other key organisational actions which are required
to ensure delivery comes forward. Typically, critical
components in assisting town centre renewal and
regeneration are:

¢ Having clear strategic leadership, involving key
stakeholders from public and private sectors
who will take ownership. This may be on a site
by site basis or perhaps more positively such
leadership taking a strategic overview of the
entire Prospectus and delivery programme — and
ideally headed up by a very visible figurehead.

e Having a core team dedicated to delivery,
ensuring clear operational leadership of the
plan. Such a team needs to have the skills and
resourcing required for delivery at each stage.

e Ensuring a degree of delegation, in order that
changes in political balance within the authority
do not disrupt long term development plans for
Aldershot town centre.

Overall, the Prospectus needs to be supported by
providing certainty and reassurance to public and
private sector investors that the changes identified in
the masterplan will take place.



Delivery Mechanisms

Equally important is the need to consider what
kinds of delivery mechanisms could help underpin
the delivery of initiatives. There is unlikely to be a
‘one size fits all’ delivery mechanism for projects —
the choice should reflect the scale, size and nature

of the individual masterplan initiatives. While in
some cases enabling discussions with landowners
may simply be needed to bring forward schemes for
other, more challenging, sites there may be a need to
set up bespoke delivery models, perhaps including
an asset backed vehicle, local delivery companies

or implementing rolling investment funds to show a
clear path towards how renewal will take place over a
number of years.

Collectively, making it happen will need a cohesive
action plan, combining both organisational and
delivery mechanisms — and public, private and
community sector involvement — to maximise the
Prospectuses benefits.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 145



APPENDIX

PROPERTY MARKET REVIEW

This Property Market Review has been undertaken
by Montagu Evans and is presented as part of the
evidence base to support the SPD. The Property
Market Review, undertaken in early 2015, focuses on
the key property sectors relevant to the location:

e Retail
e Leisure
e Offices

¢ Residential

The property market review relies on information
drawn from a wide range of property data resources
such as Focus, EGi and Promis and discussions with
property agents, retailers and residential developers.

Retail

Recent key economic trends are:

e Comparison Retailing - value orientated retail has
grown considerably. They have taken advantage
of the glut of vacant units appearing on high
streets and a much more expenditure conscious
shopper.

¢ A1l Convenience Retailing — focus on smaller
convenience formats say 5,000 sq ft to 10,000 sq
ft. Significant active increase in demand from
discount foodstores.

e Service Sector Uses (A2 Uses) — growth sectors
include betting shops and pawn brokers. Others
have declined such as travel agents - as a result
their presence on the high street has diminished.

* Restaurants, cafes and takeaways (A3-Ab) - very
rapid growth. Branded coffee shops have become
far more prevalent in town centres.

These types of retailers are likely to be the mainstay of
current retail demand for space in the centre, together
with independent operators.

Aldershot’s Retail Offer

Aldershot’s two main retail streets (Union Street and
Wellington Street: both pedestrianised) are supported
by the Wellington Centre — which is the location for
the largest concentration of national operators.

Rack Page 146

There are a large number of void units evident
within the retail core and the wider town centre. It is
understood that around one in five units are vacant
(although this includes the Galleries which is now
earmarked for alternative uses).

No department stores are present, but key operators
include Wilkinsons, New Look, Argos, Boots and 99p
Stores and JD Sports (generally though the fashion
multiple offer is generally quite limited). There has
also been a trend of well known high street fashion
retailers leaving the centre in recent years — this
includes Next, Burton and most recently, M&S. Large
format Morrisons and Tesco Extra foodstore lie at the
edge of the centre. Lidl is the main convenience store
present in the centre.

A2 use (Financial and Professional Services) occupiers
are also evident in the town centre and include a
range of betting offices, estate agents banks and
building societies. Recent trends in occupier demand
from some retailers in this sub-sector, suggest that
provision of further A2 accommodation may also be a
possible option.

In terms of A3 — Ab uses, café and restaurant
provision include McDonald's, KFC, Subway, and
Costa. There is a very limited offer of good quality
eateries/cafes in town centre retail core though there
are a number of ethnic food outlets.

Often restaurants cluster around major uses: Westgate
Leisure Park, for example includes a cinema and
number of multi-chain restaurants (including Frankie
& Benny's, Nando's, Pizza Express and Prezzo).
However, this is not prerequisite with, for example,
branded coffee shops opening where there is good
business trade and footfall available. The presence of
restaurants and cafes in central locations has become
a key and highly noticeable trend in recent years.

In Aldershot town centre (and excluding Westgate)
growth in this sector has largely been driven by
independent traders.



Rents and Yields

At the end of 2013, prime retail rents were at £40psf
Zone A. Yields depend on the type and covenant of
the operator from c. 4% - 5% for a foodstore operator to
10%+ for independent trader. More typically however,
retail yields in Aldershot for a retailer offering good
covenant are more likely to be around 7 — 7.5%.

Retailer Demand

Five retailers are recorded on CoStar Focus and

67 retailers recorded on EGi with requirements for
accommodation in Aldershot (November 2014).
Retailer demand includes: Aldi Foodstore Ltd,

Go Outdoors and William Hill. Retail demand for
Aldershot is modest (NB - not all of those retailers
listed on such databases will favour a town centre
location or indeed the requirements logged are
current). Generally, the retail environment for Aldershot
is quite challenging and this view is supported by
the outcome of a retail demand survey undertaken
recently for a centrally located site.

Discussions with our in house agents also provided
broad views of Aldershot as a trading destination.
Concerns were raised about the amount of already
available space in the centre, strong competing
towns and that Aldershot had struggled to shake off
its garrison town image. They did though recognise
the positive impact that the Wellesley development
could have on the town centre, if residents could be
persuaded to shop there. There was also a feeling that
the development of Westgate had been so successful
that this had essentially soaked up much of the
demand from restaurants and cafes for the town.

One notable feature of the town centre is the presence
of a sizeable ethnic offer, especially in Station and
Birchett Road. While this area offers a somewhat
poorer shopping environment, it does offer a
distinctive feel to this part of the town centre.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Generally, Aldershot town centre’s retail market is
fairly challenging at present and is strongly oriented
toward the value end of the market. Any retail
strategy should probably in the short term seek to
protect and enhance the very core of the centre. Any
possible new development will also need to provide
well designed and configured units if they are to
appeal to operators. It is also possible that some
rationalisation in retail floorspace could be beneficial if
it were to result in the better balance the demand and
supply of units (say in secondary locations). Despite
this, one different area to capitalise on is perhaps the
independent - and particularly the ethnic offer in the
centre - and making this a point of difference. Making
the most of good quality, historic buildings as a
setting for the retail area could also serve to make the
centre more attractive to retailers and shoppers alike.

Leisure / health and fitness

Covers a very broad range of uses — cinemas, health &
fitness clubs, bowling alleys, bingo etc. The fortunes of
leisure sub-sectors has varied. Bingo Halls for example
have suffered a decline in patronage (albeit that recent
changes to taxation rules has made tier enterprises
more profitable again). Cinemas though have seen a
considerable growth and are a viewed as major leisure
anchor attractors.

Excluding the Westgate development, the quality

of leisure provision within the town centre core

is modest, with the main commercial leisure offer
comprising a solus Gala Bingo and a number of
amusement arcades. In wider Aldershot there is also a
bowling alley in the south of the town centre (Birchett
Road), and activities such as live entertainment
venues / theatres, museums, the library and Aldershot
Football Club. Princes Hall theatre offers a positive
cultural venue.

The health & fitness sector has also seen a surge

in growth. Both the more luxurious and budget end
health & fitness sectors are still seeking expansion
opportunities. This use tends to be quite land hungry

Pack Page 147



and achieve fairly modest rents. Thus, they tend to be
located on upper floor locations, at off pitch locations
or are accommodated through reuse of existing space.

Health & fitness provision in Aldershot is limited.
Existing provision includes Aldershot Garrison Sports
Centre, Aldershot Pools, Curves and Connaught
Leisure Centre.

We are aware of demand from budget gyms seeking
space in the centre. This rent achievable is

though likely to be fairly low (say £6-£10 per sq ft).
Nevertheless, this could add a different dimension to
Aldershot’s town centre offer.

Overall, Aldershot has a reasonable range of leisure
activities, through its combination of both public and
private sector ventures. A notable absence is the
presence of a commercial chain gym, and securing
this use would help add some degree of diversification
to the centre’s offer — as well as help to extend activity
in the centre during evenings.

Hotels

The hotel market remains buoyant with continued
interest from occupiers in this sector, especially for
sites in London and the south east. Examples of
continued expansion in the hotel sector and especially
the budget sector. Serviced apartments are also
viewed as a future growth channel — especially in
areas on good corporate trade. Visible sites with good
accessibility is an important factor in consideration for
this type of use as well as adequate parking. Outside
tourist centres, much of the demand for hotel space

is driven either by the presence of a strong business
market or good accessibility characteristics.

Hotels in the Aldershot area include Premier Inn,
Travelodge and several independent operators. It is
likely to that there would need to be an upturn in
corporate activity in the area for there to be further
demand for hotel space in the centre.

Rack Page 148

In Aldershot a budget hotel would expect to secure a
rent of around £4,000 - £4.500 per room per annum.
Highest performing yields are in the order of 5% - 6%,
reflecting a strong covenant. Overall though, site
development values are modest for this use.

The broad view is that the general supply of town
centre hotels is sufficient to meet current levels of
demand. In the longer term, if there is an increase
in office market activity this might help sustain
increased interest.

Offices

Aldershot falls within the Blackwater Valley sub office
market area. Major office occupiers in the region tend
to be at out of centre locations. Town centre demand
for offices is fair and linked generally to meeting

the needs of local service providers and smaller
businesses. Some larger offices do exist (Hippodrome
House), but the quality of the buildings are poor.

The office market strength is illustrated by asking
rents falling in the range of £5 psf - £15 psf with the
majority clustered between £10psf - £12psf bracket
(EGi / Focus, 2014). At this level of rents, new office
development is unlikely to be viable. This does

not though rule out the opportunity for small scale
refurbishments aimed again at smaller businesses [NB
— according to the Centre for Cities, Aldershot had
390 SMEs per 10,000 population in 2011, compared
to 170 SMEs per 10,000 population in Sunderland].
There is also some evidence that there is a modest
improvement in interest in office space in the
centre, though again this has focussed on smaller
requirements.

Generally, larger scale office development is unlikely
to take place in the heart of Aldershot. Despite

this, there may be the chance to provide attractive
(probably refurbished space) for smaller indigenous
enterprises. Additions to the overall amount of office
stock though are likely to be modest.



Residential

The residential sector is now a boom sector in many
part of the country; leading to concerns of overheating
in London and the South East. The housing market

is being sustained by increasing employment,
historically low interest rates, greater availability of
mortgage products, increased house builder profit
margins and greater levels of residential development

There is also a good rental market in the town. Data
provided by Zoopla, suggests average asking rents

are currently £957pcm. The table below shows a
summary of current asking rents in Aldershot based
on house types / number of bedrooms. There is
understood to be a pinch point in terms of strong
demand and rising rents coupled with a tight supply
of better quality private rented properties in Aldershot.

activity.
House | 1bed | 2beds 3beds |4beds |5

. . A Type beds
Tlhe lr?glonal housmg mgrket has experlenced- Houses | £693 £975 £1,348 £1,456 | -
mgn}llflcant p;ice g;oyvth 1ri\I thg last- ;wo years IE the pcm pcm pcm pcm
sogt east. According to Nationwide average house Flats £707 £847 £849 . -
prices over the last 12 months for the outer South East cm cm cm
was £230,409 — an annual change of 14%. Aldershot P P P

has a relatively strong residential market. Average rental costs in Aldershot, early 2015

Currently residential development in Aldershot is
limited and relates to very small scale developments.
There are however a number of very significant
housing developments in the pipeline: Wellesley and
the Galleries.

Housing in Aldershot is largely clustered towards the
south east of the town centre in the form of flatted
dwellings. Residential units are more limited in the
heart of the town centre.

Major residential expansion is currently proposed
for Aldershot, in the form of a major mixed use
development known as Wellesley. This development
will comprise up to 3,850 dwellings.

The strong demand for housing in the south east

and Rushmoor generally — alongside healthy house
prices suggests residential uses could form significant
parts of development opportunities in Aldershot — or
perhaps by refurbishing existing space. Discussions
with residential developers are generally quite positive
—and much more so than those with retailers.

The average asking price in Aldershot is currently
£291,900 (based on 126 properties recorded for sale
on Zoopla — November 2014), with the typical price

paid varying depending on the type of property.
Overall, bringing more residential development into

the heart of the centre may provide a strategy to
strengthen the town. An increased population may
also help to support the retail and evening economy,

Average House Prices - Aldershot

House Type Average Average £ and generally increase footfall levels. There also
Current Value | psf appears to be interest from residential developers for

Detached £396,051 £289 sites in the town. This may be aided by the proposal

Semi- £263,569 £269 at Wellesley and the ability to commute to London,

Detached together with a relatively affordable housing market.

Terraced £230,639 £276

Flats £155,346 £263

Average house prices in Aldershot, early 2015

Pack Page 149

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



Pack Page 150



ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 15;]'






ALDERSHOT
TOWN CENTRE

Supplementary Planning Document

CONSULTATION REPORT
"™ December 2015

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL



A & o 1
sUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DC UMENT

THE MASTERPLAN FOR ALDERSHOT

The plan below sets out development and * The Union

efurbishment opportunities in the Aldershot Town front Welli
Prospectus. These vary in the scale and time

e in which they are likely to come forward. ¢ The Rail St
er, Rushmoor Borough Council has identified a

TR Anber of priority sites, which are: ot

S “ y - - . . - - .
A leries site linking Wellington Street with the The b
h eet car park refurbishn

rinces Hall "
N e s i Victoria Road:  Marks and Spencer Former Kings Union Street; Galleries
: infil building: fcleniio

n il resclentiol development L g: Polentiol re Centre: Estoblished as Regeneration of the  active low
P i g developmer use o redevelopment The Empite commun ty Union Street block tesidential

and events venue

the Galler
i



Street grot
ngton Stree

ation area, ir
parking

ound the Princes Hal'
ent of the theatre

Library ¢

~

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION
FEEDBACK FORMS
RESPONDENTS' PROFILE
WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS
SUGGESTED UPDATES

APPENDIX

12
14
18

20

Pack Page 155



INTRODUCTION

The Aldershot Prospectus sets out a strategy for
regeneration based on viable investment and
development options to attract and support investment
in Aldershot Town Centre.

The prospectus has been developed as a
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and will

be a material planning consideration for future
planning applications in the town centre. The SPD will
replace the Aldershot Town Centre SPD (2009) and
further develops the Council's strategic approach to
regeneration.

Consultation on the draft document was undertaken
between Wednesday 30 September 2015 and
Wednesday 11 November 2015. During this period
there were a number of ways in which people could
engage with the consultation:

¢ The study was highlighted on the front page of
the Council's website with a summary mini-
site and a full copy of the document available to
download. This was linked to an on-line response
form;

¢ The document was available for review at
Aldershot library and Rushmoor Borough Council
offices;

e A public exhibition was on display with
approximately two weeks each in Morrisons, the
Wellington Centre and the Princes Hall,

e Two staffed days of drop-in consultation were
advertised and held on Saturday 17 October and
Thursday 22 October;

* A public presentation and discussion on the
evening of 7 October was hosted by Aldershot
Civic Society; and

* A presentation and discussion with the Aldershot
Retailer and Business Forum on Monday 5
October.

A questionnaire was used to record written responses
to the consultation, duplicating the on-line feedback.

This report sets out the responses which were
received to the consultation and identifies the key
issues for consideration prior to the adoption of the
draft SPD.

In total 180 responses were received:
* 65 online responses

e 383 paper questionnaires completed
e 32 written submissions

Pack Page 156



HAVE YOUR SAY ON THE FUTURE OF

4. Akey role of this prospectus is to attract investment in Aldershot. Are there any other town centre

ALDERSHOT F E E D B AC K F O R M et o i i ) s e o o Gzt 1 e, (s ] st ey 1

TOWN CENTRE

Please complete this feedback form and drop it in the box provided.
You can also comment online at www.rushmoor.gov.uk/improvingaldershot
5. Please let us have any other comments you have on the proposals set out in the draft prospectus.

1. The Vision for Aldershot in the draft Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus is supported by six
themes, which set out how the council thinks Aldershot could be improved. Do you agree with the
vision and themes?

[TYes [ ]No

If no, please tell us why:

6. Please could you let us know the following information.

[] Male [ ] Female
Is there anything you would like to change? [Jo1s []1624 []2534 [ ]3544 [ ]4554 [ ]5564 [ |65+

7. Would you like to know when we adopt the draft
prospectus as a supplementary planning document?

2. The prospectus sefs out opportunities for change in Aldershot town centre. [TYes [ ]No
This includes ideas for four key sites. What do you think about the approach?

8. Would you like to receive email news from the council?
[TYes [ ]No

9. If the answer fo either of the above questions is yes,
could you please provide us with your contact details.

Do you have any comments on the ideas for individual sites?

Nome | |

Address

&

Of all the opportunities and potential development in the prospectus, Email ‘ ‘
which do you think should be the top priority for the council?

ing feedback on the draft Aldershot Town Centre
inform the final version of the SPD report.

Thank you very much for provi
Prospectus. Your comments wil

Data protection: We will only use your contact details for the purpose stated on this form.

Coundil Offices, www.rushmoor.gov.uk @rushmoorcouncil
USHMOOR A ) 01252398 399 or ouncil

Farnborough,
BOROUGH COUNCIL Hants, GU14 7JU customerservices@rushmoor.gov.uk September 2015

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015 Pa‘Ck Page 15.>7



FEEDBACK FORMS

1. The ‘Vision for Aldershot’ in this
draft prospectus is supported by six
themes, which set out how the council
thinks Aldershot could be improved.
Do you agree with the vision and
themes? If no, please tell us why.

mAgree

m Disagree

139 responses were given to this question, of which 98
indicated they agree with the Vision and themes set
out in the prospectus. Of those who responded with
comments, the following points provide a cross-section
of the more frequently mentioned issues. Two issues
stood out as the most popular responses:

¢ The plan could be more radical including new
ideas and more ambitious change; and
e More information is needed on the cost and

deliverability of the proposals. "Ge nerdad ’ ' y ver y

S; ;kzeitge.r responses, a number attracted several exc i ,'i n g a n d m uc h
needed"

e  There should be more mention of public transport,
including how it will be protected and improved;

e There should be a focus on Aldershot's role as a
commuter town, with links to London improved,;

¢ There is a need to understand the reasons behind
Aldershot's unpopularity with retailers if the town
is to succeed in the future;

*  Protect historic shop fronts against inappropriate
changes and modern replacements which are out

of keeping; "AHthing fO bring
¢ The document is wordy and would benefit from ’ " f e bac ’( ,on to , he

an executive summary:.

centre would be
great"

Pack Page 158



Is there anything that you would like
to change?

107 comments were given to this question, with the
most popular comments being:

¢ We need more quality shops in the town centre,
given by 21 people;

* Additional parking is needed, which should
be cheaper or free and include more disabled
parking, given by 16 people; and

* Reduce the proportion of low value and discount
shops in the town centre, given by 11 people.

Other suggestions which were made by several people
include:

* A better bus service is needed, with drop-off
at the rail station, the High Street and links to
outlying supermarkets;

e Lower the rents or rates to attract shops and start-
up businesses;

¢  We need a department store such as Primark -
focus energy on attracting them,;

e Everything needs to change!;

¢  More cycle parking and cycle routes are needed in
the town centre;

*  Grosvenor Road area looks shabby and could be
improved. Recent conversions have been poor
quality;

* Invest in the football club;

* Make the town a lively place with real shopping
options; and

¢  More entertainment places.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

, RSHOT
JN CENTRE

ARY PLANNING DOCUMF

AN FOR ALDE!

Pack Page 159



2. This prospectus sets out
opportunities for change in Aldershot "We need to focus

on smaller specialist

town centre. This includes ideas for
four key sites. What do you think ’
about the approach? ShOpS

Do you have any comments on the
ideas for individual sites?

125 comments were given to this question, with 39
people stating that the approach and site proposals are
fine, ok, good, great or excellent.

(] ] °
Popular comments for adjusting the overall approach Th e Ga’ ’ eries mus t
and suggestions for individual sites included: b n
e sorted

¢ We need well-known brand retailers in the town
centre;

e Yes, we need houses but we need shops more

e The station area needs to be improved - it is the
first port of call for visitors;

e Leave Princes Hall as it is or retain the frontage -
it is striking 70s architecture;

e The Princes Hall proposals look good - it needs a
radical overhaul,

* The Galleries site should have retail, including a
large store;

n - H
¢ Removing the Galleries bridge sounds expensive / The ra"way Staf'on
T would rather keep it; areq is Currenf’y a

e The Galleries site needs to move forward asap, by

legal measures if needed,; d < ’

e The M&S site is perfect site for Primark - could ep l‘eSSlng weicome
we attract it with zero business rates?; fo A ’ d ers h ot"

e A link between Union Street and High Street is
vital - it is disconnected since M&S closed. Like
the idea of arcade here; and

e Include M&S and Union Street buildings as one
site, and create new town square and new homes
and flexible retail space to respond to demand.

Pack Page 160



3. Of all the opportunities and
potential development in the
prospectus, which do you think should
be the top priority for the Council?

[ l'.‘lanagement

152 comments were given to this question, with high
levels of consensus on the priorities for the prospectus.
These were:

* Retaining and attracting decent shops, to bring
more wealth into the town, mentioned by 32 people;

* Redeveloping the Galleries site, mentioned by 28
people;

¢ Improving the rail station area, with some
suggestions for shops here, mentioned by 11 people;

e Refurbishment of Princes Hall and redevelopment of
the Police Station site, mentioned by 10 people;

¢ Making the town centre more attractive including
shop-front improvements, mentioned by 10 people;

* New homes - affordable for young and new families,
especially local ones, mentioned by 8 people;

e Filling vacant shop units before redevelopment,
mentioned by 7 people;

e Union Street - this being the centre of the town but
suffering in terms of vacancies and environment,
mentioned by 7 people.

e (Celebrating and retaining Aldershot's Victorian
heritage - and using this to attract businesses,
mentioned by 6 people; and

e Attracting new businesses through reduced rates
and/or rents, mentioned by 6 people.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015 PaCk Page 161



4. A key role of this prospectus is to
attract investment in Aldershot. Are "Penmark House

would make a

great site for a
hotel"

there any other town centre assets,
which should be highlighted in the
document? If so, please tell us what
they are.

59 people provided a response to this question, with
popular suggestions including:

e Historic buildings, which should be highlighted
and retained, mentioned by 12 people;

¢ The Westgate Leisure Park and improved links to
this, mentioned by 8 people; n d

¢ Business opportunities, which should be Th e WeSt E n

highlighted alongside residential and leisure

[ ]
opportunities, as this will bring people into the Cen,r e I S an

centre during the day, mentioned by 5 people;

* The town's parks and sports fields, mentioned by eéxce "ent sm a"
4 people venue which draws

¢ The lido, which should be preserved - especially
people to the

with the Wellesley development coming, and.
underground heat/solar considered, mentioned by
4 people; and fOWﬂ n
* The great sporting facilities, including the football
club and gymnastics centre, mentioned by 3
people

e Pedestrianise more of the shopping streets,
mentioned by 3 people.

Other comments made by more than one person
include:

¢ The military history, which 1 person suggested
should be celebrated with a horse-drawn tour
around the town and the camp;

e Special small independent shops such as Jerome's;

¢ The unusual cultural aspect with the Gurkha
population and accompanying tastes and
traditions; and

e The potential for a visitor centre or museum in a
historic building.

Rack Page 162



5. Please let us have any other
comments you have on the proposals
set out in the draft prospectus.

88 people responded to this question, with the
comments suggested by more than one person
including:

e Focus on securing shops for the town centre rather
than making superficial physical improvements
such as paving and shop-front improvements. This
was made by 8 people;

¢ Congratulations, well done, good job, made by 7
people;

¢ Negative comments regarding Rushmoor Borough
Council's investment in Aldershot, made by 5
people;

¢ Comments on Farnborough receiving greater levels
of investment than Aldershot, made by 5 people;

e Concern that money will be wasted on delivering
the strategy, made by b people;

e Hope that it can be delivered and not remain a
glossy prospectus, mentioned by 4 people;

e Buses to outlying supermarkets would be useful,
made by 3 people;

¢ RBC should take on vacant units and offer them to
start-up shops/businesses for free or at affordable
rates, made by 3 people;

e No more HMOs in the area - we need quality
housing, made by 3 people;

e Library building and services should remain intact
at existing site, mentioned by 3 people;

¢ Retention of the Gala building is important to the
plan, made by 2 people;

¢ The multi-storey car park is awkward for trolleys
on upper levels as there are no ramps, made by 2
people;

e A landscape walk into town from new housing /

a green link from the canal and training heaths,
made by 2 people;

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

Cover Union St and/or Wellington St with glass,
made by 2 people;

The electronic notice boards don't seem a good
use of funding, made by 2 people;

Can the Council impose shop-front improvements/
upkeep on retailers - these let the town down,
mentioned by 2 people;

RBC should start legal proceedings for key
buildings that have been long-term vacant - they
are vulnerable to arson attacks - and in Council
ownership, a retail strategy could be pursued,;
mentioned by 2 people;

Ensure the pubs don't close down - we need these
to attract young people, made by 2 people; and
The Library building and services should remain
intact at existing site, made by 2 people.

"Let artists and
makers use
vacant spaces for

exhibitions and
education"

Pack Page 163



RESPONDENTS' PROFILE

The gender split of responses received via the
feedback forms was incredibly evenly split with 51%
being completed by women and 49% completed by
men.

Likewise, the age range of people completing feedback
forms was reasonably eveniy split, with a breakdown
as follows:

1% completed by people aged 0-15
3% completed by people aged 16-24
9% completed by people aged 25-34
19% completed by people aged 35-44
22% completed by people aged 45-54
23% completed by people aged 55-64
23% completed by people aged 65+

"Anything to bring
life back into the
centre would be
great”

"Don't just 'tart up'
the town, more
shops are needed"

Rack Page 164

19%

m Male

mFemale

mo15
w1624
w2534
m 3544
m4554
w5564
o5+



ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consultatio



WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS

In addition to the online and paper copy feedback

forms, Rushmoor Borough Council received a number

of written submissions on the draft Supplementary
Planning Document, made by statutory consultees,
special interest groups and individuals. Written
submissions from groups included:

e Aldershot Civic Society

¢ Aldershot Town FC

¢ Church Crookham Parish Council

e Environment Agency

e  Hampshire County Council

e Hart District Council

¢ Health and Safety Executive

e Lantana Properties

¢ London and Cambridge Properties Ltd
¢ Natural England

¢ Rushmoor Cycle Forum

¢ Rushmoor Labour Group

¢ Rushmoor Pedestrian Forum

e Stagecoach

¢ Thames Water

e The Theatres Trust

¢ Columbia Threadneedle Investments

*  Waverley Borough Council

¢ Rushmoor Borough Council Environment Panel

2. This prospectus sets out opportunities for
change in Aldershot town centre. This includes
ideas for seven key sites. What do you think
about the approach?

Do you have any comments on the ideas for
individual sites?

¢ The Galleries can be considered one of the
disasters of planning in Aldershot. It is an
enormous, sprawling structure, completely
incongruous with the town centre’s ¢.19 plan
and grain of development. Moves to remedy
the damage by way of reinstating finer grain
development would be welcomed in principle and
demolition of the bridge over Wellington Street
would be an effectively instant improvement.

¢ The removal of the bridge is a great idea.

e Opening up the Galleries as a ground level
pedestrian route is supported by the Civic
Society as you will no longer have the problem
of escalators and lifts not working because of
uninterested landlords like Threadneedle.

e [ would take this opportunity to recommend that

The written submissions have been reviewed and key the High Street frontage be added to the List of
comments pulled out to produce an overall summary Buildings of Local Importance (if not capable of
of responses. Key comments in order of questions are statutory listing).

set out over the following pages.

e Some sort of town centre leisure facility would be
good to tie into the High Street changes.

e A large retailer to replace M&S is wishful
thinking. The idea of opening up the site with
a new lane is welcomed, with support from the
Civic Society to this particular idea.

e Princes Hall — this is overdue but some

respondents felt that the proposals were not
sufficiently ambitious and that a complete

RPack Page 166



redevelopment would have been more desirable.

It seems to me that there could be a missed
opportunity with the closing of Aldershot Police
Station.

To me the best option for that part of town would
be to use the space to create a new much larger
Princes Hall to serve not just Aldershot but the
whole of the Aldershot Urban Area.

The redevelopment of the Princes Hall should
be an opportunity to include a much larger
auditorium rather than just refurbishing the
existing space.

Whilst we welcome the changes to the look of

having residential use in close proximity to a
theatre or performance venue inevitably creates
serious issues for both the venue and the new
residents. Where there are insufficient safeguards
in place (mainly via sound insulation and creative
design), disputes can emerge and the new
residents can request a Noise Abatement Notice
be issued by the council on the theatre restricting
its activities and putting it at risk of closure.

The station proposals are supported but with a
number of caveats, including concerns about
where bus stands will be relocated to, and
how traffic flows will work if the roundabout is
removed.

3. Of all the opportunities and potential
development in the prospectus, which do you
think should be the top priority for the Council?

the Princes Hall, we are also disappointed that
something more substantial was not offered.
Acquiring the old Ritz/Gala Bingo building as a

new theatre for Aldershot, bringing it closer to the
high street car park and town centre, and with its
history of famous performers. A complete re-build
at the present site to give Aldershot a brand new
state of the art theatre would have also been more
welcomed.

The National Theatres Trust noted that they
would like to see safeguards in place for the
design of any residential development around the
Princes Hall to protect the future use of the hall as
an entertainment venue.

The [Church Crookham] Parish Council
particularly likes the modernisation of Princes
Hall.

The Theatres Trust welcomes the retention and
refurbishment of Princes Hall in this document
and indeed recognises the potential for a s106
agreement for redevelopment of the surrounding
sites to pay for the refurbishment of the Hall.
However, from our experience across the UK,

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

The priority is sorting out the Galleries. The Civic
Society supports the proposals, but recognises
the need for the Council to use all of its powers to
bring about change. The return to a street-based
scheme is welcomed along with the prospect of a
traditional scale and form of buildings.

Pack Page 167



4. A key role of this prospectus is to attract
investment in Aldershot. Are there any other
town centre assets, which should be highlighted in
the document? If so, please tell us what they are.

¢ The prospectus needs to say more about
Aldershot’s other assets such as the Lido and the
parks.

¢ Aldershot has a strong cultural offer already
although HCC tried to close the West End Centre
down in the past. Culture also covers bingo and
football.

5. Please let us have any other comments
you have on the proposals set out in the draft
prospectus.

e Some comments were made about the potential
for covered areas or awnings which would make
the town centre more habitable in poor weather.

¢ Twould love to see a children's indoor play area.
The soft play outside Mothercare is always packed
and it would be great to see something a bit
bigger and better.

¢ Iwould also like to see a community hub that
people can use to meet up for free

e Twould love to see more cross-cultural events,
learn to speak Nepalese and cook Nepalese food.

e Parking needs to be improved.

e Rushmoor needs to set up an independent
Opportunity and Fairness Commission.

e There is no detail on the mechanism for who

“owns” the Town Centre. RBC is looking for a
Business Improvement District (BID) but should

Rack Page 168

we not be looking for a genuine partnership
between residents and business? Should we be
looking at Asset Based Community Development
potential?

There should be more emphasis on provision for
cyclists, both in terms of connecting routes to the
town as well as cycle facilities and parking within
the town centre.

The Prospectus would do well to explore the
scope for improvement of specific sites (mention
is already given to Station Road) and consider
in more comprehensive detail how groups/

rows of perhaps more ordinary buildings could
be enhanced. I would take this opportunity

to recommend that the High Street frontage

be added to the List of Buildings of Local
Importance.

There is concern about the development of
a decked car park at the station close to the
existing sheltered housing development of
Kingsley Court.

There is a significant level of perception that free
parking would contribute to the revitalisation of
the town centre.

As well as new development we also need to
consider how to lift the quality of the whole town
—much of the fabric looks tatty.

It is much better to have a much smaller vibrant
town centre than the large dilapidated one that
we have now.

We [The Civic Society] generally support the draft
Master Plan for Aldershot, and it is important
that improvements are implemented as soon as
possible to help our town thrive and become a
destination of choice for locals in and around the
area.



I wholeheartedly agree with the supporting of
specialist/independent retailers as opposed to
‘competing’ with neighbouring towns merely by
offering more of the same. This is a refreshing
break from a usual presumption in favour of large,
multi-thousand square footage development in an
attempt to attract large retailers.

The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act
2015 compels local authorities to maintain a
register of individuals who are seeking to build
their own homes and there are many good
reasons why ‘self-building’ should be encouraged
generally. With that in mind, could the
Prospectus not identify sites/areas with potential
for development by self-builders?

The proliferation 1 + 2 bed flats in recent times is
troublesome; provision of larger accommodation
designed for family occupancy would therefore be
welcome.

It is also worth noting that numerous structures
such as former workshops, stables and industrial
buildings remain extant and there ought perhaps
to be a presumption in favour of retention where
practicable.

If conservation of our town's historic assets is to
represent a serious part of the agenda, it needs be
considered broadly; it should not simply home-in
on a few “pet-buildings” or favourite sightlines.

We need more specialist shops opened in pairs
next to existing thriving businesses. The mix of
shops should also be varied and balanced. For
example, how about a French baker and patisserie
and a high quality greengrocers? People will pay
a little more for something a little special and of
excellent quality.

We [Aldershot Pedestrian Forum] agree with the
sentiments displayed in the prospectus regarding

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

the Victorian legacy of the town, of the many
listed Victorian buildings situated in the centre,
and the need for these to feature strongly in the
redeveloped town centre.

The growth in population is an opportunity to
attract top class retailers and make Aldershot a
retail centre for a far wider area, like Farnham has
been for years. The same applies to restaurants,
cinemas, bars, the theatre, and service industries.

How many times do they need to be told that
people resent paying to park in a town with
such a paltry choice of shops. Tesco, Morrisons,
Sainsburys and Farnborough Gate are all within
a 10-minute drive of Aldershot and all offer FREE
parking. Why would you pay to park in Aldershot
when you can get everything you need at one of
those locations?

I welcome the attempt by the Prospectus,
developed as a Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD), to set out a strategy for
regeneration based on options for public and
private investment, which we see as a matter of
urgency to prevent collapse of Aldershot Town
Centre as a result of the flight of retail from

it. In particular, I welcome that, once the SPD
is accepted, Rushmoor Borough Council will
then be able to use its powers and resources
in a proactive way to enable development and
investment in Aldershot Town Centre.

The conservation of our historic buildings and
scenes ought to be seen as an inextricable
element with regard to achieving the general
goals set out.

Pack Page 169



SUGGESTED UPDATES

Comments received through the consultation feedback
form and through written submissions have been
reviewed alongside feedback from public meetings
and Council panel reviews to identify a series of
suggested updates to the draft Supplementary
Planning Document.

The majority of comments have been high level and
relate to a general approach to the town or particular
sites rather than specific pages of the draft report, so
updates have been suggested with similar strategic
focus.

1.  Executive summary
Add an executive summary of the key proposals
in the SPD at the start of the document.

2. Baseline information
Potential inclusion of more baseline information,
such as property market and commercial analysis
in an appendix, to demonstrate the complex and
interlinked factors influencing Aldershot's future.

3. Public transport infrastructure
Add reference to the importance of coordinated
public transport infrastructure and potential to
improve this in the future, including references to:

- Better bus provision with well placed bus stops
by the station, on the high street and potential
links to outlying supermarkets.

- Connection to London and other employment
centres and the importance of pressing for faster
rail connections in future

4. Cycling
Add reference to cycling provision in and around
the town centre, including:

- Proposals for cycle parking at key sites

- Potential for cycle lanes on key routes into the
town centre, taking account of surrounding
national cycle routes

Rack Page 170

10.

- Ambition to be at the forefront of cycle provision,

Vehicular access and parking

- Make reference to the fact that key vehicular
routes into the centre are currently poor and focus
will be given to improving these in the future,
including review of any planning applications with
this objective in mind.

- Add reference to RBC Parking strategy and
harmonise proposals/objectives

Housing
- Make reference to using vacant upper floors for
housing

Commercial opportunities

- Review with property consultant whether office
space can be included at key sites, alongside
residential/retail/leisure uses

Business rates and business support
- Add reference to potential for a BID

Vacant buildings

- Add reference to RBC willingness to explore
purchase or rental of vacant units and lease of
these at cheap rents to support start-ups

- Review potential for these spaces to be leased to
artists and makers for exhibitions/education, with
potential links with Univerity of the Creative Arts.

The historic environment

- Strengthen references to the historic environment
and the fact that it should be promoted, protected,
enhanced and preserved.

- add reference to potential for a historic walking
route around the town which could coordinate
with the planned Wellesley heritage walk

- Add reference to potential military history tour
covering the town centre and the camp

- Add reference to group value of historic



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

buildings, such as the High Street building
frontages

- Add reference to improving the environment
on Grosvenor Road - shop front improvements,
ensuring conversions are carried out sensitively

The natural environment

- Add reference to potential green link from
Hospital Hill to/through the centre, and from the
canal and training heaths to/through the centre
- Add stronger references to Aldershot's town
parks

The Westgate Leisure Park

- Add additional references to the positive impact
of this scheme on the town centre and the
importance of integrating this area

West End Centre
Add reference to the value of this as a cultural and
community use.

Rail Station site

- Review the impact of 2-storey parking at the rail
station on Kingsley Court

- Add reference to the fact that the station
building should be retained and should not be
masked by trees

- Add more explicit reference to how the traffic
flows will work here, to provide reassurance on
congestion

- Add reference to the fact that redundant sites
on Windsor Way should be linked more to the
Railway Station development in the document.

Galleries site

- Add reference in the delivery text about
potential for phasing parts of the scheme and
review with property consultant regarding impact
on viability for this approach.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Princes Hall site

- Make explicit reference to the refurbishment of
the theatre including an exploration of whether
the capacity could be increased

Library area site

- This site was not considered essential and could
cause issues with vehicular access to the multi-
storey car park and with strengthened pedestrian
links from Wellesley to the town centre.

- Add reference to the value of the library itself as
a town centre use; and the value of bringing this
further into the centre if the opportunity arises in
the future.

Willow House site

Ensure the boundary of this site reflects land
ownership in the masterplan and make explicit
in the heritage section that this building is not of
historic value.

Union Street East/M+S site

Make explicit reference to possibility for the
creation of a town square here. Include reference
to the fact that a town square must be well
defined and well-referenced.

Birchett Road site
Make reference to whether Frederick Street could
be a shared surface.

Delivery commentary

- Add additional information on potential funding
sources such as the LEP, priorities and the inter-
relationship of some sites to the delivery section
of the report.

- Review with property consultant the potential
for a community asset backed vehicle

Pack Page 171



22. Specific page update requests:

Lantana Properties:

Page 34, Willow House, which is at the junction
of Victoria Road and Grosvenor Road, is shown on
the plan as a "historically significant building at
crossroads". It is a tired 1960's office block, which
the owners wish to redevelop and replace. This
plan needs to be amended.

Page 40, Willow House is shown as a "corner infill
development opportunity’, which we agree it is.
However, the land to the rear of the building is
shown green as if it is to be landscaped. In fact,
this land does not belong to Willow House. In
reality, it is laid out to tarmac and used for car
parking. This plan needs to be amended.

Hampshire County Council

Page 10 replace reference to better signage and
path widening with 'footpath widening'.

Page 12, add clarification on what is meant by
'greening' - change to 'soft landscaping'

Page 12, add reference to specific existing routes
that will be improved to demonstrate that routes
do exist

Page 30 first bullet, change wording to:
Enhanced landscaping, rationalisation of the
road network as well as a new multi-storey car
park will improve the experience of arriving in
Aldershot by train and help to reduce the conflict
between cars, buses and pedestrians in the area

Rack Page 172

Page 30 second bullet, change wording to:
Accessibility improvements that link to the new
Wellesley development, pedestrian crossings on
the high street as well as potentially new and
improved sustainable transport links between the
High Street and Union Street.

Page 31 change reference that ‘pedestrians can
access the station more easily' with 'visitors can
access the station more easily'

Page 48 first para, change wording to:

The area around the railway station, including the
parking, bus stands and highway environment
does little to enhance the setting.

Page 48 second para, change wording to:

The existing accessibility in the area is complex,
including buses, taxis, cyclists, pedestrians, pick
up and set down for private cars, and access to
the station for parking.”

Page 50, top right image to be removed

Page 50 paragraph on phasing to be changed to:
‘The Police Station is anticipated to close as part
of a wider strategy for policing. However the
Magistrates Court is expected to remain in use
so there is an opportunity to enhance and retain
the Police Station for public sector community
benefit. In the event of the relocation of the
Magistrates Court, the site could have potential
for residential redevelopment.’

Page 60 third bullet:
Add reference to CIL along with S106 and
developer contributions



FURTHER ACTION

Three key issues have been highlighted through the
consultation process, which require further action
outside of the scope of the SPD.

Retail Offer

The Council acknowledges and shares the public
concern in respect of the retail offer of Aldershot town
centre. The Council has already undertaken action to
seek to support, retain and attract retailers including:

* QOrganising town centre events to increase footfall

* Setting up a retail website to support new
business in the town centre

* Running free online trading seminars for
Independent retailers

*  Providing retail space for Christmas pop-up shops

¢ Taking on running the market and developing it
further

* Implementing Government Incentive Schemes
for Retail Relief and Reoccupation Relief from
Business Rates

The Council recognises the need to do more to
support and where possible improve the town's retail
offer. The Council will consider seeking specialist
retail advice on retail options for the town centre to see
what further encouragement can be given to attract
retailers to the town centre. In the future, where

the Council acquires an interest in buildings within
the core town centre area, it will proactively work to
support active uses, including retail. The Council will
also seek to encourage other active town centre uses
(such as restaurants and leisure) to locate in the town
centre to support retail uses and reduce the number
of vacant units. Developing more town centre living,
as promoted through the SPD, will also help to support
retail uses in the town centre by increasing footfall.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

Car Parking

The Council recognise that some people believe
that additional, cheaper or free car parking will
encourage greater use of the town centre. The
Council will undertake a full review of the parking
strategy in the New Year and will take account of
the concerns expressed through this consultation as
part of that review.

Feelings of Safety

A number of respondents mentioned feeling
unsafe in the town centre, particularly in the
evenings. The Council will undertake a town
centre safety audit to identify what other action
maybe appropriate. To help the feelings of safety
and to deal with any incidents that may arise the
Council operates a CCTV service from 7am to lam
Sunday to Wednesday and 7am to 3am Thursday
to Saturday. CCTV cameras are recording 24/7 and
footage is retained for one month.

Other comments

Individuals commenting on the draft Prospectus
have made a number of other more detailed
comments relating to wider town centre issues.
These comments fall outside of the scope of matters
that can be addressed through changes to the SPD
but are being reviewed on a corporate basis to
identify the need for further action.

Pack Page 173



APPENDIX 1
EXHIBITION BOARDS

Rack Page 174



THE ROLE OF THE PROSPECTUS

Rushmoor Borough Council has prepared the The Prospectus is being developed as a Supplementary

Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus to help put the Planning Document (SPD) and will be a material planning

heart back into Aldershot. consideration for future planning applications. It will
replace the Aldershot Town Centre SPD (2009) and further

The Prospectus sets out a strategy for regenerating develops the council’s strategic approach to regeneration in

the town with development options to attract Aldershot.

and support growth in Aldershot town centre. =

The council has worked with a specialist team of The council will need to work with developers and land

consultants and engaged with local stakeholders owners to deliver the proposals. It will use its powers and

and residents to combine local knowledge and ﬁ/« resources in a proactive way to enable development and

enthusiasm for Aldershot with regeneration best

practice.

\
\

London

[mal
Reading ® f
Please give us your views by completing a feedback
form and dropping it in the box provided. [ma]
® Camberley
The draft Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus - O‘WT’M
can be found online where you can also comment: o S S Aldefshot

LJ
Farnha

Surrey Hills

The consultation will finish on Wednesday 11
November 2015. For further information,
please contact:

[Ma]
b

. L)
Winchester

SOUTH DOWNS

5 Soulhumplii
7

Allies and Mqrrison II : R%:}AGU USHMOOR

Urban Practitioners BOROUGH COUNCIL

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015 PaCk Page 1725




ALDERSHOT *
TO

SIX KEY THEMES FOR THE VISION

We want to see the heart back in Aldershot.
A REVITALISED TOWN CENTRE

The town will be a place where everyone is welcome

and where families want to be, focused around a Aldershot’s retail core is not expected to compete with

thriving leisure and retail hub. Easy to get to, park and regional towns nearby but it can play an important role

get around, the town will become increasingly vibrant in meeting convenience and local shopping needs of a

with new residents from Wellesley joining Aldershot’s growing population.

community and new high quality urban homes in the

P

The council will welcome new retailers and seek to

town centre. focus these in the core shopping streets; will support
specialist retailers providing an alternative offer; and

Businesses, old and new, will thrive and support will bring other uses such as leisure and homes into the

the town, and residents will shop in a unique mix centre to help support shops.

of independent and high street shops. Aldershot’s

Victorian and military heritage will be celebrated and

protected. Families and friends of all ages will meet

up in a choice of coffee shops, cafés and restaurants,

be active or relax in quality open spaces. Aldershot

will come alive with the buzz from Westgate and a

revitalised Princes Hall, new leisure facilities and the

concerts, shows, arts and family events taking place

across the town.

Aldershot town centre will be a place local people
want to be.

TOWN CENTRE LIVING

Aldershot has a significant requirement for new homes
with demand from young families and professionals.
The role of town centres across the country is shifting
away from retail to leisure uses and new homes can
help to meet demand while also helping to give the
town centre back its vitality.

d

The council has a ber of suitable town
centre sites that can cater for people of different
ages and family size. We are not able to bring these
forward alone but will work with developers, ensuring
an approach that responds to Aldershot'’s Victorian
character.

Rack Page 176



PROSPECTUS

A FAMILY FRIENDLY TOWN CENTRE

Aldershot is appreciated as a safe and family
friendly town centre with a range of leisure
activities. With the Wellesley development under
construction, the council will seek to provide
additional town centre leisure facilities and public
spaces.

Better signage and pathway improvements will
be made as funding becomes available, to connect
the town centre to Aldershot’s many surrounding
natural assets.

INVESTING IN STREETS AND SPACES

The Activation Aldershot programme has brought
a series of improvements to the town'’s streets

and spaces that help to connect Westgate back to
Union Street and to better connect early phases of
the Wellesley development into the town centre
at Court Road. Further investment priorities are
identified to create a central public space for
Aldershot and improve entrances into the town
centre.

AN IMPROVED CULTURAL OFFER

Westgate brought a new multiplex cinema to
Aldershot town centre, along with a number of high
street restaurant names. The council is reviewing
opportunities to add to this offer, such as the
transformation of Princes Hall Theatre and the
extension of the successful events programme in
the town.

AFFIRMING THE VICTORIAN
HERITAGE

Aldershot'’s quality Victorian buildings are frequently
overlooked as an asset for the town. The buildings
can help to give Aldershot the distinctiveness
required to attract visitors as leisure plays a more
important role for towns.

Many historic buildings are at crossroads and
landscape improvements at these points can have

a substantial impact in improving the environment.
The council will protect these buildings and
important views and will invest in shop front and
building improvements as funding becomes available.

Pack Page 177



ALDERSHOT
TOWN CENTRE

MENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT

THE MASTERPLAN FOR ALDERSHOT

The plan below sets out development and : s
refurbishment opportunities in the Aldershot Town * Irtitj\;\lllglrl‘irsl;ie:sg{;ﬁ :;El:gg'pﬁgshtgi::el: o

Centre Prospectus. These vary in the scale and time
frame in which they are likely to come forward. « The Rail Station area, including improved

However, Rushmoor Borough Council has identified a access and parking

number of priority sites, which are:
® The area around the Princes Hall, including

. Ll;gehGSatl:::tez as'it;alrilr:king Wellington Street with the tefiirbishment of the theatre

ctoria Road:  Marks and Spencer

STATION ROAD

Wellingion Centre

- !
Lo

VICTORIA RoAp

-_—
-
-
=
-

Hippodrome House: Rail Station: Proposals |
Opions for refurbishment for a new siation
and possible infil square, providing beter
development on Vicioria arongements for buses
Rood /| toxis and parking

a
Redevelopment of he
| former worehouse as o
{ resdental sto

Proposed development

[l Potentiol refurbished existing buildings

Rack Page 178



ALDERSHOT
TOWN CENTRE

MENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT

Plans would link Wellington Street with the Aldershot rail station is an attractive
High Street car park directly at street level, Victorian building but is currently
fronted by homes and active town centre S ( underused and the existing road layout is
uses at ground floor. complex and hinders access.

The pedestrian bridge would be removed and % The council, in partnership with others, has

the Wellington Centre would have a new, 1 submitted a bid to the Enterprise M3 Local

larger entrance with access to ground and > Economic Partnership (LEP) to improve the

first floor shops. Potential also exists for > area, with a public space in front of the

new leisure uses within a scheme. station, simpler access arrangements and
replacement parking.

The police station is anticipated to close
The council will prioritise bringing the > and with development coming forward,
vacant buildings at the eastern end of potential exists to invest in the Princes
Union Street back into use, with retention e Hall building to refurbish it, creating
and refurbishment a preferred strategy. . | an impressive new entrance terrace
Opportunities exist for active town centre % : overlooking Princes Gardens and to
uses at ground floor and residential above. . improve the ground floor of the building.

The former Marks and Spencer building \ The new entrance approach will also
also has potential either to be re-let as one help the building to integrate better with
large or two medium sized units. A more the Westgate development as part of
significant change could be the Aldershot’s growing evening economy.
re-establishment of the arcade link between New homes fronting Wellington Avenue
Union Street and the High Street, with and Princes Way would create a better
smaller units that accommodate active uses entrance to the town centre.

at ground floor and homes above.

il ﬁu /

.

i

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015 PaCk Page 1729



APPENDIX 2
STAKEHOLDER
COMMENTS

Rack Page 180



18T abed »oed

Respondent
Aldershot Civic Society

Response

The Civic Society is of the view that now, more than ever,
Aldershot needs to re-imagine itself to stop further decline and
to position itself as a modern town centre allowing independent
businesses opportunities to flourish, and not just shops but
leisure and decent places for people to live in a pleasant and
thriving town centre.

The priority for most people is sorting the Galleries, and the
society welcomes the changes that have been put forward, but
is concerned that without the council using all of its powers to
make sure that something happens, Threadneedle will continue
to sit on its asset bringing further decline to our town centre. It
is without any doubt that the Galleries has been an instrumental
part of the town centres decline and it must be a priority to
ensure that this does not go on any longer, as if it does, no other
changes in the plan will do more than polish the surface of a
rotten apple, from which only Threadneedle will benefit.

Opening up the Galleries as a ground level pedestrian route is
supported by the society as you will no longer have the problem
of escalators and lifts not working because of uninterested
landlords like Threadneedle. It would be important to make sure
that new shop units took on a Victorian look fitting with the
frontages like the ones demonstrated in the master plan on
Union Street. We welcome the removal of the bridge and the
restoration of the street view through to the Gala Bingo
building. Aldershot needs a new town square and we are
sceptical as to whether the “new square” noted in the
masterplan is substantial enough to be anywhere near big
enough to perform this task. We would be like to find out more
information on this new square, the size and how it would look.

Officer Comment
Comments noted. No suggested change.

The identification of the Galleries as a key site within the
Prospectus SPD provides the planning policy framework upon
which the Council can seek to bring forward positive change,
preferably in partnership with the current landowner.

Comments noted. It is not considered appropriate or
necessary to be too prescriptive to restrict the design of any
new build retail frontages. However, proposals should be
sympathetic to the prevailing town character.

The SPD identifies and supports the principle of a new square
within the heart of the town centre. Following detailed
design, it is more than likely that the location/dimensions of
such a public space will evolve over time.

29




28T abed »oed

Respondent

Response

The former Marks and Spencer plan seems sensible as there
seems little chance of a larger store wanting to use this space.
Opening up this area as a through route makes sense to help
make the town more accessible, and helps link the Princes
Gardens and Empire with the town centre. Lining this with shop
units we hope will encourage more independent traders.

The “library area” needs further explanation, as to what
happens with the entrance to the car park. It also seems to be
desperate redevelopment, rather than needed development.

The station development is welcomed with caution as it has long
been an aim of the civic society to see improvements here. One
concern is where the buses would go? The document states that
they would stop in front of the station, but if this is the case that
buses would stop nose to tail in front of the station we would
lose the gain in making the area look better as all we would see
looking towards the station would be parked buses.

Windsor Way redevelopment is long overdue as this area is
quite an eyesore, as is making Hippodrome House look better
and this is supported by us too, as with Birchett Road and
Victoria Road proposals.

Whist we welcome the changes to the look of the Princes Hall,
we are also disappointed that something more substantial was
not offered. Acquiring the old Ritz/Gala Bingo building as a new
theatre for Aldershot, bringing it closer to the high street car
park and town centre, and with its history of famous

Officer Comment
Comments noted. No suggested change.

It is understood that the proposed improvements to
pedestrian linkages between the Wellesley development and
the town centre identify this parcel of land as an improved
pedestrian connection. Subsequently, it is unlikely that the
corner infill proposal is achievable. It is recommended that
the allocation is removed from the final masterplan.

The intention is to introduce bus stops to the front of the
existing station building. There would be no requirement for a
‘bus station’ as is currently the case and therefore it is unlikely
that the buses using the interchange would be stationary for
long periods.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. The proposals within the SPD are indicative
and it will be the decision of the landowner (RBC in the case of
Princes Hall), based on a combination of financial viability and
public demand for the centre and its cultural offer, as to how
the scheme moves forward.

30




€8T abed yoed

Respondent

Response

performers. A complete re-build at the present site to give
Aldershot a brand new state of the art theatre would have also
been more welcomed.

New plans for the Empire are welcomed by the society and
anything that can be done to improve the car wash area
between the two old cinemas would be most welcomed.

We feel that one thing has been overlooked. That is there are no
plans in place for helping to ensure that the town is suitable for
visiting in all weathers. Whilst opening up new streets and
removing the Galleries is welcomed, there seems to be no
thought for interlinking shelters or glass rooves so that
restaurants could still seat people outside more modestly sized
units, and so shoppers were protected from the elements. It
could also be questioned why there is no information on
pedestrian flows? This was standard 30 years ago. Aldershot
does not want to compete with covered centres like Camberley
and Farnborough, but a few strategic awnings would not go
amiss. This could also help with linking together of key sites as
Aldershot always seems like a town in many fractured pieces,
rather than one joined up town.

In conclusion we generally support the draft Master Plan for
Aldershot, and it is important that improvements are
implemented as soon as possible to help our town thrive and
become a destination of choice for locals in and around the
area. This isn’t the first consultation on Aldershot Town Centre,
and we feel that the council needs to be bold as this may be the
last chance to try to revive the town.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. No suggested change.

A key theme of the Prospectus SPD is the desire to affirm the
Victorian Heritage of the town. Whilst the introduction of
traditional awnings within the street scene is welcomed such
as those seen at Poppins and Café Machiato, it is considered
that permanent shelters/connection corridors of
contemporary design would detract from the visual aesthetic
of the town centre.

Comments noted. As previously stated, the introduction of
this supplementary policy framework will help to drive
forward regeneration aspirations across the town centre and
allow for Council intervention where considered necessary.

Church Crookham
Parish Council

Church Crookham Parish Council support the regeneration of
Aldershot. This is a major town with some beautiful buildings

Comments noted. The Prospectus seeks to promote the
Victorian Heritage of the town and identifies that the Council

31




8T abed oed

Respondent

Response

which the parish council would like to see retained. Some of the
more modern buildings have jarred with the development of the
town and will need serious re-modelling.

The addition of family friendly areas with pedestrianised ways
will open up Aldershot to become more than a town just to shop
in. The area needs more specialised shops side-by-side with
national brands. The parish council particularly likes the
modernization of Princes Hall.

Officer Comment

is committed to maintaining and enhancing this heritage.
Future development proposals will be considered in this
context.

Comments noted. The Prospectus seeks to promote a variety
of uses within the town centre, recognising that a major retail
focus is not necessarily the most appropriate approach. A
flexible approach is key to the future vitality of the town.

Environment Agency

Based on the submitted information, the Aldershot town centre
sites you have selected in the ‘Masterplan for Aldershot’ on
pages 40 and 41 all lie within Flood Zone 1 in accordance with
our Flood Risk Mapping. Flood Zone 1 is defined as having a low
probability of flooding in accordance with Table 1 ‘Flood Risk’ of
the Planning Practice Guidance. There is no fluvial flood risk
associated with the Aldershot town centre sites in accordance
with our Flood Risk Mapping. You will need to consider other
sources of flooding in consultation with the Lead Local Flood
Authority (LLFA). In this case the LLFA is Hampshire County
Council.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Hampshire County
Council

The County Council notes that “connections to the walking
routes that surround the town are to be improved in the longer
term, with better signage and communication to raise the
profile of these resources and path maintenance and
enhancement, as funding becomes available”.

The Hampshire Countryside Access Plan 2015-25, states that
Hampshire County Council Countryside Service

“....will work with others to identify a strategic, county-wide
network within this which incorporates the key links between

32




GgT abed 3oed

Respondent

Response
centres of population and places of interest in Hampshire’s
countryside, both at present and looking to meet future needs”.

Hampshire County Council Countryside Service therefore
supports this aspect of the SPD and look forward to working
with the Borough and developers to achieve some of these
shared objectives.

The SPD currently makes no reference to sustainability or
climate change. Hampshire County Council Environmental
Strategy Team recommends the inclusion of wording to ensure
that paragraphs 93 to 98 of the National Planning Policy
Framework are addressed.

The County Council recommend the following wording should
be incorporated into the SPD:

‘New developments and improvements to existing properties
will be planned in a way that reduces greenhouse gas emissions
and utilises energy efficiency measures. The use of renewable,
decentralised and/or low carbon energy generation technology
will be encouraged.’

p.13 first para: Hampshire County Council as the Highway
Authority notes that this text states: “easy to get to and park
and get around”. The County Council recommends that the
Borough Council amend this text to reference sustainable access
as the current wording implies that people will drive from
Wellesley as there is lots of parking available in town rather than
promoting sustainable access to the town centre from the new
development.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. No suggested change.

The SPD provides further planning guidance in support of the
adopted Core Strategy. The policy framework in respect of
sustainable development/construction methods is outlined
within Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy and this would be a
material consideration for any new proposals. It is not
considered necessary to repeat these policies within the SPD.

Comments noted. This part of the vision statement is not
explicitly related to travel by car. The suggested revised
wording is too detailed for inclusion in the vision statement.
Other statements in the SPD support sustainable travel. No
change proposed.

33




98T abed oed

Respondent

Response

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

Easy to access by a variety of sustainable modes of transport,
including walking, cycling, public transport as well as the private
car. Easy to get to and around, the town will become
increasingly vibrant...

p.30 first bullet: Hampshire County Council as the Highway
Authority notes that this text states: “Enhanced landscaping,
rationalisation of the road layout and a new multi-storey car
park to improve the experience of arriving in Aldershot by train
and to avoid conflict between cars, buses and pedestrians in the
area”

This current wording makes it seem like the multi-storey car
park will make it better for people arriving by train and
recommends that the statement is amended for clarity.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that for
clarity the wording is amended as set out below to:

Enhanced landscaping, rationalisation of the road network as
well as a fayeutand new multi-storey car park will te-improve
the experience of arriving in Aldershot by train and help to aveid
reduce the conflict between cars, buses and pedestrians in the
area

p.30 second bullet: Hampshire County Council notes that this
text states: “Improvements to connections to and from the new
Wellesley development”

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Seek to amend bullet point to reflect HCC
recommendation.

This will confirm that the proposal here is to improve the
integration of transport modes at the railway station by an
improvement to the forecourt. As a consequence of this
improvement, the proposal includes some decking of the car
park to maintain the current levels of car park capacity (it is
not proposed to construct a new multi-storey car park).

34



/8T abed »oed

Respondent

Response

The County Council as Highway Authority would expect to see
more emphasis on sustainable transport links if this section
“Investing in Streets and Spaces” is referring to. The section
should also reference what the new and improved links are (or
are planned to be) so that it is made clear in this section.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

Accessibility improvements that link to the new Wellesley
development, pedestrian crossings on the high street as well as
potentially new and improved sustainable transport links
between the High Street and Union Street.

p.48 first para: Hampshire County Council notes that this text
states: The area around the station, including the parking, bus
stands and highways does little to enhance the setting.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that this
text is amended as the term “highways” is misleading and so
should not be used in this context. The station should also be
referred to as the railway station for clarity throughout the
document.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

The area around the railway station, including the parking, bus
stands and highway environment does little to enhance the
setting.

Officer Comment

The improved links between High Street and Union Street
refer to the proposed new pedestrian link through the vacant
M&S store. It is proposed to make this clearer in the final
version of the SPD.

Comments noted. Seek to amend paragraph to reflect HCC
recommendation.

35




88T abed oed

Respondent

Response

p.48 second para: Hampshire County Council notes that this text
states: “The existing access and movement in the area is
complex, including buses, taxis, pick up and set down for private
cars, and access to the station for parking.”

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends
amending this bullet point to provide a clearer picture of the
movements at the entrance to the railway station and how that
mix is influenced by vehicles and vulnerable users.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

The existing accessibility in the area is complex, including buses,
taxis, cyclists, pedestrians, pick up and set down for private cars,
and access to the station for parking.”

p.50 The County Council supports the aspirations for the Princes
Hall and Police Station. However the following comments clarify
the delivery approach to the Police Station and Magistrates
Court.

On page 50, second paragraph, it is suggested that a phased
approach would be taken to redevelopment. However, as the
Police Station and Magistrates Court are housed in one building,
it is likely that the comprehensive redevelopment could occur
should the Magistrates Court be provided on another site.

Therefore, the County Council recommends that the image on
the top right of the page showing potential phasing is removed
to reflect this, and that the paragraph be replaced as
recommended by the County Council:

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Seek to amend paragraph to reflect HCC
recommendation.

36




68T abed yoed

Respondent

Response

‘The Police Station is anticipated to close as part of a wider
strategy for policing. However the Magistrates Court is expected
to remain in use so there is an opportunity to enhance and
retain the Police Station for public sector community benefit. In
the event of the relocation of the Magistrates Court, the site
could have potential for residential redevelopment.’

p.10 Hampshire County Council notes that this text states:
“....through better signage and path widening....”

Although the County Council as the Highway Authority supports
the aspiration stated here, if this section is referring to footpaths
(which isn’t currently made clear) then it should explicitly refer
to footpath widening.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

..... through better signage and footpath widening

p.12 Hampshire County Council note that this text states:
“.....will be improved with greening and signage”

Hampshire County Council as the Highway Authority take this
opportunity to ask the Borough Council what the term
‘Greening’ means in this context as it is not clear from the text
what it refers to?

Officer Comment

RBC is aware that the Hampshire Police Authority is reviewing
its estate and, at the time of writing, indications are that
Aldershot Police Station will be marketed in the short term as
a development opportunity. Whilst it is recognised that the
building is attached to the Magistrate Court, it is likely that
the Police Authority will be seeking best value from its site i.e.
residential. Accordingly, it is considered appropriate to retain
the phasing option within the Prospectus SPD to encourage a
flexible approach.

Comments noted. Seek to amend paragraph to reflect HCC
recommendation.

37




06T abked oed

Respondent

Response

Clarification from the Borough Council is required to understand
what ‘Greening’ means in the context of this SPD.

p.12 Hampshire County Council note that this text states:
“Pedestrian and cycle links between new homes and the town
centre will be very important and the routes on.......

Hampshire County Council as the Highway Authority
recommends that this wording should refer to existing routes to
accurately highlight the fact that these routes exist but they will
be improved.

p.31 Hampshire County Council notes that the text states: “.....so
that pedestrians can access the station more easily......

Hampshire County Council as the Highway Authority
recommends the use of the term visitors should be applied to
the SPD here instead of pedestrians. By not using the term
pedestrians all modes and user groups are incorporated under
the term visitors.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

“.....s0 that visitors can access the station more easily......

p.60 third bullet: Hampshire County Council as Highway
Authority asks the Borough Council whether CIL needs to be
referenced here too along with S106 and Developer
Contributions.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Will seek to amend wording to ‘soft
landscaping’ rather than ‘greening’.

Comments noted. Seek to introduce the word “existing”

Comments noted. Seek to amend paragraph to reflect HCC
recommendation.

Comments noted. Seek to amend bullet to reflect HCC
recommendation i.e. introduce CIL into the delivery
mechanisms.

38




16T abed »oed

Respondent

Response

Officer Comment

Hart District Council

There is more than enough vacant space in Aldershot to cope
with forecast retail growth requirements (Rushmoor Retail &
Town Centre Study, 2015). Therefore the type of net growth
needed is most likely to be housing, since this encourages
activity within centres. It is understood that the SPD will provide
guidelines as to how Aldershot town centre is to be
redeveloped. Whilst the draft SPD addresses the potential for
housing HDC does not have complete confidence that it seeks to
optimise residential densities.

In this context we highlight the following sites as examples:

. The Galleries - Option 1, which would provide an
estimated 121 homes instead of 54, is preferable since it
maximises housing and could be delivered within the first five
years. The Rushmoor SHLAA indicates that in excess of 200 units
would be feasible at this location, and a mix of uses could still be
accommodated

J Police Station - The draft SPD estimates 36 units may be
possible whilst the SHLAA indicates potential for 100
. High Street - Whilst it is important to consider a variety

of uses at this location the SHLAA does indicate that the King’s
Centre / Gala Bingo and surrounding uses could accommodate
around 85 homes. The draft SPD does not currently cater for
homes.

Rushmoor Borough Council has signed up to the principle that it
will do all it reasonably can to accommodate its own objectively
assessed housing need (OAHN, see Terms of Reference for the
Joint Hart, Rushmoor, Surrey Heath Member Liaison Group).
HDC'’s current understanding is that Rushmoor could have a
housing shortfall of 1,600 units in its emerging local plan. HDC

The Prospectus actively promotes town centre living — seeking
to promote homes to cater for young people, families and
older people wishing to downsize.

The Aldershot Prospectus SPD is drafted in support of adopted
policies within the Core Strategy (2011). The SPD recognises
(page 8) that a Strategic Housing Market Assessment has been
undertaken, which in turn has identified a significant
requirement for new homes in the town. However, it is not
considered that the SPD is the appropriate place to refer to
the objectively assessed housing need. This is best considered
within the context of the emerging Rushmoor Local Plan.

Regarding capacity, it is noted that the options outlined within
the Prospectus differ from the capacity identified within the
latest iteration of the SHLAA. However, the SPD is only
indicative and the densities/layout suggested should only be
considered as such.

39




26T abed yoed

Respondent

Response

stated within its response to the summer 2015 consultation on
the Borough Council’s preferred local plan that it was evident
that greater residential densities could be achieved at sites in
town centre locations.

Hart therefore objects to the draft SPD and asks Rushmoor to
refer more explicitly to its OAHN, and to the challenges required
in seeking to accommodate such need. HDC also requests that
the SPD is reviewed to ensure that housing density and delivery
are maximised.

Officer Comment

Health and Safety
Executive

We have concluded that we have no representations to make on
this occasion. This is because our records show that the
Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD boundary and the land
within does not encroach on the consultation zones of major
hazard installations or major accident hazard pipelines (MAHPs).
As no encroachment has been detected, the HSE does not need
to be informed of the next stages in the adoption of the
Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Lantana Properties Ltd

1. On page 34, Willow House, which is at the junction of Victoria
Road and Grosvenor Road, is shown on the plan as a "historically
significant building at crossroads". It is a tired 1960's office
block, which the owners wish to redevelop and replace. This
plan needs to be amended.

2. On page 40, Willow House is shown as a "corner infill
development opportunity”, which we agree it is. However, the
land to the rear of the building is shown green as if it is to be
landscaped. In fact, this land does not belong to Willow House.
In reality, it is laid out to tarmac and used for car parking. This
plan needs to be amended.

Comments noted. Seek to amend the plan to remove the
designation of Willow House as an ‘historically significant
building’.

Comments noted. Seek to amend plan to take account of the
landowner’s comments.

London and Cambridge
Properties Ltd

We are broadly supportive of the six themes presented in the
draft prospectus but it is considered that there should be an

The SPD actively promotes town centre living. It is not
considered appropriate to actively encourage additional floors

40




€61 abed yoed

Respondent

Response

acknowledgement in the prospectus with regards to building
additional floors at upper levels, where appropriate, to
encourage further homes in the town centre, in accordance with
theme No.2. Town Centre Living.

There are a number of sites where there are the opportunities
to build additional floors to provide additional good quality
residential units in the town centre location and this should be
reflected in the wording of the policy accordingly. This would
further help to add to a revitalised town centre, in accordance
with theme No.1. The use of upper floors should specially be
noted under No.2 Town Centre Living.

Furthermore, as acknowledged in the ‘Retail, Leisure and Town
Centre Study’ Part 2 Town Centres, prepared by Nathaniel
Lichfield and Partners, the vacancy rate of the Aldershot Town
Centre is almost double the national average at 23.6%
suggesting there is weak demand for retail units in the centre.
There should therefore be a reference which allows greater
flexibility to alternative non-retail uses where units have been
vacant for and or marketed for a significant time, i.e. 6-12
months. This is because vacant units, especially in the primary
shopping of the town centre can have a significant impact on the
town centre’s vitality and viability, which would prevent the
revitalisation of the Town Centre.

Too restrictive and not enough sites identified, given the
opportunities available in Aldershot. There needs to be
additional sites added to ensure the 6 themes of the prospectus
can be achieved.

Officer Comment

at upper levels within the document itself. Given that a key
theme is the recognition of the town’s Victorian heritage, it
would be somewhat at odds to encourage additional storeys
that would detract from this character.

Such proposals should be considered on their individual
merits in the context of the townscape/street scene and
should be a material consideration in the context of the Local
Plan rather than promoted specifically within the SPD.

The SPD is drafted within the context of the adopted Core
Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies and is
required to be consistent. The town centre policies within
these documents provide the framework for the SPD.
Appropriate flexibility is built into these policies to allow for
diversification where it is considered justified. Subsequently,
it is not considered necessary to repeat this position within
the SPD itself.

The key sites identified are not an exhaustive list. They have
been identified as RBC priorities but this does not restrict or
take precedence over alternative or additional proposals
coming forward.

Natural England

| can confirm that Natural England have no comments to make
on this draft document.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

41




6T abed yoed

Respondent
Rushmoor Cycle Forum

Response

We would state that any future developments in Rushmoor and
Aldershot should have strong sustainable transport at the hub of
the design.

That the designers should use best practice and lessons learned
from the UK and around the world. To ensure a positive change
in Aldershot centre and the surrounding town.

Reference should be made to both Hampshire cycling strategy,
Rushmoor Local Plan development & Aldershot Town Access
Plan.

We welcome the mention of sustainable transport and
improved cycling facilities/connectivity and family friendly
streets but details seems very sparse on this important topic.

We would propose that a commitment for a dedicated key
section of the proposal for top quality cycle/pedestrian and
sustainable transport.

We would like an expert team to do a full investigation of all
options for providing this key topic. The work on the centre
should be an integral part of a wider action plan to upgrade of a
network of routes through the borough and beyond.

Aldershot should consider all the ranges of possible solutions for
improved sustainable infrastructure from becoming a mini
Holland to filtered permeability’ for cyclists. Cycling and
sustainable infrastructure, is at the heart of a vibrant town and
community and could help to fulfil the desired objective of the
plan.

Officer Comment
Comments noted. Sustainable transport modes are actively
promoted and supported across Rushmoor.

The Prospectus SPD provides further guidance in respect of
existing planning policies within the adopted Core Strategy
and the Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies.

The comments of the Rushmoor Cycle Forum are noted. The
Aldershot Town Access Plan has proposed a series of new
facilities to encourage cycling in Aldershot which will be
pursued, and funding associated with new town centre
development will be sought to bring these projects forward as
appropriate.

42




G6T obed 3oed

Respondent

Response

Cycling has a valuable role in improving the lives of Aldershot
residence including; health and well being, an efficient form of
transport, reducing congestion, pollution minimisation.

Reclaiming the streets for people. Making it a more family and
person friendly area and generally a more pleasant place to be
and live.

All new developments should priorities cycle developments as
an efficient solution to solve many of the problems communities
experience.

We would call on the developers of Aldershot to have an
ambitious vision.

A number of cities and large towns are realising this and making
applications for major funding to become mini Holland’s with
regards to cycle infrastructure, London has schemes in various
stages of implementation, and locally Guildford is proposing
major improvements in this area.

Recent surveys by sustains shows the key desires for people to
increase cycling and increased funding for infrastructure.

Areas where quality cycle infrastructure has been implemented
has shown an increase in retail sales.

Cost benefit of cycle infrastructure in health benefits (reduced
mortality) alone has been shown to be a ration of x2.5.

We strongly suggest that Rushmoor and Aldershot ensure that
each development is designed with the goal of future proofing
the area with regards to cycle infrastructure. Matching and
exceeding other UK infrastructure. To ensure that Rushmoor

Officer Comment

43




96T abked oed

Respondent

Response

and Aldershot has a key differentiator in this field. With people
looking to Aldershot for examples of successful cycle
infrastructure and a quality of life.

If each small or large development missies this opportunity it
will severely damage the future potential of Rushmoor and
Aldershot. Each part needs to be planned with extreme care and
forethought, to ensure it links to future developments and
meets the needs of its current and future residences.

Officer Comment

Rushmoor Borough
Council — Environment
Panel

Aldershot Town Hall is a significant building which deserves
priority to emphasise its role in the development of Aldershot.

Good quality family living in the town centre is vital (including
good quality new builds and conversions).

Princes Hall — the location was accepted but its size and capacity
must be expanded.

The principle of having a good town square was endorsed but
the Panel wanted to see a well-defined and well-framed town
square irrespective of its location.

The emphasis on the town’s Victorian heritage and architecture
was endorsed and it was felt that this should have prominence
in the document and should be promoted, protected, enhanced
and preserved.

Aldershot Town Hall is a Grade Il listed building currently
occupied by Hampshire County Council. RBC Officers are not
aware of any future plans to vacate the building. As a
statutorily protected building, its significance is recognised in
the Aldershot townscape.

Comments noted. The Prospectus supports/promotes town
centre living. Detailed considerations such as the quality of
design are covered by national and local policies.

Comments noted. The principle of retaining the theatre is
outlined in the Prospectus. Decisions relating to its size and
capacity are a matter to be determined corporately.

Comments noted. Seek to introduce further text in the SPD
regarding good design principles for a town square.

44




/6T abed »oed

Respondent

Response
Redundant sites on Windsor Way should be linked more to the
Railway Station development in the document.

A Heritage Trail was considered an excellent idea and should be

referenced in the document. It was suggested that this could be
enhanced through the use of good public art (not forgetting the

military).

Officer Comment

Rushmoor Labour
Group

What is considered Aldershot Town Centre is defined too
narrowly if it is to include housing, leisure, culture and spaces.
For example, the corners of Hospital Hill and Wellington Avenue
across the road from Princes Hall and Princes Gardens could also
be taken into consideration. Also, the open area of land
between Cassino Close and High Street is very much in need of
improvement. Further, the area between Parsons Close and
High Street, including the Parsons Barracks Car Park could be
included.

To the south, with Aldershot Register Office moving out and the
former Potters building on the corner of Queens Road empty
and The Old Town Hall being vacated, the whole of that site
could be considered for a major development (albeit The Old
Town Hall is a Listed building).

For a proactive approach to succeed, Rushmoor Borough Council
needs to appoint a Project Director to act as the “champion” of
Aldershot Town Centre in driving forward this development and
investment while being democratically accountable to the local
community.

Further, Rushmoor Borough Council should consider setting up a

The Prospectus SPD is drafted as an extension of existing
policies within the Core Strategy and the Rushmoor Local Plan
Saved Policies document. The town centre boundary is
defined by these policies and is reflected on the Core Strategy
Proposals Map. The SPD operates within this remit.

A number of the properties around the Queens Road/Victoria
Road junction are either nationally or locally listed and
subsequently, major development opportunities are limited.
The former Potters Building has planning permission for
conversion of the listed building and new build development
to the rear.

This is a matter to be considered corporately and falls outside
of the remit of the Prospectus SPD.

This is a matter to be considered corporately and falls outside

45




86T abed oed

Respondent Response Officer Comment
joint venture company with suitable partners (in the way that of the remit of the Prospectus SPD. The Council being able to
the Westgate development did) in order to provide a suitable bring land forward i.e. as freeholder, is an integral part of any

vehicle for managing development and investment in Aldershot | such venture.
Town Centre.

It is unrealistic for the Prospectus to set out policies for Comments noted. The Prospectus recognises that Aldershot is
significant growth of retail in Aldershot Town Centre over the unlikely to compete with nearby regional centres and must
plan period. focus on alternative approaches to supporting the

vitality/vibrancy of the town.

It would be more realistic to set out policies for consolidation The SPD is drafted in support of existing policies within the
and diversification of retail, while concentrating on providing Core Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies
much-needed housing and associated leisure and cultural document. Proposals to change frontages/consolidate the
facilities in Aldershot Town Centre. town centre need to be driven by changes to these policies

within a new Local Plan.

With that reservation, we welcome Rushmoor Borough Council’s | Comments noted.
intention to plan positively for Aldershot’s future and to provide
clarity on investment priorities.

It is not enough for development proposals to be permitted that | The SPD is drafted in support of existing policies within the
maintain the vitality and the viability of Aldershot Town Centre. | Core Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies

It is already too late for that laissez-faire approach, which has document and reflects national planning guidance. As noted
not worked in the past 10 years since The Galleries was emptied. | above, proposals to change frontages/consolidate the town
centre need to be driven by changes to these policies within a
new Local Plan.

Aldershot Town Centre is in a critical state, so Rushmoor
Borough Council needs to take urgent action immediately to
regenerate it.

46



66T abed yoed

Respondent

Response
Policy TC1 is not proactive enough, particularly in bringing to
bear consideration of the real factors that are driving retail out:

- high rents

- high business rates

- high parking charges

- expensive bus fares

- relatively low income of population regularly using
Aldershot Town Centre

- concentration of deprivation in and around Aldershot
Town Centre (including the high proportion of elderly in the
population).

Policy TC2 is in danger of leading to even more empty shop units
and charity shops, in the absence of policies to address the
factors above.

Policy TC3 would be suitable if there was demand for shopping
units on the ground floor. However, given the flight of retail
from Aldershot Town Centre, it would be more appropriate to
consider residential units without shopping on the ground floor,
where appropriate.

For Aldershot Town Centre, its critical state means that we need
to see beyond policies being assessed purely on planning
grounds to being practical, and we need to be prepared to
consider any proposals that will make a positive contribution to
saving Aldershot Town Centre from collapse.

There seems no evidence for the optimistic view of the
Enterprise M3 LEP that there is demand for new retail units,
above which housing can be built.

Officer Comment

Policies TC1, TC2 and TC3 are “saved” town centre policies (in
the Rushmoor Local Plan Review, 2000) and form part of the
basis for considering town centre related applications at
present, along with relevant policies from the Core Strategy.
Any proposed changes to this suite of policies will need to be
taken forward within a new Local Plan document. RBC
consulted on the Preferred Approach version of the new Local
Plan during the Summer and will be publishing a further draft
for consultation in 2016.

Comments noted. RBC is able to consider departures from
policy if there are material considerations that weigh in favour
of a proposal.

47




00¢ abed oed

Respondent

Response

We need to recognise that the £3 million investment in streets,
spaces and shop fronts has not restored vitality to Aldershot
Town Centre, many of whose retailers find themselves hard-
pressed to make ends meets in the current climate.

The Prospectus claims that Aldershot has a price differential
with surrounding areas that makes property relatively affordable
for a desirable part of the country. However, all of that changed
when the first units on the Wellesley development went on sale
by Bellway (for example, a one-bed flat costing £200,000 — well
above the current average price in Aldershot of £140,000).

The Prospectus needs to deal with the demographic of
Aldershot Town Centre as it is now, and then go forward on a
realistic timetable based on how change in that demographic
may be reflected in future developments. The Prospectus needs
proposals that address the following weaknesses in the current
offer:

- high rents

- high business rates

- high parking charges

- expensive bus fares

- relatively low income of population using Aldershot
Town Centre

- concentration of deprivation in and around Aldershot
Town Centre (including the high proportion of elderly in the
population).

Not everyone will be able to afford high-quality urban homes, so
there will need to be provision of affordable and social housing
to meet demand — demand that currently very much exceeds

Officer Comment

This is not a matter for consideration within the Prospectus
SPD.

The focus of the Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus is the
defined ‘town centre’ in accordance with the adopted Core
Strategy. It is this location where the price differential exists.

The issue of rents falls outside the remit of the SPD. If RBC
was a significant landowner within the town centre, it could
influence such matters. However, the majority of sites are
within private ownership and landowners have the freedom
to determine their own rent values.

In addition, the Prospectus is not the appropriate mechanism
for establishing the corporate position in respect of business
rates, parking charges and bus fares. These issues fall outside
of the scope of the SPD.

Comments noted. Development proposals will need to accord
with wider planning considerations, including in respect of the
provision of affordable housing.

48




T0¢ 8bed »oed

Respondent

Response
supply.

Plans need to be realistic and based on the reality that the most
affluent have nothing to attract them into Aldershot Town
Centre at present or in the foreseeable future. Guildford,
Farnham, Reading, Basingstoke, Winchester and even
Portsmouth and Southampton have much more to offer the
most affluent.

In the longer term, as Wellesley housing is occupied, there may
be opportunities to have more specialist shops in Aldershot
Town Centre. However, Wellesley is going to have its own local
centre to meet the convenience shopping needs of its residents,
so this provision has to be taken into account. For non-
convenience and affluent shopping, Wellesley residents will be
most likely to travel to Guildford, Farnham, Reading, or
Basingstoke, as the more affluent residents of Aldershot do at
present.

In terms of trying to establish a retail hierarchy, Wellington
Centre is dominant because of the number and the range of its
shops, but otherwise the most dynamic area is Station Road and
the east of Victoria Road.

In addition, the so-called improvement scheme of Victoria Road,
which introduced an often-ignored “No Entry” zone between
Heathland Street and Gordon Road, has affected shops there
badly and needs to be removed as soon as possible.

Before seeking to meet the demand from young professionals
who wish to move the area, there needs to be some focus on
meeting the demand from the existing population of Aldershot.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. The Prospectus recognises that Aldershot
is unlikely to compete with regional towns nearby in terms of
being able to accommodate ‘High Street’ retailers. However,
Officers consider that the SPD should be aspirational as well
as deliverable, particularly given that the document looks to
the longer term.

The Prospectus recognises that the main role of Aldershot
Town Centre will be in respect of convenience and local
shopping needs.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

This is a matter to be considered corporately and falls outside
of the remit of the Prospectus SPD.

The policy mechanisms for the delivery of housing are set out
in adopted local policy. In terms of low cost housing, there is
an evident need for affordable housing across the Borough. It

49




20z abed »oed

Respondent

Response

This unmet demand from the existing population has increased
the numbers of homeless, rough sleepers, people who have an
urgent need to move, and people who have been assessed as
having a high priority.

In part, the high vacancy rate of the town centre car parking at
the High Street multi-storey car park is due to the reluctance of
town-centre residents to park there overnight because of the
high charges and because of the anti-social behaviour of rough
sleepers who have been residing there. Measures therefore
need to be taken to invest in making the car park secure for
residents and users, rather than having it open to the anti-social.

A family-friendly town centre

This theme is at odds with the increasing devotion of the town
centre to a night-time economy, which has seen increases in late
night and early morning openings of venues for consumption of
alcohol, music and entertainment — the most recent being for
the Empire (formerly The Kings Church) in High Street to be
open until 3.00 am four nights a week, likely to be closely
followed by the refurbished Palace nightclub in Station Road.

Evidence of the degree of public nuisance is that Police crime
records for Aldershot showed last year that rate of offences
committed in Wellington Ward (Aldershot Town Centre) per
head of population was five times as great as in all the other
wards in Aldershot, these offences being mainly anti-social
behaviour and assaults.

For Aldershot to have a really family-friendly town centre, these
sources of crime and anti-social behaviour need to be reduced

Officer Comment
is recognised that higher density schemes within the town
centre provide the opportunity to deliver affordable housing.

Comments noted. This issue will be raised as a corporate
matter.

A successful town centre needs to offer variety and cater for a
wide audience. The evening economy does not need to
necessarily detract from the aim of achieving a ‘family-
friendly’ town centre, particularly as the majority of ‘family’
activities will occur during the day time.

Comments noted. This is a matter to be considered
corporately. The SPD can have little, if any, impact on
licensing issues.

50




€0¢ abed yoed

Respondent

Response
as far as possible. Otherwise, Aldershot’s reputation will
continue to be tarnished.

It is very disappointing that in the draft Prospectus there is no
photograph and no mention made of Aldershot Lido, which
provides a family day out for hundreds of Aldershot residents
when it is open in the summer. There is great appetite among
the long-standing residents of Aldershot to see this leisure
facility regenerated.

An improved cultural offer

Unfortunately, this section shows a distinct lack of imagination
in mentioning only Westgate and Princes Hall and the events
programme in the town, however successful they are in raising
peoples’ spirits.

There is no mention of Aldershot Library and what it offers.
Through an integrated approach with Hampshire County
Council, Aldershot Library could be relocated to a new civic
centre (for example, as part of a Union Street/High Street
redevelopment). That would then free up the current Aldershot
Library to be joined with The Galleries site in a major
development scheme with housing, leisure and some retail
facing onto High Street opposite the High Street Car Park.

Also, West End Centre in Queens Road, is a major local arts
venue, now part of the Hampshire Cultural Trust. And, there is
the ambitious Rock & Pop Foundation in Grosvenor Road.
Aldershot Town Football Club at the EBB Stadium in High Street
makes a very significant contribution through its Football in the
Community Scheme.

Officer Comment

The Prospectus focuses on Aldershot Town Centre, as defined
by the Core Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies.
Aldershot Lido is sited a considerable distance from the town

centre and subsequently does not fall within the remit of the

Prospectus.

Comments noted. Seek to include the library within the
Prospectus document.

Comments noted. Seek to include reference to the West End
Centre within the Prospectus document. Aldershot Town FC
are mentioned within the Prospectus.

51




0z abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

If Aldershot Town Centre is to have an improved cultural offer,
all these organisations and others need to be involved in plans
for its future.

Also, with respect to the section on the potential for
transformation of Princes Hall, the changes shown are purely
superficial to the front of the building and do nothing to
enhance the cultural content that it could offer if, for example,
the stage and seating were to be reconfigured so that it could
mount London West end shows. A café could already be
provided in the current building, and an open terrace for the
occasional ceremony is unnecessary. Finally, those steps to the
side look totally out of place and would not really provide a
stronger relationship with Westgate, which has two or three
blank white walls facing Princes Hall.

Investing in streets and spaces

Although it has upgraded some streets and spaces, the
Activation Aldershot programme has not led to any
improvement in retail in Aldershot Town Centre — so we have
seen the departure of M&S Outlook from Union Street and the
Coop from Victoria Road/Birchett Road.

It is also questionable whether, with the current population
profile, the £200,000 grant scheme for shop fronts will bring any
extra retail into Aldershot.

Officer Comment

The SPD does not preclude the involvement of community
organisations in plans for the future of Aldershot. Indeed, RBC
has brought together a community group to discuss matters
relating to events within the town centre following initial
engagement on the Prospectus.

The Prospectus proposals are indicative of what could be
achieved. This is a matter for RBC to determine how best to
proceed, based on a combination of financial viability and
public demand for the centre and its cultural offer.

To date, the investment in public realm improvements has
focused on strengthening pedestrian connections between
Wellesley and the town centre (Court Road) and Westgate
and the town centre (Barrack Road/Grosvenor Road). Given
the lack of land ownership within the town centre, it is
difficult for RBC to instigate a step-change in retail provision.

The shop front improvement scheme seeks to build upon the
Victorian heritage of the town centre, with an emphasis on
Union Street and Wellington Street to create a more cohesive
town centre.

52




G0g abed oed

Respondent

Response

The only way to create significant public space would be to
demolish an existing building, and it is doubtful whether this
would be worthwhile in terms of the benefit to be achieved.
There are already significant public spaces in Aldershot Town
Centre — Princes Gardens, Westgate and Court Road — so it may
be preferable to develop plans to make better use of these.

Another aspect of investing in streets and spaces that is
currently neglected is maintenance, as evidenced by the run-
down state of the abandoned buildings on two corners of the
crossroads at Queens Road, Victoria Road and Grosvenor Road —
which the Prospectus sees as providing a public realm
investment opportunity.

Affirming the Victorian heritage

It is important to give the owners of the Victorian buildings,
particularly those that are prominent, support in bringing them
into active use, maintaining them and highlighting them,
perhaps by having plaques explaining their historical significance
and lighting them at night, and having an Aldershot Town Centre
walk between them.

The Galleries
At first sight, either of the Options looks attractive compared

with the empty (“ghost town”) shopping mall that The Galleries
has been for the past 10 years.

Officer Comment

It is recognised that the creation of a new public space within
the heart of the town centre is reliant on significant
redevelopment schemes, hence the consideration to include it
within the Galleries proposal. A central open space would be
of greater benefit to the town economy.

Willow House has recently been purchased and the
landowner has responded to the Prospectus SPD. The old
Potters Building is with planning permission. As both buildings
are in private ownership, there is little influence that RBC can
have on their appearance.

Comments noted. The Prospectus recognises the value of the
Victorian buildings within the town centre and suggests that a
number of these properties would benefit from up-lighting in
the evenings to highlight their architectural qualities. The SPD
also states that improvements could be made subject to
funding being available.

53




90¢ abed oed

Respondent

Response
However, closer inspection reveals significant issues:

. The area labelled “NEW SQUARE” hardly seems any
wider than Wellington Street at the end nearest to Wellington
Street.

. Little Wellington Street is closed off about halfway, so
there is a question about access to service the new shops and
flats to the south.

. Both options contain significant amounts of additional
retail, when all the evidence points to a flight of retail from
Aldershot Town Centre.

. In the event of Option 1 —est. 121 residential units —
where would the car parking be to current standards?

It may therefore be desirable to consider an Option 3 that
configures the connecting walkway between High Street and
Wellington Street with housing on the ground floor (allowing the
construction of town houses, rather than flats) and with retail
confined to the frontages on High Street and Wellington Street
(of the type shown by Steve Walker of Allies & Morrison at a
Councillors’ Housing & Planning Forum on 22 October 2015).

Demolition of the walkway between The Wellington Centre and
The Galleries is desirable, as it would no longer be required.

Union Street and former Marks and Spencer building

The Union Street East block would be best redeveloped as
residential above and retail below, as it is highly visible from the
stepped entrance into Aldershot Town Centre from the High
Street Car Park.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and will be subject to detailed design — in respect of
appearance, servicing and car parking. It is understood that
the High Street car park could be used to offset car parking
requirements of a Galleries residential scheme.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

54




/0¢ abed yoed

Respondent

Response

However, the question remains over the viability of the retail
space below, given the flight of retail from Aldershot Town
Centre at present.

Given the size and the configuration of the former M&S, the
amount of refurbishment need to bring it into use, and the flight
of retail from Aldershot Town Centre, the first option for this
site seems unrealistic.

The second option is preferable, particularly if the link created
between Union Street and High Street could also allow creation
of a town square facing onto the middle of Union Street.

However, again, there is the question about the viability of new
retail units in the current situation, so it could be preferable to
have retail confined to the frontages on High Street and Union
Street (again of the type shown by Steve Walker of Allies &
Morrison at a Councillors’ Housing & Planning Forum on 22
October 2015).

The Rail Station

The opportunity to redevelop Aldershot Station is welcome, but
more consideration needs to be given to the effect on the
residents of Kingsley Court, the sheltered housing
accommodation for about 110 elderly residents, which would
then be surrounded on three sides by traffic on the move all day
and all evening. The location of the entry and the exit to the new
decked car park could adversely affect the environment in the
garden of Kingsley Court, where the elderly residents can sit in
the summer.

Officer Comment

It is understood that the current configuration of the units is
not attractive to modern retailers. It is considered that a
redevelopment scheme could address these concerns.

Comments noted.

Comments noted. Suggest making reference to a new public
square within the final version of the Prospectus.

The issue of viability for specific schemes is a matter for the
detailed design/application stage but a high level viability
assessment for each scheme in the SPD has been undertaken.

Comments noted. This will need to be considered at the
detailed design stage. Work to date by officers has focused on
the provision of the decked car park to the railway side of the
land parcel and it is hoped that a single deck would offer
minimal/if any encroachment onto the amenity of the existing
residents.

55




80¢ abed oed

Respondent

Response

It could be preferable to have entry directly into the new decked
car park off Windsor Way as part of the redevelopment of the
empty site at the end of Albert Road nearest to Aldershot
Station. That would also reduce the potential for conflict
between pedestrians walking to Aldershot Station and vehicles
entering and leaving the decked car park at the bend on Station
Road.

Given the Government drive to build starter homes at station
sites, it could be practicable to build flats above the decked car
park. With active support from the Homes & Communities
Agency (HCA), this project could be advanced rapidly and make
a contribution towards the HCA target of building 200,000
starter homes by 2020.

With respect to making the entrance to Aldershot Station
attractive to passengers arriving, Network Rail needs to make
proper provision for maintenance of the environment on the
land it owns. At present, all that is apparent to passengers
arriving from London is a ghastly underpass that brings them out
into a weed-strewn forecourt, a neglected small garden and
raised beds in the car park, whose only contribution is yet more
weeds, with the car park itself being surrounded on all sides by
weeds.

Princes Hall, Police Station and Magistrates Court

Consideration needs first to be given to assessing jointly with
Her Majesty’s Courts Service (HMCS) whether it is better to
redevelop this site as a whole, as the HMCS lease on the County
Court in Victoria Road is due to expire, so HMCS is planning to
integrate the County Court into the Magistrates Court building,

Officer Comment

Initial work has been undertaken to consider a new access
route off Windsor Way into the car park. Unfortunately, the
access requirements in respect of gradients and the extent of
a ramp needed to address the changes in topography make
this an unviable option.

Comments noted. The proposals seek to make best use of the
existing bus station site for residential purposes. The concept
of building flats above the decked car park would require
further thought and will be reliant on the construction
method for the car park.

Comments noted. RBC is in discussions with the landowner
over maintenance and how this will be incorporated into
regeneration proposals. The Prospectus focuses more so on
the principle of development.

56




60¢ abed yoed

Respondent

Response
which would involve a certain amount of reconfiguration.

On the diagrams shown, the extent of this site to the south
seems questionable because there is a low wall about halfway
between the Princes Hall and the Westgate site, which seems to
mark the boundary of the Westgate site, but that is not taken
into account.

In particular, the new steps up to the south side of the extension
to the Princes Hall, do not take into account the two low walls
one at the boundary of the Westgate site and the other inside
the Westgate site, which offers a very stark face to Princes Hall.
It would be preferable for the Princes Hall, Police Station and
Magistrates Court site to be developed as a whole, rather than
the piecemeal approach of retaining the Magistrates Court
building.

The extension to the front of the Princes Hall does not seem to
be good value for money in terms of improving the cultural offer
at Princes Hall, which could benefit from extensive
improvements to enable it to accommodate bigger shows (pre-
and post-West End) and better backstage provision.

Also, there is the question of car parking for Princes Hall, which
is already very much constrained following the construction of
Westgate, whose car parking is very often filled by Morrisons
shoppers and Cineworld customers. Both options for
development do not seem to include car parking provision,
particularly if there are residential units that require car parking
spaces.

Birchett Road

Officer Comment

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and will be subject to detailed design. The
Prospectus seeks to promote the principle of development.

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and will be subject to detailed design. The
Prospectus seeks to promote the principle of development.

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and it will be for RBC as the landowner to
determine how best to progress with plans for the site, based
on a combination of financial viability and public demand for
the centre and its cultural offer.

Comments noted. Car parking will need to be carefully
considered as part of the proposals and will need to accord
with the requirements of the Car and Cycle Standards SPD.
This is a matter for detailed design.

57




0T1Z 8bed oed

Respondent

Response

It is not clear from this proposal (including the bottom diagram)
whether it is intended to pedestrianize Frederick Street.
Although there was planning permission for housing on this site,
that permission has now lapsed, so that provides an opportunity
to reconsider its use.

For example, at the recent Budget Working Group of Rushmoor
Borough Council, it was suggested that there could be an
opportunity to develop this Birchett Road site in conjunction
with the Council car park in Birchett Road (directly opposite the
site) as that could make better use of both sites.

Also, it looks as though access to car parking for this Birchett
Road site would be by the service road for the shops fronting
onto Victoria Road. However, this service road is often blocked
by large delivery vehicles for Iceland, so some other access to
car parking for housing on this Birchett Road site would be
required.

High Street

It seemed like good news that The King’s Centre was acquired
for refurbishment as an events venue for community use.
The subsequent news that the owners have submitted a
licensing application that sees it open four nights a week until
3.00 am raises the prospect of it being part of the night-time
economy, which is associated with higher levels of anti-social
behaviour and violence in Aldershot Town Centre.

Although that is not a planning matter, that use could affect the
prospects for future investment in the future of Aldershot Town

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Seek clarification on this point and address
it within the final version of the document.

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and will be subject to detailed design. Matters
including access and servicing will be considered at this stage.

Comments noted. The Prospectus was drafted on the
understanding that the King Centre had been acquired as an
events venue. Planning permission has since been granted for
such a use. The issue of licencing falls outside of the remit of
the Prospectus.

Comments noted.

58




1TZ 8bed »oed

Respondent

Response
Centre if the poor reputation for late-night economy was
reinforced.

The proposal for infill development between the new Empire
and the Gala Bingo Building would be an improvement on the
existing use as a car wash, although the car wash is largely
hidden from view behind advertisement hoardings.

Hippodrome House area

Much is made of the poor aspect presented by Hippodrome
House in walking along Station Road from Aldershot Station, so
a refurbishment would be welcome.

However, the news that the Co-operative is to vacate the
Victoria Road premises and its Birchett Road car park on 8
November, creates the exciting prospect of a more extensive
redevelopment of that site than the Prospectus contains.

It opens up the possibility of having a passageway diagonally
across the site to Victoria Road and residential development on
either side of the passageway and on the Birchett Road
frontage, with retail units on the ground floor on Victoria Road.

Making it happen

As highlighted in the introduction a proactive approach is
needed for these proposals to succeed.

Although the Prospectus advances various funding agencies and
sources of finance, it does not propose suitable mechanisms to

coordinate all of these and bring them to bear on an overarching

Officer Comment

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. This proposal was previously considered by
Officers in order to create a better linkage to the town centre.
However, it was discounted on the basis that existing use
value of the site compared to the proposed use value would
not offer enough of an incentive to bring forward a
comprehensive scheme.

59




Z1¢ abed yoed

Respondent

Response
plan.

For that, Rushmoor Borough Council needs to appoint a Project
Director to act as the “champion” of Aldershot Town Centre in
driving forward this development and investment while being
democratically accountable to the local community.

Also, Rushmoor Borough Council should consider setting up a
joint venture company with suitable partners (in the way that
the Westgate development did) in order to provide a suitable
vehicle for managing development and investment in Aldershot
Town Centre with the urgency required.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. As mentioned earlier, this is a matter to be
considered corporately and falls outside of the remit of the
Prospectus SPD.

Comments noted. As mentioned earlier, this is a matter to be
considered corporately and falls outside of the remit of the
Prospectus SPD. The Prospectus provides the foundation upon
which to instigate such ventures.

Rushmoor Pedestrian
Forum

To fulfil objectives to encourage more of us to walk into town, a
good understanding of all the current pedestrian routes is
required. The prospectus is mostly specific on the possible
pedestrian routes joining the Wellesley route to the town centre
but linkage to the rest of the town, especially the residential
areas so close to the town centre, is essential.

Good pedestrian circulation relies on good pedestrian
permeability and ideas of re-creating a link between Union
Street and High Street, removing the Galleries Bridge so as to
create a new way into the Wellington Centre or new shops
around a public space created on the site of the Galleries we
would applaud.

To link better the Prince’s theatre and Westgate with the
Prince’s gardens and with the rest of the town one might
consider severely limiting traffic along Prince’s way and perhaps
making this road and parts of those joining it shared space with
very limited vehicle speed and access.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. The area to the front of the Princes Hall is
identified as an area for public realm improvement. The
indicative proposals for the Princes Hall show this area as a
shared space.

60




£T¢ abed »oed

Respondent

Response

Although the Victoria Road scheme tidied up part of the central
region of that road it most certainly left outstanding problems
for the pedestrian. Amongst these are crossing the entrance to
the Wellington multi-storey car park on the north side of
Victoria Road and crossing Frederick Street, Heathland Street
and Gordon Road on the south side. Twenty mile an hour speed
restrictions, with suitable traffic calming measures, are required
on these three roads and the carpark entrance needs to give
higher priority to pedestrians walking along Victoria road.

In particular unless a holistic approach is taken to pedestrian
circulation it is likely that pedestrian routes will become
fragmented and good circulation not achieved. We again
emphasise the importance of introducing 20mph zones,
extending pedestrianisation wherever possible; additionally we
feel that steps need to be taken to ensure that side turnings into
carparks, minor roads and loading areas do not break up the
continuity of pedestrian routes. To encourage people to do
more of their short journeys on foot and ensure that pedestrian
circulation is really achieved it is crucial that the pedestrian
infrastructure is designed properly and in a way that favours the
pedestrian.

It's therefore vital that attempts to expand the evening scene
must create an atmosphere that is acceptable to a wide age
range and cultural outlook and ensures that the town is, at all
times, a place where people are happy to walk round. A locality
which has a ‘rough’ reputation is not going to be the kind of
place many of us would wish to visit or walk round — people
avoid places which they perceive to be unsafe.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Speed restrictions fall outside of the remit
of the Prospectus document and would be a matter for
Hampshire County Council to consider.

Comments noted.

Comments noted. Improvements to the public realm have
sought to improve the perception of safety to pedestrians.
The Court Road proposals have opened up a pedestrian route,
with better lighting and surveillance whereas the Barrack
Road/Grosvenor Road improvements have sought to make
pedestrian movement the priority by reducing vehicular lane
widths and removing vehicular movements from Barrack Road
into Grosvenor Road.

61




1 abed oed

Respondent

Response

Removing the bus station and redeveloping the site residentially
could result in the starting points for the various bus services
spread over the town centre. Changing between train and bus,
changing between bus services, or using a bus service that one is
not too familiar with are all aided by having the bus station and
having this adjacent to the train station. This is a feature that
needs to be retained, if use of public transport is to be
encouraged.

A careful reappraisal of the current road arrangement,
introduction of low speed restriction, and redesign to favour
pedestrian access is probably all that is required to improve
pedestrian ways to the bus station. Some minor cosmetic work
would improve the look of the area.

We hope that better pedestrian circulation is achieved and the
advantages of this to retailing is understood. The need to create
a family friendly environment to support both the future and
present population is very laudable. We feel that to achieve all
of this the retail environment must be kept healthy and that just
replacement of the shops by town centre apartments and by a
café environment may not achieve the desired active and lively
town centre. We warn against allowing the evening scene to be
subjected to an alcohol dominated culture which would deter
many of us visiting the town during late evening. We hope that
proposals for development of the bus station do not set back
attempts to encourage more use of public transport.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. The intention is for the bus service to
maintain a presence at the railway station. However, this will
be in the form of a stop rather than a station/depot area.
Stagecoach have been engaged and support the proposals put
forward.

Comments noted.

Comments noted.

Aldershot Town FC

| would like Aldershot FC as part of the vision for Aldershot as
we are the highest profile entity in Aldershot

The club needs to be the hub of the business and local
community

Comments noted. The football club is very important to the
town and is identified as part of the cultural offer section of
the SPD, however as the club falls outside of the defined town
centre boundary, there is limited opportunity to include it as
part of the vision for the town centre.

62




GTZ 9bed »oed

Respondent

Response

Officer Comment

Stagecoach

My overall impression of the plan is that it is exciting and
visionary but that whilst it mentions the railway station a great
deal and the proposals for the forecourt it seems to completely
omit any facilities for buses throughout the town.

Our bus services offer very frequent services from Farnham,
Guildford, Farnborough and Camberley as well as all the local
areas of housing. Due to the layout of the town, most buses
circulate the town offering convenient drop off and pick up
points. There is evidence that bus passengers spend per trip is
less than car visitors but that they make more trips. Therefore,
for a strong retail environment we believe that bus passengers
are essential.

There is considerable reference to car parking yet this will simply
encourage car visitors yet there is no increase in road capacity
and therefore the congestion on the local roads will simply
increase which in turn will force people to seek alternative
places to visit.

Comments noted. This matter will be picked up by Transport
colleagues.

Comments noted.

Comments noted. RBC will seek transport contributions from
new development in order to offset the impact. A number of
schemes are identified within the Aldershot Town Access Plan.

Thames Water

It is important that the SPD considers the net increase in
wastewater/sewerage [and water] demand to serve proposed
developments and also any impact the development may have
off site further down the network, if no/low water pressure and
internal/external sewage flooding of property is to be avoided

Thames Water therefore recommend that developers engage
with them at the earliest opportunity to establish the following

. The developments demand for Sewage Treatment and

Comments noted. The policy framework in respect of water
management and SUDs is set out within the adopted Core
Strategy and will be incorporated into the emerging Local
Plan. Any new development proposals will be considered
against this wider policy framework.

63




9T1Z 9bed oed

Respondent

Response
network infrastructure both on and off site and can it be met

. The surface water drainage requirements and flood risk
of the development both on and off site and can it be met

To accord with the NPPF/NPPG and the above, text along the
lines of the following should be added to the SPD:

“Sewerage & Wastewater Infrastructure

It is essential that developers demonstrate that adequate
sewerage and wastewater treatment infrastructure capacity
exists both on and off the site to serve the development and
that it would not lead to problems for existing users. In some
circumstances this may make it necessary for developers to
carry out appropriate studies to ascertain whether the
proposed development will lead to overloading of existing
sewerage infrastructure. Where there is a capacity problem
and no improvements are programmed by the water company,
then the developer needs to contact the water company to
agree what improvements are required and how they will be
delivered and completed prior to any occupation of the
development.

Further information for Developers on sewerage infrastructure
can be found on Thames Water’s website at:
http://www.thameswater.co.uk/home/11425.htm

Or contact can be made with Thames Water Developer Services
By post at: Thames Water Developer Services, Reading
Mailroom, Rose Kiln Court, Rose Kiln Lane, Reading RG2 0BY;
By telephone on: 0845 850 2777;

Officer Comment

64


http://www.thameswater.co.uk/home/11425.htm

/T2 8bed »oed

Respondent

Response
Or by email: developer.services@thameswater.co.uk”

Limiting the opportunity for surface water entering the foul and
combined sewer networks is of critical importance to Thames
Water. Thames Water have advocated an approach to SuDS that
limits as far as possible the volume of and rate at which surface
water enters the public sewer system. By doing this, SuDS have
the potential to play an important role in helping to ensure the
sewerage network has the capacity to cater for population
growth and the effects of climate change.

SuDS not only help to mitigate flooding, they can also help to:
e improve water quality

provide opportunities for water efficiency

provide enhanced landscape and visual features

support wildlife

and provide amenity and recreational benefits.

With regard to surface water drainage, Thames Water request
that the following paragraph should be included in the Design
SPD: “It is the responsibility of a developer to make proper
provision for surface water drainage to ground, water courses
or surface water sewer. It must not be allowed to drain to the
foul sewer, as this is the major contributor to sewer flooding.”

Officer Comment

The Theatres Trust

The Trust welcomes the retention and refurbishment of Princes
Hall in this document and indeed recognises the potential for a

s106 agreement for redevelopment of the surrounding sites to

pay for the refurbishment of the Hall.

However, from our experience across the UK, having residential
use in close proximity to a theatre or performance venue

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. As the landowner, it would be in the

65


mailto:developer.services@thameswater.co.uk

8T¢ abed yoed

Respondent

Response

inevitably creates serious issues for both the venue and the new
residents. Where there are insufficient safeguards in place
(mainly via sound insulation and creative design), disputes can
emerge and the new residents can request a Noise Abatement
Notice be issued by the council on the theatre restricting its
activities and putting it at risk of closure.

In order to safeguard the theatre, this SPD should note that any
new development adjacent to Princes Hall must be designed and
constructed in such a way that the two uses will not conflict with
each other. We note that the stage door and delivery dock are
to the rear of the site and it will be essential that access and
parking for 16.5m long articulated delivery vehicles will be
maintained. This will also be a source of noise. The alternate
provision of car parking for the theatre will also need to be
addressed at this stage, as this will also affect the viability of the
long term Princes Hall.

Officer Comment

Council’s interest to ensure that appropriate safeguards are in
place to ensure that it can fulfil its commitment to providing a
successful theatre.

Comments noted. The proposals within the SPD reflect an
indicative scheme and should not be read as a detailed design.
The points raised would be considered at this later stage.

Columbia
Threadneedle
Investments

The draft Prospectus in its current form is concerning in a
number of areas and our client feels that these need to be
addressed before the document can reasonably be considered
capable of playing a useful role in the planning process. These
areas are:

i. engagement;

Our client was surprised not to have been given an opportunity
to engage with Allies and Morrison during the preparatory
stages of this draft Prospectus. Columbia Threadneedle
Investments are a major landowner and key commercial
stakeholder in the town centre, so we would have expected the
Council to consult with them as a matter of course before
publishing a document that promotes their asset for

Comments noted. Allies and Morrison to clarify if
Threadneedle was engaged.

66




6T¢ abed »oed

Respondent

Response
redevelopment.

ii. financial viability and deliverability

We are particularly interested to review the evidence justifying
development proposals for The Galleries, as we would like to
understand how the Council arrived at its decision to identify
the site as suitable for: (i) a significant amount of public realm,
such as a public square and an outdoor pedestrian link; and (ii) a
large leisure facility.

In order to engage fully with this consultation exercise, we need
to understand the decision-making and criteria used in support
of the draft Prospectus’ development options, and to what
extent considerations of land value and cost (particularly SANG
mitigation) have informed the criteria in use.

iii. site capacity.

The Galleries presents one of the best opportunities in the
Borough to deliver development that is highly sustainable in
planning terms. The site occupies a prominent brownfield
location in the heart of the town centre and it is important that
future options maximise the development potential of this
location in order to reduce pressure on other less sustainable
sites.

It follows that we do not agree that the site is only capable of
accommodating perhaps 54 or 121 units. It is unclear how this
capacity has been calculated; it appears to us that the this
guantum of development fails to make best use of this
previously-developed site in line with the requirements of the

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Montagu Evans provided the viability
evidence to support the proposals put forward within the
Prospectus. RBC is happy to meet with the landowner to
discuss this information.

Comments noted.

The capacity has been calculated taking into account general
assumptions such as standard unit size and circulation space.
Final capacity would be the subject of detailed design.

For such a major proposal, RBC would expect a scheme to be

67




02z abed oed

Respondent

Response

NPPF. In our view, both of the options cited in the draft
Prospectus significantly underplay the capacity of this site to
accommodate a major mixed use development. Our client has
drawn up several development schemes for The Galleries, all of
which have been subject to detailed feasibility and market
testing and indicate that over 200 units could be
accommodated. We have discussed these options previously
with the Council and would be willing to share this work with
the Council again.

There are potentially significant anomalies in the current
proposed layout of the development plans for The Galleries,
including the location of development on Little Wellington
Street. This land is not in our client’s ownership, it would require
a stopping up of the public highway, and it conflicts with the
configuration of The Arcade Shopping Centre’s northern
elevation.

At this stage, we remain concerned that the current draft
Prospectus promotes tightly-defined redevelopment options.
This approach potentially compromises the ability of our client
to achieve certainty regarding the range of acceptable planning
uses specific to its asset and would, on this basis, conflict with
the Council’s aspirations for early development of the site.

Officer Comment

of good design, taking into account details such as the
national prescribed space standards. Officers have noted
concerns in this respect with the options presented by the
landowner to date. In addition, given the prominence and
importance of the Galleries site within Aldershot Town
Centre, the proposed scheme should be viewed as more than
a capacity exercise and this is what has underpinned the
alternative approaches put forward within the Prospectus.

Comments noted. The proposals set out within the SPD are
indicative and will need to be the subject of detailed design at
a later stage.

Comments noted. The proposals outlined within the
Prospectus are indicative and RBC would welcome the
opportunity to further discuss proposals with the landowner.

Waverley Borough
Council

We have no comments to make at this stage.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

68




ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consultation report December 2015 PaCk Page 2%1






ALDERSHOT
TOWN CENTRE

Supplementary Planning Document

January 2016 Gl H%
J:;"':\ + ol - h% g v

¥ o>

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL






CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4
INTRODUCTION 6
A CLEAR POLICY CONTEXT 7

A PROUD PAST AND CONFIDENT FUTURE 8

A GOOD PLACE FOR INVESTMENT 10
THE VISION FOR ALDERSHOT 12
THEMES FOR THE VISION 16
A REVITALISED TOWN CENTRE OFFER 18
TOWN CENTRE LIVING 20
A FAMILY-FRIENDLY TOWN CENTRE 22
AN IMPROVED CULTURAL OFFER 26
INVESTING IN STREETS AND SPACES 32
AFFIRMING THE VICTORIAN HERITAGE 36
THE MASTERPLAN FOR ALDERSHOT 42
MAKING IT HAPPEN 60
APPENDIX 63

Pack Page 225



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Aldershot Prospectus Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD) sets out a strategy for regeneration
in Aldershot Town Centre for the coming 10-15
years. The SPD provides a framework to guide
future development in the town centre and identifies
investment opportunities to establish a clear set of
funding priorities for Rushmoor Borough Council.
The document supplements planning policy in the
Rushmoor Plan Core Strategy and will be a material
planning consideration for future planning applications
in the town centre.

Drawing on Aldershot's key assets and addressing
challenges faced by the town, the Prospectus

sets out a high level approach to the town's future
identity whilst drawing out specific development and
investment projects at key sites in the town.

A strategic vision statement provides the overarching
approach for future development and investment in
Aldershot town centre. A number of key themes are
then set out for the town centre, each with a review of
Aldershot's existing assets and a number of initiatives
and projects identified to help enhance the town's
offer. These are:

Pack Page 226

1. A revitalised town cenire offer

to support existing retail businesses in the town
centre and encourage others to open. This includes
the shopfront improvement initiative and suggestions
for bringing vacant units back into use. The Core
Strategy's retail hierarchy for the town centre is
supported.

2. Town centre living

to bring more residents into the town centre through
more effective use of vacant upper floors in existing
buildings and through appropriate new residential
development on key sites identified in the SPD

3. A family-friendly town centre

drawing on the town's great parks and open spaces
and its sports and leisure facilities. Opportunities to
enhance these facilities are identified and improving
accessibility - on foot, by bike, by public transport and
by car - is highlighted as a priority.

4. An improved cultural offer

sets out ideas for refurbishing and expanding Princes
Hall Theatre, in coordination with other development
in the town centre. This is coupled with suggestions
for raising the profile of town centre venues and
collaborating with artists to bring vacant buildings
back into use.

5. Investing in streets and spaces

highlights some of the investments made in the town
centre in recent years and identifies future funding
priorities. A plan is provided, identifying key spaces
and opportunities.

6. Affirming the Victorian heritage

showcases the fantastic historic built fabric in the
town centre and sets out the Council's intention to
promote, protect, enhance and preserve this. Key
buildings are identified, along with important views
and possible initiatives to celebrate Aldershot's
heritage.



In addition to the strategic themes identified for
Aldershot's long-term regeneration, a number of
development sites have been identified across the
town centre and a spatial framework developed in a

masterplan to guide future development at these sites.

These sites are considered to be transformational and
include:

¢ The Galleries shopping centre site;

e  Union Street East and the former Marks and
Spencer site; and

¢ Aldershot Rail and Bus Station.

Each of these sites has a dedicated section with

the key assets and challenges identified. High-level
example schemes demonstrate how development that
reflects the SPD principles could come forward and
information is provided on estimated areas by use,
delivery partners and likely project phasing.

These sites are supplemented by a number of
additional sites which are important but not
considered as critical to Aldershot's future. These
include:

* Princes Hall, the Police Station and Magistrates
Court sites;

*  Willow House on Victoria Road/Grosvenor Road;

¢ Birchett Road depot site;

* The car wash, Empire and Gala Bingo

* Hippodrome House and its surrounds

e Windsor Way vacant buildings

For these sites, high level schemes have been
developed and are reflected in the masterplan on
pages 42-43 but not all have dedicated sections.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Rushmoor Borough Council is not in a position to
deliver the proposals set out in the Prospectus alone
but will use its powers and resources in a proactive
way to enable development and investment in the
town.

A 'Making it happen' section at the end of the
document identifies potential funding sources,
delivery partners, viability considerations and the next
steps for delivering the schemes.

Pack Page 227



INTRODUCTION

The Aldershot Prospectus sets out a strategy for
regeneration based on investment and development
options to attract and support investment in Aldershot
Town Centre.

The Prospectus has been adopted as a Supplementary
Planning Document (SPD) and is a material planning
consideration for future planning applications in the
town centre. The SPD replaces the Aldershot Town
Centre SPD (2009) and further develops the Council's
strategic approach to regeneration.

Drawing on Aldershot's key assets and addressing
challenges faced by the town, the Prospectus

sets out a high level approach to the town's future
identity whilst drawing out specific development and
investment projects at key sites in the town.

The Prospectus is designed to identify investment and
development priorities and to supplement planning
policy in the Rushmoor Plan Core Strategy that exists
for development in the town.

Rushmoor Borough Council is not in a position to
deliver the proposals set out in the Prospectus alone
but will use its powers and resources in a proactive
way to enable development and investment in the
town.

Pack Page 228



A CLEAR POLICY

CONTEXT

National policy

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
outlines that planning should promote the vitality

of our main urban areas (para 17). Planning policies
should be positive, promote competitive town centre
environments and set out policies for the management
and growth of centres over the plan period (para 23).

Where town centres are in decline, local planning
authorities should plan positively for their future to
encourage economic activity and recognise that
residential development can play an important role in
ensuring the vitality of centres and set out policies to
encourage residential development on appropriate sites
(para 23).

Rushmoor Borough Council is developing its Local
Plan in line with these key policies, to plan positively
for Aldershot's future and provide clarity on investment
priorities.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Local policy

The key objective for Aldershot town centre is to
improve its vitality and viability. The policy approach
set out in policy SP3 of the Core Strategy is to permit
development that contributes to this objective.
Aldershot town centre is in a vulnerable state following
the withdrawal of a number of ‘High Street’ retailers
and therefore a proactive approach to the regeneration
of the town centre is required.

Development proposals will be permitted which
maintain the vitality and viability of Aldershot Town
Centre and contribute to the strategy of regenerating
the town centre.

Policy TC1 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review
(Saved Policies) seeks to maintain and enhance the
diversity, vitality and viability of Aldershot town
centre. The Council will seek to protect, and where
possible strengthen, the retail function of the centre
whilst facilitating or maintaining an appropriate level
of diversification.

Policy TC2 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review
(Saved Policies) identifies the ‘shopping core’ of
Aldershot Town Centre and seeks to protect the retail
function of these areas. In each frontage, the number
of non-A1 units will not exceed 30% and visually
prominent sites with an A1 use will be protected.

Policy TC3 of the Rushmoor Local Plan Review
(Saved Policies) outlines that the Council will support
proposals for residential uses above the ground floor
within the shopping cores, subject to other policies of
the plan.

In addition to these town centre specific policies the
Rushmoor Core Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan
Review (Saved Policies) set out a comprehensive range
of policies against which planning applications will be
assessed.

Pack Page 229



Union Street pre-1920 C )

Aldershot has a strong tradition of independent
shops and services, with market town status
dating back until at least 1607. The buzz of
activity was focused on Union Street and
Wellington Street, with shops below, homes
above, and advertising hoardings decorating
buildings' upper storeys.

By 1900, Aldershot was already
'home of the British military’,
and had benefited from a rail
station for 30 years. Both of these
developments led to the rapid
growth of the town. The garrison
town was located to the north of
Aldershot town centre, though
Victorian villas on generous plots
still existed close to this.

&,
P e

| Priny 3 -SATTLE --.Ih"-.l:
_ LIVERPOOL + LONBON
4|

—r

L wmme
Ve .

Flyer for Beatles Concert

Aldershot's military Tattoo dates back to 1894 and,
in its heyday of the 1920s and 1930s, attracted
500,000 visitors to see formation performances lit
by flame torches. Aldershot’s military history and
Victorian heritage continue to be celebrated through

ALDERSHOT
S 1TATTOO]

§-19-2CH 212223 JUKE 1954

GO BY PRIVATE BUS regular events, including the Military Festival and
APPLY ML PEPARTHMENT . i
e Victoria Day.

Aldershot Tattoo poster 1934

Charlie Chaplin makes

Population 875 Aldershot Garrison  Populafion his maiden stage Aldershot Tattoo  1he Beatles play in

developed exceeds 16,000  appearance in Aldershot  attracts 500,000 Aldershot

1850s 1861 1894 1920/30s 1961

Pack Page 230



CONFIDENT FUTURE

Aldershot has evolved throughout its history and
the town's evolution continues with the Wellesley
development to the north of the centre, providing
3,850 homes and two new primary schools. These
new homes will bring new life to the town and
help to support additional uses and activities in
the centre.

Refurbished Cambridge
Military Hospital

Improvements in the town centre are already
under way with new trees and paving in
Union Street, funded in part through the Local
Enterprise Partnership.

Aldershot is a diverse and growing town and the
Prospectus sets out the key investment priorities
for the town's future evolution - drawing on its
strengths and addressing challenges.

Development and investment opportunities have
been identified at a number of key locations in
the town centre which are set out from page 40

onwards.
Artist's impression of
new homes at Wellesley
Artist's impression of refurbished Princes Hall
Aldershot and Army releases All refired Gurkhas  Westgate opens  First Wellesley
Princes Hall  Farnborough districts 350ha of land for granted right to with the premiere  homes completed
opens merged as Rushmoor development seftle in UK of Skyfall
1973 1974 2000 2009 2012 2015

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 231



A GOOD PLACE
FOR INVESTMENT

Enterprise M3 LEP step-up status

The Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP), Enterprise
M3, covers the area from the M25 down to
Southampton and has identified Aldershot as a Step-
up Town for the sub-region.

A growth package has been developed, with
investment of £54-63 million in the town up until
2021, of which, £7.3-£8.3 million will be funded by the
LEP!. The package includes new town centre homes,
transformation of the rail station area, £3 million
investment in streets, spaces and shop fronts and
development at four key sites in Aldershot town centre.

The programme of investment will create an estimated
1,200-1,460 jobs in construction, service jobs and
other employment directly related to development.

1 ‘Working for a Smarter Future: The Enterprise M3 Delivery Plan - 2014-2020

Thares Yalley Bericahine
Local Entarprise
Partrership
Area

©

Swindon and Wiltshire

A changing demographic

The Borough of Rushmoor has a relatively young
population and great demand from young professionals
who want to move to the area. In addition, Aldershot
currently has a price differential with surrounding
areas that makes properties relatively affordable for a
desirable part of the country. These characteristics
result in an increasingly healthy market, with new two-
bedroom properties recently selling very quickly.

The development of 3,850 homes at Wellesley will
add 10,000 new residents to Aldershot over the next
few years, who fall into MOSAIC categories new
homemakers' and 'careers and kids', both with solid
incomes and spending power.

Rushmoor Borough Council's Strategic Housing Market
Assessment (SHMA) 2014 has identified a significant
requirement for new homes in the town above this, and
town centre living presents a key opportunity to meet
this housing need.

LONDON

o

Leal Enterpiiae

Fartneship Winchester Cioast ta Capital
Arga Lot Enterpiine
Patorsfield Pastiership
= Anea
Sowuth Danwiy
Matianal Park
Dorset Sauthampton
Local Enderprise
Partnership Lyndburst
Aigd =
Marwy Forwit P
v iyt al
Hationsd Park Loxch] Eaitmacti
Partrership
Area

Aldershot is located central to the Enterprise M3 Local Economic Partnership

RPack Page 232



A pro-active town centre approach

Like many towns across the UK, Aldershot has struggled
recently to maintain healthy town centre retail provision
in the face of stiff competition from online retailers and
retail parks. Closures have been due to retailers' national
strategies in many cases, but the Council is committed
to taking a pro-active approach to address vacancies
and bring life into the town centre through new homes
and activity, so that existing and new businesses are
supported.

Sites identified through the Prospectus demonstrate
potential capacity for new homes in the centre, along
with office space, leisure uses and retail space.

The Council will promote these development
opportunities and explore all delivery options for
bringing forward key sites in the town centre, including
seeking delivery partners and acquisition of sites
through compulsory purchase if alternative delivery
options do not prove possible.

85 to 89
75 to 84
65 to 74
60 to 64
45 to 59
30 to 44
2510 29
20 to 24
1810 19
16t0 17
15
10to 14
8to @
Sto7
Oto 4

mEngland
m South East

Rushmoor

0 5 10 15 20 25 30

Rushmoor Borough has a relatively young population with a particularly high proportion of 30-44 year olds (Source ONS 2011)

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 233



Well connected

Aldershot is well connected to both the rail and road

networks. The town is close to the A3 and M3, both

of which connect easily with the M25b, and the M4 is
also easily accessed.

Aldershot is also just an hour from the coast, with
Hayling Island, the Witterings and port towns within
easy reach.

The town is on the South West Trains network which
connects Aldershot to London Waterloo and Guildford
and nearby stations connect to North Camp, Reading,
and Gatwick.

London Waterloo: 53 minutes

A beautiful landscape setting

In addition to its parks - Manor Park, Municipal
Gardens, Princes Gardens and Aldershot Park -
Aldershot occupies an attractive location surrounded
by green and open space. Basingstoke Canal is
nearby; the Surrey Hills Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB) and the South Down's National Park
are to the south; and the Blackwater Valley runs
through the area from the north. The Council will seek
to strengthen links to these natural assets, and to
routes such as the North Downs Way, through better
signage and footpath widening and maintenance as
funding permits.

Camberley: 14 minutes
Guildford: 17 minutes
Reading: 23 minutes
London
Reading
o
3';’”‘:;'0'“ @ ,Camberley
Farnb6rough ® Woking |:|
Basingstoke @ AlderShot
) o _ .
Farnham Guildford

M3

Winchester =

SOUTH DOWNS

Southamp
ke

[ J
F])za,Ck Page 23 4 Portsmouth

Surrey Hills



Crossrail

/\T Heathrow London
] Waterloo

Wokingham

\ gl
/\»' Farnborough

Ash Val
North Cc::mpa s e Redhill

% Basingstoke %sh

Aldershot Guildford

Gatwick




A growing community

The new Wellesley development on part of the former
Aldershot Garrison site north of the town centre will
provide a mix of home sizes and tenures along with two
new primary schools, 110 ha of managed green space,
including Wellesley Woods, and the refurbishment of
six listed buildings. The first 228 homes are under
construction.

Pedestrian and cycle links between the new homes and
the town centre will be very important and the existing
routes on Hospital Hill, Middle Hill, Gun Hill and
Ordnance Road will be improved with soft landscaping
and signage.

A new home at Wellesley

ALDERSHOT TOWN CENTRE : Approx 15 minute walk

P]ﬁCk ink sa'og Agerﬂlé.rgn Centre from Wellesley

\
\
1
|
|
I
I
|
Al



b Nua sl A ot

THE VISION FOR
ALDERSHOT

We want to see the heart back in Aldershot.

The town will be a place where everyone is welcome and where
families want to be, focused around a thriving leisure and refail hub.
Easy to get to, park and get around, the town will become increasingly
vibrant with new residents from Wellesley joining Aldershot’s community,
and new high quality urban homes in the town centre.

Businesses, old and new, will thrive and support the town, and residents
will shop in a unique mix of independent and high street shops.
Aldershot's Victorian and military heritage will be celebrated and
profected. Families and friends of all ages will meet up in a choice of
coffee shops, cafés and restaurants, be active or relax in quality open
spaces. Aldershot will come alive with the buzz from Westgate and a
revitalised Princes Hall, new leisure facilities and the concerts, shows, e
arts and family events taking place across the tfown. -

Aldershot town centre will be a place local people want to be.

Frs

233

i




THEMES OF THE VISION

A revitalised town centre offer

Aldershot's retail core faces challenges and is not
expected to compete with regional towns nearby.
However, the town centre has an important

1ole to play in meeting the convenience and

local shopping needs of a growing and affluent
population. The Council will welcome new
retailers, support the specialist retailers that
provide an alternative offer to other centres, and
seek to bring homes, leisure and office uses into
the centre to support shops.

Town centre living

Aldershot has a significant requirement for new
homes in the area and demand from young
professionals who wish to move to the area.
Combined with the relatively affordable but
increasing values of homes, the area is 'up and
coming'. To meet this need, town centre living
will be promoted, with homes to cater for young
people starting out, families and older people
wishing to downsize.

A family-friendly town centre

Aldershot is appreciated by residents as a safe
and family-friendly town centre that serves its
community well. With the Wellesley development
under construction, the Council will seek to
enhance this offer with additional activities such
as town centre leisure facilities and new public
spaces. An afternoon in the centre can appeal to
all the family.

Rack Page 238



ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

An improved cultural offer

Westgate Leisure Park brought a new multiplex
cinema to Aldershot town centre, along with a
number of high street restaurant names, and has
been very successful since opening. The Council
is reviewing opportunities to add to this offer,
such as the transformation of Princes Hall Theatre
and the extension of the successful events
programme in the town.

Investing in streets and spaces

The Activation Aldershot programme has brought
a series of improvements to the town's streets
and spaces that help to connect Westgate Leisure
Park back to Union Street and to better connect
early phases of the Wellesley development into the
town centre at Court Road. Further investment
priorities are identified to create a central public
space for Aldershot and improve entrances into
the town centre.

Affirming the Victorian heritage

One of Aldershot's frequently overlooked assets

is the quality of the Victorian buildings which
remain throughout the town centre. As many
towns across the UK begin to look similar in
terms of character and shops, Aldershot can
maintain a distinctiveness and attractiveness that
reflects its heritage. The Council is committed

to maintaining and enhancing this heritage, to
complement new buildings in the town centre.

Pack Page 239



A REVITALISED
TOWN CENTRE OFFER

Whilst the retail environment has been challenging for
Aldershot in recent years, significant potential exists
for the town to provide the convenience and local
shopping offer that a growing young community with
decent income levels will require.

Rushmoor Borough Council recognises the need to
take action to support shops in the town centre. A
clear strategy is set out in local policy for consolidating
new retail in the centre of the town as part of the
primary retail frontage. The SPD masterplan sets out
opportunities for new homes and leisure uses in the
centre, both of which will support the town's shops
and add to the vitality and viability of the area.

The Council has taken the management of Aldershot
Market in-house, with the intention of improving the
offer and layout to maximise the market's appeal and
success and to reflect the town's diverse community.

l—-..'h ___,..-""-\l'( Gudie gon
f Y Cont®

A

The Activation Aldershot programme has secured LEP
funding for shop front improvements which is enabling
retailers to improve the profile and appearance of

their shops. The opportunity for this to be expanded
to include building fagade improvements for historic
buildings with shops at ground floor, is being explored.

Many shopping areas coordinate efforts to raise

their profile and improve the trading environment by
forming a Business Improvement District (BID) and the
Council will explore the feasibility of this for Aldershot.

With a growing community that will have solid
incomes and spending power, the potential for future
retail provision has been considered for Aldershot and
the masterplan demonstrates that retail space could
be accommodated, should it be required.

)
¢

Station Rogg—

g

o L T g iy i

: L . Vozan!

A2

Current land uses plan with retail in red. New retail will be focused in the core town centre, to consolidate the retail offer.

Rack Page 240



Example of shop front improvements Supporting independent businesses — —
EDGARJEROME
Aldershot has a decent range of ! bl g =7 A
independent businesses that will play an '
important role in meefing the convenience
needs of a growing population. LEP
funding has supported a shop-front
improvement scheme to help local
businesses improve the appearance and
profile of their shops.

Improving the trading environment

Rushmoor Borough Council has taken the
management of the market in-house fo
improve the offer and optimise the layout
so stalls have maximum appeal to the
local community and beyond.

The Council will explore the potential for
a Business Improvement District (BID) for
the town centre, to co-ordinate measures
fo raise the profile of the centre, hold
events and improve the environment.

Bringing vacant buildings into use

The Council will explore the purchase or
rental of vacant units in the town centre,
with a view to leasing these at affordable
rents fo support startups in the fown or
work with arfists and makers to use the
space for exhibitions and education uses.
Links with University of the Creative Arts
will be explored for this.

A clear retail hierarchy

Local policy sets out clear town centre
and shopping core boundaries designed
fo concentrate refailers in the core of the
town centre. Smaller and independent
shops in less central areas such as Station
Road will support the core refail.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 24;‘



TOWN CENTRE LIVING

Homes for all ages

The 1ole of town centres is changing, with shopping
habits diversifying and other uses filling the space

left behind by vacated shops. This shift is happening
at the same time as the need for new homes has
increased sharply, particularly in the south of England.

Aldershot has a number of suitable town centre

sites that can provide homes, ranging from those for
young people starting out to older people wishing

to downsize. In each case, high quality apartments
and mews houses in the town centre can provide
shops and services in easy reach, proximity to the rail
station and a sociable environment. Opportunity also
exists to make better use of vacant floors above shops
in the town centre. These spaces would have provided
homes when built, and refurbishment would make
better use of existing buildings, provide much needed
homes and support the town centre.

The SPD has identified potential for new homes in

the town centre from the key sites set out on pages
42-43. The Council is not able to bring all of these
homes forward itself but is committed to working with
developers to deliver new homes through an approach
that responds to Aldershot's historic character and
Victorian market town scale.

The Council would expect a number of car parking
spaces to be provided to match the scale of residential

development*. We also recognise the accessibility
of residential development in town centres within a StRReRg(:\0ev
short walking distance to local facilities and public
transport. Car ownership will still be required by most
residents and there is a high vacancy of town centre
car parking in the town, in particular the High Street
multi-storey car park (built in association with the
development of The Galleries) which could provide

the capacity needed to serve the new residential
development within the central part of the town. An
assessment of the parking needs for the retail capacity
of the town alongside an analysis of the parking

needs for the residential development will determine
the allocation from the existing town centre off street
parking stock.

*Rushmoor Car and Cycle Parking Standards SPD

New town centre family homes in Barking
Riverside

Back Page 242



pport

Homes above shops and new town centre

residential development can su

Aldershot's shops and services

I

Pack Page 243

,. |
U 5
- by
A Y
\[\ \
_...
___ ...
3 A \
L]
o \I\ \
= W
el \ ;
Wy T L
[\&\ \
B AL\
2\ N
,,,,



A FAMILY FRIENDLY
TOWN CENTRE




The Council is keen to encourage a focus for family
activities in the north of the town centre, around
Westgate and the Empire (former Kings Centre), the
former petrol station site and the Gala Bingo building.

The Kings Centre is being refurbished as a centre for
community events and activities. The former petrol
station site could be re-designed as an urban sports
park with climbing, parkour (free running, ground
based acrobatics) and other activities. In the longer
term, the Gala building could be a trampoline activity
centre or similar.

It would also be possible to re-establish the
historic connection from the High Street

to Union Street here, with replacement
smaller footprint shops and homes

above.

\

1
LT
LY

— =%
i
f; v
Tk

1
-.n.
-
-
[

LA




Sports and leisure

Aldershot has an impressive range of sports facilities
and activities, including the football club, dry ski-
slope, gymnastics centre and swimming pool. The
council will explore the potential for establishing
leisure facilities in the town centre to complement
these and improve accessibility.

Connections to the walking routes that surround the
town are to be improved in the longer term, with
better signage and communication to raise the profile
of these and path maintenance and enhancement, as
funding becomes available. The Wellesley Heritage
Trail is one example of this initiative and a green link
from Hospital Hill to the centre and from the canal and
training heaths to the centre will also be explored.

Aldershot has a range of high quality town parks,
including the Municipal Gardens, Princes Gardens
and Manor Park. These will all be safe-guarded and
improved, as and when funding becomes available.

oo Spect |

Accessibility

Providing a family-friendly town centre means
ensuring accessibility for all. Coordinated public
transport infrastructure with well-placed bus stops

at the station, on the High Street and at outlying
supermarkets is an important part of this. Pressing
for improvements to rail connections will also support
family living in the town by improving access to jobs

Cycling infrastructure is essential. This includes
providing sufficient cycle parking at the rail station
and in the town centre. It also includes providing
cycle lanes on key routes into the town centre so that
cycling can be a means of transport and not just a
leisure activity.

In addition to strong public transport and cycling
infrastructure, affordable and safe parking facilities are
needed. The Council's Parking Strategy covers these
issues and will continue to be reviewed.

The Council will seek to improve linkages to natural assets in and around Aldershot through wayfinding, and enhancement and maintenance of pathways

Rack Page 246



The great outdoors

Aldershot is surrounded by walking
and cycling routes, including those in

the Blackwater Valley and along the
Basingstoke Canal; and trails out to the
Surrey Hills AONB. Popular cycle routes
such as the Hogs Back are close to

hand.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Sports on the doorstep

Aldershot has an array of sports and
activiies including Aldershot Football
Club, the ski slope, gymnastics training
faciliies and the bowling alley. In
addition to this, the army sports pitches
mean that families are spoilt for choice
for weekend activities and opportunities
to learn new skills.

Pack Page 247



AN IMPROVED
CULTURAL OFFER

Aldershot town centre's cultural offer includes the
much-loved Princes Hall theatre and the popular West
End Centre in Queens Road. The town has a central
library, on the High Street, and a full programme of
street-based events throughout the year.

The SPD identifies opportunities for further enhancing
this cultural offer by extending the theatre provision
and raising the profile of other arts spaces.

o
ay

=

ah

g |
i

The proximity of the University of Creative Arts in
Farnham can be capitalised upon, and Rushmoor
Borough Council will explore the potential for vacant
units in the centre to be made available to artists for
exhibitions or educational uses.

In the longer term, the library could be brought

to a more central location, raising its profile and
accessibility as an important community anchor.

(Pt
LERY. &




T T e T S L R T N il P T el D Lk T

B ke ¢ L RS AT

A refurbished Princes Hall

Princes Hall theatre has served Aldershot
well for the last 40 years, with popular
shows appealing to a range of
audiences. With the anticipated closure
of the Police Station and potential for
new homes, the council is exploring the
opportunity for refurbishing the theatre so
that it can continue to serve audiences in
the future.

New restaurants and cafes

Westgate brought o multiplex cinema
to Aldershot town centre, along with @
number of high street name restaurants.
Potential also exists for new cafes - af
Princes Hall as part of a refurbishment,
and at key sites on Union Street and
Wellington Street.

Expanding the cultural and events
programme

Aldershot has a full programme of cultural
evenfs and actfivities af venues such as
the great West End Cenfre and on-streef.
These all celebrate the town's heritage,
its diversity and its talent and creativity.
The Council will continue to support and
promote events in the town centre that
animate public spaces and reflect the
fown's growing community.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 249



Opportunity exists to refurbish and extend Princes Hall at
the front, to provide a stronger relationship with Princes
Gardens and Westgate Leisure Park.

A single-storey front development at ground floor could
establish active frontage and a 'front door' to the street,
leading to the box office. Steps would be re-provided
leading up from Princes Way, with an accessible ramp from
Westgate. A new first floor terrace would provide space for
events and ceremonies overlooking Princes Gardens and a
cafe could be incorporated at ground or first floor.

~ Pack Page 250
r e ‘

e e



0

20)

......



AN ENGAGED COMMUNITY

Aldershot has an active and engaged
community that is responsible for a
range of cultural activities and events
in the town and also participates in
visioning the future of the town centre.

The Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus e
has been informed by well attended
events that generated a range of ideas
for improving the town centre and
surrounds.




"We need fo improve
the shop fronts - and
fo look up beyond
the shop fronts - it's
surprisingly good!"

"Aldershot's culture
and community are
what makes its identity”

"We should have a
Nepalese food festival

or Gurkha Day"

"Get rid of the

unattractive buildings in

n

the town centrel

Photos from an early consultation event held to
inform the Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 253



INVESTING IN STREETS
AND SPACES

Some of Aldershot's streets and spaces have been
enhanced during 2015 through the Activation Aldershot
programme following a successful LEP funding bid.
Union Street has been re-paved and trees replaced
with species more suitable for the space available.
Landscaping has also improved in the areas between
Westgate Leisure Park and Union Street, linking these
two important centres for Aldershot more effectively.
Lastly, interactive wayfinding totems have been put up
in the town centre, to help people find their way around
more easily.

Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD sets out further
improvements for streets and public spaces. These will
be planned, designed and delivered over the coming
years as funding becomes available. Projects include:

¢ Enhanced landscaping, rationalisation of the road
network as well as a new multi-storey car park will
improve the experience of arriving in Aldershot by
train and help to reduce the conflict between cars,
buses and pedestrians in the area.

e Accessibility improvements that link to the new
Wellesley development, pedestrian crossings on the
high street as well as potentially new and improved
pedestrian links between the High Street and
Union Street.

* The active review of possibilities for establishing
a public square in Aldershot town centre,
through the sites that have been identified in the
masterplan.

In the longer term, the Council will also explore
opportunities such as:

¢ Enhanced landscaping at key locations such as
in front of the library to provide a stronger visual
marker of the town centre from Wellington Avenue.

¢ Landscape enhancements to improve the setting
of Aldershot's most attractive historic buildings,
many of which are at crossroads on Victoria Road.

Rack Page 254



Improvements already under way

The Activation Aldershot progromme has
seen the transformation of Union Street,
with repaving and re-planting of trees.
The area between Westgate Leisure Park
and Union Street has been relandscaped
and wayfinding totems have been
installed throughout the town centre.

An enhanced setting for the rail
station

The station approach and car park area
are identified for enhanced landscaping
and improvements, so that visitors can
access the stafion more easily and the
aftractive historic building is given a more
appropriate sefting.

A new public space for Aldershot

Opportunity exists to establish a central
public events space for Aldershot,
through the development of key sites that
have been identified including the former
Galleries shopping centre and vacant
buildings on Union Street.

Pack Page 255



PUBLIC REALM INVESTMENT
OPPORTUNITIES

Improvements to Princes Way to
strengthen the links from Wellesley

eeccccccccccccccccce

A potential re-established link between
the ngh Street and Union Sfreet, with eeeeceeeeessssscsccccccccccscscsccrene
small shops fronfing the route

N
E\\\Nexo
W ENTRE

Longer term impro\/emenfs at key ....o00o....o.....o00o....o.....000..........000....3L' I
crossroads with historic buildings to
enhance the sefting of these

VICTORIA Voap '

- Improvements under way or complete

- Priority areas for landscape improvements

Other areas for landscape enhancements

Rack Page 256



The plan below sets out the improvements to Aldershot Town Centre's
public realm which are complete or under way as part of the LEP-funded

Activation Aldershot programme or highways works, along with further
opportunities that have been identified through the development of the

Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD

Improvements to Courf Road and

~ ' beyond to connect to Wellesley

L
An improved crossing af the car park

QD ;
.............................................. .o eesscsssscense
‘.o.oo....o.oo.o.oo.o......... cecee eees and enhanced |gnd5coping in front of
. the library

= I eecee

: o
il o
{ 8
Joa .errrr s
g the Galleries link, with potential for a
. .
5 small public space
K 3
N
| =t
Ef e
;-ﬂf_ '.ul:rc:-au, RoaAp
3
Z
s
B

An outdoor pedestrian link o replace

F i

Enhanced landscaping of the station
approach, bus station and parking

ared

Gorpay ROAL

Pack Page 257

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



AFFIRMING THE

VICTORIAN

With the role of UK town centres shifting away from
a retail focus towards a leisure, the character and
environment within towns and cities is becoming
increasingly important. People are naturally drawn to
places which are attractive and provide a comfortable
environment in which to spend free time.

Aldershot is well placed for this trend, with a collection
of often overlooked historic buildings, including a
clutch of Grade II Listed buildings and the Grade II*
Listed Wesley Chambers church building and other
buildings of local importance.

Many of the finer historic buildings in the town centre
are located at crossroads and the Council will seek to

Victoria Road

HERITAGE

enhance the public realm at these points to reveal the
attractive heritage, with improvements being made as
funding becomes available. Key locations for this are
illustrated indicatively in the plan below.

Shop front improvements are being implemented for
historic buildings on key streets such as Station Road
and Union Street, with funding successfully secured
from the Enterprise M3 LEP through the Activation
Aldershot programme. Many of these buildings
would also benefit from up-lighting in the evenings to
highlight their architectural qualities.

LW

n. N
»

“"

|

a%a

A broad indication of clusters of historically significant buildings at crossroads. Willow House on Victoria Road/Grosvenor Road is not historic but occupies a
prominent location - redevelopment at this site is supported, to complete the setting of the three listed buildings.

composite

Pack ﬁ"age

ﬁn%:\ghowing historic building facades along Wellington Street



ALDERSHOT TOW




Aldershot's rapid growth as a Victorian
Military town has left the fown with @
legacy of gridded streets populated
by confident and striking Victorian
buildings. These use a mix of materials
including sfone and yellow stock brick
among the more common soft reds. This
confident character continued into the
early twenfieth century in Edwardion and
early inferwar buildings, maintaining a
consistent attractive character. Many of
the best buildings occupy corner sites
and are visible as landmarks, making
them especially important.

Rack Page 260



PROMOTING, PROTECTING,
ENHANCING AND PRESERVING

Aldershot has a number of listed and locally listed are made sensitively. Grosvenor Road has been

buildings, identified in red and orange in the plan identified as a priority for ensuring interventions do

below. In addition to these individual historic not undermine the historic integrity of buildings and

buildings, many buildings in the town centre have streets.

group value, such as the row of historic buildings on

the High Street. The Council will also more actively promote
Aldershot's historic assets through the development of

The Council will support preservation and a heritage route that takes in the town's Victorian and

enhancement of these buildings proportionate to their military heritage and coordinates with the planned

heritage significance and will seek to ensure that any Wellesley Heritage Trail.

conversions or refurbishment of historic buildings

ANy

L

=

£
¥
WETON houg

[ -‘

:
2
e

Lane T

-

§ 2
3 o ]
f -]
1 ALDERSHOT WEST CA _._,,d--fl\ H)

|
= bt
'I_ y

| CARGATE AVEHAIE £ '
-
Ly r

— |
Plan indicating Aldershot town centre's conservation areas, statutorily listed buildings, locally listed buildings and non-designated heritage assets

POEG Nay

Heritage
Grode 2°

Grade 2
Lecally listed

Comservation areg

i 1|

Buildings with group valve

Cither buldings with
historic qualy

Pack Page 261

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



Rack Page 262



PRESERVING AND ENHANCING VIEWS

Not all views in the town centre are positive. Key

Aldershot has retained a strong relationship between

the town centre and the surrounding landscape, so vehicular routes into the centre are currently poor and

that from a number of key points within the town focus will be given to improving these in the future,

centre, framed views exist of green space in the including review of any planning applications with
this objective in mind.

distance. Within the town centre there are also a
number of views to key buildings such as the view
along Victoria Road to Wesley Chambers former
church building. Some views of importance are shown
below. The Council will seek to retain these views
when considering future development opportunities.

Sl gy

ilingpg,, p—

if sein 3RRETT

£\
5 1 5\ . %6' iq
= — _;-g _".,-d"'""m iﬁ_ ig 8.
S g ~ :3
5.
_3’__ el . f %
P "4 I i — s N
.;\FE'Q'.D 1':' j! é,r =T S =
e L i z
% | g
% |
% {
‘EL [l 7.

Plan indicating some of Aldershot town centre's significant views

Key views

Alexandra Road looking west to landscape

Barrack Road looking north to landscape

Queen's Road looking west to St Joseph's Church
Grosvenor Road looking south fo landscape

Victoria Road looking west to Wesley Chambers
Wellington Street looking north to the Gala building
Gordon Road looking south to landscape

Station Road looking north to the Post office and landscape

Victoria Road looking east to landscape

VO NO AW —

View of Wesley Chambers east along Victoria Road

Pack Page 263

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



THE MASTERPLAN
FOR ALDERSHOT

establish new street frontage ceee NN, ....H

Former Kings Centre: esfablished
as The Empire community, outdoor
play and events venue

Princes Hall area: ’
Remodelling of the Princes Hall % E ’ 2 “‘
with infill residential development o l' - ~ Wnur"r:lu:u.‘-

[ n
oooooooooooooooto--- . 'o.....-oo

HIGH STREET

Union Street: Regeneration of the
Union STreeT blOCkWITh new reTOi| Ond .o.co.0..o..ooo..o..ooo.o-..o...o..co..oc.t...o..o...oo.“ooo.o-..o * =l

residential development

3
Marks and Spencer bui|ding: .o.0o.0..o0..oo..oo..o...oo..o...oo.oo& .oooo-oc.omoooaouoooooo
Potential re-use or redevelopment of s ot o gl
the former Marks & Spencer building ”“. = ‘il »s?
WE;}“;?

Vicforia Road: Cornerinﬂ” -o--ooo-.--o--o--oo-oo-.-----.oo '..h
VICTORIA BOaD .

development opportunity
1\ g .
™
iy
oui‘-“" Ro 'l-““ )
Birchett Road: Redevelopment of the .. ..veeees \ﬁ“

'. it' 3

s &,
2 S
° - D 3

former warehouse as a residential site

Key public spaces for investment

Public realm improvements |. . *
5 o

Car park development

Proposed development

Potential refurbished existing buildings
listed buildings

Other historic buildings

Rack Page 264



The plan below sets out development and refurbishment opportunities identified through the
Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD. These vary in scale and the timeframe in which they
are likely to come forward. However, Rushmoor Borough Council has identified a number of

priority sites, which are:

The Galleries site linking Wellington Street with the High Street car park
The Union Street group of building that also front Wellington Street and the High Street

The Rail Station area, including improved access and parking
The area around Princes Hall, including refurbishment of the theatre

1.

2.
3.
4.

Galleries site: Refail and residential
redevelopment of the Galleries site

1]

0 000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000000

-
P
g
g with the opfion to include new leisure
- facilities
o
£
o
2
a
-3
B
VIcTomig ROAD
1 Hippodrome House: Options
for refurbishment and possible infill

development on Victoria Road

seseees  Windsor Way: Corner infill
development opportunity

- il

Rail Station: Proposals for a new

&

3

H [N

aT o pﬂ

“g ) 'm. 0000000000000 0000000000000000000000 o . OS¢

g 2 a.' : station square, providing better
@n o arrangements for buses, taxis and

parking

Pack Page 265

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



The Galleries

The Galleries has remained almost vacant for many
years now and its redevelopment is a high priority

for the Council. The centre was built in the 1990s,

but a major redevelopment project being planned in
2007 was a victim of the recession and so the site has
remained unoccupied.

{

The site is unusual as the main internal arcade is at
an upper level, connected to the Wellington Centre via
a bridge over Wellington Street and with a cascade of oy
escalators required to return shoppers to street level =
on to the High Street. This configuration makes it

difficult to redevelop as a gradual, organic process and ‘ f

is likely to require a more comprehensive approach.

The bridge itself is a major imposition on Wellington
Street. It blocks views to the Art Deco cinema

building at the northern end of the street and to the . ‘ ‘ .
late Victorian bank on the corner of Victoria Road.

The street level is also artificially lowered to create
headroom on the street, creating a gloomy space.
The opportunity created by the removal of the

bridge would be a new street-level entrance into the
Wellington Centre facing across Wellington Street to
new shops around a public space created on the site
of the Galleries. This would create a street-level route
through to the High Street car park and deliver new
town centre housing above shops.

Option 1

The eastern part of the site provides the opportunity
for a larger use fronting onto the new square. This
could provide a suitable location for new retail
development and new residential development.
Potential also exits for a commercial leisure centre
within new development. Visitors would be able to
make use of the existing car parking capacity in the
High Street car park and the facility would act as a
non-retail draw for the town centre, with potential to
attract people seven days a week.

[
The Arcade block to the south of the Galleries could be Option 2 - dotted red area shows additional commercial/leisure space
usefully redeveloped or remodelled to take advantage
of the new public space and create additional active
frontage. If this option is not pursued then a new slim
block of development should be provided to ensure

Public realm improvements

Key public spaces for investment

that active frontages are created onto the square. . Proposed development
Cycle parking should be included in any scheme here. . listed buildings
Top: Option for the Galleries site with retail and town centre uses Other historic bUi|dings
fronting the pedestrian connection and residential above

Bottom: A retail and residential scheme that includes a commercial
leisure centre at ground floor

Rack Page 266



Key information and delivery approach

Redevelopment of vacant Galleries shopping mall for either:

Project Description Option 1: As mixed use retail/active town centre uses/residential scheme

Option 2: As above but with commercial leisure space

Option 1 — 3,800 sgm retail, 12,800 sgm gross residential (est. 130 units).
Option 2 — 950 sgm commercial leisure, 3,150 sqm retail; 12,800 sgqm gross
residential (est. 130 units).

Potential uses

Current Uses Vacant shopping mall
Ownership Private ownership (Threadneedle)
Delivery Approach e Private sector led delivery

e Public sector led developer procurement

Delivery Option 1: 0-5 years

Timeframes . ,
Phasing Option 2: 0-5 years

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 267



Existing view of Wellington Street towards the Gala Bingo building

Rack Page 268



Potential improvement to Wellington Street with redevelopment of the Galleries site

Y

.-'—\\\;/ —,
) B
ol E
R = =
= ﬂ.‘ = > —
4
——
7

S

Ve jL ( I ——— =
f;_r;%_:_l%i; 0 .
B 4 VAT : NN
O T T T T N
/é ~ / / / g I \ | EL - \\\\ - . \x i
[/ ] .
= 77 T TTTI VNN NN

The removal of the
bridge would allow
the development of a
new enfrance fo the

Wellington Centre fronting

onfo the new square

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Views could be
opened up in both
directions, revealing
historic buildings

New development on
The Galleries site should
include a mix of shops,
active fown cenfre uses
and homes, and could
also provide a site for
new leisure facilities

Pack Page 269



Union Street and former Marks and Spencer building

The eastern end of Union Street contains a number of

large buildings which have proved difficult to adapt

and have gradually fallen into low value use or vacancy '

over the last few years. The sloping site and the need W STREET
to have frontages onto both Union Street and the High

Street means that they are not best suited to modern

retail requirements. g

=i
) . ) z
Another important aspect of the Union Street block is l T’
that it contains several attractive historic buildings. o
Retaining and refurbishing these to bring them back -%‘
into active use is an important part of the Council's O
preferred strategy for Aldershot's future. Options ﬂ '{'ﬁ
exist to refurbish the buildings in their current #ﬁ # ';
configuration, or to retain the facades and as much of e 1
the original buildings as possible, whilst reconfiguring
the site to create modern retail spaces and residences.

Option 1
Marks & Spencer’s former building is a large modern
structure which is located in the middle of the block.
In the shorter term it is hoped that the building will be
re-occupied. In the longer term it would be difficult to

TREET

re-model for residential use in its current form, but its HS
scale does provide an opportunity to open up a new

pedestrian route through the block, providing a direct l
link from High Street to the Wellington Centre and

creating the kinds of buildings which would be better

suited to smaller scale retail or business and town I

centre living.

Active ground floor town centre uses would be
expected at these sites and potential exists to create mﬂ
a town square as part of a scheme which would need '1‘0“
to be well-defined and enclosed by active frontages.

The two sites could be brought forward as a single

development project. Option 2

Public realm improvements

Key public spaces for investment

. Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

. Listed buildings

. Other historic buildings

Rack Page 270



Key information and delivery approach

Two significant development/refurbishment opportunities for mixed retail,
active town centre uses, leisure and residential purposes. Retail, leisure,
service, cafe, restaurant or other active town centre use at ground floor with
residential on upper floors. These could come forward as one scheme.

Project Description

Union Street East (54-62).
1. Refurbishment of retail at ground floor with office/storage above
2. Mixed retail/other active town centre uses/leisure with residential above

Former Marks & Spencer. Two options considered:

1. Re-configuration/reuse of retail space with office/storage space above
2. Redevelopment of building with ground floor active town centre use and
residential above

Potential uses Union Street East:

Option 1: 500 sgm residential (est 6 units); 2,600 sgm retail/leisure space
refurbished; 4,400 sgqm office/storage space

Option 2: 4,600 sgm residential (est. 50 units); 2,600 sgqm retail/active town
centre use/leisure service

Former M&S:

Option 1: 2,300 sgm reconfigured retail and 2,200 sgqm office/storage above
Option 2: 1,500 sgm retail/town centre uses; 3,700 sgm residential (est 40
units) above

Current Uses Union Street East — Unit retail, with significant vacancies

Former M&S — Retail/cafe (Department/Variety Store)

Union Street East - complex privately owned multi-owned block with sub

Ownership interests.
Marks & Spencer: private ownership.
I h Union Street East: Public sector led developer partner procurement
Delivery Approac Former M&S site: Private sector developer
Deliv.ery Timeframes / Union Street East — 0-5 years
Phasing

Marks & Spencer — 0-2 years (assuming reuse of building)

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 2741



The Rail Station

Aldershot station is an attractive Victorian building,
strongly symmetrical except for later additions and
canopies. The area around the railway station,
including the parking, bus stands and highway
environment does little to enhance the setting of the
building, presenting the opportunity for sensitive infill
and remodelled road structure to create a high quality
environment.

The existing accessibility in the area is complex,
including buses, taxis, cyclists, pedestrians, pick

up and set down for private cars, and access to the
station for parking. The aim of the proposals is to
create a simpler, clearer environment to minimise the
impact of vehicle movements and to establish a more
legible and comfortable approach to the station for
pedestrians.

A funding bid has been submitted to the Enterprise
M3 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) by Rushmoor
Borough Council in partnership with Network Rail,
South West Trains, Stagecoach, Hampshire County
Council plus private landowners. The proposals within
the bid include a new area for taxis and buses directly
in front of the station, framed by new buildings on
either side. The proposal involves significant changes
to the existing forecourt of the railway station, by

way of public realm improvements, that will result

in a pedestrian friendly environment supported

by a realigned public transport interchange that
incorporates buses, taxis, cycling and a ‘kiss and drop’
facility and the provision of a new decked car park to
offset the loss of existing car parking spaces.
Additional cycle parking should be included in any Top: Proposals for a new station square, including revised bus and taxi
landscaping designs, to maximise sustainable links provision and new decked car park

to the rail station and minimise congestion at peak
commuting times.

Bottom: The existing Victorian Station building

Any tree planting included in landscaping for a
scheme at the rail station should not mask the view of

Public realm improvements
the historic station building. P

C k devel t
Nearby redundant sites on Windsor Way could be ar park aevelopmen

brought forward in connection with the station area
scheme, including replacement of Penmark House and
refurbishment of the adjacent historic building.

Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

. Listed buildings

Rack Page 272



Key information and delivery approach

Proiet.:t . A number of projects focussing on improvements to the train and bus
Description station, comprising:

Refurbishment of the train station and associated facilities.

Decked car park

Reconfiguration of the public transport interchange and release of existing
bus station site for residential/retail development

Project Outputs car park

2,800 sgm gross residential (est. 28 units);
small scale/ancillary retail or service uses

Current Uses Train and bus stations and associated facilities

Ownership Principally in ownership of Network Rail (station and car park) and
Stagecoach (bus station)

Relivery h Public Sector led (Network Rail/Train Operating Company/South West
pproac Trains) contractor procurement

Public Sector led (Network Rail/Train Operating Company/South West
Trains) contractor procurement

Private sector developer

thvery Assumes to be delivered as separate phases:
Timeframes /

Phasin
9 Train station refurbishment: 0-5 years

Decked car park: 0-5 years
Reconfigured public transport interchange: 0-5 years
Redevelopment of bus station: 0-5 years

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 2753



Princes Hall and Police Station

The Princes Hall, Police Station and Magistrates Court
were part of a suite of civic buildings all developed
in the early 1970s. The Hall is an important part
of Aldershot's community and cultural life. With
development coming forward, potential exists to
invest in the existing building to refurbish it, creating
an impressive new entrance terrace overlooking
Princes Gardens and to improve the ground floor of
the building. The new entrance approach will help
the building to integrate better with the successful
Westgate Leisure Park as part of Aldershot’s growing
evening economy. Refurbishment also presents the
opportunity to explore whether the theatre could be
expanded to help attract touring shows to the town.

The Police Station is anticipated to close as part of a

wider strategy for policing. However the Magistrates
Court is expected to remain in use so there is an
opportunity to enhance and retain the Police Station
for public sector community benefit. In the event of
the relocation of the Magistrates Court, the site could
have potential for residential redevelopment.

Public realm improvements

. Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

. Listed buildings

Rack Page 274

y

| hqm

H
i
:'
:
?
i
i
?

o
‘ Ty L

Snnag,
e L LT
'"‘""""‘-t-. =
LT
SLETY

Top: Development plan to replace the Magistrates Court and

remodel Princes Hall

Bottom: Proposals for the remodelling of the Princes Hall



Key information and delivery approach

Project Description Refurbishment and investment in Princes Hall theatre.

Following the closure of the Police Station, retain the building for public
sector community benefit.

In the longer term, if the Magistrates Court was relocated, there could
be a separate redevelopment of the Court and Police Station.

Potential uses Princes Hall — 3,900 sqm refurbished theatre
900 sgm gross residential (est. 100 units)

Current Uses Theatre, police station and magistrates court.

Ownership

All sites in public ownership (Council, Police, Magistrates)

ngrarching Princes Hall — Public Sector led contractor procurement
De||very Approach Police — Private Sector developer

Magistrates — Private Sector developer

Each development plot is expected to be delivered separately

Delivery Time

. Princes Hall: 0-5 years
frames / Phasing 4

Police Station and Magistrates : 5-10 years

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 2755



Birchett Road

The former warehouse on the north side of Birchett
Road between Frederick Street and Heathland Street
provides the opportunity for town centre living, and
planning permission for residential redevelopment has
previously been granted on this site.

VICTORIA Roap

Development would restore active frontage to the
street, which is particularly important given the
site's prominent location on a slight bend in the road,
making it prominent in views from both east and
west.

The four-storey listed terrace of Culdrose House to the
west provides some guidance on scale, but buildings
to the south and east are lower. Frequent front doors
onto the street will be an important part of helping a
new building to integrate with the prevailing Victorian
character of the area.

Opportunity might exist as part of a scheme here
to improve the character of Frederick Street with

landscaping works and possibly by establishing a
shared surface.

Public realm improvements

Key public spaces for investment

. Proposed development

. Listed buildings

Top: Proposals for new development on Birchett Road

Middle: The existing warehouse building

Bottom: How new homes could look at the site

RPack Page 276



Key information and delivery approach

Project Description Development opportunity with strong residential potential on the north
side of Birchett Road. Planning permission has been granted previously
for a scheme but so far no development has been progressed.

Potential uses 5,200 sgqm gross residential (est. 55 units)

Current Uses Vacant warehouse

Ownership Private ownership
Delivery Approach Private sector developer
Delivery Time Short term 0-5 years

frames / Phasing

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 2757



High Street

The old cinemas on the High Street, now the King's
Centre and Gala Bingo, are two of Aldershot’s largest
and most distinctive buildings, each with their own
unique character. The Council would encourage
schemes which promote their retention and re-use,
given their important contribution to the character of
Aldershot town centre, provided suitable uses can be
identified.

The King's Centre was recently acquired by a private
investor and has been refurbished and given a new

lease of life as an events venue. Its accessible location .
and large internal space makes it ideal for this use and
retains the spirit of the original design for the building

as a place of assembly.

STREET

The Gala Bingo building remains in current use, and
forms an important leisure use as part of Aldershot’s |
leisure economy. If the building is vacated in the ;
longer term the Council would be keen to see it
retained in its current form or some other leisure use.
The large volumes of the building mean that it could
be suitable for a number of indoor sports or leisure
activities, particular modern pursuits such as free
running / parkour or skateboarding or alternatively as
a soft play centre.

The space between the buildings is an important site

in itself. There are opportunities to create elements of — j
infill development which could support the use of the Y E E]
adjoining buildings. The area could also provide useful ;_’_ﬁf i

=

outdoor activity/play space including elements such
as bouldering/climbing walls using a lightweight roof
to provide shelter from the elements.

11| | 00

=

LY

Public realm improvements &

Key public spaces for investment

Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

Bottom: Proposals for the new use of the former Empire Cinema as a
. Listed buildings community events space

Left: Options for urban sports which could feature in the project

RPack Page 278



Key information and delivery approach

Project Description Site comprising three separate plots:

King’s Centre - Reuse and refurbishment for events

Car Wash — A leisure use will be sought in the first instance.
If this proves unviable then residential infill will be considered
Gala Bingo - Longer term alternative leisure uses.

Potential uses King’s Centre — 3,900 sqm refurbished space (983 sqm over 4 floors)
Car Wash — 780 sgm leisure
Gala Bingo — 5,200 sgm refurbished space (1297 sgqm over 4 floors)

Current Uses King’s Centre — community/events space
Other plot uses as per description

Ownership All sites in private ownership.

Delivery Approach All sites expected to be private sector led delivery, with each site
delivered separately.

Delivery Time frames King's Centre — 0-1 years

/ Phasmg Car Wash — 0-5 years

Gala Bingo — 10-15 years +

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 2759



Hippodrome House area

The Victoria Road block bounded by Gordon Road,
Birchett Road and Station Road has several distinct
aspects to its character. Along the Victoria Road
frontage there are good historic buildings, separated
by a postwar infill development. Gordon House on the
south-west corner of the block is being refurbished
and is to be converted to residential development.

Hippodrome House on the south eastern corner of the E
block was identified in the consultation workshops as ;
one of the buildings which people most wish to see ?

improved, although the ground floor frontage forms E 4

part of the vibrant retail scene on Station Road.

An element of active frontage can be created

onto Birchett Road with limited infill residential
development, retaining but screening the car park to
improve the street scene. This scheme would involve
the refurbishment and re-cladding of Hippodrome
House to improve the existing office space and to
enhance the arrival to the town centre from the
station.

Public realm improvements
Key public spaces for investment

Proposed development

. Potential refurbished existing buildings

. Listed buildings

Other historic buildings

Middle: Infill and refurbishment options for the Victoria Road
block

Bottom: Example of a recent building remodelling illustrating a
potential approach to Hippodrome House

Rack Page 280



Key information and delivery approach

Project Description Redevelopment/refurbishment of blocks fronting Birchett Road
Infill site plus refurbishment of Hippodrome House

Project Outputs 1,870 sgm gross new residential (est. 18 units) plus 4,840 refurbished/
converted space for residential (est. 47 units); 1,200 sqm retail/leisure.

Current Uses Mixed: parking, retail, offices, leisure

Ownership Two key private owners, with sub interests

Delivery Approach Private Sector delivery

Delivery Hippodrome House refurbishment (0-2 years); Birchett Road infill
Timeframes / (0-5 years)
Phasing v

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 28.71






MAKING IT HAPPEN

Overview

The Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD contains
a series of physical (development) projects that will
shape the centre over the next 15-20 years and
beyond. It is intended to be visionary, yet flexible to
ensure that it can meet changes in circumstances,
especially economic and property related.

Project Priorities

While an holistic approach to renewing Aldershot
town centre should be at the heart of any over arching
strategy, inevitably not all projects will progress at

the same time. Scarce resources may mean too that
certain, more strategic sites in Aldershot town centre
may be prioritised for investment and change.
Priorities for the town centre are considered to be:

e Union Street
e The Galleries
e Aldershot Rail and Bus Station

The enabling of these developments is likely to have
the greatest physical positive impact on renewing
Aldershot town centre, partly due to their due to
their scale and — particularly for Union Street and the
Galleries — their highly central location.

Project Linkages

There are also clear town centre project linkages —
some are physical in nature; others are enabling and
sustaining. They include:

* Bringing forward significant new residential
accommodation, which in turn will support retail
and other leisure activities.

e Improving Aldershot Rail and Bus Station, so the
perception of Aldershot to new residents is one of
an attractive and accessible centre.

* Redevelopment of the Galleries and improvement
to the Wellington Centre entrance through
removal of the connecting bridge

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Where appropriate, rationalising retail and service
activity whilst at the same time improving available
retail stock so it is more attractive to potential
operators, thus increasing the prospects of enticing
new businesses to the town. In part, delivering
change at Union Street and the Galleries would help
support this aim.

Delivery mechanisms

There is unlikely to be a one size fits all delivery
mechanism for projects — the choice should reflect the
size, scale and nature of the individual masterplan
initiatives. In the description of individual masterplan
projects, broad delivery approaches are suggested
together with key delivery actions. Delivery
mechanisms include:

e  Public sector led
*  Private Sector led
e Public Private partnerships

Asset Backed Vehicles (LABVs) may too have a

role to play if of a sufficient size to be attractive.
Asset backed vehicles are a delivery mechanism,
with significant potential to lever in private sector
funding usually across multi- sites in the form of a
joint venture. In a LABYV, a local authority typically
contributes the land, and a private firm the skills and
finance to develop out assets.

Local Delivery Companies are too becoming a more
common feature of the regeneration agenda, with
local authorities setting up arms’ length companies
to take a locally oriented commercial approach to
realising schemes — again with the ability to reinvest
profit toward other developments. Such companies
can manage assets, develop land and property by
themselves or through joint ventures with developers,
landowners, local authorities and other public sector
bodies.

Pack Page 283



The Council's role

There is a strong case (and probably necessity) for
considerable strategic intervention by the Council to
achieve the aims of the masterplan. Town centres
are challenging development environments — and
more so with the demise of the High Street retail
market. Arguably, many town centres are undergoing
a revolution, rather than evolution. This is likely to be
far more crucial for Aldershot town centre where some
sites are particularly complex — and therefore the role
of the Council in facilitating delivery is likely to be
greater, in part through de-risking opportunities (e.g.
site assembly, securing SANGS and funding).

Rushmoor Borough Council can only grant planning
permission for new residential development where
there would be no likelihood of significant impact on
the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area
(SPA). SANGs provide alternative public recreation
areas and thus prevent an increase in visitor pressure
on the SPA. Where new residential development is
proposed in the masterplan, this must be offset by
having sufficient SANG capacity.

The Council currently has a supply of SANGS land to
offset net new residential development in the Borough,
though the supply will need to be increased if a
substantial amount of new residential development is
to come forward. Securing more SANGS is a critical
delivery action for the masterplan — an action which
the Council is already progressing. The Council is
committed to identifying SANGS sites to facilitate
residential development.

The Rushmoor Core Strategy (adopted 2011)

provides detailed policy guidance (policy CP13) on
mitigation measures, comprising SANG land and also
contributions towards Strategic Access Management
and Monitoring measures.

Typically, Council’'s land ownership has been a driver
for change in town centres. A clear example of this
is Westgate development. Presently, however, the

Pack Page 284

Council's ownership in the key intervention areas in
Aldershot is limited, so an over arching strategy the
Council look to employ is the acquisition of strategic
interests in the town.

Other delivery agencies

While the Council is expected to play a leading role
in delivering the masterplan, the expectation is that
it will need the active involvement of developers and
other agencies — both public and private. A range

of agencies will need to be involved with enabling,
funding and delivering the projects. This could
include, among others:

¢ MS3LEP

¢ Hampshire County Council

e Landowners

e Developers

¢ Businesses

e Utility Suppliers

e Historic England

¢ Higher Education establishments

* Private & Philanthropic Sponsors

* Registered Providers

¢ Community organisations

¢  Possible Business Improvement District (BID)

¢ Hampshire Chamber of Commerce

e Other public sector organisations - including the
Police and NHS

¢ Transport bodies - such as Network Rail and bus
operators

Other organisations may also be identified — or be
founded during the lifetime of the masterplan — which
can assist in the delivery of projects.

Viability and funding the masterplan’s
delivery

The Council has tested the viability of the
development schemes in the masterplan based on
the identified areas of development and types of uses.



The outputs of this exercise show that many of the
developments have the potential to be viable now,
whilst others may have a longer term delivery horizon
- as would be expected in a Prospectus which guides
development over 10-15 years and beyond.

However, not all of the proposals contained in the
masterplan are commercial in nature and some may
require gap funding. Project delivery is fully expected
to be secured using a combination of public and
private sector investment, with the balance of need for
funding varying depending on the type, nature, cost
and commercial viability of the project.

Funding pots and mechanisms that might be
expected to contribute to financially supporting
masterplan project delivery include:

e LEP Funds

¢  Prudential Borrowing

e CIL / S106 Agreements / developer contributions

* Rolling Investment Funds

¢ Rushmoor and Hampshire Councils’ Capital
Programme

e Lottery Funding

e Transport Funds

Potential Funding Options

Unlocking funding may require developing a wider
business case, and identifying both financial and
value added benefits that can be accrued. This too
will require the private and public sector to work
closely together to promote individual opportunity
sites and initiatives. The expectation too is that
regeneration bodies such as M3 LEP and the HCA
could have a crucial role.

These bodies are one of the key sources of central
government grants for development projects, with a
particular emphasis at present on driving increased
housing delivery. Aldershot is already identified by
M3 LEP as a Step Up town, indicating that it is a

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

priority centre for investment. M3 LEP offers project
specific funds — for example, through the Growing
Enterprise Fund or the Growth Deal. Ad hoc funds
are also often administered through this body, such
as access to preferential loan rates or co-ordinating
enterprise zones

More innovative approaches to enabling financially
viable schemes too could be justified. Some local
authorities are, for example, using preferential
borrowing rates to acquire sites; other are
underpinning the viability of commercial schemes
through investing in schemes by the virtue of the
strength of their covenant.

More traditional sources of funding too may contribute
to delivering the ambition for Aldershot, such as
through S106 agreements. Business Improvement
Districts (BIDs) can provide avenues for modest
funding, and capable of paying for smaller common
infrastructure items, public realm improvements,
security, etc.

Rolling Investment Funds (RIFs) - such as the Growing
Places fund (administered by M3 LEP) — may also be
considered. Conceivably, a similar RIF programme
could be used to deliver change at key sites in
Aldershot — or possibly via a programme of improving
/ refurbishing / reusing vacant and underused
properties. Once repaid, the RIF funds can then be
re-invested in other projects. Examples of a RIF could
be through a programme of acquisition, refurbishment
and reuse of vacant retail units and upper floorspace.

Crucially, funding opportunities continue to evolve
and will undoubtedly do so over the lifetime of the
masterplan. Any funding strategy must be refreshed
and reviewed as time progresses.

Pack Page 285



The next steps

A series of key ‘next steps’ have been outlined

beside each of the identified sites in the Aldershot
Prospectus. These next steps for individual projects
anticipate the involvement of the Borough Council,
landowners and potentially other delivery body agents.
There are other wider actions too which will help
enable, transform and sustain Aldershot Town Centre
as an attractive place to live, work and shop in the
context of the masterplan.

Outlined below are a number of wider actions and
activities that could help further set the foundations to
progress the initiatives.

Planning

¢ Embedding the Prospectus into the development
control process so it becomes a material
consideration.

* Preparing more detailed design and costing work
for key sites where considered necessary. This
might, for example, include Union Street and the
Galleries.

Property/Regeneration/Economic Development

* Enabling discussions with landowners — for
example for the Galleries, Network Rail,
Hippodrome House as well as other sites in the
Prospectus.

e Liaison with potential delivery partners and
stakeholders, including developers and potential
public sector agencies.

¢ Preparing business cases where project funding is
likely to be required.

Rack Page 286

Although not explicitly referenced in the Prospectus,
next steps and key actions too might link to a wider
holistic programme of cultural initiatives and events
for the town centre. Allied to this may be synergies
with improving Princes Hall Theatre - and involving
the community in town centre initiatives which
will serve to support the wider role and function of
Aldershot over the coming years.

In promoting the delivery of the Prospectus, there may
be other key organisational actions which are required
to ensure delivery comes forward. Typically, critical
components in assisting town centre renewal and
regeneration are:

¢ Having clear strategic leadership, involving key
stakeholders from public and private sectors
who will take ownership. This may be on a site
by site basis or perhaps more positively such
leadership taking a strategic overview of the
entire Prospectus and delivery programme — and
ideally headed up by a very visible figurehead.

e Having a core team dedicated to delivery,
ensuring clear operational leadership of the
plan. Such a team needs to have the skills and
resourcing required for delivery at each stage.

e Ensuring a degree of delegation, in order that
changes in political balance within the authority
do not disrupt long term development plans for
Aldershot town centre.

Overall, the Prospectus needs to be supported by
providing certainty and reassurance to public and
private sector investors that the changes identified in
the masterplan will take place.



Delivery Mechanisms

Equally important is the need to consider what
kinds of delivery mechanisms could help underpin
the delivery of initiatives. There is unlikely to be a
‘one size fits all’ delivery mechanism for projects —
the choice should reflect the scale, size and nature

of the individual masterplan initiatives. While in
some cases enabling discussions with landowners
may simply be needed to bring forward schemes for
other, more challenging, sites there may be a need to
set up bespoke delivery models, perhaps including
an asset backed vehicle, local delivery companies

or implementing rolling investment funds to show a
clear path towards how renewal will take place over a
number of years.

Collectively, making it happen will need a cohesive
action plan, combining both organisational and
delivery mechanisms — and public, private and
community sector involvement — to maximise the
Prospectuses benefits.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 Pa‘Ck Page 2&7



APPENDIX

PROPERTY MARKET REVIEW

This Property Market Review has been undertaken
by Montagu Evans and is presented as part of the
evidence base to support the SPD. The Property
Market Review, undertaken in early 2015, focuses on
the key property sectors relevant to the location:

e Retail
e Leisure
e Offices

¢ Residential

The property market review relies on information
drawn from a wide range of property data resources
such as Focus, EGi and Promis and discussions with
property agents, retailers and residential developers.

Retail

Recent key economic trends are:

e Comparison Retailing - value orientated retail has
grown considerably. They have taken advantage
of the glut of vacant units appearing on high
streets and a much more expenditure conscious
shopper.

¢ A1l Convenience Retailing — focus on smaller
convenience formats say 5,000 sq ft to 10,000 sq
ft. Significant active increase in demand from
discount foodstores.

e Service Sector Uses (A2 Uses) — growth sectors
include betting shops and pawn brokers. Others
have declined such as travel agents - as a result
their presence on the high street has diminished.

* Restaurants, cafes and takeaways (A3-Ab) - very
rapid growth. Branded coffee shops have become
far more prevalent in town centres.

These types of retailers are likely to be the mainstay of
current retail demand for space in the centre, together
with independent operators.

Aldershot’s Retail Offer

Aldershot’s two main retail streets (Union Street and
Wellington Street: both pedestrianised) are supported
by the Wellington Centre — which is the location for
the largest concentration of national operators.

RPack Page 288

There are a large number of void units evident
within the retail core and the wider town centre. It is
understood that around one in five units are vacant
(although this includes the Galleries which is now
earmarked for alternative uses).

No department stores are present, but key operators
include Wilkinsons, New Look, Argos, Boots and 99p
Stores and JD Sports (generally though the fashion
multiple offer is generally quite limited). There has
also been a trend of well known high street fashion
retailers leaving the centre in recent years — this
includes Next, Burton and most recently, M&S. Large
format Morrisons and Tesco Extra foodstore lie at the
edge of the centre. Lidl is the main convenience store
present in the centre.

A2 use (Financial and Professional Services) occupiers
are also evident in the town centre and include a
range of betting offices, estate agents banks and
building societies. Recent trends in occupier demand
from some retailers in this sub-sector, suggest that
provision of further A2 accommodation may also be a
possible option.

In terms of A3 — Ab uses, café and restaurant
provision include McDonald's, KFC, Subway, and
Costa. There is a very limited offer of good quality
eateries/cafes in town centre retail core though there
are a number of ethnic food outlets.

Often restaurants cluster around major uses: Westgate
Leisure Park, for example includes a cinema and
number of multi-chain restaurants (including Frankie
& Benny's, Nando's, Pizza Express and Prezzo).
However, this is not prerequisite with, for example,
branded coffee shops opening where there is good
business trade and footfall available. The presence of
restaurants and cafes in central locations has become
a key and highly noticeable trend in recent years.

In Aldershot town centre (and excluding Westgate)
growth in this sector has largely been driven by
independent traders.



Rents and Yields

At the end of 2013, prime retail rents were at £40psf
Zone A. Yields depend on the type and covenant of
the operator from c. 4% - 5% for a foodstore operator to
10%+ for independent trader. More typically however,
retail yields in Aldershot for a retailer offering good
covenant are more likely to be around 7 — 7.5%.

Retailer Demand

Five retailers are recorded on CoStar Focus and

67 retailers recorded on EGi with requirements for
accommodation in Aldershot (November 2014).
Retailer demand includes: Aldi Foodstore Ltd,

Go Outdoors and William Hill. Retail demand for
Aldershot is modest (NB - not all of those retailers
listed on such databases will favour a town centre
location or indeed the requirements logged are
current). Generally, the retail environment for Aldershot
is quite challenging and this view is supported by
the outcome of a retail demand survey undertaken
recently for a centrally located site.

Discussions with our in house agents also provided
broad views of Aldershot as a trading destination.
Concerns were raised about the amount of already
available space in the centre, strong competing
towns and that Aldershot had struggled to shake off
its garrison town image. They did though recognise
the positive impact that the Wellesley development
could have on the town centre, if residents could be
persuaded to shop there. There was also a feeling that
the development of Westgate had been so successful
that this had essentially soaked up much of the
demand from restaurants and cafes for the town.

One notable feature of the town centre is the presence
of a sizeable ethnic offer, especially in Station and
Birchett Road. While this area offers a somewhat
poorer shopping environment, it does offer a
distinctive feel to this part of the town centre.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016

Generally, Aldershot town centre’s retail market is
fairly challenging at present and is strongly oriented
toward the value end of the market. Any retail
strategy should probably in the short term seek to
protect and enhance the very core of the centre. Any
possible new development will also need to provide
well designed and configured units if they are to
appeal to operators. It is also possible that some
rationalisation in retail floorspace could be beneficial if
it were to result in the better balance the demand and
supply of units (say in secondary locations). Despite
this, one different area to capitalise on is perhaps the
independent - and particularly the ethnic offer in the
centre - and making this a point of difference. Making
the most of good quality, historic buildings as a
setting for the retail area could also serve to make the
centre more attractive to retailers and shoppers alike.

Leisure / health and fitness

Covers a very broad range of uses — cinemas, health &
fitness clubs, bowling alleys, bingo etc. The fortunes of
leisure sub-sectors has varied. Bingo Halls for example
have suffered a decline in patronage (albeit that recent
changes to taxation rules has made tier enterprises
more profitable again). Cinemas though have seen a
considerable growth and are a viewed as major leisure
anchor attractors.

Excluding the Westgate development, the quality

of leisure provision within the town centre core

is modest, with the main commercial leisure offer
comprising a solus Gala Bingo and a number of
amusement arcades. In wider Aldershot there is also a
bowling alley in the south of the town centre (Birchett
Road), and activities such as live entertainment
venues / theatres, museums, the library and Aldershot
Football Club. Princes Hall theatre offers a positive
cultural venue.

The health & fitness sector has also seen a surge

in growth. Both the more luxurious and budget end
health & fitness sectors are still seeking expansion
opportunities. This use tends to be quite land hungry

Pack Page 289



and achieve fairly modest rents. Thus, they tend to be
located on upper floor locations, at off pitch locations
or are accommodated through reuse of existing space.

Health & fitness provision in Aldershot is limited.
Existing provision includes Aldershot Garrison Sports
Centre, Aldershot Pools, Curves and Connaught
Leisure Centre.

We are aware of demand from budget gyms seeking
space in the centre. This rent achievable is

though likely to be fairly low (say £6-£10 per sq ft).
Nevertheless, this could add a different dimension to
Aldershot’s town centre offer.

Overall, Aldershot has a reasonable range of leisure
activities, through its combination of both public and
private sector ventures. A notable absence is the
presence of a commercial chain gym, and securing
this use would help add some degree of diversification
to the centre’s offer — as well as help to extend activity
in the centre during evenings.

Hotels

The hotel market remains buoyant with continued
interest from occupiers in this sector, especially for
sites in London and the south east. Examples of
continued expansion in the hotel sector and especially
the budget sector. Serviced apartments are also
viewed as a future growth channel — especially in
areas on good corporate trade. Visible sites with good
accessibility is an important factor in consideration for
this type of use as well as adequate parking. Outside
tourist centres, much of the demand for hotel space

is driven either by the presence of a strong business
market or good accessibility characteristics.

Hotels in the Aldershot area include Premier Inn,
Travelodge and several independent operators. It is
likely to that there would need to be an upturn in
corporate activity in the area for there to be further
demand for hotel space in the centre.

Rack Page 290

In Aldershot a budget hotel would expect to secure a
rent of around £4,000 - £4.500 per room per annum.
Highest performing yields are in the order of 5% - 6%,
reflecting a strong covenant. Overall though, site
development values are modest for this use.

The broad view is that the general supply of town
centre hotels is sufficient to meet current levels of
demand. In the longer term, if there is an increase
in office market activity this might help sustain
increased interest.

Offices

Aldershot falls within the Blackwater Valley sub office
market area. Major office occupiers in the region tend
to be at out of centre locations. Town centre demand
for offices is fair and linked generally to meeting

the needs of local service providers and smaller
businesses. Some larger offices do exist (Hippodrome
House), but the quality of the buildings are poor.

The office market strength is illustrated by asking
rents falling in the range of £5 psf - £15 psf with the
majority clustered between £10psf - £12psf bracket
(EGi / Focus, 2014). At this level of rents, new office
development is unlikely to be viable. This does

not though rule out the opportunity for small scale
refurbishments aimed again at smaller businesses [NB
— according to the Centre for Cities, Aldershot had
390 SMEs per 10,000 population in 2011, compared
to 170 SMEs per 10,000 population in Sunderland].
There is also some evidence that there is a modest
improvement in interest in office space in the
centre, though again this has focussed on smaller
requirements.

Generally, larger scale office development is unlikely
to take place in the heart of Aldershot. Despite

this, there may be the chance to provide attractive
(probably refurbished space) for smaller indigenous
enterprises. Additions to the overall amount of office
stock though are likely to be modest.



Residential

The residential sector is now a boom sector in many
part of the country; leading to concerns of overheating
in London and the South East. The housing market

is being sustained by increasing employment,
historically low interest rates, greater availability of
mortgage products, increased house builder profit
margins and greater levels of residential development

There is also a good rental market in the town. Data
provided by Zoopla, suggests average asking rents

are currently £957pcm. The table below shows a
summary of current asking rents in Aldershot based
on house types / number of bedrooms. There is
understood to be a pinch point in terms of strong
demand and rising rents coupled with a tight supply
of better quality private rented properties in Aldershot.

activity.
House | 1bed | 2beds 3beds |4beds |5

. . A Type beds
Tlhe lr?glonal housmg mgrket has experlenced- Houses | £693 £975 £1,348 £1,456 | -
mgn}llflcant p;ice g;oyvth 1ri\I thg last- ;wo years IE the pcm pcm pcm pcm
sogt east. According to Nationwide average house Flats £707 £847 £849 . -
prices over the last 12 months for the outer South East cm cm cm
was £230,409 — an annual change of 14%. Aldershot P P P

has a relatively strong residential market. Average rental costs in Aldershot, early 2015

Currently residential development in Aldershot is
limited and relates to very small scale developments.
There are however a number of very significant
housing developments in the pipeline: Wellesley and
the Galleries.

Housing in Aldershot is largely clustered towards the
south east of the town centre in the form of flatted
dwellings. Residential units are more limited in the
heart of the town centre.

Major residential expansion is currently proposed
for Aldershot, in the form of a major mixed use
development known as Wellesley. This development
will comprise up to 3,850 dwellings.

The strong demand for housing in the south east

and Rushmoor generally — alongside healthy house
prices suggests residential uses could form significant
parts of development opportunities in Aldershot — or
perhaps by refurbishing existing space. Discussions
with residential developers are generally quite positive
—and much more so than those with retailers.

The average asking price in Aldershot is currently
£291,900 (based on 126 properties recorded for sale
on Zoopla — November 2014), with the typical price

paid varying depending on the type of property.
Overall, bringing more residential development into

the heart of the centre may provide a strategy to
strengthen the town. An increased population may
also help to support the retail and evening economy,

Average House Prices - Aldershot

House Type Average Average £ and generally increase footfall levels. There also
Current Value | psf appears to be interest from residential developers for

Detached £396,051 £289 sites in the town. This may be aided by the proposal

Semi- £263,569 £269 at Wellesley and the ability to commute to London,

Detached together with a relatively affordable housing market.

Terraced £230,639 £276

Flats £155,346 £263

Average house prices in Aldershot, early 2015

Pack Page 291

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016



Pack Page 292



ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS January 2016 PaCk Page 233






ALDERSHOT
TOWN CENTRE

Supplementary Planning Document

CONSULTATION REPORT
"™ December 2015

USHMOOR

BOROUGH COUNCIL



A & o 1
sUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DC UMENT

THE MASTERPLAN FOR ALDERSHOT

The plan below sets out development and * The Union

efurbishment opportunities in the Aldershot Town front Welli
Prospectus. These vary in the scale and time

e in which they are likely to come forward. ¢ The Rail St
er, Rushmoor Borough Council has identified a

TR Anber of priority sites, which are: ot

S “ y - - . . - - .
A leries site linking Wellington Street with the The b
h eet car park refurbishn

rinces Hall "
N e s i Victoria Road:  Marks and Spencer Former Kings Union Street; Galleries
: infil building: fcleniio

n il resclentiol development L g: Polentiol re Centre: Estoblished as Regeneration of the  active low
P i g developmer use o redevelopment The Empite commun ty Union Street block tesidential

and events venue

the Galler
i



Street grot
ngton Stree

ation area, ir
parking

ound the Princes Hal'
ent of the theatre

Library ¢

~

CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION
FEEDBACK FORMS
RESPONDENTS' PROFILE
WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS
SUGGESTED UPDATES

APPENDIX

12
14
18

20

Pack Page 297



INTRODUCTION

The Aldershot Prospectus sets out a strategy for
regeneration based on viable investment and
development options to attract and support investment
in Aldershot Town Centre.

The prospectus has been developed as a
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and will

be a material planning consideration for future
planning applications in the town centre. The SPD will
replace the Aldershot Town Centre SPD (2009) and
further develops the Council's strategic approach to
regeneration.

Consultation on the draft document was undertaken
between Wednesday 30 September 2015 and
Wednesday 11 November 2015. During this period
there were a number of ways in which people could
engage with the consultation:

¢ The study was highlighted on the front page of
the Council's website with a summary mini-
site and a full copy of the document available to
download. This was linked to an on-line response
form;

¢ The document was available for review at
Aldershot library and Rushmoor Borough Council
offices;

e A public exhibition was on display with
approximately two weeks each in Morrisons, the
Wellington Centre and the Princes Hall,

e Two staffed days of drop-in consultation were
advertised and held on Saturday 17 October and
Thursday 22 October;

* A public presentation and discussion on the
evening of 7 October was hosted by Aldershot
Civic Society; and

* A presentation and discussion with the Aldershot
Retailer and Business Forum on Monday 5
October.

A questionnaire was used to record written responses
to the consultation, duplicating the on-line feedback.

This report sets out the responses which were
received to the consultation and identifies the key
issues for consideration prior to the adoption of the
draft SPD.

In total 180 responses were received:
* 65 online responses

e 383 paper questionnaires completed
e 32 written submissions

Pack Page 298



HAVE YOUR SAY ON THE FUTURE OF

4. Akey role of this prospectus is to attract investment in Aldershot. Are there any other town centre

ALDERSHOT F E E D B AC K F O R M et o i i ) s e o o Gzt 1 e, (s ] st ey 1

TOWN CENTRE

Please complete this feedback form and drop it in the box provided.
You can also comment online at www.rushmoor.gov.uk/improvingaldershot
5. Please let us have any other comments you have on the proposals set out in the draft prospectus.

1. The Vision for Aldershot in the draft Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus is supported by six
themes, which set out how the council thinks Aldershot could be improved. Do you agree with the
vision and themes?

[TYes [ ]No

If no, please tell us why:

6. Please could you let us know the following information.

[] Male [ ] Female
Is there anything you would like to change? [Jo1s []1624 []2534 [ ]3544 [ ]4554 [ ]5564 [ |65+

7. Would you like to know when we adopt the draft
prospectus as a supplementary planning document?

2. The prospectus sefs out opportunities for change in Aldershot town centre. [TYes [ ]No
This includes ideas for four key sites. What do you think about the approach?

8. Would you like to receive email news from the council?
[TYes [ ]No

9. If the answer fo either of the above questions is yes,
could you please provide us with your contact details.

Do you have any comments on the ideas for individual sites?

Nome | |

Address

&

Of all the opportunities and potential development in the prospectus, Email ‘ ‘
which do you think should be the top priority for the council?

ing feedback on the draft Aldershot Town Centre
inform the final version of the SPD report.

Thank you very much for provi
Prospectus. Your comments wil

Data protection: We will only use your contact details for the purpose stated on this form.

Coundil Offices, www.rushmoor.gov.uk @rushmoorcouncil
USHMOOR A ) 01252398 399 or ouncil

Farnborough,
BOROUGH COUNCIL Hants, GU14 7JU customerservices@rushmoor.gov.uk September 2015

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015 Pa‘Ck Page 29.>9



FEEDBACK FORMS

1. The ‘Vision for Aldershot’ in this
draft prospectus is supported by six
themes, which set out how the council
thinks Aldershot could be improved.
Do you agree with the vision and
themes? If no, please tell us why.

mAgree

m Disagree

139 responses were given to this question, of which 98
indicated they agree with the Vision and themes set
out in the prospectus. Of those who responded with
comments, the following points provide a cross-section
of the more frequently mentioned issues. Two issues
stood out as the most popular responses:

¢ The plan could be more radical including new
ideas and more ambitious change; and
e More information is needed on the cost and

deliverability of the proposals. "Ge nerdad ’ ' y ver y

S; ;kzeitge.r responses, a number attracted several exc i ,'i n g a n d m uc h
needed"

e  There should be more mention of public transport,
including how it will be protected and improved;

e There should be a focus on Aldershot's role as a
commuter town, with links to London improved,;

¢ There is a need to understand the reasons behind
Aldershot's unpopularity with retailers if the town
is to succeed in the future;

*  Protect historic shop fronts against inappropriate
changes and modern replacements which are out

of keeping; "AHthing fO bring
¢ The document is wordy and would benefit from ’ " f e bac ’( ,on to , he

an executive summary:.

centre would be
great"

Pack Page 300



Is there anything that you would like
to change?

107 comments were given to this question, with the
most popular comments being:

¢ We need more quality shops in the town centre,
given by 21 people;

* Additional parking is needed, which should
be cheaper or free and include more disabled
parking, given by 16 people; and

* Reduce the proportion of low value and discount
shops in the town centre, given by 11 people.

Other suggestions which were made by several people
include:

* A better bus service is needed, with drop-off
at the rail station, the High Street and links to
outlying supermarkets;

e Lower the rents or rates to attract shops and start-
up businesses;

¢  We need a department store such as Primark -
focus energy on attracting them,;

e Everything needs to change!;

¢  More cycle parking and cycle routes are needed in
the town centre;

*  Grosvenor Road area looks shabby and could be
improved. Recent conversions have been poor
quality;

* Invest in the football club;

* Make the town a lively place with real shopping
options; and

¢  More entertainment places.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

, RSHOT
JN CENTRE

ARY PLANNING DOCUMF

AN FOR ALDE!

Pack Page 301



2. This prospectus sets out
opportunities for change in Aldershot "We need to focus

on smaller specialist

town centre. This includes ideas for
four key sites. What do you think ’
about the approach? ShOpS

Do you have any comments on the
ideas for individual sites?

125 comments were given to this question, with 39
people stating that the approach and site proposals are
fine, ok, good, great or excellent.

(] ] °
Popular comments for adjusting the overall approach Th e Ga’ ’ eries mus t
and suggestions for individual sites included: b n
e sorted

¢ We need well-known brand retailers in the town
centre;

e Yes, we need houses but we need shops more

e The station area needs to be improved - it is the
first port of call for visitors;

e Leave Princes Hall as it is or retain the frontage -
it is striking 70s architecture;

e The Princes Hall proposals look good - it needs a
radical overhaul,

* The Galleries site should have retail, including a
large store;

n - H
¢ Removing the Galleries bridge sounds expensive / The ra"way Staf'on
T would rather keep it; areq is Currenf’y a

e The Galleries site needs to move forward asap, by

legal measures if needed,; d < ’

e The M&S site is perfect site for Primark - could ep l‘eSSlng weicome
we attract it with zero business rates?; fo A ’ d ers h ot"

e A link between Union Street and High Street is
vital - it is disconnected since M&S closed. Like
the idea of arcade here; and

e Include M&S and Union Street buildings as one
site, and create new town square and new homes
and flexible retail space to respond to demand.

Pack Page 302



3. Of all the opportunities and
potential development in the
prospectus, which do you think should
be the top priority for the Council?

[ l'.‘lanagement

152 comments were given to this question, with high
levels of consensus on the priorities for the prospectus.
These were:

* Retaining and attracting decent shops, to bring
more wealth into the town, mentioned by 32 people;

* Redeveloping the Galleries site, mentioned by 28
people;

¢ Improving the rail station area, with some
suggestions for shops here, mentioned by 11 people;

e Refurbishment of Princes Hall and redevelopment of
the Police Station site, mentioned by 10 people;

¢ Making the town centre more attractive including
shop-front improvements, mentioned by 10 people;

* New homes - affordable for young and new families,
especially local ones, mentioned by 8 people;

e Filling vacant shop units before redevelopment,
mentioned by 7 people;

e Union Street - this being the centre of the town but
suffering in terms of vacancies and environment,
mentioned by 7 people.

e (Celebrating and retaining Aldershot's Victorian
heritage - and using this to attract businesses,
mentioned by 6 people; and

e Attracting new businesses through reduced rates
and/or rents, mentioned by 6 people.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015 PaCk Page 3Q3



4. A key role of this prospectus is to
attract investment in Aldershot. Are "Penmark House

would make a

great site for a
hotel"

there any other town centre assets,
which should be highlighted in the
document? If so, please tell us what
they are.

59 people provided a response to this question, with
popular suggestions including:

e Historic buildings, which should be highlighted
and retained, mentioned by 12 people;

¢ The Westgate Leisure Park and improved links to
this, mentioned by 8 people; n d

¢ Business opportunities, which should be Th e WeSt E n

highlighted alongside residential and leisure

[ ]
opportunities, as this will bring people into the Cen,r e I S an

centre during the day, mentioned by 5 people;

* The town's parks and sports fields, mentioned by eéxce "ent sm a"
4 people venue which draws

¢ The lido, which should be preserved - especially
people to the

with the Wellesley development coming, and.
underground heat/solar considered, mentioned by
4 people; and fOWﬂ n
* The great sporting facilities, including the football
club and gymnastics centre, mentioned by 3
people

e Pedestrianise more of the shopping streets,
mentioned by 3 people.

Other comments made by more than one person
include:

¢ The military history, which 1 person suggested
should be celebrated with a horse-drawn tour
around the town and the camp;

e Special small independent shops such as Jerome's;

¢ The unusual cultural aspect with the Gurkha
population and accompanying tastes and
traditions; and

e The potential for a visitor centre or museum in a
historic building.

Rack Page 304



5. Please let us have any other
comments you have on the proposals
set out in the draft prospectus.

88 people responded to this question, with the
comments suggested by more than one person
including:

e Focus on securing shops for the town centre rather
than making superficial physical improvements
such as paving and shop-front improvements. This
was made by 8 people;

¢ Congratulations, well done, good job, made by 7
people;

¢ Negative comments regarding Rushmoor Borough
Council's investment in Aldershot, made by 5
people;

¢ Comments on Farnborough receiving greater levels
of investment than Aldershot, made by 5 people;

e Concern that money will be wasted on delivering
the strategy, made by b people;

e Hope that it can be delivered and not remain a
glossy prospectus, mentioned by 4 people;

e Buses to outlying supermarkets would be useful,
made by 3 people;

¢ RBC should take on vacant units and offer them to
start-up shops/businesses for free or at affordable
rates, made by 3 people;

e No more HMOs in the area - we need quality
housing, made by 3 people;

e Library building and services should remain intact
at existing site, mentioned by 3 people;

¢ Retention of the Gala building is important to the
plan, made by 2 people;

¢ The multi-storey car park is awkward for trolleys
on upper levels as there are no ramps, made by 2
people;

e A landscape walk into town from new housing /

a green link from the canal and training heaths,
made by 2 people;

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

Cover Union St and/or Wellington St with glass,
made by 2 people;

The electronic notice boards don't seem a good
use of funding, made by 2 people;

Can the Council impose shop-front improvements/
upkeep on retailers - these let the town down,
mentioned by 2 people;

RBC should start legal proceedings for key
buildings that have been long-term vacant - they
are vulnerable to arson attacks - and in Council
ownership, a retail strategy could be pursued,;
mentioned by 2 people;

Ensure the pubs don't close down - we need these
to attract young people, made by 2 people; and
The Library building and services should remain
intact at existing site, made by 2 people.

"Let artists and
makers use
vacant spaces for

exhibitions and
education"

Pack Page 305



RESPONDENTS' PROFILE

The gender split of responses received via the
feedback forms was incredibly evenly split with 51%
being completed by women and 49% completed by
men.

Likewise, the age range of people completing feedback
forms was reasonably eveniy split, with a breakdown
as follows:

1% completed by people aged 0-15
3% completed by people aged 16-24
9% completed by people aged 25-34
19% completed by people aged 35-44
22% completed by people aged 45-54
23% completed by people aged 55-64
23% completed by people aged 65+

"Anything to bring
life back into the
centre would be
great”

"Don't just 'tart up'
the town, more
shops are needed"

Rack Page 306

19%

m Male

mFemale

mo15
w1624
w2534
m 3544
m4554
w5564
o5+



ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consultatio



WRITTEN SUBMISSIONS

In addition to the online and paper copy feedback

forms, Rushmoor Borough Council received a number

of written submissions on the draft Supplementary
Planning Document, made by statutory consultees,
special interest groups and individuals. Written
submissions from groups included:

e Aldershot Civic Society

¢ Aldershot Town FC

¢ Church Crookham Parish Council

e Environment Agency

e  Hampshire County Council

e Hart District Council

¢ Health and Safety Executive

e Lantana Properties

¢ London and Cambridge Properties Ltd
¢ Natural England

¢ Rushmoor Cycle Forum

¢ Rushmoor Labour Group

¢ Rushmoor Pedestrian Forum

e Stagecoach

¢ Thames Water

e The Theatres Trust

¢ Columbia Threadneedle Investments

*  Waverley Borough Council

¢ Rushmoor Borough Council Environment Panel

2. This prospectus sets out opportunities for
change in Aldershot town centre. This includes
ideas for seven key sites. What do you think
about the approach?

Do you have any comments on the ideas for
individual sites?

¢ The Galleries can be considered one of the
disasters of planning in Aldershot. It is an
enormous, sprawling structure, completely
incongruous with the town centre’s ¢.19 plan
and grain of development. Moves to remedy
the damage by way of reinstating finer grain
development would be welcomed in principle and
demolition of the bridge over Wellington Street
would be an effectively instant improvement.

¢ The removal of the bridge is a great idea.

e Opening up the Galleries as a ground level
pedestrian route is supported by the Civic
Society as you will no longer have the problem
of escalators and lifts not working because of
uninterested landlords like Threadneedle.

e [ would take this opportunity to recommend that

The written submissions have been reviewed and key the High Street frontage be added to the List of
comments pulled out to produce an overall summary Buildings of Local Importance (if not capable of
of responses. Key comments in order of questions are statutory listing).

set out over the following pages.

e Some sort of town centre leisure facility would be
good to tie into the High Street changes.

e A large retailer to replace M&S is wishful
thinking. The idea of opening up the site with
a new lane is welcomed, with support from the
Civic Society to this particular idea.

e Princes Hall — this is overdue but some

respondents felt that the proposals were not
sufficiently ambitious and that a complete

Rack Page 308



redevelopment would have been more desirable.

It seems to me that there could be a missed
opportunity with the closing of Aldershot Police
Station.

To me the best option for that part of town would
be to use the space to create a new much larger
Princes Hall to serve not just Aldershot but the
whole of the Aldershot Urban Area.

The redevelopment of the Princes Hall should
be an opportunity to include a much larger
auditorium rather than just refurbishing the
existing space.

Whilst we welcome the changes to the look of

having residential use in close proximity to a
theatre or performance venue inevitably creates
serious issues for both the venue and the new
residents. Where there are insufficient safeguards
in place (mainly via sound insulation and creative
design), disputes can emerge and the new
residents can request a Noise Abatement Notice
be issued by the council on the theatre restricting
its activities and putting it at risk of closure.

The station proposals are supported but with a
number of caveats, including concerns about
where bus stands will be relocated to, and
how traffic flows will work if the roundabout is
removed.

3. Of all the opportunities and potential
development in the prospectus, which do you
think should be the top priority for the Council?

the Princes Hall, we are also disappointed that
something more substantial was not offered.
Acquiring the old Ritz/Gala Bingo building as a

new theatre for Aldershot, bringing it closer to the
high street car park and town centre, and with its
history of famous performers. A complete re-build
at the present site to give Aldershot a brand new
state of the art theatre would have also been more
welcomed.

The National Theatres Trust noted that they
would like to see safeguards in place for the
design of any residential development around the
Princes Hall to protect the future use of the hall as
an entertainment venue.

The [Church Crookham] Parish Council
particularly likes the modernisation of Princes
Hall.

The Theatres Trust welcomes the retention and
refurbishment of Princes Hall in this document
and indeed recognises the potential for a s106
agreement for redevelopment of the surrounding
sites to pay for the refurbishment of the Hall.
However, from our experience across the UK,

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

The priority is sorting out the Galleries. The Civic
Society supports the proposals, but recognises
the need for the Council to use all of its powers to
bring about change. The return to a street-based
scheme is welcomed along with the prospect of a
traditional scale and form of buildings.

Pack Page 309



4. A key role of this prospectus is to attract
investment in Aldershot. Are there any other
town centre assets, which should be highlighted in
the document? If so, please tell us what they are.

¢ The prospectus needs to say more about
Aldershot’s other assets such as the Lido and the
parks.

¢ Aldershot has a strong cultural offer already
although HCC tried to close the West End Centre
down in the past. Culture also covers bingo and
football.

5. Please let us have any other comments
you have on the proposals set out in the draft
prospectus.

e Some comments were made about the potential
for covered areas or awnings which would make
the town centre more habitable in poor weather.

¢ Twould love to see a children's indoor play area.
The soft play outside Mothercare is always packed
and it would be great to see something a bit
bigger and better.

¢ Iwould also like to see a community hub that
people can use to meet up for free

e Twould love to see more cross-cultural events,
learn to speak Nepalese and cook Nepalese food.

e Parking needs to be improved.

e Rushmoor needs to set up an independent
Opportunity and Fairness Commission.

e There is no detail on the mechanism for who

“owns” the Town Centre. RBC is looking for a
Business Improvement District (BID) but should

Rack Page 310

we not be looking for a genuine partnership
between residents and business? Should we be
looking at Asset Based Community Development
potential?

There should be more emphasis on provision for
cyclists, both in terms of connecting routes to the
town as well as cycle facilities and parking within
the town centre.

The Prospectus would do well to explore the
scope for improvement of specific sites (mention
is already given to Station Road) and consider
in more comprehensive detail how groups/

rows of perhaps more ordinary buildings could
be enhanced. I would take this opportunity

to recommend that the High Street frontage

be added to the List of Buildings of Local
Importance.

There is concern about the development of
a decked car park at the station close to the
existing sheltered housing development of
Kingsley Court.

There is a significant level of perception that free
parking would contribute to the revitalisation of
the town centre.

As well as new development we also need to
consider how to lift the quality of the whole town
—much of the fabric looks tatty.

It is much better to have a much smaller vibrant
town centre than the large dilapidated one that
we have now.

We [The Civic Society] generally support the draft
Master Plan for Aldershot, and it is important
that improvements are implemented as soon as
possible to help our town thrive and become a
destination of choice for locals in and around the
area.



I wholeheartedly agree with the supporting of
specialist/independent retailers as opposed to
‘competing’ with neighbouring towns merely by
offering more of the same. This is a refreshing
break from a usual presumption in favour of large,
multi-thousand square footage development in an
attempt to attract large retailers.

The Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act
2015 compels local authorities to maintain a
register of individuals who are seeking to build
their own homes and there are many good
reasons why ‘self-building’ should be encouraged
generally. With that in mind, could the
Prospectus not identify sites/areas with potential
for development by self-builders?

The proliferation 1 + 2 bed flats in recent times is
troublesome; provision of larger accommodation
designed for family occupancy would therefore be
welcome.

It is also worth noting that numerous structures
such as former workshops, stables and industrial
buildings remain extant and there ought perhaps
to be a presumption in favour of retention where
practicable.

If conservation of our town's historic assets is to
represent a serious part of the agenda, it needs be
considered broadly; it should not simply home-in
on a few “pet-buildings” or favourite sightlines.

We need more specialist shops opened in pairs
next to existing thriving businesses. The mix of
shops should also be varied and balanced. For
example, how about a French baker and patisserie
and a high quality greengrocers? People will pay
a little more for something a little special and of
excellent quality.

We [Aldershot Pedestrian Forum] agree with the
sentiments displayed in the prospectus regarding

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

the Victorian legacy of the town, of the many
listed Victorian buildings situated in the centre,
and the need for these to feature strongly in the
redeveloped town centre.

The growth in population is an opportunity to
attract top class retailers and make Aldershot a
retail centre for a far wider area, like Farnham has
been for years. The same applies to restaurants,
cinemas, bars, the theatre, and service industries.

How many times do they need to be told that
people resent paying to park in a town with
such a paltry choice of shops. Tesco, Morrisons,
Sainsburys and Farnborough Gate are all within
a 10-minute drive of Aldershot and all offer FREE
parking. Why would you pay to park in Aldershot
when you can get everything you need at one of
those locations?

I welcome the attempt by the Prospectus,
developed as a Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD), to set out a strategy for
regeneration based on options for public and
private investment, which we see as a matter of
urgency to prevent collapse of Aldershot Town
Centre as a result of the flight of retail from

it. In particular, I welcome that, once the SPD
is accepted, Rushmoor Borough Council will
then be able to use its powers and resources
in a proactive way to enable development and
investment in Aldershot Town Centre.

The conservation of our historic buildings and
scenes ought to be seen as an inextricable
element with regard to achieving the general
goals set out.

Pack Page 311



SUGGESTED UPDATES

Comments received through the consultation feedback
form and through written submissions have been
reviewed alongside feedback from public meetings
and Council panel reviews to identify a series of
suggested updates to the draft Supplementary
Planning Document.

The majority of comments have been high level and
relate to a general approach to the town or particular
sites rather than specific pages of the draft report, so
updates have been suggested with similar strategic
focus.

1.  Executive summary
Add an executive summary of the key proposals
in the SPD at the start of the document.

2. Baseline information
Potential inclusion of more baseline information,
such as property market and commercial analysis
in an appendix, to demonstrate the complex and
interlinked factors influencing Aldershot's future.

3. Public transport infrastructure
Add reference to the importance of coordinated
public transport infrastructure and potential to
improve this in the future, including references to:

- Better bus provision with well placed bus stops
by the station, on the high street and potential
links to outlying supermarkets.

- Connection to London and other employment
centres and the importance of pressing for faster
rail connections in future

4. Cycling
Add reference to cycling provision in and around
the town centre, including:

- Proposals for cycle parking at key sites

- Potential for cycle lanes on key routes into the
town centre, taking account of surrounding
national cycle routes

Rack Page 312

10.

- Ambition to be at the forefront of cycle provision,

Vehicular access and parking

- Make reference to the fact that key vehicular
routes into the centre are currently poor and focus
will be given to improving these in the future,
including review of any planning applications with
this objective in mind.

- Add reference to RBC Parking strategy and
harmonise proposals/objectives

Housing
- Make reference to using vacant upper floors for
housing

Commercial opportunities

- Review with property consultant whether office
space can be included at key sites, alongside
residential/retail/leisure uses

Business rates and business support
- Add reference to potential for a BID

Vacant buildings

- Add reference to RBC willingness to explore
purchase or rental of vacant units and lease of
these at cheap rents to support start-ups

- Review potential for these spaces to be leased to
artists and makers for exhibitions/education, with
potential links with Univerity of the Creative Arts.

The historic environment

- Strengthen references to the historic environment
and the fact that it should be promoted, protected,
enhanced and preserved.

- add reference to potential for a historic walking
route around the town which could coordinate
with the planned Wellesley heritage walk

- Add reference to potential military history tour
covering the town centre and the camp

- Add reference to group value of historic



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

buildings, such as the High Street building
frontages

- Add reference to improving the environment
on Grosvenor Road - shop front improvements,
ensuring conversions are carried out sensitively

The natural environment

- Add reference to potential green link from
Hospital Hill to/through the centre, and from the
canal and training heaths to/through the centre
- Add stronger references to Aldershot's town
parks

The Westgate Leisure Park

- Add additional references to the positive impact
of this scheme on the town centre and the
importance of integrating this area

West End Centre
Add reference to the value of this as a cultural and
community use.

Rail Station site

- Review the impact of 2-storey parking at the rail
station on Kingsley Court

- Add reference to the fact that the station
building should be retained and should not be
masked by trees

- Add more explicit reference to how the traffic
flows will work here, to provide reassurance on
congestion

- Add reference to the fact that redundant sites
on Windsor Way should be linked more to the
Railway Station development in the document.

Galleries site

- Add reference in the delivery text about
potential for phasing parts of the scheme and
review with property consultant regarding impact
on viability for this approach.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Princes Hall site

- Make explicit reference to the refurbishment of
the theatre including an exploration of whether
the capacity could be increased

Library area site

- This site was not considered essential and could
cause issues with vehicular access to the multi-
storey car park and with strengthened pedestrian
links from Wellesley to the town centre.

- Add reference to the value of the library itself as
a town centre use; and the value of bringing this
further into the centre if the opportunity arises in
the future.

Willow House site

Ensure the boundary of this site reflects land
ownership in the masterplan and make explicit
in the heritage section that this building is not of
historic value.

Union Street East/M+S site

Make explicit reference to possibility for the
creation of a town square here. Include reference
to the fact that a town square must be well
defined and well-referenced.

Birchett Road site
Make reference to whether Frederick Street could
be a shared surface.

Delivery commentary

- Add additional information on potential funding
sources such as the LEP, priorities and the inter-
relationship of some sites to the delivery section
of the report.

- Review with property consultant the potential
for a community asset backed vehicle

Pack Page 313



22. Specific page update requests:

Lantana Properties:

Page 34, Willow House, which is at the junction
of Victoria Road and Grosvenor Road, is shown on
the plan as a "historically significant building at
crossroads". It is a tired 1960's office block, which
the owners wish to redevelop and replace. This
plan needs to be amended.

Page 40, Willow House is shown as a "corner infill
development opportunity’, which we agree it is.
However, the land to the rear of the building is
shown green as if it is to be landscaped. In fact,
this land does not belong to Willow House. In
reality, it is laid out to tarmac and used for car
parking. This plan needs to be amended.

Hampshire County Council

Page 10 replace reference to better signage and
path widening with 'footpath widening'.

Page 12, add clarification on what is meant by
'greening' - change to 'soft landscaping'

Page 12, add reference to specific existing routes
that will be improved to demonstrate that routes
do exist

Page 30 first bullet, change wording to:
Enhanced landscaping, rationalisation of the
road network as well as a new multi-storey car
park will improve the experience of arriving in
Aldershot by train and help to reduce the conflict
between cars, buses and pedestrians in the area

Rack Page 314

Page 30 second bullet, change wording to:
Accessibility improvements that link to the new
Wellesley development, pedestrian crossings on
the high street as well as potentially new and
improved sustainable transport links between the
High Street and Union Street.

Page 31 change reference that ‘pedestrians can
access the station more easily' with 'visitors can
access the station more easily'

Page 48 first para, change wording to:

The area around the railway station, including the
parking, bus stands and highway environment
does little to enhance the setting.

Page 48 second para, change wording to:

The existing accessibility in the area is complex,
including buses, taxis, cyclists, pedestrians, pick
up and set down for private cars, and access to
the station for parking.”

Page 50, top right image to be removed

Page 50 paragraph on phasing to be changed to:
‘The Police Station is anticipated to close as part
of a wider strategy for policing. However the
Magistrates Court is expected to remain in use
so there is an opportunity to enhance and retain
the Police Station for public sector community
benefit. In the event of the relocation of the
Magistrates Court, the site could have potential
for residential redevelopment.’

Page 60 third bullet:
Add reference to CIL along with S106 and
developer contributions



FURTHER ACTION

Three key issues have been highlighted through the
consultation process, which require further action
outside of the scope of the SPD.

Retail Offer

The Council acknowledges and shares the public
concern in respect of the retail offer of Aldershot town
centre. The Council has already undertaken action to
seek to support, retain and attract retailers including:

* QOrganising town centre events to increase footfall

* Setting up a retail website to support new
business in the town centre

* Running free online trading seminars for
Independent retailers

*  Providing retail space for Christmas pop-up shops

¢ Taking on running the market and developing it
further

* Implementing Government Incentive Schemes
for Retail Relief and Reoccupation Relief from
Business Rates

The Council recognises the need to do more to
support and where possible improve the town'’s retail
offer. The Council will consider seeking specialist
retail advice on retail options for the town centre to see
what further encouragement can be given to attract
retailers to the town centre. In the future, where

the Council acquires an interest in buildings within
the core town centre area, it will proactively work to
support active uses, including retail. The Council will
also seek to encourage other active town centre uses
(such as restaurants and leisure) to locate in the town
centre to support retail uses and reduce the number
of vacant units. Developing more town centre living,
as promoted through the SPD, will also help to support
retail uses in the town centre by increasing footfall.

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015

Car Parking

The Council recognise that some people believe
that additional, cheaper or free car parking will
encourage greater use of the town centre. The
Council will undertake a full review of the parking
strategy in the New Year and will take account of
the concerns expressed through this consultation as
part of that review.

Feelings of Safety

A number of respondents mentioned feeling
unsafe in the town centre, particularly in the
evenings. The Council will undertake a town
centre safety audit to identify what other action
maybe appropriate. To help the feelings of safety
and to deal with any incidents that may arise the
Council operates a CCTV service from 7am to lam
Sunday to Wednesday and 7am to 3am Thursday
to Saturday. CCTV cameras are recording 24/7 and
footage is retained for one month.

Other comments

Individuals commenting on the draft Prospectus
have made a number of other more detailed
comments relating to wider town centre issues.
These comments fall outside of the scope of matters
that can be addressed through changes to the SPD
but are being reviewed on a corporate basis to
identify the need for further action.

Pack Page 315



APPENDIX 1
EXHIBITION BOARDS

Rack Page 316



THE ROLE OF THE PROSPECTUS

Rushmoor Borough Council has prepared the The Prospectus is being developed as a Supplementary

Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus to help put the Planning Document (SPD) and will be a material planning

heart back into Aldershot. consideration for future planning applications. It will
replace the Aldershot Town Centre SPD (2009) and further

The Prospectus sets out a strategy for regenerating develops the council’s strategic approach to regeneration in

the town with development options to attract Aldershot.

and support growth in Aldershot town centre. =

The council has worked with a specialist team of The council will need to work with developers and land

consultants and engaged with local stakeholders owners to deliver the proposals. It will use its powers and

and residents to combine local knowledge and ﬁ/« resources in a proactive way to enable development and

enthusiasm for Aldershot with regeneration best

practice.

\
\

London

[mal
Reading ® f
Please give us your views by completing a feedback
form and dropping it in the box provided. [ma]
® Camberley
The draft Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus - O‘WT’M
can be found online where you can also comment: o S S Aldefshot

LJ
Farnha

Surrey Hills

The consultation will finish on Wednesday 11
November 2015. For further information,
please contact:

[Ma]
b

. L)
Winchester

SOUTH DOWNS

5 Soulhumplii
7

Allies and Mqrrison II : R%:}AGU USHMOOR

Urban Practitioners BOROUGH COUNCIL

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015 PaCk Page 3]27




ALDERSHOT *
TO

SIX KEY THEMES FOR THE VISION

We want to see the heart back in Aldershot.
A REVITALISED TOWN CENTRE

The town will be a place where everyone is welcome

and where families want to be, focused around a Aldershot’s retail core is not expected to compete with

thriving leisure and retail hub. Easy to get to, park and regional towns nearby but it can play an important role

get around, the town will become increasingly vibrant in meeting convenience and local shopping needs of a

with new residents from Wellesley joining Aldershot’s growing population.

community and new high quality urban homes in the

P

The council will welcome new retailers and seek to

town centre. focus these in the core shopping streets; will support
specialist retailers providing an alternative offer; and

Businesses, old and new, will thrive and support will bring other uses such as leisure and homes into the

the town, and residents will shop in a unique mix centre to help support shops.

of independent and high street shops. Aldershot’s

Victorian and military heritage will be celebrated and

protected. Families and friends of all ages will meet

up in a choice of coffee shops, cafés and restaurants,

be active or relax in quality open spaces. Aldershot

will come alive with the buzz from Westgate and a

revitalised Princes Hall, new leisure facilities and the

concerts, shows, arts and family events taking place

across the town.

Aldershot town centre will be a place local people
want to be.

TOWN CENTRE LIVING

Aldershot has a significant requirement for new homes
with demand from young families and professionals.
The role of town centres across the country is shifting
away from retail to leisure uses and new homes can
help to meet demand while also helping to give the
town centre back its vitality.

d

The council has a ber of suitable town
centre sites that can cater for people of different
ages and family size. We are not able to bring these
forward alone but will work with developers, ensuring
an approach that responds to Aldershot'’s Victorian
character.

Rack Page 318



PROSPECTUS

A FAMILY FRIENDLY TOWN CENTRE

Aldershot is appreciated as a safe and family
friendly town centre with a range of leisure
activities. With the Wellesley development under
construction, the council will seek to provide
additional town centre leisure facilities and public
spaces.

Better signage and pathway improvements will
be made as funding becomes available, to connect
the town centre to Aldershot’s many surrounding
natural assets.

INVESTING IN STREETS AND SPACES

The Activation Aldershot programme has brought
a series of improvements to the town'’s streets

and spaces that help to connect Westgate back to
Union Street and to better connect early phases of
the Wellesley development into the town centre
at Court Road. Further investment priorities are
identified to create a central public space for
Aldershot and improve entrances into the town
centre.

AN IMPROVED CULTURAL OFFER

Westgate brought a new multiplex cinema to
Aldershot town centre, along with a number of high
street restaurant names. The council is reviewing
opportunities to add to this offer, such as the
transformation of Princes Hall Theatre and the
extension of the successful events programme in
the town.

AFFIRMING THE VICTORIAN
HERITAGE

Aldershot'’s quality Victorian buildings are frequently
overlooked as an asset for the town. The buildings
can help to give Aldershot the distinctiveness
required to attract visitors as leisure plays a more
important role for towns.

Many historic buildings are at crossroads and
landscape improvements at these points can have

a substantial impact in improving the environment.
The council will protect these buildings and
important views and will invest in shop front and
building improvements as funding becomes available.

Pack Page 319



ALDERSHOT
TOWN CENTRE

MENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT

THE MASTERPLAN FOR ALDERSHOT

The plan below sets out development and : s
refurbishment opportunities in the Aldershot Town * Irtitj\;\lllglrl‘irsl;ie:sg{;ﬁ :;El:gg'pﬁgshtgi::el: o

Centre Prospectus. These vary in the scale and time
frame in which they are likely to come forward. « The Rail Station area, including improved

However, Rushmoor Borough Council has identified a access and parking

number of priority sites, which are:
® The area around the Princes Hall, including

. Ll;gehGSatl:::tez as'it;alrilr:king Wellington Street with the tefiirbishment of the theatre

ctoria Road:  Marks and Spencer

STATION ROAD

Wellingion Centre

- !
Lo

VICTORIA RoAp

-_—
-
-
=
-

Hippodrome House: Rail Station: Proposals |
Opions for refurbishment for a new siation
and possible infil square, providing beter
development on Vicioria arongements for buses
Rood /| toxis and parking

a
Redevelopment of he
| former worehouse as o
{ resdental sto

Proposed development

[l Potentiol refurbished existing buildings

Rack Page 320



ALDERSHOT
TOWN CENTRE

MENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT

Plans would link Wellington Street with the Aldershot rail station is an attractive
High Street car park directly at street level, Victorian building but is currently
fronted by homes and active town centre S ( underused and the existing road layout is
uses at ground floor. complex and hinders access.

The pedestrian bridge would be removed and % The council, in partnership with others, has

the Wellington Centre would have a new, 1 submitted a bid to the Enterprise M3 Local

larger entrance with access to ground and > Economic Partnership (LEP) to improve the

first floor shops. Potential also exists for > area, with a public space in front of the

new leisure uses within a scheme. station, simpler access arrangements and
replacement parking.

The police station is anticipated to close
The council will prioritise bringing the > and with development coming forward,
vacant buildings at the eastern end of potential exists to invest in the Princes
Union Street back into use, with retention e Hall building to refurbish it, creating
and refurbishment a preferred strategy. . | an impressive new entrance terrace
Opportunities exist for active town centre % : overlooking Princes Gardens and to
uses at ground floor and residential above. . improve the ground floor of the building.

The former Marks and Spencer building \ The new entrance approach will also
also has potential either to be re-let as one help the building to integrate better with
large or two medium sized units. A more the Westgate development as part of
significant change could be the Aldershot’s growing evening economy.
re-establishment of the arcade link between New homes fronting Wellington Avenue
Union Street and the High Street, with and Princes Way would create a better
smaller units that accommodate active uses entrance to the town centre.

at ground floor and homes above.

il ﬁu /

.

i

ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consuliation report December 2015 PaCk Page 32;‘



APPENDIX 2
STAKEHOLDER
COMMENTS

Rack Page 322



czg abed yoed

Respondent
Aldershot Civic Society

Response

The Civic Society is of the view that now, more than ever,
Aldershot needs to re-imagine itself to stop further decline and
to position itself as a modern town centre allowing independent
businesses opportunities to flourish, and not just shops but
leisure and decent places for people to live in a pleasant and
thriving town centre.

The priority for most people is sorting the Galleries, and the
society welcomes the changes that have been put forward, but
is concerned that without the council using all of its powers to
make sure that something happens, Threadneedle will continue
to sit on its asset bringing further decline to our town centre. It
is without any doubt that the Galleries has been an instrumental
part of the town centres decline and it must be a priority to
ensure that this does not go on any longer, as if it does, no other
changes in the plan will do more than polish the surface of a
rotten apple, from which only Threadneedle will benefit.

Opening up the Galleries as a ground level pedestrian route is
supported by the society as you will no longer have the problem
of escalators and lifts not working because of uninterested
landlords like Threadneedle. It would be important to make sure
that new shop units took on a Victorian look fitting with the
frontages like the ones demonstrated in the master plan on
Union Street. We welcome the removal of the bridge and the
restoration of the street view through to the Gala Bingo
building. Aldershot needs a new town square and we are
sceptical as to whether the “new square” noted in the
masterplan is substantial enough to be anywhere near big
enough to perform this task. We would be like to find out more
information on this new square, the size and how it would look.

Officer Comment
Comments noted. No suggested change.

The identification of the Galleries as a key site within the
Prospectus SPD provides the planning policy framework upon
which the Council can seek to bring forward positive change,
preferably in partnership with the current landowner.

Comments noted. It is not considered appropriate or
necessary to be too prescriptive to restrict the design of any
new build retail frontages. However, proposals should be
sympathetic to the prevailing town character.

The SPD identifies and supports the principle of a new square
within the heart of the town centre. Following detailed
design, it is more than likely that the location/dimensions of
such a public space will evolve over time.

29




yzg abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

The former Marks and Spencer plan seems sensible as there
seems little chance of a larger store wanting to use this space.
Opening up this area as a through route makes sense to help
make the town more accessible, and helps link the Princes
Gardens and Empire with the town centre. Lining this with shop
units we hope will encourage more independent traders.

The “library area” needs further explanation, as to what
happens with the entrance to the car park. It also seems to be
desperate redevelopment, rather than needed development.

The station development is welcomed with caution as it has long
been an aim of the civic society to see improvements here. One
concern is where the buses would go? The document states that
they would stop in front of the station, but if this is the case that
buses would stop nose to tail in front of the station we would
lose the gain in making the area look better as all we would see
looking towards the station would be parked buses.

Windsor Way redevelopment is long overdue as this area is
quite an eyesore, as is making Hippodrome House look better
and this is supported by us too, as with Birchett Road and
Victoria Road proposals.

Whist we welcome the changes to the look of the Princes Hall,
we are also disappointed that something more substantial was
not offered. Acquiring the old Ritz/Gala Bingo building as a new
theatre for Aldershot, bringing it closer to the high street car
park and town centre, and with its history of famous

Officer Comment
Comments noted. No suggested change.

It is understood that the proposed improvements to
pedestrian linkages between the Wellesley development and
the town centre identify this parcel of land as an improved
pedestrian connection. Subsequently, it is unlikely that the
corner infill proposal is achievable. It is recommended that
the allocation is removed from the final masterplan.

The intention is to introduce bus stops to the front of the
existing station building. There would be no requirement for a
‘bus station’ as is currently the case and therefore it is unlikely
that the buses using the interchange would be stationary for
long periods.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. The proposals within the SPD are indicative
and it will be the decision of the landowner (RBC in the case of
Princes Hall), based on a combination of financial viability and
public demand for the centre and its cultural offer, as to how
the scheme moves forward.

30




Gzg abed oed

Respondent

Response

performers. A complete re-build at the present site to give
Aldershot a brand new state of the art theatre would have also
been more welcomed.

New plans for the Empire are welcomed by the society and
anything that can be done to improve the car wash area
between the two old cinemas would be most welcomed.

We feel that one thing has been overlooked. That is there are no
plans in place for helping to ensure that the town is suitable for
visiting in all weathers. Whilst opening up new streets and
removing the Galleries is welcomed, there seems to be no
thought for interlinking shelters or glass rooves so that
restaurants could still seat people outside more modestly sized
units, and so shoppers were protected from the elements. It
could also be questioned why there is no information on
pedestrian flows? This was standard 30 years ago. Aldershot
does not want to compete with covered centres like Camberley
and Farnborough, but a few strategic awnings would not go
amiss. This could also help with linking together of key sites as
Aldershot always seems like a town in many fractured pieces,
rather than one joined up town.

In conclusion we generally support the draft Master Plan for
Aldershot, and it is important that improvements are
implemented as soon as possible to help our town thrive and
become a destination of choice for locals in and around the
area. This isn’t the first consultation on Aldershot Town Centre,
and we feel that the council needs to be bold as this may be the
last chance to try to revive the town.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. No suggested change.

A key theme of the Prospectus SPD is the desire to affirm the
Victorian Heritage of the town. Whilst the introduction of
traditional awnings within the street scene is welcomed such
as those seen at Poppins and Café Machiato, it is considered
that permanent shelters/connection corridors of
contemporary design would detract from the visual aesthetic
of the town centre.

Comments noted. As previously stated, the introduction of
this supplementary policy framework will help to drive
forward regeneration aspirations across the town centre and
allow for Council intervention where considered necessary.

Church Crookham
Parish Council

Church Crookham Parish Council support the regeneration of
Aldershot. This is a major town with some beautiful buildings

Comments noted. The Prospectus seeks to promote the
Victorian Heritage of the town and identifies that the Council

31




9zg abed oed

Respondent

Response

which the parish council would like to see retained. Some of the
more modern buildings have jarred with the development of the
town and will need serious re-modelling.

The addition of family friendly areas with pedestrianised ways
will open up Aldershot to become more than a town just to shop
in. The area needs more specialised shops side-by-side with
national brands. The parish council particularly likes the
modernization of Princes Hall.

Officer Comment

is committed to maintaining and enhancing this heritage.
Future development proposals will be considered in this
context.

Comments noted. The Prospectus seeks to promote a variety
of uses within the town centre, recognising that a major retail
focus is not necessarily the most appropriate approach. A
flexible approach is key to the future vitality of the town.

Environment Agency

Based on the submitted information, the Aldershot town centre
sites you have selected in the ‘Masterplan for Aldershot’ on
pages 40 and 41 all lie within Flood Zone 1 in accordance with
our Flood Risk Mapping. Flood Zone 1 is defined as having a low
probability of flooding in accordance with Table 1 ‘Flood Risk’ of
the Planning Practice Guidance. There is no fluvial flood risk
associated with the Aldershot town centre sites in accordance
with our Flood Risk Mapping. You will need to consider other
sources of flooding in consultation with the Lead Local Flood
Authority (LLFA). In this case the LLFA is Hampshire County
Council.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Hampshire County
Council

The County Council notes that “connections to the walking
routes that surround the town are to be improved in the longer
term, with better signage and communication to raise the
profile of these resources and path maintenance and
enhancement, as funding becomes available”.

The Hampshire Countryside Access Plan 2015-25, states that
Hampshire County Council Countryside Service

“....will work with others to identify a strategic, county-wide
network within this which incorporates the key links between

32




/2 abed yoed

Respondent

Response
centres of population and places of interest in Hampshire’s
countryside, both at present and looking to meet future needs”.

Hampshire County Council Countryside Service therefore
supports this aspect of the SPD and look forward to working
with the Borough and developers to achieve some of these
shared objectives.

The SPD currently makes no reference to sustainability or
climate change. Hampshire County Council Environmental
Strategy Team recommends the inclusion of wording to ensure
that paragraphs 93 to 98 of the National Planning Policy
Framework are addressed.

The County Council recommend the following wording should
be incorporated into the SPD:

‘New developments and improvements to existing properties
will be planned in a way that reduces greenhouse gas emissions
and utilises energy efficiency measures. The use of renewable,
decentralised and/or low carbon energy generation technology
will be encouraged.’

p.13 first para: Hampshire County Council as the Highway
Authority notes that this text states: “easy to get to and park
and get around”. The County Council recommends that the
Borough Council amend this text to reference sustainable access
as the current wording implies that people will drive from
Wellesley as there is lots of parking available in town rather than
promoting sustainable access to the town centre from the new
development.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. No suggested change.

The SPD provides further planning guidance in support of the
adopted Core Strategy. The policy framework in respect of
sustainable development/construction methods is outlined
within Policy CP3 of the Core Strategy and this would be a
material consideration for any new proposals. It is not
considered necessary to repeat these policies within the SPD.

Comments noted. This part of the vision statement is not
explicitly related to travel by car. The suggested revised
wording is too detailed for inclusion in the vision statement.
Other statements in the SPD support sustainable travel. No
change proposed.

33




8z¢ abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

Easy to access by a variety of sustainable modes of transport,
including walking, cycling, public transport as well as the private
car. Easy to get to and around, the town will become
increasingly vibrant...

p.30 first bullet: Hampshire County Council as the Highway
Authority notes that this text states: “Enhanced landscaping,
rationalisation of the road layout and a new multi-storey car
park to improve the experience of arriving in Aldershot by train
and to avoid conflict between cars, buses and pedestrians in the
area”

This current wording makes it seem like the multi-storey car
park will make it better for people arriving by train and
recommends that the statement is amended for clarity.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that for
clarity the wording is amended as set out below to:

Enhanced landscaping, rationalisation of the road network as
well as a fayeutand new multi-storey car park will te-improve
the experience of arriving in Aldershot by train and help to aveid
reduce the conflict between cars, buses and pedestrians in the
area

p.30 second bullet: Hampshire County Council notes that this
text states: “Improvements to connections to and from the new
Wellesley development”

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Seek to amend bullet point to reflect HCC
recommendation.

This will confirm that the proposal here is to improve the
integration of transport modes at the railway station by an
improvement to the forecourt. As a consequence of this
improvement, the proposal includes some decking of the car
park to maintain the current levels of car park capacity (it is
not proposed to construct a new multi-storey car park).

34



62 abed yoed

Respondent

Response

The County Council as Highway Authority would expect to see
more emphasis on sustainable transport links if this section
“Investing in Streets and Spaces” is referring to. The section
should also reference what the new and improved links are (or
are planned to be) so that it is made clear in this section.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

Accessibility improvements that link to the new Wellesley
development, pedestrian crossings on the high street as well as
potentially new and improved sustainable transport links
between the High Street and Union Street.

p.48 first para: Hampshire County Council notes that this text
states: The area around the station, including the parking, bus
stands and highways does little to enhance the setting.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that this
text is amended as the term “highways” is misleading and so
should not be used in this context. The station should also be
referred to as the railway station for clarity throughout the
document.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

The area around the railway station, including the parking, bus
stands and highway environment does little to enhance the
setting.

Officer Comment

The improved links between High Street and Union Street
refer to the proposed new pedestrian link through the vacant
M&S store. It is proposed to make this clearer in the final
version of the SPD.

Comments noted. Seek to amend paragraph to reflect HCC
recommendation.

35




0cg abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

p.48 second para: Hampshire County Council notes that this text
states: “The existing access and movement in the area is
complex, including buses, taxis, pick up and set down for private
cars, and access to the station for parking.”

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends
amending this bullet point to provide a clearer picture of the
movements at the entrance to the railway station and how that
mix is influenced by vehicles and vulnerable users.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

The existing accessibility in the area is complex, including buses,
taxis, cyclists, pedestrians, pick up and set down for private cars,
and access to the station for parking.”

p.50 The County Council supports the aspirations for the Princes
Hall and Police Station. However the following comments clarify
the delivery approach to the Police Station and Magistrates
Court.

On page 50, second paragraph, it is suggested that a phased
approach would be taken to redevelopment. However, as the
Police Station and Magistrates Court are housed in one building,
it is likely that the comprehensive redevelopment could occur
should the Magistrates Court be provided on another site.

Therefore, the County Council recommends that the image on
the top right of the page showing potential phasing is removed
to reflect this, and that the paragraph be replaced as
recommended by the County Council:

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Seek to amend paragraph to reflect HCC
recommendation.

36




T¢g abed yoed

Respondent

Response

‘The Police Station is anticipated to close as part of a wider
strategy for policing. However the Magistrates Court is expected
to remain in use so there is an opportunity to enhance and
retain the Police Station for public sector community benefit. In
the event of the relocation of the Magistrates Court, the site
could have potential for residential redevelopment.’

p.10 Hampshire County Council notes that this text states:
“....through better signage and path widening....”

Although the County Council as the Highway Authority supports
the aspiration stated here, if this section is referring to footpaths
(which isn’t currently made clear) then it should explicitly refer
to footpath widening.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

..... through better signage and footpath widening

p.12 Hampshire County Council note that this text states:
“.....will be improved with greening and signage”

Hampshire County Council as the Highway Authority take this
opportunity to ask the Borough Council what the term
‘Greening’ means in this context as it is not clear from the text
what it refers to?

Officer Comment

RBC is aware that the Hampshire Police Authority is reviewing
its estate and, at the time of writing, indications are that
Aldershot Police Station will be marketed in the short term as
a development opportunity. Whilst it is recognised that the
building is attached to the Magistrate Court, it is likely that
the Police Authority will be seeking best value from its site i.e.
residential. Accordingly, it is considered appropriate to retain
the phasing option within the Prospectus SPD to encourage a
flexible approach.

Comments noted. Seek to amend paragraph to reflect HCC
recommendation.

37




zse abed yoed

Respondent

Response

Clarification from the Borough Council is required to understand
what ‘Greening’ means in the context of this SPD.

p.12 Hampshire County Council note that this text states:
“Pedestrian and cycle links between new homes and the town
centre will be very important and the routes on.......

Hampshire County Council as the Highway Authority
recommends that this wording should refer to existing routes to
accurately highlight the fact that these routes exist but they will
be improved.

p.31 Hampshire County Council notes that the text states: “.....so
that pedestrians can access the station more easily......

Hampshire County Council as the Highway Authority
recommends the use of the term visitors should be applied to
the SPD here instead of pedestrians. By not using the term
pedestrians all modes and user groups are incorporated under
the term visitors.

The County Council as Highway Authority recommends that the
wording is amended as set out below:

“.....s0 that visitors can access the station more easily......

p.60 third bullet: Hampshire County Council as Highway
Authority asks the Borough Council whether CIL needs to be
referenced here too along with S106 and Developer
Contributions.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Will seek to amend wording to ‘soft
landscaping’ rather than ‘greening’.

Comments noted. Seek to introduce the word “existing”

Comments noted. Seek to amend paragraph to reflect HCC
recommendation.

Comments noted. Seek to amend bullet to reflect HCC
recommendation i.e. introduce CIL into the delivery
mechanisms.

38




cee abed yoed

Respondent

Response

Officer Comment

Hart District Council

There is more than enough vacant space in Aldershot to cope
with forecast retail growth requirements (Rushmoor Retail &
Town Centre Study, 2015). Therefore the type of net growth
needed is most likely to be housing, since this encourages
activity within centres. It is understood that the SPD will provide
guidelines as to how Aldershot town centre is to be
redeveloped. Whilst the draft SPD addresses the potential for
housing HDC does not have complete confidence that it seeks to
optimise residential densities.

In this context we highlight the following sites as examples:

. The Galleries - Option 1, which would provide an
estimated 121 homes instead of 54, is preferable since it
maximises housing and could be delivered within the first five
years. The Rushmoor SHLAA indicates that in excess of 200 units
would be feasible at this location, and a mix of uses could still be
accommodated

J Police Station - The draft SPD estimates 36 units may be
possible whilst the SHLAA indicates potential for 100
. High Street - Whilst it is important to consider a variety

of uses at this location the SHLAA does indicate that the King’s
Centre / Gala Bingo and surrounding uses could accommodate
around 85 homes. The draft SPD does not currently cater for
homes.

Rushmoor Borough Council has signed up to the principle that it
will do all it reasonably can to accommodate its own objectively
assessed housing need (OAHN, see Terms of Reference for the
Joint Hart, Rushmoor, Surrey Heath Member Liaison Group).
HDC'’s current understanding is that Rushmoor could have a
housing shortfall of 1,600 units in its emerging local plan. HDC

The Prospectus actively promotes town centre living — seeking
to promote homes to cater for young people, families and
older people wishing to downsize.

The Aldershot Prospectus SPD is drafted in support of adopted
policies within the Core Strategy (2011). The SPD recognises
(page 8) that a Strategic Housing Market Assessment has been
undertaken, which in turn has identified a significant
requirement for new homes in the town. However, it is not
considered that the SPD is the appropriate place to refer to
the objectively assessed housing need. This is best considered
within the context of the emerging Rushmoor Local Plan.

Regarding capacity, it is noted that the options outlined within
the Prospectus differ from the capacity identified within the
latest iteration of the SHLAA. However, the SPD is only
indicative and the densities/layout suggested should only be
considered as such.

39




yeg abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

stated within its response to the summer 2015 consultation on
the Borough Council’s preferred local plan that it was evident
that greater residential densities could be achieved at sites in
town centre locations.

Hart therefore objects to the draft SPD and asks Rushmoor to
refer more explicitly to its OAHN, and to the challenges required
in seeking to accommodate such need. HDC also requests that
the SPD is reviewed to ensure that housing density and delivery
are maximised.

Officer Comment

Health and Safety
Executive

We have concluded that we have no representations to make on
this occasion. This is because our records show that the
Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD boundary and the land
within does not encroach on the consultation zones of major
hazard installations or major accident hazard pipelines (MAHPs).
As no encroachment has been detected, the HSE does not need
to be informed of the next stages in the adoption of the
Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus SPD.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Lantana Properties Ltd

1. On page 34, Willow House, which is at the junction of Victoria
Road and Grosvenor Road, is shown on the plan as a "historically
significant building at crossroads". It is a tired 1960's office
block, which the owners wish to redevelop and replace. This
plan needs to be amended.

2. On page 40, Willow House is shown as a "corner infill
development opportunity”, which we agree it is. However, the
land to the rear of the building is shown green as if it is to be
landscaped. In fact, this land does not belong to Willow House.
In reality, it is laid out to tarmac and used for car parking. This
plan needs to be amended.

Comments noted. Seek to amend the plan to remove the
designation of Willow House as an ‘historically significant
building’.

Comments noted. Seek to amend plan to take account of the
landowner’s comments.

London and Cambridge
Properties Ltd

We are broadly supportive of the six themes presented in the
draft prospectus but it is considered that there should be an

The SPD actively promotes town centre living. It is not
considered appropriate to actively encourage additional floors

40




Ggeg abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

acknowledgement in the prospectus with regards to building
additional floors at upper levels, where appropriate, to
encourage further homes in the town centre, in accordance with
theme No.2. Town Centre Living.

There are a number of sites where there are the opportunities
to build additional floors to provide additional good quality
residential units in the town centre location and this should be
reflected in the wording of the policy accordingly. This would
further help to add to a revitalised town centre, in accordance
with theme No.1. The use of upper floors should specially be
noted under No.2 Town Centre Living.

Furthermore, as acknowledged in the ‘Retail, Leisure and Town
Centre Study’ Part 2 Town Centres, prepared by Nathaniel
Lichfield and Partners, the vacancy rate of the Aldershot Town
Centre is almost double the national average at 23.6%
suggesting there is weak demand for retail units in the centre.
There should therefore be a reference which allows greater
flexibility to alternative non-retail uses where units have been
vacant for and or marketed for a significant time, i.e. 6-12
months. This is because vacant units, especially in the primary
shopping of the town centre can have a significant impact on the
town centre’s vitality and viability, which would prevent the
revitalisation of the Town Centre.

Too restrictive and not enough sites identified, given the
opportunities available in Aldershot. There needs to be
additional sites added to ensure the 6 themes of the prospectus
can be achieved.

Officer Comment

at upper levels within the document itself. Given that a key
theme is the recognition of the town’s Victorian heritage, it
would be somewhat at odds to encourage additional storeys
that would detract from this character.

Such proposals should be considered on their individual
merits in the context of the townscape/street scene and
should be a material consideration in the context of the Local
Plan rather than promoted specifically within the SPD.

The SPD is drafted within the context of the adopted Core
Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies and is
required to be consistent. The town centre policies within
these documents provide the framework for the SPD.
Appropriate flexibility is built into these policies to allow for
diversification where it is considered justified. Subsequently,
it is not considered necessary to repeat this position within
the SPD itself.

The key sites identified are not an exhaustive list. They have
been identified as RBC priorities but this does not restrict or
take precedence over alternative or additional proposals
coming forward.

Natural England

| can confirm that Natural England have no comments to make
on this draft document.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

41




o¢cg abed oed

Respondent
Rushmoor Cycle Forum

Response

We would state that any future developments in Rushmoor and
Aldershot should have strong sustainable transport at the hub of
the design.

That the designers should use best practice and lessons learned
from the UK and around the world. To ensure a positive change
in Aldershot centre and the surrounding town.

Reference should be made to both Hampshire cycling strategy,
Rushmoor Local Plan development & Aldershot Town Access
Plan.

We welcome the mention of sustainable transport and
improved cycling facilities/connectivity and family friendly
streets but details seems very sparse on this important topic.

We would propose that a commitment for a dedicated key
section of the proposal for top quality cycle/pedestrian and
sustainable transport.

We would like an expert team to do a full investigation of all
options for providing this key topic. The work on the centre
should be an integral part of a wider action plan to upgrade of a
network of routes through the borough and beyond.

Aldershot should consider all the ranges of possible solutions for
improved sustainable infrastructure from becoming a mini
Holland to filtered permeability’ for cyclists. Cycling and
sustainable infrastructure, is at the heart of a vibrant town and
community and could help to fulfil the desired objective of the
plan.

Officer Comment
Comments noted. Sustainable transport modes are actively
promoted and supported across Rushmoor.

The Prospectus SPD provides further guidance in respect of
existing planning policies within the adopted Core Strategy
and the Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies.

The comments of the Rushmoor Cycle Forum are noted. The
Aldershot Town Access Plan has proposed a series of new
facilities to encourage cycling in Aldershot which will be
pursued, and funding associated with new town centre
development will be sought to bring these projects forward as
appropriate.

42




/€€ abed yoed

Respondent

Response

Cycling has a valuable role in improving the lives of Aldershot
residence including; health and well being, an efficient form of
transport, reducing congestion, pollution minimisation.

Reclaiming the streets for people. Making it a more family and
person friendly area and generally a more pleasant place to be
and live.

All new developments should priorities cycle developments as
an efficient solution to solve many of the problems communities
experience.

We would call on the developers of Aldershot to have an
ambitious vision.

A number of cities and large towns are realising this and making
applications for major funding to become mini Holland’s with
regards to cycle infrastructure, London has schemes in various
stages of implementation, and locally Guildford is proposing
major improvements in this area.

Recent surveys by sustains shows the key desires for people to
increase cycling and increased funding for infrastructure.

Areas where quality cycle infrastructure has been implemented
has shown an increase in retail sales.

Cost benefit of cycle infrastructure in health benefits (reduced
mortality) alone has been shown to be a ration of x2.5.

We strongly suggest that Rushmoor and Aldershot ensure that
each development is designed with the goal of future proofing
the area with regards to cycle infrastructure. Matching and
exceeding other UK infrastructure. To ensure that Rushmoor

Officer Comment

43




g8¢¢ abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

and Aldershot has a key differentiator in this field. With people
looking to Aldershot for examples of successful cycle
infrastructure and a quality of life.

If each small or large development missies this opportunity it
will severely damage the future potential of Rushmoor and
Aldershot. Each part needs to be planned with extreme care and
forethought, to ensure it links to future developments and
meets the needs of its current and future residences.

Officer Comment

Rushmoor Borough
Council — Environment
Panel

Aldershot Town Hall is a significant building which deserves
priority to emphasise its role in the development of Aldershot.

Good quality family living in the town centre is vital (including
good quality new builds and conversions).

Princes Hall — the location was accepted but its size and capacity
must be expanded.

The principle of having a good town square was endorsed but
the Panel wanted to see a well-defined and well-framed town
square irrespective of its location.

The emphasis on the town’s Victorian heritage and architecture
was endorsed and it was felt that this should have prominence
in the document and should be promoted, protected, enhanced
and preserved.

Aldershot Town Hall is a Grade Il listed building currently
occupied by Hampshire County Council. RBC Officers are not
aware of any future plans to vacate the building. As a
statutorily protected building, its significance is recognised in
the Aldershot townscape.

Comments noted. The Prospectus supports/promotes town
centre living. Detailed considerations such as the quality of
design are covered by national and local policies.

Comments noted. The principle of retaining the theatre is
outlined in the Prospectus. Decisions relating to its size and
capacity are a matter to be determined corporately.

Comments noted. Seek to introduce further text in the SPD
regarding good design principles for a town square.

44




6cE abed yoed

Respondent

Response
Redundant sites on Windsor Way should be linked more to the
Railway Station development in the document.

A Heritage Trail was considered an excellent idea and should be

referenced in the document. It was suggested that this could be
enhanced through the use of good public art (not forgetting the

military).

Officer Comment

Rushmoor Labour
Group

What is considered Aldershot Town Centre is defined too
narrowly if it is to include housing, leisure, culture and spaces.
For example, the corners of Hospital Hill and Wellington Avenue
across the road from Princes Hall and Princes Gardens could also
be taken into consideration. Also, the open area of land
between Cassino Close and High Street is very much in need of
improvement. Further, the area between Parsons Close and
High Street, including the Parsons Barracks Car Park could be
included.

To the south, with Aldershot Register Office moving out and the
former Potters building on the corner of Queens Road empty
and The Old Town Hall being vacated, the whole of that site
could be considered for a major development (albeit The Old
Town Hall is a Listed building).

For a proactive approach to succeed, Rushmoor Borough Council
needs to appoint a Project Director to act as the “champion” of
Aldershot Town Centre in driving forward this development and
investment while being democratically accountable to the local
community.

Further, Rushmoor Borough Council should consider setting up a

The Prospectus SPD is drafted as an extension of existing
policies within the Core Strategy and the Rushmoor Local Plan
Saved Policies document. The town centre boundary is
defined by these policies and is reflected on the Core Strategy
Proposals Map. The SPD operates within this remit.

A number of the properties around the Queens Road/Victoria
Road junction are either nationally or locally listed and
subsequently, major development opportunities are limited.
The former Potters Building has planning permission for
conversion of the listed building and new build development
to the rear.

This is a matter to be considered corporately and falls outside
of the remit of the Prospectus SPD.

This is a matter to be considered corporately and falls outside

45




ots abed 3oed

Respondent Response Officer Comment
joint venture company with suitable partners (in the way that of the remit of the Prospectus SPD. The Council being able to
the Westgate development did) in order to provide a suitable bring land forward i.e. as freeholder, is an integral part of any

vehicle for managing development and investment in Aldershot | such venture.
Town Centre.

It is unrealistic for the Prospectus to set out policies for Comments noted. The Prospectus recognises that Aldershot is
significant growth of retail in Aldershot Town Centre over the unlikely to compete with nearby regional centres and must
plan period. focus on alternative approaches to supporting the

vitality/vibrancy of the town.

It would be more realistic to set out policies for consolidation The SPD is drafted in support of existing policies within the
and diversification of retail, while concentrating on providing Core Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies
much-needed housing and associated leisure and cultural document. Proposals to change frontages/consolidate the
facilities in Aldershot Town Centre. town centre need to be driven by changes to these policies

within a new Local Plan.

With that reservation, we welcome Rushmoor Borough Council’s | Comments noted.
intention to plan positively for Aldershot’s future and to provide
clarity on investment priorities.

It is not enough for development proposals to be permitted that | The SPD is drafted in support of existing policies within the
maintain the vitality and the viability of Aldershot Town Centre. | Core Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies

It is already too late for that laissez-faire approach, which has document and reflects national planning guidance. As noted
not worked in the past 10 years since The Galleries was emptied. | above, proposals to change frontages/consolidate the town
centre need to be driven by changes to these policies within a
new Local Plan.

Aldershot Town Centre is in a critical state, so Rushmoor
Borough Council needs to take urgent action immediately to
regenerate it.

46



1€ abed »oed

Respondent

Response
Policy TC1 is not proactive enough, particularly in bringing to
bear consideration of the real factors that are driving retail out:

- high rents

- high business rates

- high parking charges

- expensive bus fares

- relatively low income of population regularly using
Aldershot Town Centre

- concentration of deprivation in and around Aldershot
Town Centre (including the high proportion of elderly in the
population).

Policy TC2 is in danger of leading to even more empty shop units
and charity shops, in the absence of policies to address the
factors above.

Policy TC3 would be suitable if there was demand for shopping
units on the ground floor. However, given the flight of retail
from Aldershot Town Centre, it would be more appropriate to
consider residential units without shopping on the ground floor,
where appropriate.

For Aldershot Town Centre, its critical state means that we need
to see beyond policies being assessed purely on planning
grounds to being practical, and we need to be prepared to
consider any proposals that will make a positive contribution to
saving Aldershot Town Centre from collapse.

There seems no evidence for the optimistic view of the
Enterprise M3 LEP that there is demand for new retail units,
above which housing can be built.

Officer Comment

Policies TC1, TC2 and TC3 are “saved” town centre policies (in
the Rushmoor Local Plan Review, 2000) and form part of the
basis for considering town centre related applications at
present, along with relevant policies from the Core Strategy.
Any proposed changes to this suite of policies will need to be
taken forward within a new Local Plan document. RBC
consulted on the Preferred Approach version of the new Local
Plan during the Summer and will be publishing a further draft
for consultation in 2016.

Comments noted. RBC is able to consider departures from
policy if there are material considerations that weigh in favour
of a proposal.

47




Zie abed yoed

Respondent

Response

We need to recognise that the £3 million investment in streets,
spaces and shop fronts has not restored vitality to Aldershot
Town Centre, many of whose retailers find themselves hard-
pressed to make ends meets in the current climate.

The Prospectus claims that Aldershot has a price differential
with surrounding areas that makes property relatively affordable
for a desirable part of the country. However, all of that changed
when the first units on the Wellesley development went on sale
by Bellway (for example, a one-bed flat costing £200,000 — well
above the current average price in Aldershot of £140,000).

The Prospectus needs to deal with the demographic of
Aldershot Town Centre as it is now, and then go forward on a
realistic timetable based on how change in that demographic
may be reflected in future developments. The Prospectus needs
proposals that address the following weaknesses in the current
offer:

- high rents

- high business rates

- high parking charges

- expensive bus fares

- relatively low income of population using Aldershot
Town Centre

- concentration of deprivation in and around Aldershot
Town Centre (including the high proportion of elderly in the
population).

Not everyone will be able to afford high-quality urban homes, so
there will need to be provision of affordable and social housing
to meet demand — demand that currently very much exceeds

Officer Comment

This is not a matter for consideration within the Prospectus
SPD.

The focus of the Aldershot Town Centre Prospectus is the
defined ‘town centre’ in accordance with the adopted Core
Strategy. It is this location where the price differential exists.

The issue of rents falls outside the remit of the SPD. If RBC
was a significant landowner within the town centre, it could
influence such matters. However, the majority of sites are
within private ownership and landowners have the freedom
to determine their own rent values.

In addition, the Prospectus is not the appropriate mechanism
for establishing the corporate position in respect of business
rates, parking charges and bus fares. These issues fall outside
of the scope of the SPD.

Comments noted. Development proposals will need to accord
with wider planning considerations, including in respect of the
provision of affordable housing.

48




cpe abed yoed

Respondent

Response
supply.

Plans need to be realistic and based on the reality that the most
affluent have nothing to attract them into Aldershot Town
Centre at present or in the foreseeable future. Guildford,
Farnham, Reading, Basingstoke, Winchester and even
Portsmouth and Southampton have much more to offer the
most affluent.

In the longer term, as Wellesley housing is occupied, there may
be opportunities to have more specialist shops in Aldershot
Town Centre. However, Wellesley is going to have its own local
centre to meet the convenience shopping needs of its residents,
so this provision has to be taken into account. For non-
convenience and affluent shopping, Wellesley residents will be
most likely to travel to Guildford, Farnham, Reading, or
Basingstoke, as the more affluent residents of Aldershot do at
present.

In terms of trying to establish a retail hierarchy, Wellington
Centre is dominant because of the number and the range of its
shops, but otherwise the most dynamic area is Station Road and
the east of Victoria Road.

In addition, the so-called improvement scheme of Victoria Road,
which introduced an often-ignored “No Entry” zone between
Heathland Street and Gordon Road, has affected shops there
badly and needs to be removed as soon as possible.

Before seeking to meet the demand from young professionals
who wish to move the area, there needs to be some focus on
meeting the demand from the existing population of Aldershot.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. The Prospectus recognises that Aldershot
is unlikely to compete with regional towns nearby in terms of
being able to accommodate ‘High Street’ retailers. However,
Officers consider that the SPD should be aspirational as well
as deliverable, particularly given that the document looks to
the longer term.

The Prospectus recognises that the main role of Aldershot
Town Centre will be in respect of convenience and local
shopping needs.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

This is a matter to be considered corporately and falls outside
of the remit of the Prospectus SPD.

The policy mechanisms for the delivery of housing are set out
in adopted local policy. In terms of low cost housing, there is
an evident need for affordable housing across the Borough. It

49




y¢ abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

This unmet demand from the existing population has increased
the numbers of homeless, rough sleepers, people who have an
urgent need to move, and people who have been assessed as
having a high priority.

In part, the high vacancy rate of the town centre car parking at
the High Street multi-storey car park is due to the reluctance of
town-centre residents to park there overnight because of the
high charges and because of the anti-social behaviour of rough
sleepers who have been residing there. Measures therefore
need to be taken to invest in making the car park secure for
residents and users, rather than having it open to the anti-social.

A family-friendly town centre

This theme is at odds with the increasing devotion of the town
centre to a night-time economy, which has seen increases in late
night and early morning openings of venues for consumption of
alcohol, music and entertainment — the most recent being for
the Empire (formerly The Kings Church) in High Street to be
open until 3.00 am four nights a week, likely to be closely
followed by the refurbished Palace nightclub in Station Road.

Evidence of the degree of public nuisance is that Police crime
records for Aldershot showed last year that rate of offences
committed in Wellington Ward (Aldershot Town Centre) per
head of population was five times as great as in all the other
wards in Aldershot, these offences being mainly anti-social
behaviour and assaults.

For Aldershot to have a really family-friendly town centre, these
sources of crime and anti-social behaviour need to be reduced

Officer Comment
is recognised that higher density schemes within the town
centre provide the opportunity to deliver affordable housing.

Comments noted. This issue will be raised as a corporate
matter.

A successful town centre needs to offer variety and cater for a
wide audience. The evening economy does not need to
necessarily detract from the aim of achieving a ‘family-
friendly’ town centre, particularly as the majority of ‘family’
activities will occur during the day time.

Comments noted. This is a matter to be considered
corporately. The SPD can have little, if any, impact on
licensing issues.

50




G abed 3oed

Respondent

Response
as far as possible. Otherwise, Aldershot’s reputation will
continue to be tarnished.

It is very disappointing that in the draft Prospectus there is no
photograph and no mention made of Aldershot Lido, which
provides a family day out for hundreds of Aldershot residents
when it is open in the summer. There is great appetite among
the long-standing residents of Aldershot to see this leisure
facility regenerated.

An improved cultural offer

Unfortunately, this section shows a distinct lack of imagination
in mentioning only Westgate and Princes Hall and the events
programme in the town, however successful they are in raising
peoples’ spirits.

There is no mention of Aldershot Library and what it offers.
Through an integrated approach with Hampshire County
Council, Aldershot Library could be relocated to a new civic
centre (for example, as part of a Union Street/High Street
redevelopment). That would then free up the current Aldershot
Library to be joined with The Galleries site in a major
development scheme with housing, leisure and some retail
facing onto High Street opposite the High Street Car Park.

Also, West End Centre in Queens Road, is a major local arts
venue, now part of the Hampshire Cultural Trust. And, there is
the ambitious Rock & Pop Foundation in Grosvenor Road.
Aldershot Town Football Club at the EBB Stadium in High Street
makes a very significant contribution through its Football in the
Community Scheme.

Officer Comment

The Prospectus focuses on Aldershot Town Centre, as defined
by the Core Strategy and Rushmoor Local Plan Saved Policies.
Aldershot Lido is sited a considerable distance from the town

centre and subsequently does not fall within the remit of the

Prospectus.

Comments noted. Seek to include the library within the
Prospectus document.

Comments noted. Seek to include reference to the West End
Centre within the Prospectus document. Aldershot Town FC
are mentioned within the Prospectus.

51




ot abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

If Aldershot Town Centre is to have an improved cultural offer,
all these organisations and others need to be involved in plans
for its future.

Also, with respect to the section on the potential for
transformation of Princes Hall, the changes shown are purely
superficial to the front of the building and do nothing to
enhance the cultural content that it could offer if, for example,
the stage and seating were to be reconfigured so that it could
mount London West end shows. A café could already be
provided in the current building, and an open terrace for the
occasional ceremony is unnecessary. Finally, those steps to the
side look totally out of place and would not really provide a
stronger relationship with Westgate, which has two or three
blank white walls facing Princes Hall.

Investing in streets and spaces

Although it has upgraded some streets and spaces, the
Activation Aldershot programme has not led to any
improvement in retail in Aldershot Town Centre — so we have
seen the departure of M&S Outlook from Union Street and the
Coop from Victoria Road/Birchett Road.

It is also questionable whether, with the current population
profile, the £200,000 grant scheme for shop fronts will bring any
extra retail into Aldershot.

Officer Comment

The SPD does not preclude the involvement of community
organisations in plans for the future of Aldershot. Indeed, RBC
has brought together a community group to discuss matters
relating to events within the town centre following initial
engagement on the Prospectus.

The Prospectus proposals are indicative of what could be
achieved. This is a matter for RBC to determine how best to
proceed, based on a combination of financial viability and
public demand for the centre and its cultural offer.

To date, the investment in public realm improvements has
focused on strengthening pedestrian connections between
Wellesley and the town centre (Court Road) and Westgate
and the town centre (Barrack Road/Grosvenor Road). Given
the lack of land ownership within the town centre, it is
difficult for RBC to instigate a step-change in retail provision.

The shop front improvement scheme seeks to build upon the
Victorian heritage of the town centre, with an emphasis on
Union Street and Wellington Street to create a more cohesive
town centre.

52




/€ abed yoed

Respondent

Response

The only way to create significant public space would be to
demolish an existing building, and it is doubtful whether this
would be worthwhile in terms of the benefit to be achieved.
There are already significant public spaces in Aldershot Town
Centre — Princes Gardens, Westgate and Court Road — so it may
be preferable to develop plans to make better use of these.

Another aspect of investing in streets and spaces that is
currently neglected is maintenance, as evidenced by the run-
down state of the abandoned buildings on two corners of the
crossroads at Queens Road, Victoria Road and Grosvenor Road —
which the Prospectus sees as providing a public realm
investment opportunity.

Affirming the Victorian heritage

It is important to give the owners of the Victorian buildings,
particularly those that are prominent, support in bringing them
into active use, maintaining them and highlighting them,
perhaps by having plaques explaining their historical significance
and lighting them at night, and having an Aldershot Town Centre
walk between them.

The Galleries
At first sight, either of the Options looks attractive compared

with the empty (“ghost town”) shopping mall that The Galleries
has been for the past 10 years.

Officer Comment

It is recognised that the creation of a new public space within
the heart of the town centre is reliant on significant
redevelopment schemes, hence the consideration to include it
within the Galleries proposal. A central open space would be
of greater benefit to the town economy.

Willow House has recently been purchased and the
landowner has responded to the Prospectus SPD. The old
Potters Building is with planning permission. As both buildings
are in private ownership, there is little influence that RBC can
have on their appearance.

Comments noted. The Prospectus recognises the value of the
Victorian buildings within the town centre and suggests that a
number of these properties would benefit from up-lighting in
the evenings to highlight their architectural qualities. The SPD
also states that improvements could be made subject to
funding being available.

53




8¢ abed 3oed

Respondent

Response
However, closer inspection reveals significant issues:

. The area labelled “NEW SQUARE” hardly seems any
wider than Wellington Street at the end nearest to Wellington
Street.

. Little Wellington Street is closed off about halfway, so
there is a question about access to service the new shops and
flats to the south.

. Both options contain significant amounts of additional
retail, when all the evidence points to a flight of retail from
Aldershot Town Centre.

. In the event of Option 1 —est. 121 residential units —
where would the car parking be to current standards?

It may therefore be desirable to consider an Option 3 that
configures the connecting walkway between High Street and
Wellington Street with housing on the ground floor (allowing the
construction of town houses, rather than flats) and with retail
confined to the frontages on High Street and Wellington Street
(of the type shown by Steve Walker of Allies & Morrison at a
Councillors’ Housing & Planning Forum on 22 October 2015).

Demolition of the walkway between The Wellington Centre and
The Galleries is desirable, as it would no longer be required.

Union Street and former Marks and Spencer building

The Union Street East block would be best redeveloped as
residential above and retail below, as it is highly visible from the
stepped entrance into Aldershot Town Centre from the High
Street Car Park.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and will be subject to detailed design — in respect of
appearance, servicing and car parking. It is understood that
the High Street car park could be used to offset car parking
requirements of a Galleries residential scheme.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

54




61€ abed yoed

Respondent

Response

However, the question remains over the viability of the retail
space below, given the flight of retail from Aldershot Town
Centre at present.

Given the size and the configuration of the former M&S, the
amount of refurbishment need to bring it into use, and the flight
of retail from Aldershot Town Centre, the first option for this
site seems unrealistic.

The second option is preferable, particularly if the link created
between Union Street and High Street could also allow creation
of a town square facing onto the middle of Union Street.

However, again, there is the question about the viability of new
retail units in the current situation, so it could be preferable to
have retail confined to the frontages on High Street and Union
Street (again of the type shown by Steve Walker of Allies &
Morrison at a Councillors’ Housing & Planning Forum on 22
October 2015).

The Rail Station

The opportunity to redevelop Aldershot Station is welcome, but
more consideration needs to be given to the effect on the
residents of Kingsley Court, the sheltered housing
accommodation for about 110 elderly residents, which would
then be surrounded on three sides by traffic on the move all day
and all evening. The location of the entry and the exit to the new
decked car park could adversely affect the environment in the
garden of Kingsley Court, where the elderly residents can sit in
the summer.

Officer Comment

It is understood that the current configuration of the units is
not attractive to modern retailers. It is considered that a
redevelopment scheme could address these concerns.

Comments noted.

Comments noted. Suggest making reference to a new public
square within the final version of the Prospectus.

The issue of viability for specific schemes is a matter for the
detailed design/application stage but a high level viability
assessment for each scheme in the SPD has been undertaken.

Comments noted. This will need to be considered at the
detailed design stage. Work to date by officers has focused on
the provision of the decked car park to the railway side of the
land parcel and it is hoped that a single deck would offer
minimal/if any encroachment onto the amenity of the existing
residents.

55




0G¢ abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

It could be preferable to have entry directly into the new decked
car park off Windsor Way as part of the redevelopment of the
empty site at the end of Albert Road nearest to Aldershot
Station. That would also reduce the potential for conflict
between pedestrians walking to Aldershot Station and vehicles
entering and leaving the decked car park at the bend on Station
Road.

Given the Government drive to build starter homes at station
sites, it could be practicable to build flats above the decked car
park. With active support from the Homes & Communities
Agency (HCA), this project could be advanced rapidly and make
a contribution towards the HCA target of building 200,000
starter homes by 2020.

With respect to making the entrance to Aldershot Station
attractive to passengers arriving, Network Rail needs to make
proper provision for maintenance of the environment on the
land it owns. At present, all that is apparent to passengers
arriving from London is a ghastly underpass that brings them out
into a weed-strewn forecourt, a neglected small garden and
raised beds in the car park, whose only contribution is yet more
weeds, with the car park itself being surrounded on all sides by
weeds.

Princes Hall, Police Station and Magistrates Court

Consideration needs first to be given to assessing jointly with
Her Majesty’s Courts Service (HMCS) whether it is better to
redevelop this site as a whole, as the HMCS lease on the County
Court in Victoria Road is due to expire, so HMCS is planning to
integrate the County Court into the Magistrates Court building,

Officer Comment

Initial work has been undertaken to consider a new access
route off Windsor Way into the car park. Unfortunately, the
access requirements in respect of gradients and the extent of
a ramp needed to address the changes in topography make
this an unviable option.

Comments noted. The proposals seek to make best use of the
existing bus station site for residential purposes. The concept
of building flats above the decked car park would require
further thought and will be reliant on the construction
method for the car park.

Comments noted. RBC is in discussions with the landowner
over maintenance and how this will be incorporated into
regeneration proposals. The Prospectus focuses more so on
the principle of development.

56




TGE abed yoed

Respondent

Response
which would involve a certain amount of reconfiguration.

On the diagrams shown, the extent of this site to the south
seems questionable because there is a low wall about halfway
between the Princes Hall and the Westgate site, which seems to
mark the boundary of the Westgate site, but that is not taken
into account.

In particular, the new steps up to the south side of the extension
to the Princes Hall, do not take into account the two low walls
one at the boundary of the Westgate site and the other inside
the Westgate site, which offers a very stark face to Princes Hall.
It would be preferable for the Princes Hall, Police Station and
Magistrates Court site to be developed as a whole, rather than
the piecemeal approach of retaining the Magistrates Court
building.

The extension to the front of the Princes Hall does not seem to
be good value for money in terms of improving the cultural offer
at Princes Hall, which could benefit from extensive
improvements to enable it to accommodate bigger shows (pre-
and post-West End) and better backstage provision.

Also, there is the question of car parking for Princes Hall, which
is already very much constrained following the construction of
Westgate, whose car parking is very often filled by Morrisons
shoppers and Cineworld customers. Both options for
development do not seem to include car parking provision,
particularly if there are residential units that require car parking
spaces.

Birchett Road

Officer Comment

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and will be subject to detailed design. The
Prospectus seeks to promote the principle of development.

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and will be subject to detailed design. The
Prospectus seeks to promote the principle of development.

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and it will be for RBC as the landowner to
determine how best to progress with plans for the site, based
on a combination of financial viability and public demand for
the centre and its cultural offer.

Comments noted. Car parking will need to be carefully
considered as part of the proposals and will need to accord
with the requirements of the Car and Cycle Standards SPD.
This is a matter for detailed design.

57




2S¢ abed yoed

Respondent

Response

It is not clear from this proposal (including the bottom diagram)
whether it is intended to pedestrianize Frederick Street.
Although there was planning permission for housing on this site,
that permission has now lapsed, so that provides an opportunity
to reconsider its use.

For example, at the recent Budget Working Group of Rushmoor
Borough Council, it was suggested that there could be an
opportunity to develop this Birchett Road site in conjunction
with the Council car park in Birchett Road (directly opposite the
site) as that could make better use of both sites.

Also, it looks as though access to car parking for this Birchett
Road site would be by the service road for the shops fronting
onto Victoria Road. However, this service road is often blocked
by large delivery vehicles for Iceland, so some other access to
car parking for housing on this Birchett Road site would be
required.

High Street

It seemed like good news that The King’s Centre was acquired
for refurbishment as an events venue for community use.
The subsequent news that the owners have submitted a
licensing application that sees it open four nights a week until
3.00 am raises the prospect of it being part of the night-time
economy, which is associated with higher levels of anti-social
behaviour and violence in Aldershot Town Centre.

Although that is not a planning matter, that use could affect the
prospects for future investment in the future of Aldershot Town

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Seek clarification on this point and address
it within the final version of the document.

Comments noted. The plans within the Prospectus are
indicative and will be subject to detailed design. Matters
including access and servicing will be considered at this stage.

Comments noted. The Prospectus was drafted on the
understanding that the King Centre had been acquired as an
events venue. Planning permission has since been granted for
such a use. The issue of licencing falls outside of the remit of
the Prospectus.

Comments noted.

58




€Ge abed yoed

Respondent

Response
Centre if the poor reputation for late-night economy was
reinforced.

The proposal for infill development between the new Empire
and the Gala Bingo Building would be an improvement on the
existing use as a car wash, although the car wash is largely
hidden from view behind advertisement hoardings.

Hippodrome House area

Much is made of the poor aspect presented by Hippodrome
House in walking along Station Road from Aldershot Station, so
a refurbishment would be welcome.

However, the news that the Co-operative is to vacate the
Victoria Road premises and its Birchett Road car park on 8
November, creates the exciting prospect of a more extensive
redevelopment of that site than the Prospectus contains.

It opens up the possibility of having a passageway diagonally
across the site to Victoria Road and residential development on
either side of the passageway and on the Birchett Road
frontage, with retail units on the ground floor on Victoria Road.

Making it happen

As highlighted in the introduction a proactive approach is
needed for these proposals to succeed.

Although the Prospectus advances various funding agencies and
sources of finance, it does not propose suitable mechanisms to

coordinate all of these and bring them to bear on an overarching

Officer Comment

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. This proposal was previously considered by
Officers in order to create a better linkage to the town centre.
However, it was discounted on the basis that existing use
value of the site compared to the proposed use value would
not offer enough of an incentive to bring forward a
comprehensive scheme.

59




vG¢ abed 3oed

Respondent

Response
plan.

For that, Rushmoor Borough Council needs to appoint a Project
Director to act as the “champion” of Aldershot Town Centre in
driving forward this development and investment while being
democratically accountable to the local community.

Also, Rushmoor Borough Council should consider setting up a
joint venture company with suitable partners (in the way that
the Westgate development did) in order to provide a suitable
vehicle for managing development and investment in Aldershot
Town Centre with the urgency required.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. As mentioned earlier, this is a matter to be
considered corporately and falls outside of the remit of the
Prospectus SPD.

Comments noted. As mentioned earlier, this is a matter to be
considered corporately and falls outside of the remit of the
Prospectus SPD. The Prospectus provides the foundation upon
which to instigate such ventures.

Rushmoor Pedestrian
Forum

To fulfil objectives to encourage more of us to walk into town, a
good understanding of all the current pedestrian routes is
required. The prospectus is mostly specific on the possible
pedestrian routes joining the Wellesley route to the town centre
but linkage to the rest of the town, especially the residential
areas so close to the town centre, is essential.

Good pedestrian circulation relies on good pedestrian
permeability and ideas of re-creating a link between Union
Street and High Street, removing the Galleries Bridge so as to
create a new way into the Wellington Centre or new shops
around a public space created on the site of the Galleries we
would applaud.

To link better the Prince’s theatre and Westgate with the
Prince’s gardens and with the rest of the town one might
consider severely limiting traffic along Prince’s way and perhaps
making this road and parts of those joining it shared space with
very limited vehicle speed and access.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. The area to the front of the Princes Hall is
identified as an area for public realm improvement. The
indicative proposals for the Princes Hall show this area as a
shared space.

60




GGg abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

Although the Victoria Road scheme tidied up part of the central
region of that road it most certainly left outstanding problems
for the pedestrian. Amongst these are crossing the entrance to
the Wellington multi-storey car park on the north side of
Victoria Road and crossing Frederick Street, Heathland Street
and Gordon Road on the south side. Twenty mile an hour speed
restrictions, with suitable traffic calming measures, are required
on these three roads and the carpark entrance needs to give
higher priority to pedestrians walking along Victoria road.

In particular unless a holistic approach is taken to pedestrian
circulation it is likely that pedestrian routes will become
fragmented and good circulation not achieved. We again
emphasise the importance of introducing 20mph zones,
extending pedestrianisation wherever possible; additionally we
feel that steps need to be taken to ensure that side turnings into
carparks, minor roads and loading areas do not break up the
continuity of pedestrian routes. To encourage people to do
more of their short journeys on foot and ensure that pedestrian
circulation is really achieved it is crucial that the pedestrian
infrastructure is designed properly and in a way that favours the
pedestrian.

It's therefore vital that attempts to expand the evening scene
must create an atmosphere that is acceptable to a wide age
range and cultural outlook and ensures that the town is, at all
times, a place where people are happy to walk round. A locality
which has a ‘rough’ reputation is not going to be the kind of
place many of us would wish to visit or walk round — people
avoid places which they perceive to be unsafe.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Speed restrictions fall outside of the remit
of the Prospectus document and would be a matter for
Hampshire County Council to consider.

Comments noted.

Comments noted. Improvements to the public realm have
sought to improve the perception of safety to pedestrians.
The Court Road proposals have opened up a pedestrian route,
with better lighting and surveillance whereas the Barrack
Road/Grosvenor Road improvements have sought to make
pedestrian movement the priority by reducing vehicular lane
widths and removing vehicular movements from Barrack Road
into Grosvenor Road.

61




9G¢ abed 3oed

Respondent

Response

Removing the bus station and redeveloping the site residentially
could result in the starting points for the various bus services
spread over the town centre. Changing between train and bus,
changing between bus services, or using a bus service that one is
not too familiar with are all aided by having the bus station and
having this adjacent to the train station. This is a feature that
needs to be retained, if use of public transport is to be
encouraged.

A careful reappraisal of the current road arrangement,
introduction of low speed restriction, and redesign to favour
pedestrian access is probably all that is required to improve
pedestrian ways to the bus station. Some minor cosmetic work
would improve the look of the area.

We hope that better pedestrian circulation is achieved and the
advantages of this to retailing is understood. The need to create
a family friendly environment to support both the future and
present population is very laudable. We feel that to achieve all
of this the retail environment must be kept healthy and that just
replacement of the shops by town centre apartments and by a
café environment may not achieve the desired active and lively
town centre. We warn against allowing the evening scene to be
subjected to an alcohol dominated culture which would deter
many of us visiting the town during late evening. We hope that
proposals for development of the bus station do not set back
attempts to encourage more use of public transport.

Officer Comment

Comments noted. The intention is for the bus service to
maintain a presence at the railway station. However, this will
be in the form of a stop rather than a station/depot area.
Stagecoach have been engaged and support the proposals put
forward.

Comments noted.

Comments noted.

Aldershot Town FC

| would like Aldershot FC as part of the vision for Aldershot as
we are the highest profile entity in Aldershot

The club needs to be the hub of the business and local
community

Comments noted. The football club is very important to the
town and is identified as part of the cultural offer section of
the SPD, however as the club falls outside of the defined town
centre boundary, there is limited opportunity to include it as
part of the vision for the town centre.

62




/G€ abed yoed

Respondent

Response

Officer Comment

Stagecoach

My overall impression of the plan is that it is exciting and
visionary but that whilst it mentions the railway station a great
deal and the proposals for the forecourt it seems to completely
omit any facilities for buses throughout the town.

Our bus services offer very frequent services from Farnham,
Guildford, Farnborough and Camberley as well as all the local
areas of housing. Due to the layout of the town, most buses
circulate the town offering convenient drop off and pick up
points. There is evidence that bus passengers spend per trip is
less than car visitors but that they make more trips. Therefore,
for a strong retail environment we believe that bus passengers
are essential.

There is considerable reference to car parking yet this will simply
encourage car visitors yet there is no increase in road capacity
and therefore the congestion on the local roads will simply
increase which in turn will force people to seek alternative
places to visit.

Comments noted. This matter will be picked up by Transport
colleagues.

Comments noted.

Comments noted. RBC will seek transport contributions from
new development in order to offset the impact. A number of
schemes are identified within the Aldershot Town Access Plan.

Thames Water

It is important that the SPD considers the net increase in
wastewater/sewerage [and water] demand to serve proposed
developments and also any impact the development may have
off site further down the network, if no/low water pressure and
internal/external sewage flooding of property is to be avoided

Thames Water therefore recommend that developers engage
with them at the earliest opportunity to establish the following

. The developments demand for Sewage Treatment and

Comments noted. The policy framework in respect of water
management and SUDs is set out within the adopted Core
Strategy and will be incorporated into the emerging Local
Plan. Any new development proposals will be considered
against this wider policy framework.

63




8G¢ abed oed

Respondent

Response
network infrastructure both on and off site and can it be met

. The surface water drainage requirements and flood risk
of the development both on and off site and can it be met

To accord with the NPPF/NPPG and the above, text along the
lines of the following should be added to the SPD:

“Sewerage & Wastewater Infrastructure

It is essential that developers demonstrate that adequate
sewerage and wastewater treatment infrastructure capacity
exists both on and off the site to serve the development and
that it would not lead to problems for existing users. In some
circumstances this may make it necessary for developers to
carry out appropriate studies to ascertain whether the
proposed development will lead to overloading of existing
sewerage infrastructure. Where there is a capacity problem
and no improvements are programmed by the water company,
then the developer needs to contact the water company to
agree what improvements are required and how they will be
delivered and completed prior to any occupation of the
development.

Further information for Developers on sewerage infrastructure
can be found on Thames Water’s website at:
http://www.thameswater.co.uk/home/11425.htm

Or contact can be made with Thames Water Developer Services
By post at: Thames Water Developer Services, Reading
Mailroom, Rose Kiln Court, Rose Kiln Lane, Reading RG2 0BY;
By telephone on: 0845 850 2777;

Officer Comment

64


http://www.thameswater.co.uk/home/11425.htm

6GE abed yoed

Respondent

Response
Or by email: developer.services@thameswater.co.uk”

Limiting the opportunity for surface water entering the foul and
combined sewer networks is of critical importance to Thames
Water. Thames Water have advocated an approach to SuDS that
limits as far as possible the volume of and rate at which surface
water enters the public sewer system. By doing this, SuDS have
the potential to play an important role in helping to ensure the
sewerage network has the capacity to cater for population
growth and the effects of climate change.

SuDS not only help to mitigate flooding, they can also help to:
e improve water quality

provide opportunities for water efficiency

provide enhanced landscape and visual features

support wildlife

and provide amenity and recreational benefits.

With regard to surface water drainage, Thames Water request
that the following paragraph should be included in the Design
SPD: “It is the responsibility of a developer to make proper
provision for surface water drainage to ground, water courses
or surface water sewer. It must not be allowed to drain to the
foul sewer, as this is the major contributor to sewer flooding.”

Officer Comment

The Theatres Trust

The Trust welcomes the retention and refurbishment of Princes
Hall in this document and indeed recognises the potential for a

s106 agreement for redevelopment of the surrounding sites to

pay for the refurbishment of the Hall.

However, from our experience across the UK, having residential
use in close proximity to a theatre or performance venue

Comments noted. No suggested change.

Comments noted. As the landowner, it would be in the

65


mailto:developer.services@thameswater.co.uk

09¢ abed oed

Respondent

Response

inevitably creates serious issues for both the venue and the new
residents. Where there are insufficient safeguards in place
(mainly via sound insulation and creative design), disputes can
emerge and the new residents can request a Noise Abatement
Notice be issued by the council on the theatre restricting its
activities and putting it at risk of closure.

In order to safeguard the theatre, this SPD should note that any
new development adjacent to Princes Hall must be designed and
constructed in such a way that the two uses will not conflict with
each other. We note that the stage door and delivery dock are
to the rear of the site and it will be essential that access and
parking for 16.5m long articulated delivery vehicles will be
maintained. This will also be a source of noise. The alternate
provision of car parking for the theatre will also need to be
addressed at this stage, as this will also affect the viability of the
long term Princes Hall.

Officer Comment

Council’s interest to ensure that appropriate safeguards are in
place to ensure that it can fulfil its commitment to providing a
successful theatre.

Comments noted. The proposals within the SPD reflect an
indicative scheme and should not be read as a detailed design.
The points raised would be considered at this later stage.

Columbia
Threadneedle
Investments

The draft Prospectus in its current form is concerning in a
number of areas and our client feels that these need to be
addressed before the document can reasonably be considered
capable of playing a useful role in the planning process. These
areas are:

i. engagement;

Our client was surprised not to have been given an opportunity
to engage with Allies and Morrison during the preparatory
stages of this draft Prospectus. Columbia Threadneedle
Investments are a major landowner and key commercial
stakeholder in the town centre, so we would have expected the
Council to consult with them as a matter of course before
publishing a document that promotes their asset for

Comments noted. Allies and Morrison to clarify if
Threadneedle was engaged.

66




T9g abed yoed

Respondent

Response
redevelopment.

ii. financial viability and deliverability

We are particularly interested to review the evidence justifying
development proposals for The Galleries, as we would like to
understand how the Council arrived at its decision to identify
the site as suitable for: (i) a significant amount of public realm,
such as a public square and an outdoor pedestrian link; and (ii) a
large leisure facility.

In order to engage fully with this consultation exercise, we need
to understand the decision-making and criteria used in support
of the draft Prospectus’ development options, and to what
extent considerations of land value and cost (particularly SANG
mitigation) have informed the criteria in use.

iii. site capacity.

The Galleries presents one of the best opportunities in the
Borough to deliver development that is highly sustainable in
planning terms. The site occupies a prominent brownfield
location in the heart of the town centre and it is important that
future options maximise the development potential of this
location in order to reduce pressure on other less sustainable
sites.

It follows that we do not agree that the site is only capable of
accommodating perhaps 54 or 121 units. It is unclear how this
capacity has been calculated; it appears to us that the this
guantum of development fails to make best use of this
previously-developed site in line with the requirements of the

Officer Comment

Comments noted. Montagu Evans provided the viability
evidence to support the proposals put forward within the
Prospectus. RBC is happy to meet with the landowner to
discuss this information.

Comments noted.

The capacity has been calculated taking into account general
assumptions such as standard unit size and circulation space.
Final capacity would be the subject of detailed design.

For such a major proposal, RBC would expect a scheme to be

67




29¢ abed »oed

Respondent

Response

NPPF. In our view, both of the options cited in the draft
Prospectus significantly underplay the capacity of this site to
accommodate a major mixed use development. Our client has
drawn up several development schemes for The Galleries, all of
which have been subject to detailed feasibility and market
testing and indicate that over 200 units could be
accommodated. We have discussed these options previously
with the Council and would be willing to share this work with
the Council again.

There are potentially significant anomalies in the current
proposed layout of the development plans for The Galleries,
including the location of development on Little Wellington
Street. This land is not in our client’s ownership, it would require
a stopping up of the public highway, and it conflicts with the
configuration of The Arcade Shopping Centre’s northern
elevation.

At this stage, we remain concerned that the current draft
Prospectus promotes tightly-defined redevelopment options.
This approach potentially compromises the ability of our client
to achieve certainty regarding the range of acceptable planning
uses specific to its asset and would, on this basis, conflict with
the Council’s aspirations for early development of the site.

Officer Comment

of good design, taking into account details such as the
national prescribed space standards. Officers have noted
concerns in this respect with the options presented by the
landowner to date. In addition, given the prominence and
importance of the Galleries site within Aldershot Town
Centre, the proposed scheme should be viewed as more than
a capacity exercise and this is what has underpinned the
alternative approaches put forward within the Prospectus.

Comments noted. The proposals set out within the SPD are
indicative and will need to be the subject of detailed design at
a later stage.

Comments noted. The proposals outlined within the
Prospectus are indicative and RBC would welcome the
opportunity to further discuss proposals with the landowner.

Waverley Borough
Council

We have no comments to make at this stage.

Comments noted. No suggested change.

68




ALDERSHOT TOWN PROSPECTUS Consultation report December 2015 PaCk Page 3@3






	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	2 COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME 2016/17
	3 GRANTS TO VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS
	4 HART LOCAL PLAN - CONSULTATION ON REVISED OPTIONS FOR STRATEGIC NEW HOMES GROWTH AND SITE ALLOCATIONS
	5 ALDERSHOT TOWN CENTRE PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT
	Item 5 - Annex 1 (PRINT VERSION)
	Item 5 - Annex 2 (PRINT VERSION)




